
 
 

 

 

 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 

THURSDAY, 24 NOVEMBER, 2022 
 

 
A BLENDED MEETING of the SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL will be held in the COUNCIL 

CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST. BOSWELLS AND MICROSOFT 

TEAMS on THURSDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2022 at 10.00 AM. 

 

All Attendees, including members of the public, should note that the public business in this 

meeting will be livestreamed and video recorded and that recording will be available 

thereafter for public view for 180 days. 

 
J. J. WILKINSON, 
Clerk to the Council, 
14 November 2022 
 
 

BUSINESS 
  

1.  Convener's Remarks.  
 

 
  

2.  Apologies for Absence.  
 

 
  

3.  Order of Business.  
 

 
  

4.  Declarations of Interest.  
 

 
  

5.  Minute (Pages 5 - 16) 
 

2 mins 
 

 Consider Minute of Scottish Borders Council held on 27 October 2022 for 
approval and signing by the Convener.  (Copy attached.) 
  

 

 
6.  Committee Minutes  

 
5 mins 
 

 Consider Minutes of the following Committees:- 
  
(a)     William Hill Trust                                                23 August 2022 
(b)     Hawick Common Good Fund                             25 August 2022 
(c)     Berwickshire Area Partnership                           1 September 2022 
(d)     Community Planning Strategic Board                8 September 2022 
(e)     Eildon Area Partnership                                     8 September 2022 
(f)      Audit                                                                   12 September 2022 
(g)     Hawick Common Good Fund                             12 September 2022 
(h)     Teviot & Liddesdale Area Partnership               13 September 2022 
(i)      Chambers Institution Trust                                 14 September 2022 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

(j)      Cheviot Area Partnership                                   28 September 2022 
(k)     Cheviot Area Partnership                                   10 October 2022 
  
(Please see separate Supplement containing the public Committee Minutes.) 
   

7.  Administration Policy Plan  
 

15 mins 
 

 Presentation by Leader of the Council.  (Copy to follow.)   
8.  Scottish Borders Council Final Reports and Accounts 2021/22  

 
40 mins 
 

 Consider the following reports (Copies attached except paper for 8(a)(i) 
which is to follow.):- 

 
 
 (a)   Audit Scotland - Annual Reports 2021/22  (Pages 17 - 

52) 
 

  (i) Scottish Borders Council; and 
(ii) Pension Fund 

  
 
 (b)   Acting Chief Financial Officer report on Annual 

Accounts 2021/22  
(Pages 53 - 
58) 

 
 
 (c)   Scottish Borders Council Audited Annual 

Accounts to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 59 - 
184) 

 
 
 (d)   Pension Fund Audited Annual Accounts to 31 

March 2022  
(Pages 185 - 
278) 

 
 
 (e)   SBC Common Good Funds Audited Annual 

Accounts to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 279 - 
308) 

 
 
 (f)   SBC Welfare Trust Audited Annual Accounts for 

the year to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 309 - 
328) 

 
 
 (g)   SBC Education Trust Audited Annual Accounts 

for the year to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 329 - 
348) 

 
 
 (h)   SBC Community Enhancement Trust Audited 

Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 349 - 
368) 

 
 
 (i)   SBC Ormiston Trust for Institute Audited Annual 

Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 369 - 
388) 

 
 
 (j)   SBC Charitable Trusts Audited Annual Accounts 

for the year to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 389 - 
408) 

 
 
 (k)   Bridge Homes LLP Audited Annual Accounts for 

the year to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 409 - 
430) 

 
 
 (l)   Lowood Tweedbank Ltd Annual Accounts for the 

year to 31 March 2022  
(Pages 431 - 
440) 

 
 

9.  Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 (Pages 441 - 460) 
 

10 mins 
 

 Consider report by Acting Chief Financial Officer.  (Copy attached.)   
10.  Day Services Provision in Teviot & Liddesdale  

 
5 mins 
 

 Verbal update by Chief Officer Health & Social Care Integration.    
11.  Climate Change: Council Emissions and Public Reporting (Pages 461 - 

496) 
 

30 mins 
 

 Consider report by Director Infrastructure and Environment.  (Copy 
attached.) 

 
 
12.  Local Development Plan - Development Plan Scheme 2022 (Pages 497 - 20 mins 



 
 
 

516) 
 

 

 Consider report by Director Infrastructure and Environment.  (Copy 
attached.) 

 
 
13.  Tree Policy (Pages 517 - 534) 

 
20 mins 
 

 Consider report by Director Infrastructure and Environment.  (Copy 
attached.) 

 
 
14.  Independent Inquiry Action Plan  

 
5 mins 
 

 Verbal Update by Acting Chief Executive.   
15.  Licensing of Short Term Lets (Pages 535 - 580) 

 
10 mins 
 

 Consider report by Interim Chief Corporate Governance Officer.  (Copy 
attached.) 

 
 
16.  2023 Review of UK Parliamentary Constituencies (Pages 581 - 586) 

 
5 mins 
 

 Consider report by Interim Chief Corporate Governance Officer.  (Copy 
attached.) 

 
 
17.  Motion (Pages 587 - 588) 

 
10 mins 
 

 Consider Motion by Councillor Anderson.  (Copy attached.)   
18.  Appointment  

 
2 mins 
 

 Consider appointment of a member from the Regional Economic Partnership 
to the Regional Land Use Partnerships Advisory Group. 

 
 
19.  Open Questions  

 
15 mins 
  

20.  Any Other Items Previously Circulated  
 

 
  

21.  Any Other Items Which the Convener Decides Are Urgent  
 

 
  

22.  Private Business  
 

 
 

 Before proceeding with the private business, the following motion should be 
approved:- 

  
“That under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the 
aforementioned Act.” 

 

 
23.  Minute (Pages 589 - 590) 

 
1 mins 
 

 Consider private Section of Minute of Scottish Borders Council held on 27 
October 2022.  (Copy attached.) 

 
 
24.  Committee Minutes  

 
1 mins 
 

 Consider private Sections of the Minutes of the following Committees:- 
  
(a)     Hawick Common Good Fund                             25 August 2022 

 



 
 
 

(b)     Hawick Common Good Fund                             12 September 2022 
(c)     Chambers Institution Trust                                 14 September 2022 
  
(Please see separate Supplement containing private Committee Minutes.)  

 
 
NOTES 
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions. 
 
2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 

item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting. 

 
 
Please direct any enquiries to Louise McGeoch Tel 01835 825005 
email lmcgeoch@scotborders.gov.uk 
 
 



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

 MINUTE of Blended MEETING of the 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL held in 
Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells 
and Microsoft Teams on 27 October 2022 at 
10.00 a.m. 

 ------------------ 
 

Present:- Councillors W. McAteer (Convener), J. Anderson, D. Begg, P. Brown, C. 
Cochrane, J. Cox, L. Douglas, M. Douglas, J. Greenwell, C. Hamilton, S. 
Hamilton, E. Jardine, J. Linehan, N. MacKinnon, S. Marshall, D. Moffat, S. 
Mountford, A. Orr, D. Parker, J. PatonDay, J. Pirone, C. Ramage, N. Richards, E. 
Robson, M. Rowley, S. Scott, F. Sinclair, E. Small, H. Steel, R. Tatler, V. 
Thomson, E. Thornton-Nicol, T. Weatherston 

Apologies:- Councillor A. Smart 
In Attendance:-  Acting Chief Executive, Director Education and Lifelong Learning, Director 

Infrastructure and Environment, Director Resilient Communities, Director Social 
Work and Practice, Director Strategic Commissioning and Partnerships, Chief 
Officer Health & Social Care integration, Acting Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Legal Officer, Clerk to the Council. 

---------------------------------------- 
  
 
1. CONVENER’S REMARKS 
 The Convener congratulated those communities which had taken part in the Greener 

Gateways competition and the fantastic efforts made by volunteers in towns and villages 
across the Borders.  He also congratulated the Eyemouth Enhancement Group who had won 
a Keep Scotland Beautiful Award, RHS Scotland Award for Overcoming Adversity. 

 
 DECISION 
 AGREED to pass congratulations to those concerned. 
 
2. MINUTE 
 The Minute of the Meeting held on 29 September 2022 was considered.   

 
DECISION 
AGREED that the Minute be approved and signed by the Convener. 
 

3. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 The Minutes of the following Committees had been circulated:- 
 
 Local Review Body                                            15 August 2022 
 Tweeddale Area Partnership                             23 August 2022 
 Innerleithen Common Good Fund                     24 August 2022 
 Planning & Building Standards                          5 September 2022 
 Melrose Common Good Fund                            8 September 2022 
 Galashiels Common Good Fund                       8 September 2022 
 Jedburgh Common Good Fund                         12 September 2022 
 Executive                                                            13 September 2022 
 Kelso Common Good Fund                               13 September 2022 
 Chambers Institution Trust                                 14 September 2022 
 Pension Fund                                                     15 September 2022 
 Pension Board                                                    15 September 2022 
 Innerleithen Common Good Fund                     15 September 2022 
 Local Review Body                                            22 September 2022 
 Planning & Building Standards                          3 October 2022 
 Executive                                                            4 October 2022 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



  
 
 DECISION 

APPROVED the Minutes listed above.  
 

4. REVIEW GROUP UPDATE IN CONNECTION WITH INDEPENDENT INQUIRY ACTION 
PLAN 
With reference to paragraph 8 of the Minute of 29 September 2022, there had been 
circulated copies of a report by the Acting Chief Executive providing the second formal 
update from the Inquiry Review Group which was established to progress the work identified 
following the independent investigation into the Council’s handling of concerns raised about a 
former Scottish Borders Council employee.  The report explained that work had continued in 
respect of all actions listed in the Action Plan.  Good progress had been made on a second 
tranche of actions from the Action Plan, as contained in Appendix 1 to the report, which were 
now complete as highlighted in the report.  A further update report would be brought to 
Council in November (relating to outcome actions 4 and 10) seeking sign off of these 
remaining outstanding actions and any other issues.  Members welcomed the progress made 
to date. 
 
DECISION 

 AGREED to:- 
 

(a) note the progress of the Review Group as detailed in the report; 
 
(b) approve the following actions from the Action Plan as being complete: 
 

• Action 1 (b): Create a clear reporting mechanism which demonstrates 
progress against all actions and changes agreed by the Review Group, and 
achieve sign off by Council; 

 
• Action 3(b): Consider the Terms of Reference for CSOG in light of the Inquiry 

report and its recommendations; 
 

• Action 6(e) and (f): Following on from actions 6 (a-d) have the Councils 
Disciplinary Procedure moderated by the Improvement Service. Create an 
implementation plan for the new Procedures, to include, training, briefing 
sessions and communication strategy; 

 
• Action 9(a) and (b): Update the Disciplinary Procedures and Guidelines to 

expressly articulate that conduct involving children can be determined as 
misconduct or gross misconduct. Procedures will be moderated against best 
practice. Update and disseminate information from (a) into the Council’s 
Managing Disciplinary Cases training course; 

 
• Actions 12(a) and (b): Creation of a protocol that establishes all HR 

disciplinary related information must be held in the HR Case Management 
System. Implement and train managers regarding this.  Create a process for 
ensuring that the rationale for Disciplinary investigation decisions is 
appropriately recorded in the HR Case Management system. Implement and 
train managers regarding this; 

 
• Action 12(e): Ensure there is a clear process where any referrals concerning a 

staff member to the CPU is by default copied to the HR Case Management 
System (failsafe measure). 

 
 
 

Page 6



5. CHIEF SOCIAL WORKER ANNUAL REPORT 
 There had been circulated copies of a report by the Director Social Work and Practice 

containing the Chief Social Work Officer (CSWO) annual report on the work undertaken on 
behalf of the Council by the CSWO in this statutory role for 2021/22.  The report provided an 
account of the decisions taken by the CSWO in the statutory areas of Fostering and 
Adoption, Child Protection, Secure Orders, Adult Protection, Adults with Incapacity, Mental 
Health and Justice.  The report also gave an overview of regulation and inspection, 
workforce issues and social policy themes over the year April 2021 to March 2022, and 
highlighted some of the key challenges for that year.  As had been the case for the last few 
years, the format of the report was a shortened version from that which was produced prior 
to the pandemic.  This ongoing arrangement had been kept in place to recognise the 
workload implications caused by the Covid-19 pandemic and pressures that had continued 
across the Social Work & Social Care landscape as the service emerged from this.  The 
Director highlighted the main points in the report and commented on the increasing demand 
for services as well as the Social Work Pathfinder Project.  Members thanked Mr 
Easingwood and his staff for their work in the most challenging of circumstances and, in 
response to a request from Councillor Thornton-Nicol, gave staff a round of applause.  Mr 
Easingwood answered Members’ questions and advised that there was a project looking at 
the transition between child and adult services.  He further advised that he was committed to 
building self-assessment and self-evaluation into services as it was important to identify 
where the strengths and weaknesses lay.  The need for short-breaks for unpaid carers was a 
priority.  However, although it was not possible to meet all needs, it was important to make 
best use of the resources available. 
 
DECISION 

 AGREED to approve the Report of the Chief Social Work Officer as contained in the 
Appendix to the report. 
 

6. DAY SERVICES PROVISION IN TEVIOT AN LIDDESDALE – NEXT STEPS 
 With reference to paragraph 17 of the Minute of 29 September 2022, there had been 

circulated copies of a report by the Chief Officer Health and Social Care Integration advising 
Members of the next steps relating to reviewing Day Service provision in Teviot and 
Liddesdale.  The report explained that the intention was to design a seamless service offering 
across Health and Social Care services, which would provide enabling, person-centred and 
relationship centred support.  This would include the provision of information and support to 
both carers and those being cared for who used services.  Work on the future design of day 
services would be treated as a fresh process, with a new Integrated Impact Assessment and 
further consultation within the Teviot and Liddesdale locality initially.  This would help inform 
similar future work in other localities and would include work to explore opportunities to 
integrate with services and to develop new approaches.  No decisions as to the future model 
of day service delivery had as yet been made, and a future consultation on the model of day 
service provision would now be undertaken, referencing the work of the unpaid carers group. 
Work to re-design services would adopt the principles of co–production, fully involving and 
engaging service users, carers, and other stakeholders in a thorough process of consultation.  
The process would ensure that equalities issues were fully identified and addressed, along 
with the views of consultees in developing the future service delivery model.  A paper would 
now be produced making recommendations for review by the Integration Joint Board 
Strategic Planning Group in November, prior to discussion at the Integration Joint Board in 
December.  This would then be brought back to Council with a recommended way forward.   
Members welcomed the report and emphasised the need for a robust review and the need 
for the new services to be provided as soon as possible.  In response to a question on the 
legal requirements of the judgement, the Chief Legal officer advised that external legal advice 
had been taken and she was content that the Council were taking the necessary steps to 
meet the requirements imposed by Lady Carmichael.  The decision of Court was specific to 
Teviot & Liddesdale and once that had been looked at, further consideration would be given 
to the rest of Day Services across the Borders.  The Acting Chief Executive assured 
Members that the decision to close the Day Centre had not been taken on financial grounds, 
as often it was more expensive to provide services out-with a Day Centre, but was instead 

Page 7



trying to meet the needs of users within communities.  The Council recognised that the 
decision to close had been wrong and the judgement had been accepted.  Officers were 
acting as quickly as possible to bring back further details to Members as early as was 
practicable.   

 
 DECISION 
 AGREED:- 
 
 (a) to note the update on the next steps in reviewing Day Service provision in Teviot 

and Liddesdale;  
 
 (b) that a new process of consultation on the design and delivery of day services, 

and new equalities impact assessment would now be undertaken; and 
 
 (c) to request that a report recommending the way forward for day services be 

brought back to Council by the Chief Officer following appropriate consideration 
with the Integration Joint Board. 

    
7. INSPIRE FOR LEARNING PRESENTATION 
 The Acting Chief Executive gave Members a presentation on the Inspire for Learning journey, 

covering key aspects of the Inspire for Learning programme.  This work put Scottish Borders 
at the cutting edge of digital education and Apple was using Scottish Borders as a case study 
worldwide, putting the Borders at the forefront of digital education across the world.  He also 
commented on the new centre which had been opened in Tweedbank.  Members were 
shown a video of the work of Viewfinders in Hawick which opened the world of film making to 
young people.  Members paid tribute to the staff involved in this work and expressed the 
hope that this would attract IT jobs to the Borders.  Members who had been part of the 
previous Council commented on the criticism received when the original decision was taken 
but it had proved invaluable during the pandemic and presented an opportunity to engage all 
pupils in school life.  The E-sports project was highlighted and that Scottish Borders would be 
the first area to offer this option in all secondary schools. 

 
DECISION 
NOTED the presentation. 
  

8. LICENSING OF SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES 
 With reference to paragraph 10 of the Minute of 31 March 2002, there had been circulated 

copies of a report by the Chief Legal Officer advising Members of the responses received to 
the Stage 2 consultation on the content of the Council’s draft Policy Statement on the 
Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues (“SEVs”) in the Scottish Borders area.  The report 
explained that at its meeting on 31 March 2022, Council approved the draft Policy Statement 
and instructed the Director Finance and Regulatory Services to carry out a Stage 2 public 
consultation.  Following the conclusion of the stage 2 consultation on 18 September 2022, 17 
responses had been received and these responses were detailed in Appendix 1 to the report.  
The responses received to the stage 2 consultation were overwhelmingly in favour of the 
content of the Council’s draft Policy Statement on the Licensing of SEVs.  A copy of the 
Council’s draft Policy Statement on the Licensing of SEVs was contained in Appendix 2 to 
the report.  Members supported the policy and agreed that the number should be zero.  
However, they did comment on the disappointing response to the consultation and the need for 
better public engagement. 

 
 DECISION 
 AGREED to adopt the draft Policy Statement on the Licensing of SEV’s with 

immediate effect. 
 
 
 

Page 8



9. SCHEME OF ADMINISTRATION 
 With reference to paragraph 14 of the Minute of 25 August 2022, there had been circulated 

copies of a report by the Acting Chief Executive seeking approval for changes to the 
membership of the Executive Committee.  The report explained that the membership of the 
Executive Committee was specifically considered at two meetings of the Members’ Cross 
Party Working Group:  Scheme of Administration.  A number of different views were 
presented but there was agreement that the membership of the Committee should be 
increased to reflect the whole concept of Members from across the political spectrum working 
together in a collegiate way.  The current two members of the Executive Committee from out-
with the Administration had allowed an expression of ideas, challenges and a different 
political perspective being brought to decision making.  It was therefore proposed to increase 
this and that a further two members from out-with the Administration be added to the 
membership of the Executive Committee.  The membership of the Committee would be 
reviewed after one year, or should issues arise impacting on the working of the Committee, at 
an earlier time.  Members supported the proposal and Councillor Thornton-Nicol, seconded 
by Councillor Jardine, moved that Councillors Marshall Douglas and Sinclair be appointed.  
This was unanimously approved. 

 
 DECISION 
 AGREED:- 
 
 (a) to extend the membership of the Executive Committee to a total of 

seventeen members, to include a further two members from out-
with the Administration, and amend the Interim Scheme of 
Administration accordingly;  

 
 (b) to appoint Councillors M. Douglas and Sinclair from out-with the 

Administration to the Executive Committee; and 
 
 (c) that the membership of the Executive Committee be reviewed after 

a year, or should issues arise impacting on the working of the 
Committee, at an earlier time. 

 
10. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 With reference to paragraph 14 of the Minute of 25 August 2022, there had been circulated 

copies of a report by the Acting Chief Executive seeking approval for a process to allow 
members of the public to submit questions to be answered at meetings of Scottish Borders 
Council.  It was agreed at the August Council meeting that a further report be considered at 
the next Council meeting with details of how the submission of questions from members of 
the public to full Council meetings could work.  At its meeting held on 23 September 2022, 
the Members’ Cross Party Working Group:  Scheme of Administration, considered a draft 
procedure, template and contact form.  Details of the draft procedure were contained in 
Appendix 1 to the report and the question template and contact details form were contained 
in Appendices 2 and 3 respectively.  It was hoped that by including an item on the Council 
agenda for questions from members of the public, this would be another avenue for public 
engagement with the Council.  It would also be complementary to the Open Questions item 
for Elected Members which was included in each Council agenda.  The Clerk to the Council 
presented the report and asked that she be given delegated powers to add the information 
agreed by the Working Group into the process and this was agreed.  Members welcomed this 
additional method of engaging the community in the work of the Council.  Members proposed 
that an interim report be provided after 6 months and this was agreed. 

 
 DECISION 
 AGREED:- 

 
(a) to approve the procedure for Questions from the Public at Council meetings, as 

detailed in Appendix 1 to the report subject to the delegation of powers to the 
Clerk to the Council to add the further matters agreed by the Working Group;  

Page 9



 
(b) to approve the template for the submission of questions from the public, as 

detailed in Appendix 2 to the report;  
 
(c) to approve the contact details form to accompany any question submitted by a 

member of the public, as detailed in Appendix 3 to the report;  
 
(d) to delegate authority to the Clerk to the Council to make the necessary changes 

to the Scheme of Administration; and  
 
(e) that the submission of questions by members of the public for Council was 

reviewed after one year, to ascertain the benefits and consider whether such a 
process should continue with an interim report on questions from the public 
being presented to Council after 6 months. 

 
11. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 It was noted that a Vice-Chair required to be appointed for the Planning and Building 

Standards Committee and Local Review Body.  Councillor Mountford, seconded by 
Councillor Thomson, moved that Councillor Marshall Douglas be appointed and this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 
 DECISION 
 AGREED that Councillor Marshall Douglas be appointed as Vice Chair of the Planning 

and Building Standards Committee and the Local Review Body.  
 
12. APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER BODIES 
12.1 It was noted that Councillor Parker no longer wished to be a Member of the Wellbeing and 

Safety Committee.  Councillor Jardine, seconded by Councillor Small, moved that Councillor 
Greenwell be appointed and this was unanimously agreed. 

 
12.2 It was noted that Councillor Cox was to remain as a Member of the SEStran Partnership 

Board so no appointment was needed. 
 
 DECISION 
 AGREED that Councillor Greenwell be appointed to the Wellbeing and Safety 

Committee. 
 
13. OPEN QUESTIONS 
 The questions submitted by Councillors Anderson, Begg, Robson and Steel were answered.   
 
 DECISION 
 NOTED the replies as detailed in Appendix I to this Minute. 
  
14. PRIVATE BUSINESS 
 DECISION 
 AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to 

exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the business detailed in  
Appendix II to this Minute on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 6, 8 and 9 of Part I of Schedule 7A to 
the Act. 

 
 SUMMARY OF PRIVATE BUSINESS 

 
15. Committee Minutes 
 The private sections of the Committee Minutes as detailed in paragraph 3 of this Minute were 

approved. 
 
16. Inspire Academy – Building on Success 

Page 10



 Members approved a report by the Director Education and Lifelong Learning on the future of 
the Inspire Academy. 

 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 1.00 p.m. 
 

Page 11



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
27 OCTOBER 2022  

APPENDIX I 
 

OPEN QUESTIONS 
 

Questions from Councillor Anderson 
 
1. To Executive Member for Roads Development & Maintenance  
As the Council pushes for a greener way of traveling, and residents are encouraged to buy electric 
vehicles, what is SBC doing to ensure that the infrastructure that will feed the electric car revolution 
is being planned for and put into place?  
 
As SBC plans for greener fleet vehicles, we ourselves have a shortage of charging points that are 
of high enough voltage. Has the Scottish Government given guidance on how to renew 
infrastructure with a plan to fund such upgrades?  
 
As a rural area, would investment in Hydrogen technology or hybrid technology be a better way 
forward?  
 
Should SBC be seen to encourage electric vehicles when the infrastructure is not in place with 
large enough coverage, which leaves residents disappointed and angry?  
 
Response from Councillor Greenwell 
The public charging infrastructure delivered by Scottish Borders Council over the last 10 years has 
been achieved with funding from Scottish Government and Transport Scotland. 
 
This approach was adopted to support the growth in EV vehicle ownership and Scotland’s journey 
to achieving Net-Zero by 2045. 
 
The Council was successful in a bid to the UK Community Renewal Fund, to deliver an EV 
Charging Feasibility Study for the Scottish Borders.  The key aim of the study is to deliver private 
investment equitably across the Scottish Borders.  
   
A report is being prepared for Council 24 November 2022 seeking endorsement of the feasibility 
study recommendations and to seek further funding from Transport Scotland and Scottish Futures 
Trust. 
 
Currently we are operating 72 charging points at SBC locations funded by Switched on Fleet.  In 
addition, a further separately funded “HQ Smartgrid” project is nearing completion which will see 
an additional 70 charging points ranging from 7kw to 22kw installed at the Newtown depot and at 
HQ Bowden road.  As part of this project, some of the points will be publically available. 
 
We currently have 60 electric vehicles with a further 24 in procurement for 22/23. For 2022/23 we 
applied for vehicle funding through SoF but have so far been rejected, they have recommended 
that we seek funding for further installations of charging infrastructure which is now in progress. 
 
Part of the EV Charging Infrastructure Feasibility study recognises that there is too much 
uncertainty in terms of technology development, consumer behaviour and other fuel alternatives to 
commit to EV Charging infrastructure for a predicted demand in 2030.  So a recommendation to 
Council will be that an initial phase of development of new EV charging infrastructure will be 
delivered for 2026 predictions and in 2025/26 the assumptions in this current modelling will be re-
assessed to define the next phase of development for 2030 demand.  This re-assessment will take 
account of technology developments, other alternative fuels including hydrogen, which also 
requires significant investment in infrastructure, consumer behaviours, journey habits etc. to define 
the investment needed for a second phase of investment for 2030 demand. 
 

Page 12



Scotland has committed to being Net-Zero by 2045 with strong targets of being 70% to net-zero by 
2030.  Scottish Borders Council has maximised the investment of external funding to deliver the 
current network of chargers and maintain them within existing budgets.  The new approach to 
deliver private sector investment to the region is an essential step to help the Scottish Borders 
contribute to Scotland’s Net-zero targets and will support a growth in EV vehicle uptake in the 
region.   
 
2. To Executive Member for Community and Business Development 
What is being done to support rural residents who live next to newly installed fibre optic internet 
lines, but are not being connected to them?  BT and Open Reach have been unhelpful and 
unresponsive.   
 
What is SBC doing, or planning to do, to ensure our residents are supported in obtaining FTTP 
(fibre to the property)?  Is the Administration pushing our MP & MSP to support this much required 
service?  
 
Response from Councillor Scott Hamilton 
Scottish Borders Council is working closely with Scottish Government to support the roll-out of 
R100 (‘Reaching 100%’) broadband in the Scottish Borders.  An update on progress was given to 
Executive Committee on 13 September 2022. 
 
Openreach is currently building full fibre networks across the Scottish Borders. 
 
Some of this build is commercially funded by Openreach, some is part of the Scottish 
Government’s R100 Programme, and some will be privately funded. 
 
Other providers are also building full fibre networks in the Scottish Borders (e.g. Borderlink/Go 
Fibre). 
 
There are strict rules (State Aid/Subsidy Control/Procurement) in place that determine where public 
money can be spent on new broadband infrastructure – these apply to the R100 Programme.   
 
The R100 Programme supports all properties to access speeds above 30 Mbps. 
 
Properties not in commercial plans or the R100 contracts are eligible for a voucher of up to £5,000 
via the R100 Scottish Broadband Voucher Scheme to provide access. 
 
Residents and businesses can check if they already have a superfast connection, or when a 
superfast connection is planned, by entering their postcode at www.scotlandsuperfast.com and this 
site also provides a range of further useful information. 
 
Question from Councillor Begg 
 
To Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Is the Executive Member aware of industrial peat extraction in Scottish Borders and do they 
support this? 
 
Response from Councillor Linehan 
There is one site in the Scottish Borders where peat extraction is currently being undertaken, at 
Whim Moss near Lamancha.  The site has been operating since the late 1970’s and has a valid 
permission that extends to 31 December 2040.  A determination of minerals planning conditions 
application was granted in 2001, which was then subject to a periodic review in 2016.  The terms of 
the planning conditions will be reviewed again in 2031.  The site is operated by Westland 
Horticulture. 
 
Historically, there has been peat extraction permissions in the Scottish Borders at Kitleyknowe 
near Carlops, which is now restored and at White Moss to the SW of West Linton, which is a 
dormant site that no longer has valid consent to operate. 

Page 13

http://www.scotlandsuperfast.com/


 
The Development Plan and any other material factors must guide the Council’s consideration of 
any proposals for peat extraction.  Both the Adopted and Proposed Local Development Plans 
contain policies (Policy ED10 (Protection of Prime Quality Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils) 
and Policy ED12 (Mineral and Coal Extraction)) that seek to protect against development that 
results in the permanent loss of significant carbon rich soil reserves.  
 
Whilst there is no specific policy on peat extraction in either plan, the version of Policy ED12 
included in the Proposed Plan now includes explicit reference to peat extraction. The last 
paragraph of the proposed policy states:  
 
“There will be a presumption against peat extraction and other developments likely to have an 
adverse effect on peatland and/or carbon rich soils within class 1 and 2 peatland areas”.   
 
The precise wording of this policy will be determined during the current Examination on the 
Proposed LDP but it does reflect closely the wording recommended to the Council by NatureScot, 
in its representations to the Proposed Local Development Plan 
 
It is anticipated that the revised National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) will be laid before 
parliament this autumn and approved in the early part of 2023.  It is important to note that NPF4 
will become part of the development plan once approved and that this will provide the strategic 
policy direction and guidance for considering any application for peat extraction. 
 
As currently drafted, the policies in the Draft NPF4 emphasise strongly the need to protect peat 
resources and focus on restoration of peatland/peatland environments rather than peat extraction. 
However provision (d) of draft Policy 33: Soils specifically states that: 
 
“Development proposals for new commercial peat extraction, including extensions to existing sites, 
should not be supported, unless:  
• the extracted peat is supporting an industry of national importance to Scotland, and  
• there is no reasonable substitute; and  
• the area of extraction is the minimum necessary and the proposal aims to retain a residual depth 
of peat of no less than one metre across the whole site; and  
• the time period for extraction is the minimum necessary; and the proposal is supported by a 
comprehensive site restoration plan which will return the area of extraction back to its original 
environmental status”. 
 
Whilst this policy may be subject to change through the review of consultation responses and the 
parliamentary process, it does give a strong indication of the “route of travel” of the policies relating 
to peat extraction. 
 
Supplementary 
Councillor Begg asked if Councillor Linehan and Scottish Borders Council could seek to influence 
Scottish Government delivery plans and support the alternative of mass composting from waste to 
prevent the further destruction of peat bogs.  Councillor Linehan confirmed she would consult with 
officers and respond directly to Councillor Begg. 
 
Question from Councillor Robson 
 
To Executive Member for Education and Lifelong Learning  
Is there a programme to improve wifi reception and to replace white boards in primary schools? 
 
Response from Councillor Douglas 
The project for additional and improved wifi in primary is progressing with CGI. 
Work in Secondary schools will commence in November to ensure additional areas of schools also 
have robust wifi. 
 

Page 14



There is not, nor has there ever been, a programme to replace and sustain interactive whiteboards 
in primary schools. These boards are additional kit which have been procured by schools 
independently of IT provision. 
 
Inspire Learning does not require interactive screens, instead making use of projection (or 
“casting”) using a projector or Apple TV device and a white surface.  Provision for this was made 
within the rollout of iPads with Apple TV’s provided in all schools.  While iPads can interact with 
Interactive boards, the casting solution is more sustainable and cost effective and therefore when 
boards come to end of life, replacement can be with a simpler kit. 
 
Supplementary 
Councillor Robson asked if an update on progress could be provided in due course and Councillor 
Douglas agreed to raise this with officers. 
 
Question from Councillor Steel 
 
To Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
What plans are in place to deal with the twin threats of Sudden Larch Death and Ash Dieback? 
 
Response from Councillor Linehan 
Thank you for your question.  
 
Larch and sudden oak death are coordinated through Forestry Scotland.  
 
If SBC suspect that there may be a case of this, then Council Officers will report this to Forestry 
Scotland’s regional Area Plant Health Officer.  As far as we are aware there have been no cases to 
date. 
 
Forestry Scotland have a national database for Phytophthora (diseases which causes sudden larch 
and oak death), along with details of restrictions and co-ordinated movement for timber production 
in this regard. 
 
The cyclical risk assessment that the Council undertakes picks up on any Ash tree(s) which may 
have Ash Dieback Disease and require action, and also looks at other disease in trees. 
 
Regarding Ash Dieback, we take advice from Scottish Government guidance and participate in the 
Scottish Tree Officer Group (STOG) who assess the risks provide regular information and updates 
including webinars, CPD and best practice.  
 
The Association for Public Service Excellence (APSE) have produced a briefing note on Ash 
Dieback Disease.  This provides a summary survey results carried out by UK local authorities, 
looking at the impact of Ash Dieback including estimated tree losses, the financial costs of dealing 
with the disease, future threats and some of the techniques local authorities are using to gather 
more data on the disease, including how any losses will be addressed through the planting of new 
trees including biosecurity considerations. 
 
Officers can provide copies of latest advice from STOG and APSE if this would be helpful.  
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Prepared for Scottish Borders Council as administering authority for Scottish Borders 
Council Pension Fund and the Controller of Audit 

October 2022 

Scottish Borders Council 
Pension Fund 

2021/22 Annual Audit Report  
 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8a



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund  | 2 

Contents 
 

Key messages 3 

Introduction 5 

1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts 8 

2. Financial management 15 

3. Financial sustainability 18 

4. Governance and transparency 21 

5. Best Value 24 

Appendix 1 28 

Appendix 2 33 

Appendix 3 34 

Page 18



Key messages | 3 

 

Key messages 
 

2021/22 annual report and accounts 

1 Our audit opinions on the annual report and accounts are unmodified. 

2 The financial statements of Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund as at 31 March 2022 and 
have been properly prepared in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework. 

Financial management  

3 The Fund pays out more than it collects annually from fund members, with 
investment returns making up the difference. The value of the Fund increased 
by 5.9% to £911 million during 2021/22, but investment performance was 
below the benchmark return set for the year. 

4 The Fund has appropriate and effective financial management arrangements 
in place which includes comprehensive reporting of investment performance. 

Financial sustainability 

5 Recent triennial valuations provide assurance over the financial sustainability  
of the fund and the viability of its funding strategy. 

6 The Fund reviewed its investment strategy following the March 2020 triennial 
valuation and will continue to diversify the investment structure to support 
income generation. 

Governance and transparency 

7 Governance arrangements have been appropriate and operated effectively. 

8 There is effective scrutiny, challenge and informed decision-making by 
committee. 

9 The Fund actively considers Environmental, Social and Governance matters 
as part of its Investment Strategy. 

Best Value  

10 The Fund has an appropriate best value framework in place which includes 
effective arrangements for monitoring investment performance and 
scrutinising management expenses. 

Page 19



Key messages | 4 

 

11 Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund was awarded Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Fund of the Year (assets under £2.5bn) at the 
LAPF Investments Awards. 

12 2021/22 was a challenging year for Scottish Local Government Pension 
Schemes. Ten of the eleven funds still reported positive movements in net 
assets during the year, but only three of those funds, not including Scottish 
Borders, reported above benchmark returns. 

Page 20



Introduction | 5 

 

Introduction 
 

1.  This report is a summary of our findings arising from the 2021/22 audit of 
Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund (the Fund). 

2.  The scope of our audit was set out in our Annual Audit Plan presented to the 
March 2022 meeting of the Pension Fund Committee and to the March 2022 
Audit and Scrutiny Committee. This report comprises: 

• an audit of the Fund’s annual report and accounts  

• consideration of the wider dimensions of financial management, financial 
sustainability, governance and transparency, and value for money, that 
frame the wider scope of public audit set out in the Code of Audit Practice 
2016.  

3.  The main elements of our audit work in 2021/22 have been: 

• an audit of the Fund’s 2021/22 annual report and accounts including the 
issue of an independent auditor’s report setting out our opinions 

• a review of the Fund’s main financial systems  

• consideration of the four audit dimensions of financial management, 
financial sustainability, governance and transparency and value for 
money.  

Added Value 

4.  We add value to the Fund through the audit by: 

• identifying and providing insight on significant risks, and making clear and 

relevant recommendations  

• sharing intelligence and good practice through our national reports 
(Appendix 3) and good practice guides  

• providing clear and focused conclusions on the appropriateness, 
effectiveness and impact of corporate governance, performance 
management arrangements and financial sustainability. 

Responsibilities and reporting 

5.  Scottish Borders Council is the administering authority for the Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Fund. The council delegates this responsibility to the 
Pension Fund Committee. The committee is responsible for establishing 
effective governance arrangements and ensuring that financial management is 

Page 21

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/code-of-audit-practice-2016
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/code-of-audit-practice-2016


Introduction | 6 

 

effective. The Pension Fund Committee also recommends the annual report 
and accounts for approval by the Council. The Council’s Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of internal control 
arrangements. 

6.  Our responsibilities as independent auditors are established by the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Code of Audit Practice 2016, and 
supplementary guidance, and International Standards on Auditing in the UK. 

7.  As public sector auditors we give independent opinions on the annual 
accounts. Additionally, we also conclude on: 

• the effectiveness of the Fund’s performance management arrangements  

• suitability and effectiveness of corporate governance arrangements and 
financial position 

• arrangements for securing financial sustainability.  

8.  Further details of the respective responsibilities of management and the 
auditor can be found in the Code of Audit Practice 2016 and supplementary 
guidance. 

9.  This report raises matters from the audit of the annual accounts and 
consideration of the audit dimensions. Weaknesses or risks identified are only 
those which have come to our attention during our normal audit work and may 
not be all that exist. Communicating these does not absolve management from 
its responsibility to address the issues we raise and to maintain adequate 
systems of control. 

10.  Our annual audit report contains an agreed action plan at Appendix 1 
setting out specific recommendations, responsible officers, and dates for 
implementation. It also includes any outstanding actions from last year and 
progress against these. 

Auditor Independence 

11.  Auditors appointed by the Accounts Commission or Auditor General must 
comply with the Code of Audit Practice and relevant supporting guidance. When 
auditing the financial statements auditors must comply with professional 
standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and those of the 
professional accountancy bodies.  

12.  We can confirm that we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s 
Ethical Standard. We can also confirm that we have not undertaken any non-
audit related services and therefore the 2021/22 audit fee of £22,110 as set out 
in our Annual Audit Plan remains unchanged. 

13.  This report is addressed to both the members of the Pension Fund 
Committee and the Controller of Audit and will be published on Audit Scotland’s 
website www.audit-scotland.gov.uk in due course.  

Page 22

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/


Introduction | 7 

 

Audit appointment from 2022/23 

14.  The Accounts Commission is responsible for the appointment of external 
auditors to local government bodies. External auditors are usually appointed for 
a five-year term either from Audit Scotland’s Audit Services Group or a private 
firm of accountants. The current appointment round was due to end in 2020/21 
but this was extended for a year so that 2021/22 is the last year of the current 
appointment round. 

15.  The procurement process for the new round of audit appointments covering 
2022/23 to 2026/27 was completed in May 2022 and Audit Scotland has again 
been appointed as the external auditor for Scottish Borders Council Pension 
Fund. Although Audit Scotland remain the board’s external auditors, to maintain 
the independence and objectivity of the audit team, the engagement lead and 
other staff working on the audit will be changed for the 2022/23 audit. The 
outgoing audit team will work with officers and the new audit team to ensure a 
smooth transition.   

16.  A new Code of Audit Practice applies to public sector audits for financial 
years starting on or after 1 April 2022. It replaces the Code issued in May 2016. 

17.  We would like to thank Committee members and other staff, particularly 
those in finance and the pensions administration team for their co-operation and 
assistance over the last six years. 

 

Page 23

https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2021/as_code_audit_practice_21.pdf


1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts | 8 

 

1. Audit of 2021/22 annual 
report and accounts 
The principal means of accounting for the stewardship of resources and 
performance  

Main judgements 

Our audit opinions on the annual report and accounts are unmodified. 
 

The financial statements of Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund as at 31 March 2022 and have 
been properly prepared in accordance with the financial reporting framework. 

Our audit opinions on the annual report and accounts are 
unmodified 

18.  The annual report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 were 
approved by the Scottish Borders Council on 24th November 2022. We 
reported, within the independent auditor’s report that: 

• the financial statements give a true and fair view and were properly 
prepared in accordance with the financial reporting framework 

• the management commentary, annual governance statement and 
governance compliance statement were all consistent with the financial 
statements and properly prepared in accordance with the guidance. 

The Covid-19 pandemic had no impact on audit evidence  

19.  The completeness and accuracy of accounting records and the extent of 
information and explanations that we required for our audit were not affected by 
the Covid-19 outbreak. 

20.  The working papers provided with the unaudited accounts were of a good 
standard and finance staff provided support to the audit team during the audit. 
This helped ensure that the audit of the annual accounts process ran smoothly. 

The annual report and accounts were submitted in line with our 
agreed audit timetable  

21.  Submission dates for the audited annual report and accounts for 2020/21 
and 2021/22 were deferred in line with the later dates for producing the annual 
accounts because of the impact of Covid-19. Audit Scotland has set target 

Page 24



1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts | 9 

 

dates for 2021/22 which transition to more regular timescales. For 2021/22, the 
deadline for the audited annual report and accounts is 31 October 2022. We will 
present our Annual Audit Report to the Pension Fund Committee in October 
2022, but due to diary commitments, the accounts will now be signed off in 
November 2022. 

22.  The unaudited annual report and accounts were received in line with our 
agreed audit timetable on 30 June 2022. 

There were no objections raised to the annual report and 
accounts 

23.  The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 require local 
government bodies to publish a public notice on their website that includes 
details of the period for inspecting and objecting to the accounts. This must 
remain on the website throughout the inspection period. The notice for Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Fund was published on the website of the 
administering authority (Scottish Borders Council) and complies with the 
regulations. No objections were received to the Scottish Borders Council 
Pension Fund accounts. 

Overall materiality is £9.1 million  

24.  We apply the concept of materiality in both planning and performing the 
audit and in evaluating the effect of identified misstatement on the audit and of 
uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and in forming 
the opinion in the independent auditor’s report. We identify a benchmark on 
which to base overall materiality, such as gross assets, and apply what we 
judge to be the most appropriate percentage level for calculating materiality 
values. 

25.  The determination of materiality is based on professional judgement and is 
informed by our understanding of the entity and what users are likely to be most 
concerned about in the financial statements. In assessing performance 
materiality, we have considered factors such as our findings from previous 
audits, any changes in business processes and the entity’s control environment 
including fraud risks. 

26.  Our initial assessment of materiality for the annual report and accounts was 
carried out during the planning phase of the audit. This was reviewed on receipt 
of the unaudited annual report and accounts and is summarised in Exhibit 1.  

Exhibit 1 
Materiality values  
 

Materiality level Amount 

Overall materiality  £9.1 million 

Performance materiality £5.9 million 

Page 25



1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts | 10 

 

Materiality level Amount 

Reporting threshold £250 thousand 

Specific materiality (applied to benefits expenditure and 
contributions income in the fund account) 

£2.5 million 

Specific performance materiality £1.5 million 

Source: Audit Scotland 

We have no significant findings to report on the annual report 
and accounts  

27.  International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 requires us to communicate 
significant findings from the audit to those charged with governance, including 
our view about the qualitative aspects of the body’s accounting practices. We 
have no issues to report from the audit.  

We have obtained audit assurances over the significant 
financial statements’ risks identified in our 2021/22 Annual 
Audit Plan 

28.  We have obtained audit assurances over the identified significant risks of 
material misstatement to the financial statements. Exhibit 2 sets out the 
significant risks of material misstatement to the financial statements we 
identified in our 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan. It summarises the further audit 
procedures we performed during the year to obtain assurances over these risks 
and the conclusions from the work completed.  

Exhibit 2 

Significant risks of material misstatement in the financial statements 

Audit risk Assurance procedure Results and conclusions 

1. Risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud 
caused by the management 
override of controls 

As stated in International 
Standard on Auditing (UK) 
240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate 
fraud because of 
management’s ability to 
override controls that 

• Assess the design and 
implementation of controls 
over journal entry 
processing. 

• Make inquiries of 
individuals involved in the 
financial reporting process 
about inappropriate or 
unusual activity relating to 
the processing of journal 
entries and other 
adjustments. 

No issues identified. 

 

 

No issues identified. 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts | 11 

 

Audit risk Assurance procedure Results and conclusions 

otherwise appear to be 
operating effectively. 
 

• Test journals at the year-
end and post-closing 
entries and focus on 
significant risk areas. 

• Consider the need to test 
journal entries and other 
adjustments during the 
period. 

• Evaluate significant 
transactions outside the 
normal course of business. 

• Assess the adequacy of 
controls in place for 
identifying and disclosing 
related party relationship 
and transactions in the 
financial statements. 

• Assess any changes to the 
methods and underlying 
assumptions used to 
prepare accounting 
estimates compared to the 
prior year. 

• Focussed testing of 
accounting accruals and 
prepayments. 

 

 
 

 

No unusual or inappropriate 
transactions were identified 
as part of our detailed journal 
testing. 

No unusual or inappropriate 
transactions were identified 
as part of our detailed journal 
testing. 

Substantive testing of 
transactions throughout the 
year were concluded as 
satisfactory. 

No issues identified. 

 

 

 

 

No changes to methods 
identified. 

 

Focussed testing on accruals 
and prepayments did not 
identify any instances of 
management override of 
controls. 

 

Conclusion: We have not 
identified any indication of 
management override in the 
year leading to material 
misstatement or significant 
concern. 

2. Estimations applied to 
level 3 investments 

The pension fund has a 
significant portfolio of level 3 
investments, for example 
unquoted equities, where 
valuations involve the 
application of a variety of 
estimates in determining 
appropriate valuations. This 

• Confirmation of year end 
valuations to valuation 
reports and/or other 
supporting documentation. 

• We will review user entity 
controls in relation to the 
use of service 
organisations. 

• Review the relevant 
investment manager 

No significant issues 
identified. 

 

 

No issues identified. 

 

 

Page 27



1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts | 12 

 

Audit risk Assurance procedure Results and conclusions 

subjectivity gives rise to a 
significant risk of material 
misstatement in the financial 
statements. 
 

controls’ reports for 
qualifications or exceptions 
that may affect the audit 
risk. 

• Review the arrangements 
in place at the Fund to 
assess investment 
managers’ governance 
arrangements. 

• Review the disclosures 
included in the accounts to 
ensure these are adequate 
in directing the user of the 
accounts to acknowledge 
the areas of major sources 
of estimation and 
uncertainty with regards to 
level 3 assets. 

No issues identified. 

 

 

 

See Appendix 1 
Recommendation 4 

 

 

 

 

No issues identified. 

 

Conclusion: From our 
review of investment 
manager reports, review of 
disclosures and our review of 
the user entity controls in 
relation to the use of a 
service organisation, we did 
not identify any significant 
issues in relation to this risk. 
 

 

Other areas of audit focus 

29.  We identified in our 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan areas where we considered 
there to be other risks of material misstatement to the financial statements. 
Based on our assessment of the likelihood and magnitude of the risk, we did not 
consider these to represent significant risks. The areas of specific audit focus 
were: 

• Estimations applied to the actuarial valuation: The actuarial valuation 
depends on a range of financial and demographic estimations about the 
future. The subjectivity around these estimates gives rise to a risk of 
material misstatement in the financial statements. 

• Valuation of level 1 and level 2 assets: Investments held by the Pension 
Fund are subject to market price fluctuations and a degree of estimation. 
The Pension Fund holds material level 1 (where valuation derived directly 
from unadjusted quoted active market price) and level 2 (where the 
instrument is traded in a market not considered to be active or where the 
fair value is determined using valuation techniques based on market 
prices). Due to the material amounts and in particular, the degree of 
subjectivity and complexity in the valuation of level 2, this gives rise to a 
risk of material misstatement in the financial statements. 

Page 28



1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts | 13 

 

30.  We kept these areas under review throughout our audit and based on the 
findings of the audit procedures performed, there are no matters which we need 
to bring to your attention. 

Other matters arising from the audit of the financial statements 

31.  Pension Recalculation: In our 2020/21 audit, we reported an error with a 
pension lump sum payment. Management agreed to recalculate the member’s 
options and to re-engage with the member. During our 2021/22 audit we 
identified a further error and alerted management. This is detailed in Appendix 1 
setting out specific recommendations, responsible officers, and dates for 
implementation. 

32.  Pension Overpayment: The aforementioned error has resulted in an 
overpayment. As it was an error made by officers who are employed by the 
council (with salary costs recharged to the pension fund), and not the individual, 
it was agreed no recovery of overpayment would be sought. The cost has been 
borne by the pension fund and not the council. Whilst a scheme of delegation is 
in place for the council there is a need to consider an appropriate scheme of 
delegation for decisions that impact on the pension fund. This should include 
information on what circumstances would give rise to not seek recovery of 
overpayment, and what entity should bear the cost of that overpayment. This is 
detailed in Appendix 1 setting out specific recommendations, responsible 
officers, and dates for implementation. 

33.  Investment Management Expenses: We identified that £0.128m was 
omitted from the investment management expenses. This was a timing error 
caused by information not completely available at the time of the preparation of 
the accounts. We reviewed each of the cost transparency initiative templates, 
completed by fund managers, provided after the year end and this total reflects 
the total of costs omitted. We recommend a new process is put in place for the 
collection and recording of investment management fees to ensure these are 
complete. This is detailed in Appendix 1 setting out specific recommendations, 
responsible officers, and dates for implementation. 

Recommendation 2 

As part of the accounts preparation process, management should ensure that 
investment managers provide information to the fund on a timely basis. 

Identified misstatements of £2.9 million were not adjusted in 
the accounts. These were less than our performance materiality 
and we did not need to further revise our audit approach 

34.  Total misstatements identified had a net value of £1.5million. Misstatements 
identified related to:  

• Level 3 late valuations Misstatements identified were £2.2million, which if 
adjusted, would have increased investment asset values by £2.2 million. 
These consist of late valuations received for Level 3 assets. The 

Page 29



1. Audit of 2021/22 annual report and accounts | 14 

 

valuations for these assets are included in the accounts with a lagged 
valuation date of 31 December 2021. The valuations were not available 
when the unaudited accounts were issued. The final valuations were 
received during our audit.  

• Investment management expenses Misstatements identified were 
£0.12m. Investment managers had not provided complete information at 
the time of the accounts preparation. If these had been adjusted, there 
would be no overall impact as both management expenses and change to 
market value would be adjusted. 

• Baillie Gifford Global Investments Information included in the custodian 
values on comparison with the fund manager values differed by £0.625m. 
The fund had used the custodian values for accounts preparation 
purposes. The differences are mainly timing related, with the majority 
driven by the fund manager cutting a share price of a suspended trading 
investment company. If these had been adjusted, this would have 
decreased investment asset values by £0.625m. 

35.  After discussions with management, we concluded that adjustments for 
these were not required as the total net adjustment required to investment 
assets of £1.5 million is below our performance materiality level.  

36.  We have concluded that the misstatements identified arose from issues that 
have been isolated and identified in their entirety, and do not indicate any 
systemic error. Items not adjusted are detailed in  Appendix 2. 

Progress was made on prior year recommendations  

37.  The Fund has made progress in implementing our prior year audit 
recommendations. For actions not yet implemented, revised responses and 
timescales have been agreed with management and are set out in Appendix 1. 

Page 30



2. Financial management | 15 

 

2. Financial management 
Financial management is about financial capacity, sound budgetary 
processes and whether the control environment and internal controls 
are operating effectively. 

Main judgements 

The Fund pays out more than it collects annually from fund members, with 
investment returns making up the difference. The value of the Fund increased by 
5.9% to £911 million during 2021/22, but investment performance was below the 
benchmark return set for the year. 
 
The Fund has appropriate and effective financial management arrangements in 
place which includes comprehensive reporting of investment performance. 

The annual performance of the Fund was significantly impacted 
by Covid-19 and other world events 

38.  When considering the investment performance of the Fund during 2021/22, 
it is important to recognise the impact of Covid-19 and other world events on 
financial markets and investments. The global impact of the pandemic and the 
conflict in Ukraine has significantly increased market volatility. The Fund’s 
performance by the conclusion of 2021/22 is summarised in Exhibit 3.  

Exhibit 3 
Assets, funding level and investment performance 
 

Increase in net assets Funding level Investment performance 

£911 million 

Closing net assets as at  
31 March 2022 

(+5.9%) 

110% 

2020 Funding Valuation  

7.3% 

Average annual return on 
investments over 5 years 

£860 million 

Opening net assets at 1 April 
2021 

114% 

2017 Funding Valuation  

5.9% 

Return on investments 
2021/22 

Source: 2021/22 Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund unaudited annual report and accounts 

Page 31



2. Financial management | 16 

 

39.  Despite the volatile market conditions, the Fund has seen a positive 
performance of 5.9%, against a benchmark of 10.6% for 2021/22. The net 
assets of the Fund increased from £860 million at 31 March 2021 to £911 
million at 31 March 2022. During 1st April 2021 to 31st December 2021, 
investment assets continued to grow, with a peak of £938m as at 31st December 
2021. In the last quarter of 2021/22, there was significant market volatility for 
most major asset classes. This was attributed to concerns over rising inflation, 
monetary policy and the Russia-Ukraine war.  

40.  Hymans Robertson estimated the pension liabilities decreased by 2.8% to 
£1,057 million at 31 March 2022 (2020/21 – £1,088 million). This estimate uses 
assumptions in line with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 26 
requirements, for the purposes of the Fund’s financial statements.  

The Fund has appropriate and effective financial management 
arrangements in place which includes comprehensive reporting 
of investment performance  

41.  The Acting Chief Financial Officer for Scottish Borders Council is the Proper 
Officer responsible for Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund. The financial 
regulations of Scottish Borders Council, as administering authority, apply to the 
Fund. We consider these to be current, comprehensive and support good 
financial management. 

42.  The Pension Fund Committee receives administration and performance 
reports at its quarterly meetings. These reports are comprehensive and include 
fund performance trends, investment manager performance against 
benchmarks and movements in asset allocations. From attendance at 
Committee we observed and concluded that reports presented to members are 
subject to appropriate review and scrutiny.  

43.  Overall, we have concluded that the Fund has appropriate and effective 
financial management arrangements in place, including comprehensive 
reporting of investment performance. 

Financial systems of internal control operated effectively 

44.  As part of our audit, we identify and inspect the key internal controls in 
those accounting systems which we regard as significant to produce the 
financial statements. Our objective is to gain assurance that the Fund has 
systems of recording and processing transactions which provide a sound basis 
for the preparation of the financial statements. 

45.  Our work in 2021/22 covered the key controls over the systems used for 
pension administration activity and the pension fund’s investments. The Fund 
also uses the financial systems of the administering authority, Scottish Borders 
Council. The main council systems used by the Fund are the general ledger 
system and the payroll system. Our review of the controls in operation within 
these systems was conducted as part of our audit of Scottish Borders Council. 

46.  Our review of the systems used by the Fund and the administering authority 
did not identify any significant control weaknesses which could affect the Fund's 

Page 32



2. Financial management | 17 

 

ability to report financial and other relevant data in the financial statements, and 
we concluded that systems of internal control for the Fund operated effectively 
during 2021/22. 

47.  Whilst we concluded that overall systems of internal control are operating 
effectively, we noted that some general documentation and administrative 
control procedures had not been completed. This was initially raised in our 
2020/21 AAR. We understand some control procedures were historically 
completed in paper format, which have not been updated to reflect the move to 
home working. This is detailed in Appendix 1 setting out specific 
recommendations, responsible officers, and dates for implementation. 

Prior year recommendation 6 

Management should review administrative procedures in place and update these 
to reflect the move to home working. Management should also ensure that officers 
are familiar with their responsibilities for the completion of supporting paperwork to 
evidence processes have been completed and reviewed in a timely manner. 

Standards of conduct and arrangements for prevention and 
detection of fraud and error were appropriate 

48.  Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund is responsible for establishing 
arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and irregularities, 
bribery, and corruption and to ensure that their affairs are managed in 
accordance with proper standards of conduct by putting proper arrangements in 
place.  

49.  The risk profile of public bodies during 2021/22 has been significantly 
affected by the Covid-19 pandemic. This is likely to have increased the risk of 
fraud and error as control environments and internal controls have had to 
change to allow for services to operate effectively and respond to issues in a 
timely manner.  

50.  The Fund relies on the Council’s arrangements for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and corruption. We have reviewed the arrangements put in 
place by the Council to address any heightened risks and concluded that there 
are appropriate arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud, error 
and irregularities. 

Page 33



3. Financial sustainability | 18 

 

3. Financial sustainability 
Financial sustainability looks forward to the medium and long term to 
consider whether the Fund maintains the capacity to meet the current 
and future needs of its members. 

Main judgements 

Recent triennial valuations provide assurance over the financial sustainability of 
the fund and the viability of its funding strategy. 
 
The investment strategy was reviewed following the March 2020 triennial 
valuation and will continue to diversify the investment structure to support income 
generation. 

Recent triennial valuations provide assurance over the financial 
sustainability of the fund and the viability of its funding 
strategy  

51.  The results of the 2020 full triennial valuation of the Scottish Borders 
Council Pension Fund showed a funding level of 110%. This is a slight drop 
from 114% in the 2017 valuation, but it still means that, overall, the investment 
assets were higher than the projected liabilities. 

Medium term financial planning arrangements are appropriate 
and effective  

52.  There is considerable volatility in pension funding and the results of the 
triennial valuation are in effect a snapshot of the Fund at 31 March 2020. 
Following each triennial valuation, the Fund reviews and revises its funding 
strategy. The funding strategy is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding 
liabilities. The investment strategy outlines the types of investment to be held 
and the amount held in the different types of investment  

53.  The last review was carried out in 2021 after the results of the 2020 triennial 
valuation. The revised investment strategy reflects the Fund’s decision to focus 
on income generation to build capacity to fund annual benefits as cash flows 
from dealings with members continue to be negative. The Fund has considered 
this as part of its investment strategy and is further diversifying its investment 
structure to increase investment in income generating assets. This has been a 
proactive response from the Fund to move to more income bearing assets to 
pay annual pensions as the fund matures. 

54.  The Fund has begun implementing the key changes agreed as part of the 
review. This includes the restructuring of the Fund’s equity portfolio, the  

Page 34



3. Financial sustainability | 19 

 

implementation of a new pooled infrastructure equity mandate and the 
restructuring of the property portfolio. 

Fund membership levels continue to increase but the ratio of 
active members to pensioners is reducing  

55.  The Fund is a multi-employer fund with one Local Authority, and 16 other 
employers. The current membership profile is shown at Exhibit 4. 

56.  The Fund gives its members a guarantee that in exchange for contributions 
during their employment, it will pay a pension until the end of each members’ 
life. It is important that the fund maintains the capacity to meet the current and 
future pension entitlements of its members. 

Exhibit 4 
Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund membership 
 

 

Source: Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 2021/22 unaudited financial statements 

57.  Membership of the fund increased by 514 to 12,178 members at 31 March 
2022; an increase in membership of 4.4%. The impact of auto-enrolment 
continues to contribute to the increase in employee members. 

58.  In 2021/22 the number of pensioners receiving a pension from Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Fund increased by over 240 and the number of 
pensioner members continues to increase steadily each year. The number of 
active members continues to outweigh the number of pensioners but the ratio of 
active members to pensioners has reduced over the past five years.  

59.  Cash flows from dealings with members continue to be negative with more 
paid out in benefits than that received from contributions. The cash flow position 
impacts the investment strategy as income from investments rather than 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs

Membership

Employee members Deferred members Pensioners

Page 35



3. Financial sustainability | 20 

 

contributions is needed to pay pensions The fund has been maturing since 
2013/14. The Fund has considered this as part of its investment strategy and is 
further diversifying its investment structure to increase investment in income 
generating assets. This has been a proactive response from the Fund to move 
to more income bearing assets to pay annual pensions as the fund matures. 

Future rates of employer contributions  

60.  Following the triennial valuation in 2020, the actuary agreed employer 
contribution rates with individual employers from 1 April 2021. For the majority 
of employers, the current funding surplus is being used to subsidise and 
stabilise contribution rates. For one employer, their rate includes an element of 
deficit recovery contributions to support the employer’s financial planning. The 
approximate split of all contributions received in year is set out at Exhibit 5.  

Exhibit 5 
Contributions in 2021/22 
 

 

Administering 
authority 

£m 

Other 
scheduled 

bodies 

£m 

Admitted 
bodies 

£m 

Total 

£m 

Employer contributions 13.94 0.74 2.35 17.03 

Employee contributions 4.60 0.25 0.65 5.5 

Source: Scottish Borders Council Fund 2021/22 audited financial statements and supporting 
working papers 

Page 36



4. Governance and transparency | 21 

 

4. Governance and 
transparency 
The effectiveness of scrutiny and oversight and the transparent 
reporting of information  

Main judgements 

Governance arrangements are appropriate and operate effectively.  
 

There is effective scrutiny, challenge and informed decision making by committee. 
 
The Fund actively considers Environmental, Social and Governance matters as 
part of its Investment Strategy. 
 

Governance arrangements are appropriate and operate 
effectively  

61.  Scottish Borders Council is the administering body for Scottish Borders 
Council Pension Fund. The Council has delegated responsibility for governance 
to the Pension Fund Committee. This committee, supported by the Board 
(made up of four scheme employer representatives and four trade union 
representatives), is responsible for establishing arrangements that ensure the 
proper conduct of the affairs of the Fund. It is also responsible for ensuring that 
decisions are made within the terms of the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

62.  Following the local government elections in May 2022 a new Pension Fund 
Committee was appointed. This included 5 councillors who served on the 
Committee during 2021/22 and 2 councillors who were newly appointed to the 
committee.  

63.  Due to the specialised nature of the Fund, it is vital that members have 
appropriate knowledge and understanding to provide appropriate challenge and 
scrutiny. The Fund prepares an annual training programme which covers 
training, including The Pensions Regulator Trustee Toolkit training, and other 
essential training that will assist members in discharging their fiduciary duty.  

64.  Members are required to carry out appropriate levels of training to ensure 
they can perform their required duties. There is no formal induction in place for 
new members to the Fund. Per the training policy, new members are required to 
complete the Pension Regulator Toolkit within six months of joining. Members 
are required to attend at least two meetings per year, not all members 

Page 37



4. Governance and transparency | 22 

 

completed this requirement for 2021/22. This is detailed in Appendix 1 setting 
out specific recommendations, responsible officers, and dates for 
implementation. 

65.  Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund amended its governance 
arrangements in response to the pandemic. The impact of Covid-19 from March 
2020 has been set out in the Annual Governance Statement in the Fund’s 
annual report and accounts. 

66.  We have concluded that overall, Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
has appropriate governance arrangements in place which support effective 
scrutiny, challenge and decision-making. 

Recommendation 3 

Management should work with the Pension Board and Pension Committee to 
ensure members are aware of their attendance requirements. 

There are effective arrangements for complying with the 
Pensions Regulator Public Service Code  

67.  The Public Sector Pensions Act 2013 provided for extended regulatory 
oversight by the Pensions Regulator. The Pensions Regulator issued a code on 
the governance and administration of public service pension schemes in 
January 2015 which funds are expected to comply with.  

68.  There were no breaches of the Code that required to be reported to the 
Pensions Regulator in 2021/22. 

Performance reporting was of a good standard 

69.  The Management Commentary included in the annual report and accounts 
should provide information on a body, its main objectives and the principal risks 
faced. It should provide a fair, balanced and understandable analysis of a 
body’s performance as well as helping stakeholders understand the financial 
statements. 

70.  The Fund’s 2021/22 management commentary is of good quality and is 
written with the stakeholder in mind. It presents some complex areas in an 
understandable style which increases transparency in reporting the financial 
performance and financial position.  

The Fund actively considers Environmental, Social and Governance matters 
as part of its Investment Strategy.  
 
71.  The Fund believes that a positive approach to Environmental, Social and 
Governance (ESG) issues can have a positive impact on the financial 
performance of investments.  

Page 38



4. Governance and transparency | 23 

 

72.  The Fund approved a revised Statement of Responsible Investment Policy 
on 17 March 2022 which details the Fund’s approach to responsible investment 
and arrangements to monitor manager performance against the principles in 
this policy. The overwhelming majority of fund managers engaged with Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Fund (99.8%) are signatories to the United Nations 
Principles for Responsible Investment. The Fund became a signatory to Climate 
Action 100+ in March 2020. As a signatory the Fund supports Climate Action 
100+ in its engagement with the boards and senior management of companies 
around the world to implement a strong governance framework, take actions to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and provide enhanced corporate 
disclosures. The Fund actively engages with fund managers to ensure they are 
incorporating ESG opportunities to increase investment in sustainable funds. 
This is demonstrated by the £94m investment with LGIM in their Global ESG 
Passive Equity fund and the transition of £114m from the Baillie Gifford Global 
Equity Fund to their Global Paris Aligned Fund. 

 

Page 39



5. Best Value | 24 

 

5. Best Value  
Using resources effectively and continually improving services 

Main judgements 

The Fund has an appropriate best value framework in place which includes 
effective arrangements for monitoring investment performance and scrutinising 
management expenses. 
 
Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund was awarded Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) Fund of the Year (assets under £2.5bn) at the LAPF Investments 
Awards. 
 
2021/22 was a challenging year for Scottish Local Government Pension Schemes. 
Ten of the eleven funds still reported positive movements in net assets during the 
year, but only three of those funds, not including Scottish Borders, reported above 
benchmark returns. 
 

2021/22 was a challenging year for Scottish Local Government 
Pension Schemes. Ten of the eleven funds still reported positive 
movements in net assets during the year, but only three funds 
reported above benchmark returns. 

73.  As shown in Exhibit 6, 2021/22 was a challenging year for Scottish Local 
Government Pension Schemes due to the impact of Covid-19 and other world 
events on financial markets and investments. Ten of the eleven funds still 
reported positive movements in net assets during the year, but only three funds 
reported above benchmark returns, with investment performance ranging from -2 
% to 13%. Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund’s increase of 5.9% placed it 
near the bottom of this range and reflected the greater impact of the wider market 
conditions on the value of equity markets over the last 12 months. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



5. Best Value | 25 

 

Exhibit 6 
LGPS pension funds 2021/22 – Net return on investment and benchmark return  

 

Source: 2021/22 LGPS pension fund unaudited financial statements 

 

The pension administration function has performed well 
against targets 

74.  The Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Committee meets on a 
quarterly basis and receives regular reports on both fund administration and 
investment performance. The focus of measuring the performance of pensions 
administration includes both member experience and statutory compliance. 

75.  The Fund’s business plan sets out a range of service standards against 
which administration performance is monitored. The Pensions Team were able 
to comply with the legislative requirement to issue annual benefit statements. 
This was achieved with some staff attending their normal workplace, whilst the 
majority worked from home. During 2021/22 the Pensions Administration Team 
focussed all efforts on ensuring the statutory elements of the service, as 
highlighted by the Pensions Regulator, continued to be provided, with all 
payments to pensioners being issued on time. 

76.  The administration function’s performance against its targets for Service 
Standards have been affected by the pressures of the pandemic, alongside an 
increasing workload. However, performance in several priority areas has 
remained high, including issuing 100% of annual benefit statements on time.  

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

Scottish
Borders

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

Investment Performance Benchmark

Page 41



5. Best Value | 26 

 

77.  During 2021/22, the Fund implemented Members Self Service. This has 
helped reduce the number of routine enquiries from scheme members as they 
are able to obtain information directly via the self-service functionality. Key 
administration tasks reported for 2021/22 included 1,367 pension estimates. 
With the implementation of Members Self Service, over 12,500 benefit 
calculations were run. This should help improve performance going forward. 

The continuing impact of Covid-19 and the conflict in Ukraine 
on global markets reduced expected annual returns  

78.  The Fund appoints several external investment managers. Individual 
investment manager performance is reviewed regularly by the Pension Fund 
Investment and Performance Sub-Committee Committee and the Fund’s 
investments team also carries out annual diligence reviews for each appointed 
fund manager. 

79.  Financial markets have been exceptionally volatile in recent years due to 
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and more recently as result of the conflict in 
Ukraine. Returns against most asset classes, especially equities, reduced 
significantly. Throughout 2021/22, investment returns continued to increase 
each quarter, with a peak value of £938m as at Dec 2021. Performance of the 
Fund’s assets was mixed in quarter 4. This was due to the challenging and 
volatile market conditions including concerns over rising inflation, tapering 
monetary policy, and the Russia-Ukraine war. Investment assets dropped by 
£29m in quarter 4. 

80.  Exhibit 7 shows that over the year, the Fund generated a return of 5.9% 
against a benchmark of 10.6%. Over the medium to longer term, the Fund has 
underperformed against its three-, five- and ten-years benchmarks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



5. Best Value | 27 

 

Exhibit 7 
Fund investment performance 
 

 

Source: Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 2021/22 unaudited financial statements 

Investment management expenses 

81.  There are three main categories of management expense, with the largest 
being investment management costs. Other expenses are the cost of the 
administration services provided by the Council and oversight and governance 
costs. 

82.  Investment management expenses have increased from £5.3 million in 
2020/21 to £5.6 million in 2021/22. The main reason for the increase in 
expenses relates to the 5.9% increase in asset value.  

83.  The Fund has encouraged all its listed equity investment managers to sign 
up to the Code of Transparency and has engaged with managers of other 
assets classes to do so as and when cost templates become available. 

84.  The Fund has adequate arrangements in place for monitoring investment 
performance and scrutinising investment management expenses.  

National performance audit reports 

85.  Audit Scotland carries out a national performance audit programme on 
behalf of the Accounts Commission and the Auditor General for Scotland. 
During 2021/22, we published reports which may be of interest to the Fund. 
These are outlined in Appendix 3 accompanying this report. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

One year Three years Five years

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

Return fund Benchmark return

Page 43



Appendix 1 | 28 

 

Appendix 1 
Action plan 2021/22 

2021/22 recommendations 

Issue/risk Recommendation  Agreed management 
action/timing 

1.  Pension Overpayment 

Through our audit work we 
identified one case where the 
council made an error in the 
calculation of a benefit. As it 
was an error made by the 
council, and not the 
individual, no recovery of 
overpayment was sought. 
The cost has been borne by 
the pension fund and not the 
council.  

Risk  

That governance 
arrangements are not 
sufficient to support decision 
making for pension fund 
matters. 

Whilst a scheme of 
delegation is in place for the 
council there is a need to 
consider an appropriate 
scheme of delegation for 
decisions that impact on the 
pension fund. This should 
include guidance on what 
circumstances would give 
rise to not seek recovery of 
overpayment, and what entity 
should bear the cost of that 
overpayment.  

Paragraph 31 

 

 

Formal overpayment policy 
for the Pension Fund drafted 
and will be presented to 
Pension Fund Committee and 
Board for approval. 

 

Responsible officer  

HR Shared Services 
Manager 

 

Agreed date  

31 December 2022 

2. Investment management 
expenses 

Around £0.128m of 
investment management 
expenses were not notified by 
the investment manager in 
time for closedown of the 
accounts and were not 
therefore included within the 
accounts. 

Risk  

The transparency of costs 
related to investment 
management expenses is not 
properly reflected in the 
accounts. 

As part of the accounts 
preparation process, 
management should ensure 
that investment managers 
provide information to the 
fund on a timely basis. 

Paragraph 32 

 

Management will ensure that 
there is a specific focus 
during the accounts 
preparation process on 
ensuring that information is 
provided by investment 
managers on a timely basis. 

 

Responsible officer  

Acting Chief Financial Officer 

 

Agreed date 

31st March 2023 

Page 44



Appendix 1 | 29 

 

Issue/risk Recommendation  Agreed management 
action/timing 

3. Member attendance 

Pension Committee and 
Pension Board members are 
required to attend at least two 
meetings of the Pension 
Fund Committee and Board 
per year. For 2021/22 a 
member of the committee 
and a member of the pension 
board only attended one 
meeting.  

Risk 

Members are not present to 
monitor and scrutinise 
Pension Fund performance 
effectively. 

 

Management should work 
with the Pension Board and 
Pension Committee to ensure 
members are aware of their 
attendance requirements.  

Paragraph 65 

 

Management will ensure that 
members are aware of their 
attendance requirements for 
the Pension Board and 
Pension Committee through 
Elected Member training and 
induction processes. 

 

 

Responsible officer 

Acting Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

Agreed date 

31st December 2022 

4. Annual due diligence 
review of investment 
managers 

Annually, the fund issues 
governance questionnaires to 
fund managers requesting 
specific information such as 
internal controls reports. 
These should be reviewed to 
check for any concerns which 
may impact the fund. For 
2021/22 whilst the 
questionnaires were issued, it 
was evident these had not 
been subject to review by 
management. 

Risk 

That investments held by 
managers are exposed to 
unnecessary risks. 

 

Management should ensure 
that governance 
questionnaires and 
supporting information 
received by each fund 
manager are reviewed to 
ensure they are aware of any 
issues arising which could 
impact the investments they 
hold. 

 

Agreed, management will 
ensure governance 
questionnaires are reviewed 
in line with the 
recommendation. 

 

 

Responsible officer 

Acting Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

Agreed date 

31st March 2023 

 

Page 45



Appendix 1 | 30 

 

Follow-up of prior year recommendations 

Issue/risk Recommendation  Agreed management 
action/timing 

5. Pension Recalculation 

Audit testing identified one 
error included within a 
member’s lump sum pension 
calculation. The options 
presented to the member 
were not based on accurate 
information. This is 
considered to be an isolated 
error. Management relied on 
a model used by other LGPS 
Funds to calculate the 
pension due; this model had 
not however been updated to 
reflect the specific 
circumstances of the 
member. This error was also 
missed on independent 
review of the pension 
calculation. 

Risk  

There is a risk that 
calculations are not accurate, 
and members are not 
presented with the correct 
pension options. 

For unusual or exceptional 
pension benefits, 
management should ensure 
that there are additional 
quality assurance 
arrangements in place for the 
review of calculations. 

 

Update for 2021/22 

We reviewed the recalculated 
options presented to the 
member. We identified a 
further error within the 
calculation and alerted 
management. Additional audit 
testing was not required as 
we could readily conclude 
that this was an isolated 
case.  

In Progress 

Continue to review unusual or 
exceptional benefits with 
management reviewing in line 
with relevant 
legislation/regulations. 

 

 

Responsible officer  

HR Shared Services 
Manager 

 

 

Revised date  

31 October 2022 and ongoing 
thereafter 

6. Administrative 
Procedures 

Audit testing identified 
administrative procedures in 
paper format have not been 
updated nor completed with 
the move to home working. 
This includes the completion 
of checklists for specific tasks 
such as procedures following 
retiral of an employee and 
leavers checklists. We also 
identified there is no 
documented checks on 
pension calculation figures. 

 

Management should review 
administrative procedures in 
place and update these to 
reflect the move to home 
working. Management should 
also ensure that officers are 
familiar with their 
responsibilities for the 
completion of supporting 
paperwork to evidence 
processes have been 
completed and reviewed in a 
timely manner. 

 

Update for 2021/22 

In Progress  

 

 

Revised action  

Reminder to be issued to all 
members of the Pensions 
Team to ensure all 
checklists/calculations are 
fully signed off. 

 

Responsible officer HR 
Shared Services Manager 

 

 

Page 46



Appendix 1 | 31 

 

Issue/risk Recommendation  Agreed management 
action/timing 

Risk 

There is a risk all required 
tasks are not completed and 
errors not identified in a 
timely manner. 

Whilst we noted 
improvements in some areas, 
such as documented checks 
on calculation figures, we 
found not all areas had been 
actioned/replaced with the 
move to home working. For 
example, documented 
checklists of completion of 
specific tasks. 

Revised date  

31 October 2022 

7. Pensioner validation 
using ATMOS reports 

As part of our review of 
pension payment controls, we 
requested a sample of 
ATMOS match reports for 
testing. These reports are 
used by management to 
identify deceased pensioners 
so that pension payments are 
stopped in a timely manner, 
minimising overpayments. 

The ATMOS match reports 
we received for testing were 
five months old. Therefore, 
there is no evidence that the 
matches have been 
investigated by management 
in a timely manner. 

Risk 

There is a risk that, without 
prompt investigation by 
management, pensions are 
being overpaid. 

ATMOS reports should be 
reviewed, and any matches 
investigated in a timely 
manner to prevent any 
overpayments to deceased 
pensioners.  
 

Update for 2020/21  

This was not actioned for the 
financial year 2020/21.  

Complete 

During 2021/22, the fund 
signed up to the National NI 
Database. This is a data 
sharing project with other 
LGPS pension funds in 
England, Wales and 
Scotland. This is used 
alongside the Tell Us Once 
notification system. Each 
month, the team uploads all 
member data to the NI 
Database. On a weekly basis, 
a member of the HRSS team 
logs in to the Tell Us Once 
notification system and 
checks for any matches. This 
allows HRSS to stop any 
pensions promptly and take 
action thereafter. This is an 
improved process introduced 
during 2021/22 which 
negates the requirement to 
review ATMOS reports. We 
reviewed this new process as 
part of our controls work and 
no issues were identified.  

8. Validation of overseas 
pensioners  
 

Validation of pensioners is 
considered a key control that 
should be in place to ensure 
that pensioners in receipt of 
pensions are still eligible to 
receive payment.  

The existing process in place 
should be reviewed to ensure 
it is still appropriate. The 
process should be actioned 
on a frequent basis to ensure 
existence of overseas 
pensioners.  
 
Update for 2020/21  

Complete  

This was completed for 
2021/22. Management should 
continue to ensure this 
process is carried out 
periodically.  

 

Page 47



Appendix 1 | 32 

 

Issue/risk Recommendation  Agreed management 
action/timing 

We identified that, whilst 
letters and statements are 
issued to overseas 
pensioners, the process to 
ensure their existence, has 
not been carried out during 
2019/20.  

Risk  

There is a risk that without 
adequate controls being in 
place to validate the 
existence of pensioners, 
pensions are paid to 
deceased pensioners  

This was last completed by 
Scottish Borders Council 
Pension Fund in September 
2020. This process should be 
completed annually.  

9. Reconciliation of 
pensions paid figure 

There is no monetary 
reconciliation performed to 
show the total pensions paid 
figure agrees with the ledger. 
Therefore, the total pensions 
paid figure cannot be tied 
back to the ledger. 

The HRSS manager advised 
that there has never been a 
reconciliation performed 
between pensions paid figure 
and the financial ledger. 

A monthly report run for 
differences in payments from 
one month to the next is 
available but unfortunately 
due to work pressures and 
staff shortages this has not 
been completed for this 
financial year. This would be 
an effective control over the 
pensions paid figure on a 
month-by-month basis. 

Risk 

The figures in the financial 
ledger could be under or 
overstated. 

The pensions paid figure 
should be reconciled month 
on month and variances to 
the ledger investigated. 
Management should perform 
monthly reconciliations 
between the pensions paid 
figure and the ledger.  
 

Update 2019/20  
Whilst there is an automated 
nature to the transfer of the 
figures between the payroll 
system and ledger data, there 
is a residual risk that manual 
intervention to the financial 
ledger codes may impact 
ledger data. The inclusion of 
this control will strengthen the 
control environment.  
 
Update for 2020/21  
Reconciliations were 
provided for periods 6-12 for 
the 2020/21 period. As this 
had not been actioned for the 
full period, a complete 
reconciliation was not 
available for audit purposes.  

 

Complete  

We were provided with a 
complete reconciliation 
detailing the gross payments 
to pensioners tied back to the 
general ledger postings. 

Page 48



Appendix 2 | 33 

 

Appendix 2 
Summary of uncorrected misstatements 

We report all uncorrected misstatements in the annual report and 
accounts that are individually greater than our reporting thresholds 
and request they be corrected. 

The table below summarises uncorrected misstatements that were noted during 
our audit testing and were not corrected in the financial statements. 
Cumulatively these errors are below our performance materiality level as 
explained in Exhibit 1. We are satisfied that these errors do not have a material 
impact on the financial statements.  

Account areas Pension Fund Account Pension Fund Net Assets 
Statement 

 Dr 
£000 

Cr 
£000 

Dr 
£000 

Cr 
£000 

1. Management    
expenses 

0.12m    

2. Change in market 
value 

 (0.12m)   

3. Investment assets   2.2m  

4. Change in market 
value 

 (2.2m)   

5. Investment assets    (0.625m) 

6. Change in market 
value 

 0.625m   

Net impact  (1.575m) 1.575m  

Page 49



Appendix 3 | 34 

 

Appendix 3 
Summary of national performance reports 2021/22 and briefing papers 

May 
Local government in Scotland Overview 2021 

June 
Covid 19: Personal protective equipment 

July 
Community justice: Sustainable alternatives to custody 

September 
Covid 19: Vaccination programme 

January 
Planning for skills 

Social care briefing 

February 

NHS in Scotland 2021 

March 

Local government in Scotland: Financial Overview 20/21 

Drug and alcohol: An update 

Scotland’s economy: Supporting businesses through the Covid 19 pandemic 

 

Page 50

https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/local-government-in-scotland-overview-2021
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2021/briefing_210617_ppe.pdf
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2021/briefing_210715_community_justice.pdf
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2021/briefing_210930_vaccination.pdf
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/planning-for-skills
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2022/briefing_220127_social_care.pdf
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/nhs-in-scotland-2021
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/local-government-in-scotland-financial-overview-202021
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2022/briefing_220308_drugs_alcohol.pdf
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2022/briefing_220317_supporting_businesses.pdf


Appendix 3 | 35 

  

Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
2021/22 Annual Audit Report 
 

Audit Scotland’s published material is available for download  
on the website in a number of formats. For information on our  
accessibility principles, please visit: 
www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/accessibility 

For the latest news follow us on social media or 
subscribe to our email alerts. 

 

 
Audit Scotland, 4th Floor, 102 West Port, Edinburgh EH3 9DN 
Phone: 0131 625 1500 Email: info@audit-scotland.gov.uk 
www.audit-scotland.gov.uk 

AS.4.0 
 

 

Page 51

https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/accessibility
http://newsletters.audit-scotland.gov.uk/linkapp/cmasubs.aspx?LinkID=pageid100548593ntqh~f~f~x9hr~n~n~zqqj~f~f
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 

 

 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2021/22 
 
Report by Acting Chief Financial Officer 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
24 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

 
1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY 

 1.1 This report presents Members with copies of the Council’s audited 
Annual Accounts for 2021/22. 

 1.2 The audit appointment of Audit Scotland for Scottish Borders Council (SBC) 
accounts includes the requirement to provide an auditor's report for the 
Council as well as related charities. KPMG has continued to provide the 
external audit of the Council subsidiary Bridge Homes.   

 1.3 2021/22 represents the sixth year of Audit Scotland undertaking the 
External Audit of the Council’s Annual Accounts with the process now 
completed.  

 1.4 The Annual Audit Report summarising Audit Scotland’s conclusions is being 
finalised as the agenda is published.  The paper will be issued as a 
supplementary agenda item when available with findings from the report 
updated verbally at the Committee meeting. 

 1.5 As required under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 
2014, the audited Annual Accounts for Scottish Borders Council, SBC 
Pension Fund, SBC Common Good Funds, the SBC Charitable Trusts, Bridge 
Homes LLP and Lowood Tweedbank Ltd have been presented to the Audit 
Committee prior to signature. 

 1.6 KPMG have concluded their audit of Bridge Homes LLP and have raised no 
issues or matters to report. 

  

Page 53

Agenda Item 8b



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 2.1 It is recommended that Council approve the following audited 
Accounts: 

  (a) 
 
(b) 

the Scottish Borders Council’s audited Annual Accounts for 
the year to 31 March 2022; 
the Scottish Borders Council’s Pension Fund audited Annual 
Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022; 

  (c) the Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds (Charity 
SC031538) audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 
March 2022; 

  (d) the SBC Welfare Trust (Charity SC044765) audited Annual 
Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022; 

  (e) the SBC Education Trust (Charity SC044762) audited Annual 
Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022; 

  (f) the SBC Community Enhancement Trust (Charity SC044764) 
audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022; 

  (g) the SBC Ormiston Trust for Institute (Charity SC019162) 
audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022; 

  (h) the Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts (Charity 
SC043896) audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 
March 2022; 

  (i) the Bridge Homes LLP audited Annual Accounts for the year 
to 31 March 2022; and 

  (j) Lowood Tweedbank Ltd Annual Accounts for the year to 31 
March 2022. 

 
  

Page 54



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 

3 BACKGROUND 

 3.1 The various sets of unaudited accounts for 2021/22 were submitted to 
Audit Scotland and KPMG, the External Auditors, before the statutory 
deadline of 30 June 2022, following presentation of the draft accounts to 
the Audit Committee at the 27th June 2022 meeting.  The Pension Fund 
draft accounts were presented to the Pension Fund Committee and Board 
on the 29th June 2022.  The detailed audit work began thereafter and was 
completed by early November 2022. 

 3.2 As part of the statutory requirements the Council is required to advise the 
public of their right to inspect and object to the various sets of accounts 
and their supporting papers and make the documents available for 
inspection.  This process was undertaken following the timetable contained 
in the 2014 Regulations and the inspection period commenced on 1 July 
2022.  There were no objections to either the Council or Pension Fund 
accounts. 

 3.3 The Coronavirus (Scotland) Act 2020 set out provisions for the functions of 
public bodies in light of the impact of COVID-19, including making 
temporary amendments to legislation. Part 3 of the Act, covering statutory 
duties that require a public authority (including a local authority) to publish 
a report in connection with the exercise of its functions by a particular date, 
allowed Councils to delay publication of the audited accounts to the 30 
November.  The presentation of this report to the Audit Committee at this 
meeting and the subsequent presentation to the full Council meeting on the 
24th November 2022 is within this extension period.   

 3.4 Following approval, the 2014 Regulations  have the following requirements 
as set out in Part 3 Section 10 (3): 

Immediately following the approval of the Annual Accounts for 
signature, the statements which form part of those accounts are to be 
signed and dated as follows— 
(a)  the management commentary by the Section 95 Officer, the 

Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council; 
(b)  the statement of responsibilities by the Leader of the Council 

and the Section 95 Officer, who must also certify the matters 
referred to in paragraphs (5) and (6) respectively; 

(c)  the annual governance statement by the Chief Executive and the 
Leader of the Council; 

(d)  the remuneration report by the Chief Executive and the Leader 
of the Council; and 

(e)  the balance sheets by the Section 95 Officer, to authorise 
publication of the financial statements. 

 3.5 These requirements apply to the Annual Accounts of the Local Authority 
and not to the charity or limited liability partnership accounts, although 
these have similar signatory requirements.  The Section 95 Officer for 
Scottish Borders Council is the Acting Chief Financial Officer. 

 3.6 This report presents audited copies of: 
• Scottish Borders Council Annual Accounts for year ending 31 

March 2022 
• Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Annual Accounts for 

year ending 31 March 2022; 
• Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds (Charity 

SC031538) Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2021; 
• SBC Welfare Trust (Charity SC044765) Annual Accounts for the 

year to 31 March 2021; Page 55



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 

• SBC Education Trust (Charity SC044762) Annual Accounts for 
the year to 31 March 2021; 

• SBC Community Enhancement Trust (Charity SC044764) 
Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2021; 

• SBC Ormiston Trust for Institute (Charity SC019162) Annual 
Accounts for the year to 31 March 2021; 

• Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts (Charity SC043896) 
Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2021; 

• Bridge Homes LLP Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 
2021; and 

• Lowood Tweedbank Ltd Annual Accounts for the year to 31 
March 2021. 
 

 3.7 The Coronavirus (Scotland) Act 2020 allows Councils to delay publication of 
the audited accounts to the 30 November 2022.  In addition those relating 
to registered charities are required to be submitted to the Office of the 
Scottish Charity Regulator (OSCR). 

4 EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 4.1 Audit Scotland has completed their audits with their Annual Report to 
follow.   

 4.2 KPMG have concluded their audit of Bridge Homes LLP and have raised no 
issues or matters to report.  They concurred with management’s non-going 
concern basis for preparation of the accounts due to the disposal of the 
properties in March 2022 and the intention to cease trading at that point. 

 4.3 The Annual Audit Report summarising Audit Scotland’s conclusions is being 
finalised as the agenda is published.  The paper will be issued as a 
supplementary agenda item when available with findings from the report 
updated verbally at the Committee meeting. 

 4.4 The Scottish Borders Council’s Pension Fund Annual Audit Report has been 
scrutinised by the Pension Fund Committee and Board prior to presentation 
to the Audit Committee and Council.  The report highlighted four new 
recommendations and followed up five recommendations from previous 
audits. The areas in question are shown in Appendix 1 “Action Plan 
2021/22” of the External Auditor’s Annual Pension Fund Audit Report.  The 
areas identified are: 
 
• Whilst a scheme of delegation is in place for the council there is a need 

to consider an appropriate scheme of delegation for decisions that 
impact on the pension fund. This should include guidance on what 
circumstances would give rise to not seek recovery of overpayment, and 
what entity should bear the cost of that overpayment. 

 
• As part of the accounts preparation process, management should 

ensure that investment managers provide information to the fund on a 
timely basis. 

 
• Management should work with the Pension Board and Pension 

Committee to ensure members are aware of their attendance 
requirements. 

 
• Management should ensure that governance questionnaires and 

supporting information received by each fund manager are reviewed to 

Page 56



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 

ensure they are aware of any issues arising which could impact the 
investments they hold. 

 
Previous audit Recommendations followed up: 

 
•  For unusual or exceptional pension benefits, management should ensure 

that there are additional quality assurance arrangements in place for the 
review of calculations. 

 
• Management should review administrative procedures in place and 

update these to reflect the move to home working. Management should 
also ensure that officers are familiar with their responsibilities for the 
completion of supporting paperwork to evidence processes have been 
completed and reviewed in a timely manner. 

 
•  ATMOS reports (where there is a match between SBC Pension Fund 

members and recorded deaths) should be reviewed, and any matches 
investigated in a timely manner to prevent any overpayments to 
deceased pensioners. 

 
• The existing overseas pensioners process in place should be reviewed to 

ensure it is still appropriate. The process should be actioned on a 
frequent basis to ensure existence of overseas pensioners. 

 
• The pensions paid figure should be reconciled month on month and 

variances to the ledger investigated. Management should perform 
monthly reconciliations between the pensions paid figure and the ledger. 

 

These recommendations have been accepted by Management and will be 
enacted within the agreed timescales. 

 
5 IMPLICATIONS 

 5.1 Financial 

  There are no expected additional direct financial implications for the Council 
arising from the approval of the Audited Annual Accounts or from the 
External Auditor’s Annual Audit Report and it is expected that the actions 
contained in the Report will be carried out within existing resources. 

 5.2 Risk and Mitigations 

  There are no direct risks arising from the report.  Any risks identified in the 
External Auditor’s Annual Audit Report will be addressed through the 
planned management actions included in the management responses. 

 5.3 Integrated Impact Assessment 

  It is anticipated there will be no adverse impact due to race, disability, 
gender, age, sexual orientation or religion/belief arising from the proposals 
contained in this report. 

 5.4 Sustainable Development Goals 

  There are no direct economic, social or environmental issues with this 
report which would affect the Council’s sustainability policy. 

 5.5 Climate Change 

  There are no direct carbon emissions impacts as a result of this report. 

 5.6 Rural Proofing  

Page 57



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 

  This report does not relate to a new or amended policy or strategy and as a 
result rural proofing is not an applicable consideration. 

 5.7 Data Protection Impact Statement 
There are no personal data implications arising from the proposals 
contained in this report. 

 5.8 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation 

  No changes to the Scheme of Administration or Delegation are required as 
a result of this report. 
 

6 CONSULTATION 

 6.1 The Chief Legal Officer (Monitoring officer), the Chief Officer Audit & Risk, 
the Director People, Performance & Change and the Clerk to the Council are 
being consulted and any comments will be incorporated into the final 
report. 

 
Approved by  

 
Suzy Douglas      Signature ………………………………… 
Acting Chief Financial Officer 
 
Author(s) 
Name Designation and Contact Number 
Suzy Douglas Financial Services Manager 

01835 824000 X5881 
 
Background Papers:   
Previous Minute Reference:   
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  The Financial Services Manager can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies. 
Contact us at: Suzy Douglas, Financial Services Manager, Scottish Borders Council, 
Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD1 0SA, 01835 824000 X5881, 
sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk  

Page 58

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


 
 
 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8c



 

1 
 
 

 
 
 
Scottish Borders Council 
 

Annual Accounts 2021/22 
 
 
 
Foreword by the Leader of the Council .................................................................................... 2 
 
Management Commentary ....................................................................................................... 3 
 
Statement of Responsibilities ................................................................................................. 28 
 
Annual Governance Statement .............................................................................................. 33 
 
Remuneration Report ............................................................................................................. 38 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement ......................................................................................... 48 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ............................................................. 49 
 
Balance Sheet........................................................................................................................ 51 
 
Cash Flow Statement ............................................................................................................. 53 
 
Notes to the Core Financial Statements ................................................................................. 54 
 
Supplementary Financial Statements ................................................................................... 105 
 

Council Tax Income Account ............................................................................................ 105 
 

Non-Domestic Rate Income Account ................................................................................ 106 
 
Trust Funds .......................................................................................................................... 108 
 
Common Good Funds .......................................................................................................... 110 
 
Group Accounts ................................................................................................................... 112 
 
Notes to the Group Accounts ............................................................................................... 120 
 
Glossary of Terms ................................................................................................................ 121 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 60



 
 

 

Foreword by the Leader of the Council   
Welcome to the Annual Accounts for 

Scottish Borders Council for the year 

ended 31 March 2022.   These have been 

produced to provide the public, Elected 

Members and other stakeholders with 

information concerning the financial 

management, administration and 

performance of the Council in the financial 

year 2021/22. 

2021/22 was a year of transition for the 

Council. Focus moved from COVID-19 

response to recovery and the Council 

approved a refreshed Council Plan 

focusing on key objectives to drive service 

improvements, the anti-poverty strategy 

were approved, new tourist, education 

and care facilities were progressed and 

work was undertaken to modernise the 

Council through digital developments.  

 

The management commentary on 

performance of the Council accompanying 

the Annual Accounts outlines: 

 what we do as a Council;  

 what our strategy and priorities are; 

 how we are organised to deliver our 

priorities; 

 the risks we face as an organisation; 

 our financial position for 2021/22; 

 key aspects of our performance during 

2021/22; and  

 our plans for the future. 

 

Highlights of 2021/22 
Despite an extremely challenging 

operating environment during 2021/22 

the Council achieved the following:   

 

 Delivered a responsive approach to 

supporting communities, businesses 

and vulnerable individuals through the 

ongoing COVID-19 recovery period. 

The Council administered almost 

£74m of grants to local businesses 

during the pandemic with funding also 

provided to those in financial 

hardship; 

 Transformed homecare services 

through the roll out of mobile 

handheld technology to over 400 

staff, optimising the scheduling of 

care visits and improving staff safety; 

 Achieved £9.3m of Financial Plan 

savings, £3.5m of which were on a 

permanent recurring basis; 

 Delivered a net underspend of 

£1.427m from a revenue budget of 

£294.7m; and 

 Delivered new investment in assets 

for the Borders of £59.6m in schools, 

flood protection, roads and other 

assets. 

 

Our Plans for 2022/23 
The next year presents many 

opportunities and challenges for the 

Council including: 

 the Council’s ongoing recovery from 

COVID-19; 

 the continued delivery of the Council’s 

transformation programme; 

 delivery of IT transformation through 

the digital strategy; 

 delivery of the major construction 

elements of the Hawick Flood 

Protection Scheme; 

 progress delivery of Galashiels, 

Peebles and Hawick High Schools and 

Earlston Primary School and Health 

Centre; 

 collaborate with South of Scotland 

Enterprise (SOSE) on the delivery of 

the wider Regional Economic 

Partnership including Borderlands 

Inclusive Growth Deal and City Deal. 

 

The Council has again balanced its budget 

and is looking forward to engaging 

effectively with communities on spending 

priorities and improving quality of life for 

everyone in the Borders.   

Councillor Euan Jardine 
Leader, Scottish Borders Council 
  

Page 61



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 3 

 
 

Management Commentary 
 

Introduction 
This management commentary and the Foreword by the Leader of the Council provide a 

summary of Scottish Borders Council’s financial performance for the year and how this has 

supported delivery of the 2018-2023 Corporate Plan. It also outlines the financial strategy 

and the challenges the Council faces in future years in delivering its priorities for the 

Scottish Borders.  A new Council Plan was approved in February 2022 which sets out the 

Council’s priorities for the Scottish Borders.   

About Scottish Borders Council 

 

 

 

Page 62



 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 4 

 

 

Strategic Direction 

Council Plan 

Scottish Borders Council agreed the 2018-2023 Corporate Plan in February 2018.  In 

February 2022 the Council approved the Scottish Borders Council Plan 1 April 2022-31 

March 2023. This updated Plan consolidates and articulates the Council’s strategic 

ambition beginning with the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 but incorporating strategic 

commitments made since 2018. In so doing, the one year Council Plan seeks both to 

provide a bridge from the existing Corporate Plan 2018-2023 to future Council Plans and 

to lay a template for those Council Plans in future. 

 

We want to build on our strengths as a Council, but also focus on the things we know we 

need to improve upon. This Council Plan will help us shape our direction of travel. There 

are two things, in particular, that we want to develop:  

 We want a Plan that reflects a shared ambition with our communities and citizens 

across the Scottish Borders. This new Council Plan will set out ‘Our Part’ in 

delivering for the Scottish Borders, but ‘Our Part’ will be much more meaningful if it 

is produced with your help, ‘Your Part’ 

 We want a Plan that speaks to our ‘Places’ across the Scottish Borders by setting 

out the priorities for different communities, whether in Berwickshire, Cheviot, 

Eildon, Teviot & Liddesdale, or Tweeddale.  

The Council Plan is based on 6 outcomes that we aim to deliver for the Scottish Borders. 

Five of the outcomes focus on improving the wellbeing of citizens within the Scottish 

Borders and making our region a more sustainable and better place to live, work in and to 

visit. The sixth outcome is developing a Council that is as effective and efficient as it can 

be – we need to do this in order to deliver on the other five outcomes. 

 

 

 

Page 63



 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 5 

 

Scottish Borders Council key highlights 2021/22 
 

 

 Climate change route map approved 

by Council 

 Further progression in Hawick Flood 

Protection scheme  

 Completion of new building at 

Tweedbank with planning for 

expansion of the Lowood site 

underway 

 Introduction of region wide default 

20mph schemes 

 

 

 Roll out of Free School Meals – P4-P5 

 Development of a new Devolved 

Schools Management scheme for 

launch in August 2022 

 Upgrade of the Secondary school wide 

area network and improved wifi in all 

Primary schools 

 Additional 45 teachers were employed 

to support pupils in the COVID-19 

recovery period 

 Kelso and Selkirk High Schools 

awarded Apple Distinguished Schools 

accreditation  

 

 

 A new play park was opened in St 

Boswells with 5 year plans approved 

for further facilities  in the Borders 

 The new Tapestry building opened its 

doors in Galashiels 

 Investment of £13.5m on Roads 

infrastructure in 2021/22 

 

 Build back a better Borders fund 

allocated £500k to local communities 

 Funding provided to families in 

Financial Hardship 

 Approved the new anti-poverty and 

food growing strategies 

 The approach to Community Choices 

has been embedded during 2021/22 

 

 

 Launch of Enterprise Mobility in 

SBCares providing hand-held devices 

to over 400 frontline care staff 

 Opening of Wilkie Gardens extra care 

housing facility in Galashiels 

 The Council was  part of a pilot for 

‘The Promise’ to support the ambition 

for all children to reach their full 

potential 

 

Page 64



 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 6 

 

 

 The Council’s Digital Strategy was 

approved which includes a focus on 

streamlining processes and digital 

automation wherever possible 

 The Council employed 64 Modern 

apprentices during 2021/22 providing 

training and work experience across 

the Council. 

 

Transformation 

A key pillar of the Council’s longer term planning is a transformation programme which 

aims to deliver a Council that is adaptable, efficient and effective, and one ultimately 

capable of not only meeting the challenges ahead, but of fully optimising outcomes for the 

citizens and communities for which it is responsible. The programme is designed to deliver 

savings in a more cross cutting, permanent and sustainable way in the future, through a 

planned series of service reviews.  The COVID-19 pandemic has had a fundamental impact 

on the way the Council is organised and in the way the Council delivers services.  In future 

greater reliance will be placed on technology to modernise the Council. 

 

Financial Strategy 

The Financial Strategy objectives have been met during 2021/22 in supporting the 

delivery of the Council’s Priorities and Corporate Plan.  In order to support the delivery of 

the Council’s priorities, including the Fit for 2024 Programme, the Financial Strategy has:- 

a) ensured funding is in place to meet approved service levels in the most effective 

manner; 

b)  managed the effective deployment of those funds in line with the Council’s 

corporate objectives and approved service plans; and 

c)  provided stability in resource planning and service delivery. 

 

The Strategy is influenced by the need to ensure that the Council’s budget is targeted so 

that it: 

 provides the most effective possible stimulus to the wider economy; 

 protects the environment of the Borders; 

 protects those who are most vulnerable in society; 

 seeks to focus spend on prevention designed to reduce future demand for Council 

services by stopping problems arising or by addressing problems early on; 

 maximises the contribution from local collaboration arrangements; and 

 recognises the need to continue to maximise efficiency and provide good value 

for money. 

 

A new longer term Revenue Financial Strategy was approved by Council in February 2022 

covering a 10 year timeframe from 2022/23.  Adopting a consistent 10 year revenue 

planning horizon will further assist the Council to plan service and strategic change 

appropriately and ensure the financial implications of the Council Plan are properly 

considered, affordable and reflected in future budgets and ensure the Council’s revenue 

plans are aligned with the Capital Investment Programme over a 10 year period. 

 

 

Page 65



 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 7 

 

Risk 

A Corporate Financial Risk Register was used as the basis for setting reserve levels in 

2021/22 and future years.  This approach seeks to quantify the risks facing the Council’s 

finances, including over optimistic saving assumptions, unplanned employment and 

pension costs, the failure by managers to enact effective budgetary control, severe 

weather events, an economic downturn, potential contractual claims and unplanned 

emergencies in deriving an appropriate level of unallocated balances. 

 

This approach, despite being subject to an element of informed judgement, reflects the 

risks inherent in setting the revenue budget, the scale and complexity of the organisation 

and the reasons reserves are held in the first place.  The accumulated financial risk in the 

2021/22 Risk Register was assessed to be £12.895m at the start of the financial year and 

the projected usable General Fund balance, at £6.315m, was sufficient to cover 49% of 

risks identified. 

 

The key financial risks identified in the Council’s strategic risk register are as follows: 

 

 Budgetary Control – “Failure of budgetary control processes may increase the 

likelihood of unplanned overspends, under recovery of budgeted income, budgets 

being stretched and the savings required by the 5 year Financial Plan delayed.” 

 Government Funding – “If there is an unforeseen or unplanned reduction in 

government funding beyond financial planning assumptions, then our ability to provide 

services may be compromised (LGFS updated annually in December).” 

 Capital Projects – “If Capital projects are not evaluated to take into account ROI and 

whole life costs then the benefits may not be realised or give value for money.” 

 Climate Change - “If the Council and its partners do not act to assess and address 

climate change threats, the consequences of climate change may be more adverse and 

the Council could fail to meet its legislative obligations.” 

 
Financial Plans 
The Revenue and Capital Financial Plan provides a financial representation of the Council’s 

priorities and Corporate Plan covering 5 and 10 years respectively. These Financial Plans 

can be found on the Council’s website: http://www.scotborders.gov.uk 

    

2021/22 represented the fourth year of the current 5 year Revenue Financial Plan, the first 

plan was published in 2013/14.  The plans have been amended and updated each year 

since 2013/14 and, to date, permanent savings of £66m have been delivered in a planned 

manner.  Despite the resource challenges facing the Council and wider public services, the 

approach to financial planning has so far delivered balanced budgets and small 

underspends in each year. 

 

The Capital Investment Strategy (CIS), which highlights the capital investment priorities 

and explains how these priorities will assist with the delivery of the Council’s Corporate 

Plan, was approved with the budget papers in February 2022.  The document brings 

together the Council’s 10 year Capital Investment Plan 2021 – 2031 and also the 10 year 

Treasury Strategy which sets out how the investment plans can be funded. 

 

The Capital Financial Plan aims to ensure that capital borrowing is within prudential 

borrowing limits and remains sustainable in the longer term.  In this regard it is important 

to recognise that capital investment decisions taken now have long term borrowing and 

revenue implications which have the potential to place an undue burden on future tax 

payers.  The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy provides the linkage between the 

Financial Strategy, Capital Investment Plans and the Borrowing Strategy.  The Financial 

Strategy, the Financial Plans and the Treasury Management Strategy are approved by 

Council annually in February.   

 

Page 66

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 8 

 

See page 56 of the Annual accounts for details of the Council’s business model. 

Equalities Mainstreaming 

Scottish Borders Council takes a positive approach to equalities and human rights through 

taking forward the actions in its Mainstreaming Report and Equality Outcomes.  The 

current Mainstreaming Report covers the period 2021-2025.  

 

The report covers previous progress made in advancing equalities, and contains an action 

plan to further embed equalities and human rights into the work of the Council. 

 

Key elements of the action plan are: 

 Better equality performance indicators in relation to performance data.  

 More effective training of Council employees and Elected Members in relation to 

equalities.    

 Ensuring service business plans and commissioned services are fully embedding 

equalities in their development and implementation.  

 Greater effort to be made to engage with equality groups in the development of 

plans and policies. 

 

The Council also promotes the Fairer Scotland duty, which places a legal responsibility on 

the Council to actively consider how they can reduce inequalities of outcome caused by 

socio–economic disadvantage when making strategic decisions.   

 
To achieve this, the Council uses an Integrated Impact Assessment, which assesses both 

the impact of any proposal, plan or policy on groups with protected characteristics under 

the Equality Act and also, where relevant, the groups who may experience socio –

economic disadvantage. 

 

All of the Council’s budget proposals are subject to an Integrated Impact Assessment. 

 

More information can be found on the Council’s website: 

Equality and diversity/Fairer Scotland Duty | Scottish Borders Council (scotborders.gov.uk) 
 

  

Page 67

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20062/strategies_plans_and_policies/928/equality_and_diversityfairer_scotland_duty


 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 9 

 

How are we are doing? - Financial Performance 

2021/22 Financial Resources Available 

The financial resources of the Council are categorised into Revenue and Capital budgets.  

Expenditure on recurring day to day costs of providing the Council’s services (e.g. 

salaries) is Revenue, whereas spending on the creation or enhancement of assets (e.g. 

school buildings) that have a useful value to the Council over multiple years is referred to 

as Capital.  The financing of Revenue and Capital Expenditure, in general, comes from 

different sources.  

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on page 49 has further analysis.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021/22 Budgeted Revenue Funding 
(£m)

£314.657m

2021/22 Budgeted Capital Funding 
(£m)

£87.441m

Page 68



 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 10 

 

Financial Position at 31 March 2022 

The approved budget was subject to a number of amendments during the year, as service 

pressures and savings were identified, additional grant revenue income was received and 

budget adjustments including Earmarked Balances were approved.   
 

Revenue 
The actual outturn for the financial year 

2021/22 was a revenue expenditure of 

£289.6m representing a net underspend of 

£1.427m (0.5%) against the final approved 

budget. 

 

The following chart analyses the revenue 

spend by Council department: 
 

 
 
Revenue net expenditure of £289.6m for 

the year includes income of £167.4m, and 

gross expenditure of £457m as analysed in 

the chart below: 

 

 
 

 
Capital 
The actual outturn for the financial year 

2021/22 was capital expenditure of £59.6m 

with a favourable year end timing 

movement of £7.5m against revised 

budget. 

 

 
 
The capital programme delivered significant 

investment in the Scottish Borders during 

2021/22 and the following table highlights 

some of the major projects undertaken: 

 

 

0.0 50.0 100.0 150.0

I&E

Social Work

E&LL

Resilient Communities

Finance & CG

People, Perf & Change

Strategic Commissioning

Total Revenue Expenditure (£m)

Employee 
Costs
41%

Premises 
Costs

4%

Transport 
Costs

5%

Supplies 
and 

Services 
15%

Third 
Party 

Payments
23%

Transfer 
& Support 
Payments

7%

Capital 
Charges

5%

0 10 20 30 40

I&E

Social Work

E&LL

IT

Economic Dev

Culture & Sport

Total Capital Expenditure (£m)

•Flood Protection Works £20.0m

•Roads & Bridge Maintenance      £10.9m

•Land & Property Infrastructure £4.5m

•Plant & Vehicle £1.9m

Infrastructure & Environment

•School Estate Block £1.1m

•Galashiels Academy £1.4m

•Peebles High School £1.4m

•Social Care Infrastructure £0.4m

Education & Lifelong Learning & 
Social Work

•ICT Transformation £9.5m

•Economic Regeneration £5.9m

•Culture & Sport £0.8m

IT/Econ Dev/Culture & Sport

Page 69



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 11 

 

COVID–19 grants not included in the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement (CI&ES) 

During 2021/22 the Council continued to administer a number of grants on behalf of the Scottish 

Government as well as providing the normal services.  These grants are not included within the 

financial statements due to this being an agency type arrangement.  More details in relation to 

these grants can be found below. 

  £ thousands 

  
Amount of grant paid out  

by Scottish Borders 
Council 

Additional £400 secondary teachers & lecturers 253 

Childcare Sector Omicron Impacts 96 

Low Income Pandemic Payments 1,199 

Self Isolation Support 553 

Spring 2021 Child Bridging Payment 257 

Summer 2021 Child Bridging Payment 235 

Autumn 2021 Child Bridging Payment 340 

Winter 2021 Child Bridging Payment 352 

Spring 2022 Child Bridging Payment 294 

Business Grant Scheme 18,744 

Coronavirus (COVID-19): £500 payment for health and social care 
staff 

1,337 

TOTAL 23,660 

 

 

Reconciliation of Outturn to Financial Statement CI&ES 

The table below shows the effect on the Council’s reported outturn position of the statutory 

accounting adjustments and provides a reconciliation to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement on page 49.  It should be noted that the net impact of these Statutory 

Adjustments have no impact on the Council Taxpayer. 

 

Net Surplus on Revenue Out-turn (1.763)

Net Statutory Adjustments to Net Cost of Services (inc. Depreciation/Impairment on 

Revaluation/Loan Charges/PPP/Non Distributed Costs) 
27.040

Other Asset (Gains)/Losses (57.722)

Net Interest Costs 9.917

Net Changes on Pension Assets/Liabilities (IAS19 at 31
st
 March 2022) (82.610)

Capital Grants & Contributions Applied (exc.Reserves used) (42.522)

SBc Contracts External Operating Deficit 0.257

Net Surplus - Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (147.403)  
 

 

Page 70



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 12 

 

Delivery of Targeted Savings 

Overall, Financial Plan savings of £9.301m were delivered during 2021/22 in order to balance  

the costs of delivering services and the available resources.  The regular budget monitoring 

reports to the Executive Committee tracked the delivery of these savings against the Financial 

Plan proposals.    

 

The total savings of £9.301m shown below are made up of £5.148m savings included in the 

2021/22 financial plan plus £4.153m brought forward from previous years. Of these savings 

delivered during 2021/22 £3.489m (37%) were delivered permanently.  A further £1.932m 

(21%) of the savings, which were fully delivered in 2021/22, are not required to be delivered 

in the 2022/23 financial plan leaving a balance of £3.880m (42%) to be carried forward from 

2021/22 for permanent delivery in 2022/23. 

 

The chart below highlights the level of savings being delivered within the Council on an 

ongoing basis, demonstrating the scale of change undertaken within the Council over the last 

5 years.  The savings are categorised into those established as part of the Financial Plan in 

each year and those brought forward from previous years for permanent delivery.    

 

 

 
 

To date the Council’s approach to longer term financial planning has delivered permanent 

savings of £66m. Ongoing effort will be required going forward to successfully deliver the 

Financial Plan due to the scale of further savings required in 2022/23 and beyond and the 

challenges now posed through COVID-19 recovery and current economic challenges.  

 

 
 
 
 
  

8,686 

11,431 

8,473 9,171 

5,148 

3,600

4,983 

4,790 2,920

4,153

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SBC 5 year savings delivered 2017/18 - 2021/22  
(£000's) 

Financial Plan Savings Temporary savings brought forward

Page 71



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 13 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  

 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on page 49 shows the accounting cost 

of providing services rather than the cost of services which requires to be funded by taxation. 

 

Net Cost of Services 
The Council is required to make various statutory accounting adjustments to the net cost of 

services as reported in the management outturn reports in order to comply with the Code of 

Practice for Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the Code). 

 

These accounting adjustments include depreciation, Loans Fund principal repayments and 

accrued holiday leave not taken by 31 March 2022. This results in statutory accounting 

adjustments of £34.5m being required to revise the net cost of services of £324.1m compared 

with the reported departmental net cost of services of £289.6m.   

 

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services 
 

Further statutory adjustments are then made as summarised below and shown on page 49.  

These include net gains/losses on disposal and revaluation of assets and interest payable. 

These accounting adjustments result in an overall Surplus on the Provision of Council Services 

for the year of £1.763m.  

 

This position and its impact on the General Fund is reflected in the following table showing the 

cumulative surplus on the General Fund of £51.991m as at 31st March 2022. 

 
2021/22

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the 

General Fund as 

per outturn

Adjustments 

between the Funding 

and Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

£'000 £'000 £'000

Net Cost of Services 289,605 34,511 324,117

Other Income and Expenditure (305,155) (20,725) (325,880)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (15,550) 13,787 (1,763)

Opening Balance on General Fund (36,441)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Income & Expenditure 

Account for the Year (1,763)

Net additional amount required by statute and 

non-statutory proper practices to be debited or 

credited to the General Fund Balance for the year (13,787)

Closing Balance on General Fund (51,991)  
 

 
Note 5 – Expenditure and Funding Analysis on pages 66 – 69 explains the movement in further detail. 

 
 

Page 72



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 14 

 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
 

This position needs to be finally adjusted to reflect Actuarial (Gains)/losses on the Pension 

Fund Net Assets/Liabilities (£87.2m) calculated on an IAS19 basis and Revaluations of Non-

Current Assets at the balance sheet date of 31st March 2022.  This revises the £1.763m 

surplus position on the Provision of Council Services to a Net Comprehensive Income surplus 

of £147.403m (deficit of £42.611m in 2020/21).   

 

Balance Sheet 
During 2021/22 the Net Asset position increased by £147.4m to £230.8m (£83.4m 2020/21).   

The table below details the movement during the year. 

 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 Movement

Restated

£m £m £m
Long Term Assets 614.8 681.6 66.8

Current Assets 72.8 96.1 23.3

Current Liabilities (79.4) (64.9) 14.5

Long Term Liabilities (309.1) (322.5) (13.4) 

Net Assets excluding Pension Liability 299.1 390.3 91.2

Pension Liability (215.7) (159.5) 56.2

Net Assets/(Liabilities) including Pension Liabilities 83.4 230.8 147.4

Balance Sheet as at

 
 

 

More details in relation to the Net Assets Excluding pension liabilities can be found within the 

Balance Sheet on page 51. 

 

The net position including the pension liabilities is as a result of the underlying assumptions 

used in the actuarial valuation.   The actuarial valuation for the accounts are calculated in 

accordance with IAS19 and uses a number of high level assumptions including pension 

increases, salary increase and discount rate. 

 

Treasury and Debt Management 
 

The Council publishes an annual Treasury Management Strategy to coincide with the approval 

of the financial plans in February.  This strategy links the Council’s capital investment plans to 

its treasury management activities including borrowing and investment strategies.  An annual 

report on Treasury Management is also published each year and can be accessed at the 

following link. 

  

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11288/treasury_management_strategy_2
022-23.pdf 
 

Cash Management 
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised 

during the year will meet cash expenditure.  A major aspect of the treasury management 

operations during the year was to ensure that the cash flow was adequately planned, with 

cash being available when needed.  Any surplus monies were invested in instruments 

appropriate for the Council’s low risk appetite and which meet the criteria set within the 

Investment Strategy. 

Page 73

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11288/treasury_management_strategy_2022-23.pdf
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11288/treasury_management_strategy_2022-23.pdf


 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 15 

 

 

 

 
Debt Management 
The Council continued to maintain an under-borrowed position, this means that the capital 

financing need was not fully funded by external loan debt and instead internal cash supporting 

the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has continued to be used as a temporary 

tactical measure.  This strategy remains both prudent and cost effective in an environment 

where investment returns are low and counterparty risk is high.   

 

External Debt 
The Council’s outstanding external debt as at 31 March 2022 was £215m.  Additional long 

term borrowing was undertaken during the year amounting to £20m, with no requirement for 

short term borrowing during the 2021/22 year.  The average rate of interest paid on 

outstanding external debt was 4.42%. 

 

Page 74



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 16 

 

Reserves  

The Council maintains two types of reserves – usable and unusable – and the movement in 

these reserves are set out in the Movement in Reserves Statement (page 48).  

 

Unusable Reserves – result from accounting adjustments and cannot be spent 

Usable Reserves – result from the Council’s activities and can be spent in the future 

 

 

Note 31, page 100 provides additional information on the movement of the usable and 

unusable reserves held by the Council. 

 

The Council’s principal usable reserve is the General Fund Reserve and is maintained for three 

main purposes: 

 

 A working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and provide financial 

resilience to the Council; 

 A contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies; and 

 Earmarked balances to meet known or predicted liabilities. 

 

As at 31 March 2022 the total Usable Reserves Balance is £64.5m (£48.3m at 31 March 2021) 

a net increase of £16.2m during the year. The net increase, as can be seen from the chart 

below, can mainly be attributed to an increase in Earmarked balances, which have increased 

by £11.2m and Reserves for specific plans which have increased by £2.9m.  There have been 

increases of £1m in non-allocated reserves, £0.5m in the Plant & Vehicles Renewals Fund, 

£0.4m in Pitch Replacement Fund, and £0.4m increase in Devolved School Management.   

 
 

Movements within the Allocated and Non-Allocated Reserves during 2021/22 comprised:  

  

Reserves Allocated for Specific Plans - net effect of: 

Increase in Treasury reserve £2.300m 

Increase in Workforce Management reserve £0.300m 

Establish strategic contract movement reserve £0.362m 

 

Non-Allocated Reserves 

2020/21 in year draw downs  (£0.410m) 

2021/22 year end underspend £1.427m 

£64.5m

£1.0m

£2.9m

£0.4m

£11.2m

(£0.3m)

£0.1m

£0.4m

£0.5m

£0.0m

£48.3m

Usable Reserve 31 Mar 2022

Non-Allocated Reserves

Reserves Allocated for Specific Plans

Devolved School Management (DSM)

Earmarked Balances

Corporate Property Repairs and Renewals Fund

Insurance Fund

Pitch Replacement Fund

Plant & Vehicles Renewals Fund

Capital Fund (excl development contributions)

Usable Reserve 31 Mar 2021

Page 75



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 17 

 

Scottish Borders Council Group Accounts 
 

Group Accounts have been prepared for the year ending 31 March 2022 with a comparator 

year ending 31 March 2022.  The Group Accounts for 2021/22 can be found from page 112.  

The Group comprises of the following: 

 

 
 

Following a judicial review decision and the issue of a public consultation on the identification of 

Common Good assets in the Scottish Borders, a number of assets have been transferred from 

Scottish Borders Council’s Balance Sheet to the Common Goods Funds as a prior period 

adjustment.  These assets amount to a value of £0.491m.  Common Good building assets 

currently used by the Council to deliver services have been treated as finance lease assets and 

remain on the Council’s balance sheet at a carrying value of £8.971m.  This is on the basis that 

formal arrangements for continued Council use of the assets are anticipated to be agreed.    In 

the event that this process requires further asset transfers the necessary adjustments will be 

made following agreement. 
 

 
How are we doing?  

 

Performance against our corporate priorities 
The Council reports and presents its performance information relating to each corporate 

priority on a quarterly basis to the Strategic Leadership Team and the Executive Committee of 

the Council.  Below is a summary of the key performance information for 2021/22 and the 

priorities that we need to focus on moving forward to ensure that our priorities continue to be 

addressed.  

Subsidiaries

• SBC Common Good Funds (Registered Charity)

• SBC Trust Funds:

•Registered Charities:

• SBC Charitable Trust

• SBC Community Enhancement Trust

• SBC Welfare Trust

• SBC Education Trust

•Ormiston Trust for Institute and

•39 Non-Registered Trusts

•Bridge Homes LLP

• Live Borders

Joint Ventures

• Scottish Borders Health and Social Care Partnership

Page 76



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 18 

 

 

P
age 77



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 19 

 

 

P
age 78



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 20 

 

 

P
age 79



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 21 

 

 

P
age 80



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 22 

 

 

P
age 81



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 23 

 

 

P
age 82



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 24 

 

 

P
age 83



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 25 

 
 

Our Plans for the Future 

The Council has successfully delivered £66m of savings over the past 9 years through a 

Corporate Transformation Programme.  The current Fit for 2024 programme was launched at 

the start of 2019/20 to deliver significant savings, ensure sustainability and deliver service 

improvements over the 5 years from 2019/20 to 2023/24.  This plan along with the Capital 

Investment Programme and Departmental Business Plans will be delivered within an 

environment of ever reducing financial resources and increasing public and government 

expectations.  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

For more information on the programme visit:   www.scotborders.gov.uk/fitfor2024  

Page 84

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/fitfor2024


 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 26 

 

Future Financial Plans - 2022/23 

 
 
 

 
The Revenue and Capital Financial Plans from 2022/23 onwards can be found on the Council’s 

webpages at www.scotborders.gov.uk 
 

Conclusion                                                                                  

The operating environment for the Council continues to be very challenging.  The Council is 

faced with a number of financial and economic influences such as increasing demands on 

services, current inflation affecting the costs of goods and services and wider labour market 

factors affecting the Council’s ability to recruit to fill key vacancies in a number of areas.  New 

digital innovations, business process re-engineering and technology solutions continue to be 

pursued in order for the Council to deliver vital services to the community as efficiently and 

effectively as possible.  

 

The Council’s work to support communities and deliver services following the pandemic 

continues. The Council has worked in partnership with the Scottish Government to provide 

support to Ukrainian refugees displaced by the current war with Russia.  Work also continues 

in mainstreaming Community Choices to ensure the Council is positively engaging with 

communities in prioritising resources whenever possible. 

 

 

 

Revenue Budget

•£324.9m of resources with 
savings of  £8.1m in 2022/23

•£1.7bn of resources over next 5 
years, savings of  £21m 
required  based on current 
estimates 

Capital 
Budget

• £103m investment, including 
investment in new schools, flood 
protection and IT transformation, 
funded by £44m borrowing in 
2022/23

•£545m investment over next 10 
years, of which £249m funded 
by borrowing

Reserves

•Maintain a minimum of 
£8.4m Unallocated 
Reserves 

Page 85

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 27 

 

 

The current operating environment also presents many opportunities for the Scottish Borders, 

including continued ever closer working with the NHS, South of Scotland Enterprise (SOSE), 

the Edinburgh and South East Scotland Regional City Deal and the Borderlands Inclusive 

Growth Deal.  There will also be opportunities arising from the New UK Community Renewal 

Fund.  These initiatives combined with the Council’s planned investment in infrastructure of 

the Borders and our annual procurement spend provide huge opportunities for economic 

growth and the creation of high quality employment in the South of Scotland. The Council will 

continue to work with our all community planning partners and National Government to ensure 

we maximise this potential for our communities.  

 

The challenges posed by COVID-19, constrained Scottish Government funding and cost 

pressures from pay and price inflation all continue to affect the Council’s finances.  The 

Council’s transformation programme remains the key focus of activity in balancing pressures 

with available resources.  The Council, despite ongoing challenges, has met the aims of its 

Financial Strategy and again delivered its planned services within budget with significant 

investment in new and improved facilities.  Scottish Borders Council remains financially sound 

and well placed to serve the people of the Scottish Borders in the future.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
David Robertson CPFA  Euan Jardine  Suzy Douglas CPFA 

Acting Chief Executive  Council Leader  Acting Chief Financial  

         Officer 

       

    

 

Page 86



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 28 

 

Statement of Responsibilities 
 

The Council’s responsibilities  

 

The Council is required to: 

 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 

the proper officer of the Council has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs 

(section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973).  In this Council, that officer is 

the Director Finance & Corporate Governance. 

 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard 

its assets.  

 

 Ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority 

Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014), and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in 

accordance with proper accounting practices (section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland 

Act 2003). 

 

 Approve the Annual Accounts for signature. 

 

I confirm that these Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Council at its meeting 

on 24 November 2022. 

 

The Acting Chief Financial Officer responsibilities:- 

 

The Acting Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Annual 

Accounts in accordance with proper practices as required by legislation and as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 

Accounting Code). 

 

In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Acting Chief Financial Officer has: 

 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently. 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 

 Complied with legislation. 

 Complied with the local authority Accounting Code (in so far as it is compatible with 

legislation) 

 

The Acting Chief Financial Officer has also:- 

 

 Kept adequate accounting records which were up to date. 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

I certify that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

Council (and its group) at the reporting date and the transactions of the local authority (and its 

group) for the year ended 31 March 2022. 

 

 

 

 

Euan Jardine    Suzy Douglas CPFA 

Council Leader    Acting Chief Financial Officer   

Page 87



Independent Auditor’s Report 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 29 

 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Scottish Borders Council 
and the Accounts Commission  
 
Reporting on the audit of the financial statements  
 
Opinion on financial statements  
I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the annual accounts of 
Scottish Borders Council and its group for the year ended 31 March 2022 under Part 
VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The financial statements comprise 
the group and council-only Movement in Reserves Statements, Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statements, Balance Sheets, and Cash Flow Statements, 
the council-only Council Tax Income Account, Non-Domestic Rate Account, Trust 
Funds and Common Good Funds and notes to the financial statements, including 
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been 
applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international 
accounting standards, as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the 2021/22 Code).  
In my opinion the accompanying financial statements:  

 give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2021/22 Code of 
the state of affairs of the council and its group as at 31 March 2022 and of the income 
and expenditure of the council and its group for the year then ended;  
 have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international 
accounting standards, as interpreted and adapted by the 2021/22 Code; and  
 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973, The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and 
the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.   

 
Basis for opinion  
I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by 
the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of my report. I was appointed under arrangements approved by 
the Accounts Commission on 10 April 2017. The period of total uninterrupted 
appointment is 6 years. I am independent of the council and its group in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements 
in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have 
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-
audit services prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the council. I 
believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion.  

 
Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting  
I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.  
Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant 
doubt on the ability of the council and its group to continue to adopt the going 

Page 88

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Independent Auditor’s Report 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 30 

 

concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue.  
These conclusions are not intended to, nor do they, provide assurance on the current 
or future financial sustainability of the council and its group. However, I report on the 
council’s arrangements for financial sustainability in a separate Annual Audit Report 
available from the Audit Scotland website.  

 
Risks of material misstatement  
I report in my Annual Audit Report the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement that I identified and my judgements thereon.  

 
Responsibilities of the Acting Chief Financial Officer and Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee for the financial statements  
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Acting Chief 
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the Acting Chief Financial Officer is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.  
In preparing the financial statements, the Acting Chief Financial Officer is responsible 
for assessing the ability of the council and its group to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention to discontinue the operations 
of the council and its group.  
The Audit and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process.  

 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes [my/our] opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists.   
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined above to 
detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Procedures 
include:  

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory framework and 
how the council and its group is complying with that framework;  
 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of the council 
and its group;  
 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, 
including how fraud might occur; and  
 considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate competence 
and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance with laws and regulations.  

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including 
fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness 

Page 89

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits


Independent Auditor’s Report 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 31 

 

of the council’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures 
performed.  
Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The capability of 
the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the 
skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of 
collusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, and the 
seniority of those individuals involved.  
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s 
report.  

 
Reporting on other requirements  
Opinion prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the audited part of 
the Remuneration Report  
I have audited the part of the Remuneration Report described as audited. In my 
opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in 
accordance with The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014.  

Other information   
The Acting Chief Financial Officer is responsible for other information in the annual 
accounts. The other information comprises the Management Commentary, Annual 
Governance Statement, Statement of Responsibilities and the unaudited part of the 
Remuneration Report.   
My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, I am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material 
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work I have 
performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I 
am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.  
My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the Management 
Commentary and Annual Governance Statement to the extent explicitly stated in the 
following opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission.  
Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Management 
Commentary and Annual Governance Statement  
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:  

 the information given in the Management Commentary for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements 
and that report has been prepared in accordance with statutory guidance issued under 
the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003; and  
 the information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements 
and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016).  

  

 
 

Page 90

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Independent Auditor’s Report 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 32 

 

 
Matters on which I am required to report by exception  
I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion:  

 adequate accounting records have not been kept; or  
 the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration Report are not in 
agreement with the accounting records; or  
 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; or  
 there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.  

I have the following to report in respect of these matters.  
Scottish Borders Council has a duty under section 10 of the Local Government in 
Scotland Act 2003 to conduct their significant trading operations so that income is not 
less than expenditure over a rolling three-year period. Scottish Borders Council has 
failed to comply with this statutory requirement for the three-year period ending 31 
March 2022 in respect of their significant trading operation, SBc Contracts.  
I have nothing to report in respect of the other matters.  

Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities  
In addition to my responsibilities for the annual accounts, my conclusions on the 
wider scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice, including those in 
respect of Best Value, are set out in my Annual Audit Report.  

 
Use of my report  
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with 
Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In 
accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, I do not undertake to 
have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third 
parties.  
  
  
Gillian Woolman MA FCA CPFA   
Audit Director   
Audit Scotland   
4th Floor   
102 West Port   
Edinburgh   
EH3 9DN   
  
Date:  

 

Page 91



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 33 

 
 

Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 

Introduction 

The Annual Governance Statement explains how the Council has complied with the terms of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework (2016) for the year ended 31 March 2022, sets out the Council’s governance 
arrangements and systems of internal control, and reports on their effectiveness. The statement also covers 
relevant governance matters as they affect those entities included as part of the Council’s Group Accounts. 

Scope of Responsibility 

Scottish Borders Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law 
and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council also 
has a statutory duty of Best Value under the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 to make arrangements 
to secure continuous improvement and performance, while maintaining an appropriate balance between 
quality and cost; and in making these arrangements and securing that balance, to have regard to economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, elected members and senior officers are responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of Scottish Borders Council’s affairs and facilitating the 
exercise of its functions in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. This includes setting the 
strategic direction, vision, culture and values of the Council, effective operation of corporate systems, 
processes and internal controls, engaging with and, where appropriate, leading communities, monitoring 
whether strategic objectives have been achieved and services delivered cost effectively, and ensuring that 
appropriate arrangements are in place for the management of risk. 

The system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

Framework for Good Governance 

The overall aim of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’ 
(Spring 2016) is to ensure that: resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to 
priorities; there is sound and inclusive decision making; and there is clear accountability for the use of those 
resources in order to achieve desired outcomes for service users and communities. 

The CIPFA/SOLACE Framework defines the seven core principles of good governance, namely: 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of 
law;  

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits; 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes; 

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it; 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 
management; and 

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability. 

The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles and 
recommendations of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework and the supporting guidance notes for Scottish 
authorities (November 2016), was approved by Council on 28 June 2018. It is recognised that the Local Code 
needs to be reviewed and updated, and submitted for approval to ensure it continues to be relevant in the 
ever-changing operating environment and sets out the framework of governance and control for the conduct 
of the Council’s business. This activity is underway in 2022/23. 
  

Page 92



Annual Governance Statement 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 34 

 

 

The Governance Framework 

The key elements of the Council’s governance arrangements, as set out in the Council’s Local Code of 
Corporate Governance, include: 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting rule of law 

The roles and responsibilities of elected members and officers and the processes to govern the conduct of the 
Council’s business are defined in procedural standing orders, scheme of administration, scheme of delegation, 
and financial regulations which are regularly reviewed and revised where appropriate. 

Codes of conduct are in place for, and define the high ethical values and standards of behaviour expected 
from, elected members and officers to make sure that public business is conducted with fairness and integrity. 

The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring that agreed procedures are followed and that all applicable 
statutes and regulations are complied with.  

The Council seeks feedback from the public through its complaints and comments procedures for Corporate 
and Social Work (statutory) service areas, responds to the outcomes, as appropriate, and reports the results 
annually. 

Professional advice on the discharge of statutory social work duties is provided to the Council by the Chief 
Social Work and Public Protection Officer (CSWO). The CSWO promotes values and standards of 
professional practice and acts as the 'agency decision maker' taking final decisions on a range of social work 
matters including adoption, secure accommodation, guardianship, etc. 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Council meetings are held in public unless there are good reasons for not doing so on the grounds of 
confidentiality. When meetings are held remotely they are live-streamed to ensure public access. 

Unless confidential, decisions made by Council, the Executive Committee or other Committees are documented in 
the public domain. All decisions are explicit about the criteria, rationale and considerations used. The impact and 
consequences of all decisions are clearly set out. 

The Council seeks community views on a wide range of issues and undertakes regular consultation and 
engagement with citizens and service users, for example via Citizen Space. The Scottish Borders CPP 
Community Engagement Framework (2015) sets out principles for engagement and the Toolkit shares best 
practice methods.  

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits 
The Community Planning Partnership, of which the Council is a partner, has a Community Plan approved in 
May 2018 (the Local Outcomes Improvement Plan (LOIP)) supplemented by 5 Locality Plans which were 
developed through Area Partnerships in 2019. The Council’s vision, strategic objectives and priorities 
underpinned by the Strategic Assessment are reflected in the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 which suggests 
where individuals, families, businesses, partners and communities can “‘play their part’’ to improve outcomes 
for the Scottish Borders #YourPart. 

Asset management planning (which continues to be developed) and capital investment is structured to consider 
and balance the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies and plans when taking 
decisions about service provision. The Council has put arrangements in place to comply with key elements of the 
Community Empowerment Act. 

Integrated impact assessments as well as environmental, sustainability and rural implications are considered 
during the decision making process to promote fair access to services. 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 

Decision makers receive detailed information indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved together 
with the implications associated with the proposals covering financial, risks and mitigations, integrated impact 
assessment, acting sustainably, carbon management, rural proofing, and changes to schemes, by way of the 
compulsory sections of the Committee report. 

In determining how services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered the Council is 
increasingly engaging with internal and external stakeholders. Community benefit is an important 
consideration in the procurement of goods and services. 

The Council fosters effective relationships, collaborative working and contractual arrangements with other 
public, private, and voluntary organisations in delivering services that meet the needs of the local community 
as stated in the Council’s Corporate Plan.  

Page 93



Annual Governance Statement 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 35 

 

 

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

The corporate management structure consists of the Chief Executive and eight Directors. The roles of officers 
are defined in agreed job profiles. Staff performance is reviewed on an annual basis in accordance with the 
new appraisal process that was launched during the year.  

The Chief Executive is responsible and accountable to the Council for all aspects of management including 
promoting sound governance, providing quality information/support to inform decision-making and scrutiny, 
supporting other statutory officers, and building relationships with all Councillors. 

The Elected Members Induction Programme is periodically supplemented by additional training and an annual 
programme of learning and development and briefings. Members appointed to certain committees have also 
received specific training related to the responsibilities on these committees e.g. licensing, planning, audit, 
pensions, employment.  

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management 

The Council which has overall responsibility for directing and controlling the organisation has approved an 
Executive / Scrutiny model of decision making. The Executive Committee is the key decision-making and 
monitoring committee and the Audit and Scrutiny Committee (Scrutiny function) for reviewing policy decisions.  

The Council has a risk management policy and approach whose main priorities are the robust systems of 
identification, evaluation and control of risks which threaten the Council’s ability to meet its objectives to deliver 
services to the public. 

The Director Finance & Corporate Governance (the Section 95 officer) is responsible for the proper 
administration of all aspects of the Council’s financial affairs including ensuring appropriate advice is given to 
the Council on all financial matters.  

The Council’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of financial regulations, regular 
management information, administrative procedures (including segregation of duties), management 
supervision and a system of delegation and accountability. 

The Council has a proactive, holistic approach to tackling fraud, theft, corruption and crime, as an integral part 
of protecting public finances, safeguarding assets, and delivering services effectively. It is based upon the 
national counter fraud standard CIPFA’s Code of Practice on ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption’. 

A Medium Term Financial Strategy, and associated Risk Register, and plans for revenue (5-year) and capital 
(10-year) based on corporate priorities are developed, led by the Corporate Management Team, and 
presented for approval by Council prior to the end of March each year. 

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring reports are presented to the Executive Committee on a quarterly 
basis for monitoring and control purposes including the annual outturn. The Management Commentary in the 
Statement of Accounts provides financial and other performance information regarding the operation of the 
Council, its wider achievements and areas for development. 

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

The independent and objective audit opinion of the Chief Officer Audit & Risk (Chief Audit Executive) is stated 
within the Internal Audit Annual Assurance Report. This is based on work carried out by an in-house team in 
conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards to fulfil statutory Internal Audit provision. 

The Council responds to the findings and recommendations of Internal Audit, External Audit, Scrutiny and 
Inspection bodies including associated Action Plans for improvement. The Audit and Scrutiny Committee 
(A&SC) (Audit functions) is integral to overseeing independent and objective assurance and monitoring 
improvements in internal control and governance. The Audit functions of A&SC are undertaken in compliance 
with the CIPFA Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 Edition, including 
the production of an annual report on the performance of the A&SC against its remit (Audit functions) for 
submission to the Council. 

Quarterly Performance Reports are presented to the Executive Committee for monitoring and control of the 
achievement of strategic priorities and key performance indicators. 

The Annual Accounts and Report sets out the financial position in accordance with relevant accounting 
regulations. 
  

Page 94



Annual Governance Statement 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 36 

 

 

Review of Adequacy and Effectiveness of the Council’s Governance Framework  

An annual review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s overall governance framework has been 
carried out, taking into account the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic impact in 2021/22 on business as usual in the 
delivery of services and virtual committee meetings to enable decision-making. The output is this Annual 
Governance Statement which is presented to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

The review was informed by assurances from the: Governance Self-Assessment Working Group; Directors; 
Internal Audit annual opinion and recommendations; comments and recommendations made by External 
Auditors and other external scrutiny bodies and inspection agencies. 

The conclusion from the review activity outlined above is that in 2021/22 the Council continued to demonstrate 
improvements to its governance arrangements by way of progressing the implementation of actions 
associated with the 10 improvement areas of governance within the previous year’s annual governance 
statement. 

A progress update on the implementation of the Best Value Audit Implementation Plan that underpins the 
seven recommendations (nos. 1-7) has been reviewed by the Strategic Leadership Team and has been 
presented to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee on 14 February 2022. The update considered the full suite of 
40 actions associated with the Best Value Implementation Plan, with good progress overall and 50% of them 
completed. Some of the actions had to be reset as ways to achieve the outcomes have changed, and end 
dates for some actions had been reviewed and amended, where applicable. Two key projects were underway 
that addressed key recommendations of the Best Value Audit report: the refresh of the Council Plan (approved 
February 2022); and a review of the organisation’s performance management approach. 

In respect of the other three improvement areas of governance identified by the Council in 2020/21 (nos. 8-
10), there have been developments during the year. Specifically, the refocussed and themed Fit for 2024 
transformation programme to ensure the Council builds on all transformational benefits that the pandemic has 
presented including digital advancements, the strategic policy research and planning to influence the refresh 
of the Council Plan and the ongoing enhancement of the Performance Management Framework, and review 
and updates of some service and corporate policies, procedures and guidelines. These improvement areas 
of governance are not fully implemented and therefore continue to be noted in the section below, with 
enhancements added relating to nos. 8-10.   

Improvement Areas of Governance 

The collective review activity outlined above has identified the following areas where further improvement in 
governance arrangements can be made.  

The implementation of the remainder of the actions in the Best Value Audit Implementation Plan to fully 
address the recommendations (1-7 below) in order to demonstrate Best Value:  

(1) Embed a culture of Continuous improvement by implementing a corporate approach to self-evaluation 
and benchmarking. 

(2) Seek to improve partnership working with NHS Borders in order to support the strategic objectives of 
the Integration Joint Board. 

(3) Improve how the Community Planning Partnership involves communities and the third sector, through 
greater involvement in local decision-making and by accelerating implementation of the Community 
Empowerment Act. 

(4) Establish a structured programme of ongoing staff consultation and engagement. 

(5) Update its people plan for 2017-21 and ensure longer-term workforce plans are reflected in service and 
financial plans. 

(6) Support members’ Continuing Professional Development by tailoring training to meet their individual 
needs and use technology to make training more accessible. 

(7) Ensure performance reports to members and the public are more comprehensive, balanced and that 
they cover service performance and the delivery of the Fit for 2024 programme. 

Progress updates on the implementation of the remainder of the actions in the Best Value Audit 
Implementation Plan will continue to be presented to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee.  

 

 

 

Page 95



Annual Governance Statement 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 37 

 

 

In addition, the implementation of further enhancements to the other improvement actions identified by the 
Council in 2020/21 (8-10 below) in order to enhance governance and internal controls: 

(8) Implement the refocussed and themed Fit for 2024 programme to achieve the transformational benefits 
that the pandemic has presented including digital advancements. 

(9) Produce plans and toolkits to complete the links from the Council Plan to individuals’ appraisals 
consistently across the Council and refresh the Performance Management Framework to ensure 
performance monitoring and reporting is accurate, robust and timely. 

(10) Update the Policy Register to enable oversight of the ongoing review of policies, procedures and 
guidelines to ensure they are fit for purpose and meet current legislation. 

These actions to enhance the governance arrangements in 2022/23 will be driven and monitored by the 
Strategic Leadership Team on a regular basis in order to inform the next annual review. Internal Audit work 
planned in 2022/23 is designed to test compliance and improvements. 

Conclusion and Opinion on Assurance  

The conclusion from the review activity outlined above and our opinion is that reasonable assurance can be 
placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of Scottish Borders Council’s systems of internal control and 
governance. Although areas for further improvement have been identified, the annual review demonstrates 
sufficient evidence that the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance is operating effectively and that 
the Council complies with that Local Code in all significant respects. Systems are in place to regularly review 
and improve governance and systems of internal control. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

David Robertson      Euan Jardine 

Acting Chief Executive     Council Leader

Page 96



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 38 

 
 

Remuneration Report 
 
The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 require local authorities in Scotland to prepare a 
Remuneration Report as part of the annual statutory accounts. The following information in this Remuneration 
Report has been audited by Audit Scotland:- 
  

 Pay Bandings Information Page 39 

 Senior Councillor Remuneration Page 40 

 Senior Officer Remuneration Page 42 

 Exit Packages Page 43 

 Pension Benefits Information for Senior Councillors Page 45 

 Pension Benefits Information for Senior Officers Page 46 
 
The other sections of the Remuneration Report have been reviewed by Audit Scotland to ensure that they are 
consistent with the financial statements. 
 
Please note that the Council implemented a realignment of Council Services which was implemented on 1 
September 2021.  The number of service departments remains at seven with each service managed by a 
Director.  
 

 
Remuneration Policy 
 
Remuneration of Senior Councillors 
 
The remuneration of Councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004 (Remuneration) 
Regulations 2007 (SSI No. 2007/183). The Regulations provide for the grading of councillors for the purposes 
of remuneration arrangements, as either the Leader of the Council, the Convener, Senior Councillors or 
Councillors. A Senior Councillor is a Councillor who holds a significant position of responsibility in the Council’s 
political management structure. 
 
The salary that is to be paid to the Leader of the Council is set out in the Regulations. For 2021/22 the salary 
for the Leader of Scottish Borders Council is £37,213.  The regulations also set out the remuneration that may 
be paid to Senior Councillors and the total number of Senior Councillors the Council may have. The maximum 
yearly amount that may be paid to a Senior Councillor is 75 per cent of the total yearly amount payable to the 
Leader of the Council.  The total yearly amount payable by the Council for remuneration of all its Senior 
Councillors shall not exceed £325,598. The Council is able to exercise local flexibility in the determination of 
the precise number of Senior Councillors and their salary within these maximum limits. The policy for Scottish 
Borders Council is to have a maximum of 14 Senior Councillors plus a Council Leader and Convener.  
 
The total remuneration for Scottish Borders Councils’ Senior Councillors, excluding the Leader and Convener, 
is £305,277. Regulations also permit the Council to pay contributions or other payments as required to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of those Councillors who elect to become members of the 
pension scheme. 
 
The Remuneration for Members scheme which encompasses the salaries of all Elected Members including 
the Leader and Senior Councillors, was agreed at a meeting of the full Council on 24 May 2012 and then 
amended at the meeting of the Council on 30 August 2012 to take account of changes to the Scheme of 
Administration.  At the Scottish Borders Council meeting on 27 August 2020 a new Scheme of Payment for 
Senior Councillors was agreed to take account of changes to portfolio titles and responsibilities. 
 
 

Page 97



Remuneration Report 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 39 

 
 

 
Remuneration of Senior Employees 
 
The salary of senior employees is set by reference to national arrangements. The Scottish Joint Negotiating 
Committee (SJNC) for Local Authority Services provides a Scheme of Salaries & Conditions of Service that 
provides a basis for determining the salaries of Chief Executives of Scottish local authorities.  Teaching staff 
salaries are set by the Scottish Negotiating Committee for Teachers (SNCT). 
 
A senior employee is any employee who: 
 

 Has responsibility for the management of the local authority to the extent that the person has power 
to direct or control the major activities of the authority whether solely or collectively with other persons; 
or 

 Holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1)(a), (b) or (c) of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989; or 

 Whose annual remuneration, including any annual remuneration from a local authority subsidiary 
body, is £150,000 or more. 

 
 
Remuneration Disclosures 

 
General Disclosure by Pay Band 
 
The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 also requires information to be provided on the 
number of persons whose remuneration was £50,000 or more. This information is to be disclosed in bands of 
£5,000. The numbers of employees at Scottish Borders Council whose remuneration was £50,000 or more, 
excluding employer’s pension and national insurance contributions, is shown in the following table:   
 

Remuneration Bands

2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22

£50,000 - £54,999 - - 91 88 16 35 107 123 

£55,000 - £59,999  - - 58 67 22 24 80 91 

£60,000 - £64,999 1 - 31 24 - 3 32 27 

£65,000 - £69,999 3 1 11 11 7 8 21 20 

£70,000 - £74,999 - 4 1 1 - - 1 5 

£75,000 - £79,999 2 - 3 4 - 1 5 5 

£80,000 - £84,999  3 4 1 1 - - 4 5 

£85,000 - £89,999 3 4 3 3 - - 6 7 

£90,000 - £94,999 2 1 - - - - 2 1 

£95,000 - £99,999 - 1 - - - - - 1 

£100,000 - £104,999 - - - - - - - - 

£105,000 - £109,999 - - - - - - - - 

£110,000 - £114,999 2 1 - - - - 2 1 

£115,000 - £119,999 1 - - - - - 1 - 

£120,000 - £124,999 - - - - - - - - 

£125,000 - £129,999 - - - - - - - - 

£130,000 - £134,999 - - - - - - - - 

£135,000 - £139,999 - 1 - - - - 1 

£140,000 - £144,999 - - - - - - - - 

Total 17 17 199 199 45 71 261 287 

Chief Officer Teachers Other Staff Total

 

Page 98



Remuneration Report 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 40 

 
 

 
Remuneration of Senior Councillors 
 
The table below provides details of the remuneration paid to the Council`s Senior Councillors 

 
Total          

Remuneration

Salaries, fees and 

allowances Taxable Expenses

Total          

Remuneration

2020/21 £ £ 2021/22

£ £

24,292

(FYE 37,213)

13,025
(FYE 37,213)

62,498 Leader and Convener Remuneration 65,227 90 65,317 

15,889 

FYE (24,444)

23,621 24,444                              162 24,606 

283,664 Total Other Senior Councillor Remuneration 303,884 1,353 305,237 

346,162 Total Senior Councillor Remuneration 369,111 1,443 370,554 

E Jardine Executive Member for Wellbeing, Sport & Culture 

24,599 Executive Member for Enhancing the Built Environment & Natural 

Heritage 
S Mountford

24,444 24,444

                             276 

20,279 20,279 

24,444                              309 24,753 

24,444 

24,444 24,444 

24,720 

                                -   24,292 

D Parker Convener 27,910
                                -   27,910 

M Rowley Leader of the Council from 25 November 2021 90 13,115

Councillor    

Name

S Haslam Leader of the Council to 25 November 2021

G Edgar
Executive Member for Infrastructure, Travel & Transport (also Area 

Partnership Chair for full year)

A Aitchison  Executive Member for Sustainable Development 

S Bell Chair of Audit & Scrutiny 

Responsibility

35,713

26,785

23,459

19,462

23,459

23,459

23,735

23,459

19,462

24,129

0

14,110

7,162 

23,717 M Rowley
Executive Member for Economic Regeneration & Finance from 27 

August 2020 to 24 November 2021
168 16,057 

S Haslam

Executive Member for Economic Regeneration & Finance from 16 

December 2021 to 21 February 2022; Executive Member for Finance 

& Budget Oversight from 22 February 2022

- 7,162 - 

24,727 

20,279 

24,444

24,444

20,279 

20,279

24,444 24,444

20,279

                             283                             24,444 

15524,444

22,130

19,462

T Weatherston Executive Member for Adult Wellbeing; Depute Convener for full year

C Hamilton Executive Member for Children & Young People 

G Turnbull Executive Member for Public Protection 

S Hamilton
Executive Member for Transformation & Service Improvement (also 

continuing as Area Partnership Chair)

R Tatler
Executive Member for Community Development and Localities (also 

Area Partnership Chair for full year)

N Richards Area Partnership Chair 

Area Partnership ChairJ Fullarton

 
 
 
 
The total remuneration figures relate to the salary, fees and allowances for 2021-22 as included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  They are only in respect of monies paid to Councillors 
whilst actually holding a Senior Councillor position during that year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



Remuneration Report 
 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 41 

 

Total Remuneration paid to Councillors 
 
The Council paid the following salaries, allowances and expenses to all Councillors (including Senior 
Councillors above) during the year. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

676 Salaries 724

10 Expenses 13

686 Total 737  
 
 
 
 
The draft annual return of Councillors’ salaries and expenses for 2021/22 is available on the Council’s website 

at www.scotborders.gov.uk. 
 
  

Page 100

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Remuneration Report 
 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 42 

 

Remuneration of Senior Employees 
The table below provides details of the remuneration paid to the Council’s Senior Employees and reflects the 
Council corporate management restructure.  

 

2020/21

Total Remuneration Name Post Title

Salaries, fees and 

allowances Taxable Expenses

Compensation 

for loss of 

employment

Benefits 

other than in 

cash

Total 

Remuneration

£ £ £ £ £ £

Senior Employees in post as at 01/04/22

- - 

111,265 KD Robertson

Director - Finance & Corporate Governance (from 

1 September 2021); Executive Director, Finance & 

Regulatory (to 31 August 2021) (2)

113,164 94 - 113,258 

90,109 J Craig

Director - Resilient Communities (from 1 

September 2021); Service Director Customer & 

Communities (to 31 August 2021)

91,109 - - 91,109 

88,165 C Hepburn

Director - People, Performance & Change (from 1 

September 2021); Service Director HR and 

Communications (to 31 August 2021)

89,651 89,651 

86,738 

- - 

- 

- - 

44,483 - - 

(FYE 88,965)

44,086 - - - 

(FYE 114,000)

651,597 Total 791,201 107 - - 791,308 

44,086

- 44,483

136,081

86,738

89,165

2021/22

136,081 

96,724 

- - 

13 89,178 

0 JR Curry
Director - Infrastructure & Environment (from 1 

October 2021) (5)

Senior Employees departed post before 01/04/22

113,200 JR Dickson
Executive Director, Corporate Improvement and 

Economy (left 10 August 2021) (6)

3,452

96,724

Director - Education & Lifelong Learning (from 1 

September 2021); Service Director Young People 

Engagement & Inclusion (from 8 June 2020 to 31 

August 2021)

Director - Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships 

(from 1 September 2021); Chief Operating Officer 

SB Cares (to 31 August 2021) (4)

71,435

N Meadows

SC Easingwood

Chief Executive (from 22 March 2021) (1)

Director - Social Work & Practice (from 1 

September 2021); Service Director Social Work & 

Public Protection (to 31 August 2021) (3)

81,698

LH Munro

JM Holland92,273

 
 
 
Notes 
 

(1) N Meadows figure of £136,081 includes £6,855 Returning Officer Fee for the Scottish Parliamentary 
Election on 6 May 2021. 

(2) KD Robertson figure of £113,164 includes £415 fee for the Scottish Parliamentary Election on 6th May 
2021. 

(3) SC Easingwood figure of £86,738 includes £500 Covid response payment funded by the Scottish 
Government. 

(4) JM Holland figure of £96,724 includes £500 Covid response payment funded by the Scottish 
Government. 

(5) John Curry undertook the role of Assets & Infrastructure Service Director from 14 September 2020 to 
30 September 2021.  However, he was a seconded consultant and not an employee of Scottish 
Borders Council therefore his salary during this period is not included in the above report. 

(6) JR Dickson figure of £44,086 includes £3,309 for Depute Returning Officer Fees for both the European 
Parliamentary Election on 23rd May 2019 and the Scottish Parliamentary Election on 6 May 2021. 

Page 101



Remuneration Report 
 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 43 

 

The Council contributes £51,600 per annum towards salary and pension contributions of the post of Director of 
Public Health.  Details of the remuneration paid in respect of this post can be found within the annual financial 
statements of NHS Borders (Borders Health Board). 
 

 
Exit Packages 
The total cost and numbers of exit packages are set out in the tables below for 2020/21 and 2021/22: 
 
2021/22 
 

£0 - £20,000 2 - 2 15,866 

£20,001 - £40,000 1 - 1 24,853 

£40,001 - £60,000 - - - - 

£60,001 - £80,000 1 - 1 63,585 

£80,001 - £100,000 - - - - 

£100,001 - £150,000 - - - - 

£150,001 - £200,000 - - - - 

Total 4 - 4 104,303 

Total cost of Exit 

Packages in each 

band   £

Exit Package Cost band 

(including special 

payments)                      

2021/222

Number of 

Compulsory 

Redundancies

Number of Other 

Agreed 

Departures

Total Number of 

Exit Packages by 

Cost Band

 
 
 
 
The total costs of £0.104m in the table above includes exit packages that have been agreed and charged to 
the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year.  
 
2020/21 
 

£0 - £20,000 1 1 2 5,209 

£20,001 - £40,000 - 1 1 24,942 

£40,001 - £60,000 - - - - 

£60,001 - £80,000 - - - - 

£80,001 - £100,000 - - - - 

£100,001 - £150,000 - - - - 

£150,001 - £200,000 - - - - 

Total 1 2 3 30,151

Total cost of Exit 

Packages in each 

band   £

Exit Package Cost band 

(including special 

payments)                      

2020/21

Number of 

Compulsory 

Redundancies

Number of Other 

Agreed 

Departures

Total Number of 

Exit Packages by 

Cost Band

 
 

 
Council Subsidiary Bodies 
 
Separate disclosure of the remuneration and pension benefits of senior posts held in the Council’s subsidiary 
companies are required to be disclosed.   
 
Bridge Homes LLP – Designated Member, David Robertson – details disclosed in the Council Remuneration 
and Pension Benefits of Senior Employee tables. 
 
Common Good and Trust Funds – Chief Executive, Netta Meadows - details disclosed in the Council 
Remuneration and Pension Benefits of Senior Employee tables. 
 
Live Borders – Chief Executive Officer, Ewan Jackson – see table below. 
 

Page 102



Remuneration Report 
 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 44 

 

2020/21

        Total 

Remuneration Name Post Title

Salaries, fees 

and 

allowances

Taxable 

Expenses

Benefits 

other than in 

cash

Total 

Remuneration

For year to 

31 March 

2021

For year to 

31 March 

2022 Type

As at 31 

March 2022
Difference from 

31 March 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Pension 25,478 2,484

80,991 Ewan Jackson Chief Executive Officer 83,687 0 0 83,687 14,578 15,044 Lump Sum 16,409 508

2021/22

In-year pension 

contributions
Accrued Pension Benefits

 
 
 
Pension Benefits 
 
Pension benefits for Councillors and local government employees are provided through the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS). 
 
Pension benefits for Councillors are based on a career average pay. The pay for Councillors for each year or 
part year ending 31 March increases by the cost of living, as measured by the appropriate index between the 
end of the year and the last day of the month in which their membership of the scheme ends. The total of the 
revalued pay is then divided by the period of membership to calculate the career average pay. This is the 
value used to calculate the pension benefits. 
 
For local government employees, there is a career average pension scheme. This means that pension benefits 
are based on the career average pay and the number of years the employee has been a member of the 
scheme.  

 
The normal retirement age under the scheme for both Councillors and employees is now as per the state 
pension. 
 
From 1 April 2009, a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members 
being based on how much of their pay falls into each tier.  The tiers and members contributions rates for 
2021/22 were as follows: 
 

Whole Time Pay 2021/22

On earnings up to and including £21,800 5.50%

On earnings above £21,801 and up to £26,700 7.25%

On earnings above £26,701 and up to £36,600 8.50%

On earnings above £36,601 and up to £48,800 9.50%

On earnings above £48,801 12.00%  
 
If the employee works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, 
with actual contributions paid on actual pay earned. 
 
Following the changes in 2009, there is no longer an automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members of the 
Pension Fund may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. 
The accrual rate guaranteed a pension based on 1/60th of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable 
service. (Prior to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a pension based on 1/80th and a lump sum based on 3/80th 
of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service). 
 
As of 1 April 2015, the Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 came into effect. 
This changed the accrual rate of guaranteed pension to 1/49th of career average salary, effective from 1 April 
2015.   
 
The value of accrued benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will first become 
entitled to receive pension benefits on retirement without reduction (where benefits are paid on earlier than 
“normal date of retiral”) and without the exercise of any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump 
sum and without any adjustment for the effects of inflation. 
 
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as consequence of their total 
local government service, and not just their current appointment. 
 

Page 103



Remuneration Report 
 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 45 

 

Pension Benefits of Senior Councillors 
 
The pension entitlements for Senior Councillors for the year to 31 March 2022 are shown in the following table, 
together with the contribution made by the Council to each Senior Councillor’s pension during the year. It 
should be noted all Councillor pensions reported below are calculated on career average earnings. 
 
The pension benefits shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of total 
local government service, including any service with a Council subsidiary body. 
 

`

Councillor Name Responsibility

For year to 31 

March 2021

For year to 31 

March 2022 Type

As at 31 

March 2022

Difference 

from 31 March 

2021

£ £ £ £

6,428 5,843 Pension                            3,621 771 

Lump Sum - -

4,821 5,024 Pension                  9,214 1,008 

Lump Sum 2,783 177 

4,223 4,400 Pension 6,696 856 

Lump Sum 1,826 145 

3,503 3,650 Pension 4,317 585 

Lump Sum - -

4,223 4,400 Pension 4,834 701 

Lump Sum - -

4,223 4,400 Pension 11,373 1,276 

Lump Sum 17,447 1,441 

4,223 4,400 Pension 2,449 572 

Lump Sum - -

4,223 4,400 Pension 6,274 846 

Lump Sum 1,748 144 

4,223 5,204 Pension 2,543 667 

Lump Sum - -

3,816 4,400 Pension 4,253 706 

Lump Sum - -

4,223 4,400 Pension 2,449 572 

Lump Sum - -

3,503 3,650 Pension 5,798 713 

Lump Sum 1,712 124 

4,223 4,400 Pension 2,339 569 

Lump Sum - -

3,503 3,650 Pension 1,990 474 

Lump Sum - -

3,933 4,400 Pension 2,122 563 

Lump Sum - -

Total 63,291                 66,621 

In-year pension contributions

Executive Member for Children & Young People 

G Turnbull Executive Member for Public Protection

M Rowley
Executive Member for Economic Regeneration & Finance to 

November 2021; Leader of the Council from 25th November 2021

S Mountford
Executive Member for Enhancing the Built Environment & Natural 

Heritage

E Jardine Executive Member for Wellbeing, Sport & Culture

Area Partnership Chair

S Hamilton

Accrued pension benefits

S Haslam

Leader of the Council to 25 November 2021; Executive Member for 

Economic Regeneration & Finance from 16 December 2021 to 21 

February 2022; Executive Member for Finance & Budget Oversight 

from 22 February 2022

D Parker Convenor

Chair of Audit & Scrutiny 

A Aitchison Executive Member for Sustainable Development

S Bell

G Edgar
Executive Member for Infrastructure, Travel & Transport (also Area 

Partnership Chair)

Executive Member for Adult Wellbeing (also Depute Convener) T Weatherston

C Hamilton

Executive Member for Transformation & Service Improvement (also 

continuing as Area Partnership Chair)

J Fullarton

R Tatler

Executive Member for Community Development and Localities 

(also Area Partnership Chair for full year)

N Richards Area Partnership Chair 

 
 
Notes 
 

(1) Some Senior Councillors have transferred in previous rights to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme which has purchased pension in addition to their statutory benefits. 

 
 
 

Page 104



Remuneration Report 
 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 46 

 

 
 
Pension Benefits of Senior Employees 
The pension entitlements for Senior Employees for the year to 31 March 2022 are shown in the table below,  
together with the contribution made by the Council to each Senior Employee’s pension during the full year to 
31 March 2022. 
 

 

Name Post Title

For year to 31 

March 2021

For year to 31 

March 2022 Type

As at 31 

March 2022

Difference 

from 31 March 

2021

Senior Employees in post as at 01/04/21 £ £ £ £

2,565 2,494

N Meadows Chief Executive 621 23,261
- - 

Pension
49,357 3,323

KD Robertson 

Director - Finance & Corporate Governance (from 1 September 

2021); Executive Director, Finance & Regulatory (to 31 August 

2021) 

20,028 20,295 Lump Sum 70,259           1,179 

Pension 44,186 2,596

J Craig
Director - Resilient Communities (from 1 September 2021); Service 

Director Customer & Communities (to 31 August 2021)

16,220 16,400 Lump Sum 65,655 721

Pension 21,961           2,355 

C Hepburn

Director - People, Performance & Change (from 1 September 

2021); Service Director HR and Communications (to 31 August 

2021)

15,870 16,137 Lump Sum 2,984 49

Pension           29,678           3,084 

CS Easingwood

Director - Social Work & Practice (from 1st September 2021); 

Service Director Social Work & Public Protection (to 31st August 

2021)

14,705 15,523

Lump Sum           31,462           1,657 

Pension 43,232         41,767 

12,858 16,050 Lump Sum                   -                   -   

Pension 4,623           2,103 

JM Holland

Director - Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships (from 1 

September 2021); Chief Operating Officer SB Cares (to 31 August 

2021)

                16,609 17,320 Lump Sum                   -                   -   

JR Curry Director - Infrastructure & Environment from 1st October 2021
                        -   8,007

Pension                936              936 

Lump Sum                   -                   -   

Senior Employees departed post before 01/04/22

Pension 22,551 1,468

JR Dickson 20,376 7,340 Lump Sum 0 0

Total 117,287             140,333             

LH Munro

Director - Education & Lifelong Learning (from 1 September 2021); 

Service Director Young People Engagement & Inclusion (from 8 

June 2020 to 31 August 2021)

Executive Director, Corporate Improvement and Economy (left 10 

August 2021) 

In-year pension contributions
Accrued pension benefits

Pension

Lump Sum

 
 
 
Notes 
The lump sum figures in the above table show the statutory lump sum amounts payable to members of the 
LGPS, in respect of service under the scheme with the Council up to 31 March 2009 (when there was no 
longer an automatic entitlement to a lump sum).  The accrued pension benefits include any transfer of benefits 
from another pension scheme but do not include benefits relating to additional voluntary contributions (i.e. 
contributions which do not require to be made by an individual under the LGPS).  The in-year pension 
contributions represent the total contributions for the individual irrespective of the post(s) held for the year(s) 
that the post holder became/continued to be categorised as a Senior Employee. 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



Remuneration Report 
 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 47 

 

 
 
 
Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017

 
The Council is now required to publish details of Trade Union facility time incurred during the year, both in 
the financial statements and also on the Council website.  The regulations apply from 1 April 2017 and 
require relevant public sector employers to collect and publish, on an annual basis, a range of information in 
relation to their usage and spend on trade union (TU) facility time in respect of their employees who are TU 
representatives.  Facility time is the provision of paid or unpaid time off from an employee`s normal role to 
undertake TU duties and activities as a TU representative. 
 
 
The regulations require Local Authorities to collate and publish the following information:- 
 
 
Scottish Borders council has 12 employees who are TU representatives. 
 
 
The percentage of working time spent on TU activities by the 12 TU representatives can be broken down as 
follows:- 
 

Percentage of Time Number of TU Representatives

1% - 50% 8

51% - 99% 2

100% 2

Total 12  
 
 
The percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time is 0.092% 
 
 
100% of paid facility time hours is spent on trade union activities. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

David Robertson      Euan Jardine 

Acting Chief Executive     Council Leader
 
 

                                                                                     

 

 

Page 106



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 48 

 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 
usable reserves (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. 
The surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s 
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is 
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council Tax 
setting purposes. The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Balances of the General Fund 
line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked 
Balances of the General Fund undertaken by the Council.  Further detail on the movement in reserves can be 
found at Note 31 on page 100. 
 

 
 
Movement in reserves during 2020/21 - Restated

General Fund 

Balance Capital Fund

Property 

Maintenance 

Fund

Insurance 

Fund

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01/04/2020 (19,179) (9,544) (1) (1,397) (30,121) (95,964) (126,085)

Movement in reserves during 2020/21

Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (14,211) - - - (14,211) 56,822 42,611 C I & E

Adjustments between accounting basis & Funding 

basis under regulations (3,051) (385) (361) (135) (3,933) 3,933 - 31 

(Increase) or Decrease In 2020/21 (17,262) (385) (361) (135) (18,145) 60,755 42,611 

Balance at 31/03/2021 carried forward (36,441) (9,929) (362) (1,532) (48,265) (35,209) (83,474)

Movement in reserves during 2021/22

General Fund 

Balance Capital Fund

Property 

Maintenance 

Fund

Insurance 

Fund

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Balance at 01/04/2021 (36,441) (9,929) (362) (1,532) (48,265) (35,209) (83,474)

Movement in reserves during 2021/22

Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (1,763) - - - (1,763) (145,640) (147,403) C I & E

Adjustments between accounting basis & Funding 

basis under regulations (13,787) (887) 311 (91) (14,454) 14,454 - 31 

(Increase) or Decrease In 2021/22 (15,550) (887) 311 (91) (16,217) (131,186) (147,403)

Balance at 31/03/2022 carried forward (51,991) (10,816) (51 ) (1,623) (64,482) (166,395) (230,877)

Page 107



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 49 

 
 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to 
cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. 

 
 

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure
Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

88,448 (18,118) 70,330 Infrastructure & Environment 91,231 (15,845) 75,386

46,399 (3,549) 42,850 Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships 44,475 (2,303) 42,172

135,699 (82,934) 52,765 Social Work & Practice 141,806 (79,852) 61,954

112,841 (21,333) 91,508 Education & Lifelong Learning 120,890 (21,208) 99,682

40,825 (26,277) 14,548 Resilient Communities 40,906 (24,405) 16,501

19,611 (3,082) 16,529 Finance & Corporate Governance 25,757 (5,846) 19,911

8,089 (236) 7,853 People Performance & Change 9,164 (653) 8,511

451,910 (155,529) 296,381 Net Cost of Services 474,228 (150,113) 324,116

2,099 (2,100) (1) Roads Trading Operation (Surplus)/Deficit (External) 5,427 (5,170) 257 8

Other Operating Expenditure

2,316 (1,915) 401 (Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Assets 1,465 (730) 735

Financing & Investment Income and Expenditure

11,943 - 11,943 Interest Payable & Similar Charges 10,144 - 10,144

- (250) (250) Interest Receivable & Similar Income - (227) (227)

17,902 (14,524) 3,378 Net Interest Expense on the Net Defined Benefit Liability 19,426 (14,853) 4,573
20

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

- (211,566) (211,566) Revenue Support Grant - (211,149) (211,149)

- (23,388) (23,388) Non-Domestic Rates Pool for Scotland - (26,668) (26,668)

- (60,215) (60,215) Council Tax - (61,023) (61,023)

- (30,896) (30,896) Capital Grants and Contributions - (42,522) (42,522) 28

- -

486,172 (500,383) (14,211) (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 510,691 (512,454) (1,763)

Restated

29

2020/21 2021/22

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 50 

 

 

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure 

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure
Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

486,172 (500,383) (14,211) (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 510,691 (512,454) (1,763)

(2,944) (Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of Non Current Assets (58,457)

(74) Any Other (Gains) Or Losses -

59,840 Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension assets/liabilities (87,183)

56,822 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (145,640)

42,611 Total Comprehensive (Income)/Expenditure (147,403)

2020/21 2021/22

Restated

Page 109



 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 51 

 
 

Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the 31st March of the assets and liabilities recognised by the 
authority. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the 
Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those 
reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of 
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only 
be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the authority 
is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains 
and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide 
services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 
 

Restated

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000 Notes

Property Plant and Equipment

396,837    Other Land and Buildings 451,529 12

27,517    Vehicle, Plant, Furniture & Equipment 30,814

133,554    Infrastructure 136,316

5,425    Surplus Assets 6,725

42,600    Assets Under Construction 53,247

1,014 Heritage Assets 1,014 13

1,182 Intangible Assets 882 14

6,711 Long Term Debtors 1,106 29

614,840 Long Term Assets 681,633

- Intangible Assets - Current - 14

1,645 Inventories 1,445 24

55,646 Short Term Debtors 61,222 30

(11,948)    less Impairment of Receivables (12,530)

27,417 Cash and Cash Equivalents 45,918 34

72,759 Current Assets 96,055

- Bank Overdrafts - 29

(28,513) Short Term Borrowing (4,836) 29

(50,718) Short Term Creditors (59,887) 30

(134) Provisions (148) 25

(79,365) Current Liabilities (64,871)

(192,280) Long Term Borrowing (210,490) 29

(89,115) Other Long Term Liabilities (82,161) 17

(913) Due to Trust Funds and Common Good (1,026)

(3,438) Provisions (3,389) 25

(23,347) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (25,393)

(309,093) Long Term Liabilities (322,459)

299,140 Net Assets excluding pension liability 390,358

(215,666) Pension Liability (159,481) 20

83,474 Net Assets/(Liabilities) including pension liability 230,877  

Page 110



Balance Sheet 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 52 

 
 

 
 

Restated Financed By:

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000 Notes

Useable Reserves 

(9,929) Capital Fund (10,816) 31

(36,441) General Fund Balance (51,991)

(362) Property Maintenance Fund (51)

(1,532) Insurance Fund (1,623)

Unusable Reserves

(152,897) Capital Adjustment Account (174,125) 31

6,122 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 5,814

(110,788) Revaluation Reserve (164,118)

215,666 Pension Reserve 159,481

6,687 Employee Statutory Adjustment Account 6,552

(83,474) Total Reserves (230,877)  
 
 
 
 
The audited accounts were authorised for issue on 24 November 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
Suzy Douglas CPFA 
Acting Chief Financial Officer 

   

Page 111



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 53 

 

Cash Flow Statement 
 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting 
period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying 
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating 
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation 
and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the 
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s 
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future 
cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. 
 

 
 
 

Restated

2020/21

£'000 £'000 £'000 Notes

(14,211) Net (Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (1,763)

(51,176) Adjustments to net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements (77,454) 32

31,065 Adjustments for items included in the net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services that are investing and 

financing activities
43,309

32

(20,111) Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (34,145)

Investing Activities

51,527 Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible assets 58,436

(1,915) Proceeds from  PP&E, investment property and intangible assets (730)

- Purchase/(Disposal) of short & long term investments - 

(23,771) Other Items which are Investing Activities (51,993)

25,841 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 5,713

Financing Activities

(15,000) Cash received from loans & other borrowing (9,717)

5,591
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases and on-balance sheet PFI 

contracts 7,198

762 Repayments of short and long term borrowing 15,000

(168) Other items which are financing activities (787)

(8,815) Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 11,694

(17,296) Net (Increase) or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (18,501)

10,121 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 27,417

27,417 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the reporting period 45,918 34

(17,296) Movement (18,501)

2021/22

Page 112



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 54 

 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
 
Accounting Policies  
 
General Principles  
 
The Annual Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial year and its position at 
the year-end of 31 March 2022.  The Council is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the Local Authority 
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014.  Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 requires 
that they are prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 and the Service Reporting 
Code of Practice 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Annual Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the 
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. The Annual Accounts have 
been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. 
In particular: 
 
Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the Council 
provides the relevant service. 
 
Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date 
supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 
 
Works of a capital nature are charged as capital expenditure when they are completed, before which they are 
carried as Assets under Construction on the Balance Sheet. 
 
Interest payable on borrowing and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the effective 
interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 
 
Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or 
creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where it is doubtful that debts will be 
settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not 
be collected. 
 
Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, unless they properly 
represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on 
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in three months or less from 
the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of 
change in value.  
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable 
on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 55 

 

 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of 
holding non-current assets during the year: 
 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 
 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated 
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 

 

 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or 
amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its 
overall borrowing requirements or loans fund principal charges. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an 
adjusting transaction within the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 
 
Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They include 
such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary 
benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by 
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. 
The accrual is made at the wages and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year being the period 
in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are 
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate employment 
before the normal retirement date or a decision by an employee to accept voluntary severance.  They are 
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service, or where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Authority is demonstrably committed 
to the termination of the employment. 
 
Post Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are members of two separate pension schemes: 
 

 The Scottish Teachers Superannuation Scheme which is managed by the Scottish Public Pensions 
Agency, an executive agency of the Scottish Government. 

 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Scottish Borders Council. 

 
 
Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as 
employees work for the Council.  However the arrangements for the teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities 
for these benefits cannot be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if 
it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the  
Balance Sheet and the Education Service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
charged with the employer’s contributions payable to teachers’ pensions in the year. 
 
 
 

Page 114



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 56 

 

 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme. 
 
The liabilities of Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance 
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method i.e. an assessment of the future payments that 
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about 
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc and projections of earnings for current employees.   
 
The assets of the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the 
Balance Sheet at their fair value: 
 

 Quoted securities – current bid price 
 

 Unquoted securities – professional estimate 
 

 Unitised securities – current bid price and 
 

 Property – market value 
 
The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Service cost comprising:  
 

 current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – 
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the 
employees worked  

 

 past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose 
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs  

 

 net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the authority – the 
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time 
charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the 
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at 
the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments 

 
Remeasurements comprising:  
 

 the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 

 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have 
updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure  

 

 contributions paid to the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.  

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with 
the amount payable by the Council to the Pension Fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this 
means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits 
for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the Pension Fund and pensioners  
 

Page 115



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 57 

 

and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions 
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.  
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of 
early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including 
teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies 
as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 
Events after the Reporting Period 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the 
end of the reporting period and the date when the Annual Accounts are authorised for issue.  
 
Two types of events can be identified: 
 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Annual 
Accounts are adjusted to reflect such events 

 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Annual Accounts are 
not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have been a material effect, 
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.  

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Annual Accounts. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors  
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. 
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected 
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.  
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change 
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on 
the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively 
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if 
the new policy had always been applied. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected 
retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
The following policies are the Council`s interpretation of IFRS 9 requirements according to the financial 
instruments that the Council hold. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) for interest payable, are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amounts at which it was originally 
recognised.  For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principle (plus accrued interest). Interest charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 116



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 58 

 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the CIES, regulations allow the impact on the General 
Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The authority has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the 
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it 
was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the CIES to the net charge required against the General 
Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Financial Assets  

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 
business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are three main 
classes of financial assets measured at:  

 

 amortised cost  

 fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  

 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
 
The authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets are 
therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely payment 
of principal and interest (ie where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument) 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost  

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the authority, this means that the amount 
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest 
credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.  

However, the authority has made a number of loans to voluntary organisations at less than market rates 
(soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) 
for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower 
amortised cost than the outstanding principal.  
 

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES at a marginally 
higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference 
serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the 
impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the 
reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required against the General Fund 
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement.  
 
Any gains and losses that arise on derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. 

Expected Credit Loss Model  

The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, either on 
a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract 
assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority.  

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place 
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. 
Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on 
a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis 
of 12-month expected losses.  

 

Page 117



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 59 

 

 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss (FVPL) 

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried 
at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services.  

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:  

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis.  
 
 
Government Grants  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and 
donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 
 

 The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payment. 
 

 The grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations 
that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the 
grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or 
service potential must be returned to the transferor.  Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement of 
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Account are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once 
they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the 
Balance Sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant 
service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and 
Expenditure (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
Intangible Assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled 
by the Council as a result of past events is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the Council for more than 
one financial year.  
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily intended to 
promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services. 
 
The balance is amortised to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
over its useful life. The amortisation basis is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure any impairment is 
identified. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation, 
impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
Inventories  
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  
 

Page 118



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 60 

 

 
 
 
 
Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for 
classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for 
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
specific assets. 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the 
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry 
into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred. Lease payments are apportioned between:- 
 

 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant and equipment – applied to write down 
the lease liability. 

 

 A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the rent becomes payable). 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies applied 
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the  
asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the 
lease period). 
 
Operating Leases  
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are 
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease even if this does not match the pattern of payments 
(e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).  
 
The Authority as Lessor  
 
Operating Leases  
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is 
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of 
the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount 
of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
 
Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
PFI Contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the Property, 
Plant and Equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFI contractor. As the Council is deemed 
to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes and as ownership of the assets will pass to 
the Council at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Council carries the assets used under the 
contracts on the Balance Sheet.   
 

Page 119



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 61 

 

 
The original recognition of the assets was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the 
scheme operator to pay for the assets. 
 
Assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as Property, Plant 
and Equipment owned by the Council. 
 
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements: 
 

 Fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the relevant service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 Finance cost – an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 

 Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract, 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI operator. 
 

 Lifecycle replacement costs – proportion of the amounts payable is posted to the Balance Sheet as a 
prepayment and then recognised as additions to Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant 
works are eventually carried out. 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, 
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one 
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
Recognition: expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential associate with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or 
service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 
 
The Council has a de minimis limit of £5,000 for single items of expenditure and £20,000 for groups of items 
costing less than £1,000 each.  Items below these amounts are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. These limits have been applied in order to exclude individual assets, or works below 
these amounts, from the asset register. 
 
Measurement: assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 

 The purchase price 

 Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 
The Council currently capitalises borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. Assets are 
then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 

 Infrastructure, vehicles, plant, furniture & equipment and assets under construction – depreciated 
historical cost.  It is the Council’s policy that infrastructure assets are replaced at the end of their useful 
life and therefore carrying value is zero. 

 Surplus Assets – fair value estimated at highest and best use from market participants perspective. 

 All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing 
use (existing use value – EUV). 

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value. 

Page 120



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 62 

 

 
Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is 
used as a proxy for fair value. 
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their 
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year end but as a minimum every five 
years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised 
gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account where 
they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to a service revenue account. 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment: the values of each category of assets and of material individual assets that are not being 
depreciated are reviewed at the end of each financial year for evidence of reductions in value. Where material 
impairment is identified as part of this review or as a result of a valuation exercise, this is accounted for as 
follows: 
 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulative gains). 

 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for 
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Disposals  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the 
time of disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Depreciation: depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by allocation of their 
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite 
useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. 
Assets Under Construction). Depreciation is calculated on the following bases 
 

 Land and Buildings 
-  Land is not depreciated 
-  Buildings are written off over their estimated life. 

 

 Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 
-  Historic costs are written off over each asset’s estimated life. 

 

 Infrastructure   
-  Historic costs are written off over the estimated useful life of the asset. 

 

 Surplus Assets 
-  Land is not depreciated 
-  Buildings are written off over their estimated life. 

Page 121



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 63 

 

 
 
Where an asset has major components with different estimated useful lives, these are depreciated separately. 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions are recognised in the accounts when: 
 

 The Council has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. 

 It is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 

 A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the Council becomes aware 
of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required 
to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.  When payments are eventually 
made, they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at 
the end of each financial year – when it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will 
not now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited 
back to the relevant service revenue account. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle the provision is expected to be met by another party (e.g. 
from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income in the relevant service revenue account if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled. 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would  
otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of 
the obligation cannot be measured reliably.  
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note 
to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
Reserves  
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service 
in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against Council Tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, 
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in 
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet 
the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement of  
Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the 
amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of Council Tax. 
 
VAT 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue 
and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

Page 122



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 64 

 

 
Note 1 First Time Adoption of Accounting Standards 
 
There has been no first time adoption of Accounting Standards during 2021/22. 
 
Note 2 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted 
 
The following Adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) have been issued but have not 
been applied in these financial statements. Their adoption is not expected to have a material effect on the 
financial statements unless otherwise indicated. 
 

 IFRS 16 Leases 
 

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020. The annual IFRS improvement programme notes 
4 changed standards: 

o IFRS 1 (First-time adoption) –amendment relates to foreign operations of acquired subsidiaries 
transitioning to IFRS 

o IAS 37 (Onerous contracts) –clarifies the intention of the standard. 
o IFRS 16 (Leases) –amendment removes a misleading example that is not referenced in the Code 

material. 
o IAS 41 (Agriculture) –one of a small number of IFRSs that are only expected to apply to local 

authorities in limited circumstances. 
 

 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16). 
 
Note 3 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies set out, the Council has had to make certain judgments about complex 
transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  The critical judgments made in the Annual 
Accounts are: 
 

 There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.  However, the 
Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of 
the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service 
provision. 

 

 Following a judicial review decision and the issue of a public consultation on the identification of Common 
Good assets in the Scottish Borders, a number of assets have been transferred from Scottish Borders 
Council’s Balance Sheet to the Common Goods Funds as a prior period adjustment.  Common Good 
building assets currently used by the Council to deliver services have been treated as finance lease assets 
and remain on the Council’s balance sheet.  This is on the basis that formal arrangements for continued 
Council use of the assets are anticipated to be agreed.  In the event that this process requires further 
asset transfers the necessary adjustments will be made when agreement has been reached. 
 

Note 4 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 
The Annual Accounts contain estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about 
the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, 
current trends and other relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, 
actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 
 
The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which there is a significant risk of material 
adjustment in the forthcoming year is as follows; 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of repairs and 
maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.  The current economic climate makes it 
uncertain that the authority will be able to sustain its current spending in repairs and maintenance, bringing 
into doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.  If the useful life of an asset is reduced, depreciation increases 
and the carrying amount of the asset falls. 
 

Page 123



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 65 

 

It is acknowledged that the COVID-19 and Brexit situation has and will continue to have an effect on the 
property markets. Although there is some uncertainty in the national and local markets it is considered that 
this would appear to have not had any significant effect on the valuations or valuation process relating to 
financial year 2021/22. 
 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be measured based on quoted 
process in active markets (ie Level 1 inputs), their fair value is measured using valuation techniques (eg 
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or the discounted cash flow (DCF) 
model.  Where possible, the inputs to these valuation techniques are based on observable data, but where 
this is not possible judgement is required in establishing fair values.  These judgements typically include  
considerations such as uncertainty and risk.  However, changes in the assumptions used could affect the 
fair value of the authority`s assets and liabilities.  Significant changes in any of the unobservable inputs 
would result in a significant lower or higher fair value measurement for both surplus and financial assets. 
 
Information about the valuations techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of the authority`s 
assets and liabilities is disclosed in notes 12 and 29. 
 
Provisions 
The authority has made a provision of £0.008m for the settlement of claims for back pay arising from the Equal 
Pay initiative, based on the number of claims received and an average settlement amount.  It is not certain 
that all valid claims have yet been received by the authority or that precedents set by other authorities in the 
settlement of claims will be applicable.  An increase over the forthcoming year of 10% in either the total number 
of claims or the estimated average settlement would each have the effect of adding £0.0008m to the provision 
needed. 
 
Pensions Liability 
Estimation of the net liability depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, 
the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected 
returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the authority with expert 
advice about the assumptions to be applied.  The effects on the net pension liability of changes in individual 
assumptions can be measured.  For instance, a 0.1% decrease in the discount rate assumption would result 
in an increase in the pension liability of £17.001m.  However, the assumptions interact in complex ways.  
During 2021/22, the authority`s actuaries advised that the net pension liability had decreased by £56.185m as 
a result of estimates being revised and updating assumptions. 
 
Arrears 
At 31 March 2022, the authority had Accounts Receivable debtors due of £5.359m, Council Tax debtors of 
£25.997m and Non Domestic Rate debtors of £3.399m.  Provision for bad debts amounted to £0.891m, 
£11.639m and £3.399m respectively.  However, in the current economic climate it is not certain that such an 
allowance would be sufficient.  If collection rates were to deteriorate, an increase in bad debts of 10% would 
require an additional £0.090m for Accounts Receivable debtors, £1.164m for Council Tax debtors and 
£0.334m for Non Domestic Rate debtors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 66 

 

 
 
Note 5 Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
 
 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those 
resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  It 
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council`s 
directorates/services/departments.  Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted 
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
 

Restated

2020/21 2021/22

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the 

General Fund

Adjustments 

between the 

Funding and 

Accounting Basis

Net Expenditure in 

the Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the 

General Fund

Adjustments 

between the 

Funding and 

Accounting Basis

Net Expenditure in 

the Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

46,111 24,219 70,330 Infrastructure & Environment 45,575 29,811 75,386

34,211 8,639 42,850 Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships 29,683 12,488 42,172

51,115 1,649 52,765 Social Work & Practice 58,127 3,827 61,954

93,863 (2,355) 91,508 Education & Lifelong Learning 99,371 311 99,682

13,122 1,426 14,548 Resilient Communities 21,437 (4,936) 16,501

29,879 (13,348) 16,531 Finance & Corporate Governance 27,994 (8,083) 19,911

7,342 511 7,853 People, Performance & Strategy 7,418 1,093 8,511

275,643 20,741 296,383 Net Cost of Services 289,605 34,512 324,118

(292,905) (17,689) (310,594) Other Income and Expenditure (305,155) (20,725) (325,880)

(17,262) 3,052 (14,211) (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (15,550) 13,787 (1,763)

(19,179) Opening General Fund Balance (36,441)

(17,262) Less/Plus (Surplus) or Deficit on General Fund (15,550)

Transfer (to)/from reserves

(36,441) Closing General Fund as 31 March (51,991)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 67 

 

 
 
 
Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
 
Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis.  This note provides a reconciliation of the main 
adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis  2021/22

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at 

the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement amounts

Adjustments for 

Capital Purposes  

(Note 1)

Net change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments 

(Note 2)

Other Differences 

(Note 3)

Total Statutory 

Adjustments

Other (Non-

Statutory) 

Adjustments 

(Note 4)

Total 

Adjustments

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Infrastructure & Environment 14,301 7,347 (458) 21,190 8,621 29,811

Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships 9,005 3,980 (132) 12,853 (364) 12,489

Social Work & Practice 312 3,751 (27) 4,036 (209) 3,827

Education & Lifelong Learning 3,320 5,230 43 8,593 (8,282) 311

Resilient Communities 459 2,661 (12) 3,109 (8,044) (4,935)

Finance & Corporate Governance (10,257) 2,346 (123) (8,034) (50) (8,084)

People, Performance & Change - 1,110 (15) 1,094 (2) 1,092

17,141 26,425 (724) 42,842 (8,330) 34,511
Other income and expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (33,350) 4,573 2,589 (26,188) 5,463 (20,726)

Difference between General Fund surplus 

or deficit and Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services (16,209) 30,998 1,865 16,654 (2,867) 13,787  
 
 

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2020/21 - Restated

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at 

the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement amounts

Adjustments for 

Capital Purposes  

(Note 1)

Net change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments 

(Note 2)

Other Differences 

(Note 3)

Total Statutory 

Adjustments

Other (Non-

Statutory) 

Adjustments 

(Note 4)

Total 

Adjustments

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Infrastructure & Environment 15,019 2,999 (559) 17,459 6,760 24,218

Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships 7,138 1,783 80 9,001 (362) 8,639

Social Work & Practice 502 1,480 (160) 1,822 (173) 1,649

Education & Lifelong Learning 1,834 1,938 169 3,941 (6,296) (2,354)

Resilient Communities 280 1,184 (35) 1,429 (3) 1,426

Finance & Corporate Governance (14,155) 1,002 (50) (13,203) (145) (13,348)

People, Performance & Change - 458 56 514 (3) 511

10,618 10,844 (499) 20,962 (222) 20,741

Other income and expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (20,731) 3,378 (336) (17,689) - (17,689)

Difference between General Fund surplus 

or deficit and Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services (10,113) 14,222 (835) 3,273 (222) 3,052  
 

Page 126



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 68 

 

 
 
 
(Note 1) Adjustments for Capital Purposes  
Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains 
and losses in the services line, and for: 
 

 Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of 
assets and the amounts written off for those assets. 

 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing 
and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not 
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. 
 

 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income 
not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.  Revenue grants are adjusted from 
those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were 
satisfied in the year.  The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited 
with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for those which conditions were satisfied 
in the year. 
 

(Note 2) Changes for Pension Adjustments 

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension 
related expenditure and income: 

 

 For services – this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the 
authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with the current service costs and past service 
costs. 

 
 For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the defined benefit 

liability is charged to the CIES.        
 

 
(Note 3) Other Statutory Adjustments  
Other statutory adjustments between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 

 
 For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the other statutory adjustments column 

recognises adjustment to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.  
 
(Note 4) Other Non-Statutory Adjustments 
Other non-statutory adjustments represent amounts debited/credited to service segments which need to be 
adjusted against the ‘Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis’ line to 

comply with the presentational requirements in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:  
 

 For financing and investment income and expenditure the other non-statutory adjustments 
column recognises adjustments to service segments, eg for interest income and expenditure and 
changes in the fair values of investment properties.  

 

 For taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure the other non-statutory adjustments 

column recognises adjustments to service segments, eg for non ring-fenced government grants.  
 
 
 
 
It should be noted that the tables on page 65 are analysed as per the Council`s management reporting 
structure. 
 
 
 

Page 127



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 69 

 

 
 
 
Note 5 Expenditure and Funding Analysis  
 
The Council`s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:- 
 

Restated

Expenditure/Income 2020/21 2021/22

£`000 £`000

Expenditure

Employee Benefits Expenses 179,384            187,839               

Other Service Expenses 260,511            272,247               

Support Services Recharges 334                   344                      

Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment 33,601              39,382                 

Interest Payments 11,943              10,144                 

Loss on Disposal of Assets 401 735

Total Expenditure 486,173 510,691

Income

Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (155,529) (150,112)

Interest and Investment Income (250) (227)

Income from Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates (83,603) (87,691)

Government Grants and Contributions (261,001) (274,424)

Total Income (500,384) (512,454)

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (14,211) (1,763)  
 
 
Note 6 Acquired and Discontinued Operations 
 
There were no acquired or discontinued operations during the year. 
 
Note 7 Prior Year Adjustments 
 
Both the Council’s single entity and group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement for 2020/21 
have been restated to reflect the changes to the management reporting structure implemented in 2021/22.  
There was no impact on the reported surplus on provision of services for 2020/21 as a result of these 
restatements, 
 
The Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement, Movement in Reserves Statement and 
Balance Sheet have been restated to reflect the transfer of assets from the Council to the Common Good 
Funds arising from the public consultation on the identification of Common Good assets in the Scottish 
Borders.  These changes have also been reflected in the Group accounts.  The financial impact of these 
restatements can be found at Note 12. 
 
The Council’s group accounts contains a prior year restatement for Bridge Homes where there was an 
adjustment of £0.004m for a post audit amendment. 
 
Note 8 Significant Trading Operation 
 
SBc Contracts is the only ‘Significant Trading Operation’ at Scottish Borders Council in terms of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 2003. The financial performance for external works is summarised below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 70 

 

 
 
 

3 Year

2020/21 2021/22 Cumulative

£'000 £'000 £'000

(2,100)  External Turnover for the Year (5,170) (12,470)

(65)   (Surplus) / Deficit Excluding IAS 19 (51) (355)

IAS 19 Adjustments

64 Service Cost 308 551

(1)   (Surplus) / Deficit Including IAS 19 257 196  
 
The financial objective set by the Local Government in Scotland Act (2003) determines that each Significant 
Trading Operation must break even over a rolling three year period. This objective is measured after adjusting 
for IAS 19 pension costs. However, due to the notional nature of IAS 19 adjustments, the significant impact 
they have on the trading surplus and the fact that they are wholly outwith the control of SBc Contracts, trading 
surpluses/(deficits) have been disclosed above both inclusive of and excluding IAS 19 adjustments. Over the 
three year period 2019/20 to 2021/22 the financial objective has not been achieved, with a deficit of £196k 
after applying IAS 19 adjustments. However, the measure of the operational trading performance is the three 
year surplus of £355k excluding IAS 19 adjustments as shown above. 
 
SBc Contracts undertakes a wide range of activities including: 
 

 Revenue and Capital works for Council Services including  
 - Highway and Bridge construction 
 - Planned and reactive maintenance 
 - Flood Prevention and Repair works 
 - Public Realm and Cycleway works 
  -Construction and Maintenance works to Council Buildings and Property 

 External contracts for other local authorities and the Scottish Government 

 Sub-contractor on a number of public contracts 

 A wide range of external contracts for the private sector 
 
SBc Contracts employs 138 manual workers and 21 management and support staff and utilises a wide range 
of vehicles and items of plant to carry out its work. The organisation continued to contribute strongly to Council 
resources both directly and indirectly through: 
 

 Supporting additional high added-value jobs in the Vehicle Maintenance trading operation 

 Maintaining very competitive charge-out rates to offer “Best Value” for Council Revenue and Capital 
projects  

 
In 2021/22 SBc Contracts recorded an annual operating surplus of £0.391m against a revised budget target 
of a £0.462m surplus. After technical adjustments for pension (IAS 19) and Employee benefits accrual the net 
final position for the external trading operation was £0.257m deficit.    
 
In 2021/22 the turnover achieved was £24.2m. Of the total, £5.2m (21%) was generated by external work.  
 
2021/22 was an exceptionally challenging year due to Covid-19 related pressures and recent unprecedented 
increases in fuel and material costs. Works were carried out on a number of projects, notably the Great 
Tapestry Streetscape, Galalaw Business Park Extension, internal refurbishments at Peebles and Selkirk High 
Schools and a new Industrial Unit at Lauder. External works included the roundabout, access road, car park, 
internal footpaths and platform accesses at the recently opened Reston Station.  
 
Looking ahead to 2022/23 the order book remains strong with works programmed to continue on the Peebles 
to Eddleston Multi Use Path and Social Housing works at Coopersknowe. Other contracts within the public 
and private sector are being pursued.  Rising fuel prices are however resulting in large increases in materials  

Page 129



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 71 

 

 
costs and our ongoing Surface Dressing Framework agreement with South Lanarkshire Council has been 
curtailed for the coming year due to shortages in specialist bitumen products. We are dealing with these 
challenges by closer engagement with suppliers and seeking to explore further market opportunities.  
 
SBc Contracts continues to contribute strongly to the local economy by providing sub-contracted work and 
plant/vehicle hires to the value of £7.6 million during 2021/22.  
 
 
Note 9 Agency Work  
 
The Council acts as an intermediary for Scottish Water, collecting money on their behalf.  In 2021/22 Scottish 
Borders Council received £0.369m in commission from Scottish Water as part of the agency agreement.  This 
amount is set in legislation by the new Water Order which came into force in April 2014 covering the period 
April 2014 to March 2022.    
 
During 2021/22, the Council received a range of funding from Scottish Government in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic.  For a number of these grants the Council has acted as an intermediary of the Scottish 
Government by administering the receipt and payment process to the ultimate recipient of the funding ie 
targeted business support.  The Council provided these grants to the recipient to the level and criteria set by 
the Scottish Government and had no discretion around the payments. The amount of these agency grants 
and payments in 2021/22 is £23.66m including £20.081m in Business Grants.  
  
 
Note 10 Related Parties 
 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, that is bodies and individuals 
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or be controlled and influenced by the Council.  
 
Central Government ie the Scottish Government has effective control over the general operations of the 
Council by providing the statutory framework in which the Council operates, the majority of the Council’s 
funding by providing grants and prescribes the nature of many of the transactions the Council has with third 
parties. 
 
Members of the Council have direct control over the financial and operating policies of the Council. A review 
of the interests declared in the Members’ Register of Interests confirmed that the Council had no material 
transactions with any company in which any member had an interest. The total value of transactions between 
the Council and companies in which members have an interest in 2021/22 was £0m (2020/21: £0m).  The 
Remuneration Report shows the total allowances paid to Senior Members in 2021/22. The Members’ Register 
of Interests can be inspected and is available on the Council’s web site at www.scotborders.gov.uk  
 
A review by departments of their registers of interests confirmed that there were no material transactions 
between the Council and any company in which any officer had an interest.  The total value of transactions 
between the Council and companies in which Officers have an interest is £0.134m (2020/21:  £0.020m). 
 
The Council is the administering authority for the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund.  As administrator 
for the fund the Council is considered to have direct control over the fund, and the fund is therefore deemed 
to be a related party. During 2021/22, the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund had an average balance of 
£1.40m (2020/21: £1.43m) of cash administered by Scottish Borders Council within separate external banking 
arrangements, which earned interest of £0.001m (2020/21: £0.005m).  In addition the Council charged the 
Pension Fund £0.320m (2020/21: £0.281m) in respect of expenses incurred in administering the Fund. There 
are no additional related party transactions that require to be disclosed.  The Pension Fund balance due from 
Scottish Borders Council to the Pension Fund at the balance sheet date and disclosed in the net assets 
statement is as follows: 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
 
Due to/ (from) the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund  (£0.244m)  (0.050m) 
         
 
 
 

Page 130

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 72 

 

 
The Council provided routine material financial assistance (management fee) to other bodies in 2021/22 as 
follows: 
         2020/21  2021/22 
 

 Jedburgh Leisure Facilities Trust     £0.115m  £0.115m 
 

Jedburgh Leisure Facilities Trust is recognised as an Associate of Scottish Borders Council, however it 
has been excluded from Council’s Group Accounts on the basis of materiality. 

 
The Council works closely with NHS Borders in order to provide a range of services across health and social 
care pathways.  In terms of social care specifically, NHS Borders contributes towards the cost of the services 
provided in four main ways. 
 

Resource Transfer – a total of £2.594m (2021/21: £2,555m) was transferred from NHS Borders and 
utilised as follows:  
         2020/21 2021/22 
 
Children’s Services                                                   £0.107m £0.108m 
Older People                                                             £1.220m £1.239m 
Adults with Learning Difficulties                                £0.945m £0.993m 
People with Mental Health Needs                             £0.075m £0.129m 
Support Services                                                       £0.208m £0.125m 
 
 
 
Other funding from NHS Borders in 2021/22 to support services are:  
         2020/21 2021/22 
 
Older People                                                             £10.987m £8.116m   
Adults with Learning Difficulties                                 £1.492m £1.635m  
People with Mental Health Needs                              £0.551m £0.585m  
People with Physical Difficulties                                 £0.328m £0.330m  
Other Support Services                                              £1.068m £1.042m   
 
Borders Ability Equipment Store 
 
The Store is run jointly with NHS Borders, with a pooled equipment purchase budget. Gross expenditure 
including COVID-19 pressures (funded by Scottish Government) totalled £1.141m in 2021/22, with a 
contribution from NHS Borders of £0.481m, the contribution from NHS Borders is now an 50% contribution 
of spend. 
 
Galashiels Resource Centre  
 
This is a day centre run jointly with NHS Borders for adults with mental health needs.  The full-time 
manager of this service is employed by NHS Borders with a recharge of £0.026m to the Council.  All other 
expenditure is incurred by the Council.  

 
The Scottish Borders Health and Social Care Integration Board was established on 6th February 2016. This is 
a partnership between Scottish Borders Council and NHS Borders which has been established to bring about 
change in the way health and social care services are planned, commissioned and delivered and is shown 
within Scottish Borders Council Group Accounts as a Joint Venture . In 2021/22 the Council made a payment 
of £55.945m to the Board with corresponding income of the same value shown within the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement.  There was an additional £8m provided from the Social Care Fund which is 
included in Social Work and Practice outturn. At 31st March 2022 a debtor of £2.570m and creditor figure of 
£3.606m between the Board and Scottish Borders Council was outstanding (see Page 113 of Group Accounts 
detailing amounts relating to this entity). 
 
Scottish Borders Council is a corporate member of Bridge Homes LLP, which has been established to assist 
in the delivery of affordable housing, in accordance with the Scottish Government’s National Housing Trust 
(NHT) initiative. The Council has consent to borrow (from the Scottish Government) to finance loans to Bridge 
Homes LLP in respect of housing units.  

Page 131



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 73 

 

 
The Council made no further advances to Bridge Homes LLP during 2021/22 and all outstanding amounts 
(£5.612m) were repaid during the year. The Council received interest on the advance from Bridge Homes LLP 
during the year. Bridge Homes LLP has been consolidated into the Council’s Group Accounts as a Subsidiary. 
 
Live Borders, an integrated trust providing culture and leisure services on behalf of Scottish Borders Council 
was established on 1st April 2016. Services provided by the trust include Sport and Leisure, Arts, Libraries, 
Archives, Museums and Galleries. Payments of £6.149m (including management fee of £5.033m) were made 
to the trust in 2021/22. Live Borders is consolidated into Scottish Borders Council as a Subsidiary 
 
Lowood Tweedbank Limited was established on 30 November 2018 to act as mid-landlord of the residential 
properties at Lowood Estate in order to ensure the continuation of the tenancy arrangements. Rental income 
for 2021/22 due to Lowood Tweedbank Limited amounted to £43k. Lowood Tweedbank is a Subsidiary of 
Scottish Borders Council which has been excluded from the Council’s Group Accounts on the basis of 
materiality. 
 
Common Good and Trusts 
 
Interest payable to Common Good and Trust Funds in relation to investments in SBC Loans Fund was £1k 
for 2021/22. Common Good and Trusts are consolidated into Scottish Borders Council Group Accounts as 
subsidiaries (see pages 108-111 for further information and detail of transactions administered by Scottish 
Borders Council on behalf of Common Good and Trusts). 
 
 
Note 11 Audit Remuneration 
 
In 2021/22 the agreed audit fee for the year was £0.293m in respect of services provided by Audit Scotland 
(2020/21 £0.288m). Within this fee, £6k is in respect of services provided by Audit Scotland in relation to the 
audit of Scottish Borders Council Common Good and Trust Funds Annual Accounts (£6k in 2020/21). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 74 

 

 
 
 
Note 12 Property, Plant & Equipment 
 
Movement on Balances 
 
Movements in 2021/22 
 

 Other Land & 

Buildings  VPFE *  Infrastructure

 Assets under 

Construction

Surplus 

Assets

Heritage 

Assets Total Assets

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross book value (GBV) 

at 31 March 2021

458,203 84,709 259,640 43,374 5,485 1,014 852,425 

Acquisitions & Recognition 

in the year 6,438 13,051 11,712 25,492 12 - 56,705

Revaluation 

Increase/(Decrease) To 

Revaluation Reserve (8,508 ) - - - (1,450 ) - (9,958 )

Revaluation 

Increase/(Decrease) To 

CIES (614 ) - - - (3,644 ) - (4,258 )

Transfers 5,564 861 795 (14,661 ) 7,268 - (173 )

Disposals (6,220 ) (5,297 ) (1,502 ) (31 ) (930 ) - (13,980 )

Gross book value (GBV) 

at 31 March 2022
454,863 93,324 270,645 54,174 6,741 1,014 880,761

Cumulative 

depreciation at 31 

March 2021

(61,366 ) (57,192 ) (126,086 ) (774 ) (60 ) - (245,478 )

Depreciation for the year (14,617 ) (10,419 ) (8,706 ) - (116 ) - (33,858 )

Revaluation Written Out 

To Revaluation Reserve 67,474 - - - 941 - 68,415

Revaluation Written Out 

To CIES (903 ) - - - 14 - (889 )

Impairment Losses 

Recognised In 

Revaluation Reserve - - - - - - - 

Impairment Losses 

Recognised In CIES (590 ) (170 ) (1,039 ) (184 ) (12 ) - (1,995 )

Transfers 962 - - - (789 ) - 173

Disposals 5,706 5,271 1,502 31 6 - 12,516

Cumulative 

depreciation at 31 

March 2022

(3,334) (62,510) (134,329) (927) (16) 0 (201,116)

Net book value at                          

31 March 2022
451,529 30,814 136,316 53,247 6,725 1,014 679,645

Net book value at                           

31 March 2021
396,837 27,517 133,554 42,600 5,425 1,014 606,947

Property Plant & Equipment

 
 

 
* VPFE – Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 75 

 

 
 
 
Comparative Movements in 2020/21 
 

 Other Land & 

Buildings  VPFE  Infrastructure

 Assets under 

Construction Surplus Assets

Heritage 

Assets Total Assets

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross book value (GBV) 

at 31 March 2020

424,622 71,006 247,787 27,343 4,835 1,036 776,629

Acquisitions & Recognition 

in the year 5,277 15,339 9,839 53,825 125 - 84,405

Revaluation 

Increase/(Decrease) To 

Revaluation Reserve 150 - (164) - (165) (22) (201)

Revaluation 

Increase/(Decrease) To 

CIES (3,912) - (540) - (56) - (4,508)

Transfers 32,812 721 2,718 (37,509) 1,258 - 0

Disposals (746) (2,357) - (285) (512) - (3,900)

Gross book value (GBV) 

at 31 March 2021
458,203 84,709 259,640 43,374 5,485 1,014 852,425 

Cumulative 

depreciation at 31 

March 2020

(50,925) (49,252) (117,845) (1,017) (45) - (219,084)

Depreciation for the year (13,867) (8,965) (8,521) - (60) - (31,413)

Revaluation Written Out 

To Revaluation Reserve 2,657 - 70 - 517 - 3,244

Revaluation Written Out 

To CIES 882 - 528 - 116 - 1,526

Impairment Losses 

Recognised In 

Revaluation Reserve (101) - - - - - (101)

Impairment Losses 

Recognised In CIES (493) (256) (318) (42) (124) - (1,233)

Transfers 481 - - - (481) - - 

Disposals - 1,281 - 285 17 - 1,583

Cumulative 

depreciation at 31 

March 2021

(61,366) (57,192) (126,086) (774) (60) - (245,478)

Net book value at                          

31 March 2021
396,837 27,517 133,554 42,600 5,425 1,014 606,947

 Net book value at 31 

March 2020
373,697 21,754 129,942 26,326 4,790 1,036 557,545 

Property Plant & Equipment - Restated

 
 
 
 
The Council had no investment properties in 2021/22 
 
Community assets are valued on a historical cost basis at nil value as per the Code and include assets such 
as parks, playing fields, cemeteries, etc. Such assets are all included in Other Land & Buildings. 
 
In accordance with IFRS13 Fair Value Measurement, all Surplus Assets are now valued at highest and best 
use from market participants perspective. All revaluations fall under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. 

 
 

Page 134



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 76 

 

 
 
Capital Commitments 
 
 
As at 31 March 2022 the Council has entered into a number of commitments for the construction or 
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in future years, this is budgeted to cost £60.990m. These 
commitments can be categorised as follows:- 

 

Capital 

Commitments as at 

31 March 2022

£'000

Infrastructure & Environment 33,428

Education & Lifelong Learning 3,760

Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships 21,456

Resilient Communities 1,538

Social Work & Practice 809

Total

60,991  
 
Valuation and Depreciation  
 
Land and Buildings 

 The Council has adopted a 5-year rolling programme of revaluations whereby each individual asset will 
be examined during that term in line with events and planned Capital expenditure.  During 2021/22 the 
fixed assets relating to Social Work, Resources and Surplus Properties were re-valued. The valuation is 
an ongoing process carried out throughout the year to arrive at the final valuation figure.   

 

 Operational properties of a specialised nature were valued on the basis of what it would cost to reinstate 
the asset or to acquire a modern equivalent, adjusted to reflect the age, wear and tear and obsolescence 
of the existing asset.  Operational properties of a non-specialised nature were valued by reference to the 
open market value of equivalent assets of a similar type and condition, as evidenced by recent market 
transactions, and on the assumption that they would continue in their existing use. In accordance with 
IFRS13 Fair Value measurement, Surplus assets are now valued at highest and best use. Properties were 
valued by the Council’s Estates Strategy Manager, N.Curtis MRICS.  

 
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 

 All Vehicles and Plant were valued at depreciated historic cost.    
 
Infrastructure 

 Infrastructure was valued at depreciated historic cost.  
 
Depreciation 

 Land has not been depreciated  

 Buildings and Surplus Properties have been depreciated, using the straight-line method, over the 
remaining life of the asset as assessed by the valuer  

 Vehicles, Plant, etc. have been depreciated, using the straight-line method, over the remaining life of the 
asset as assessed by the Transport Manager 

 Furniture & Fittings are depreciated over 5 years 

 IT equipment is depreciated between 3 and 5 years 

 Roads infrastructure has been depreciated, using the straight-line method, over 25 years 

 Infrastructure flood works have been depreciated over 40 years 

 IT infrastructure has been depreciated over 5 years 
 

Depreciation has been directly charged to services. 
 
 

Page 135



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 77 

 

 
Revaluations 
 
The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to 
be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. All valuations are carried out internally. 
Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for 
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.  
 
Revaluation Cycle 
 
The groups of land and buildings revalued in each of the last five years were: 
 

 1 April 2021 – Social Work, Resources and Surplus Properties 

 1 April 2020 – Technical Services and Surplus Properties 

 1 April 2019 – Common Good, Trust  and Surplus Properties 

 1 April 2018 – Planning, Economic Development, and Surplus Properties 

 1 April 2017 – Education & Lifelong Learning and Surplus Properties 
 
Due to the potential effect of unprecedented economic pressures on valuations of buildings, the Council 
undertook an exercise to revalue its assets as at 31 March 2022.  As a result of this future valuations will take 
place at 31 March of the current financial year. Education & Lifelong Learning Properties will be revalued as 
at 31 March 2023 with the resulting adjustments incorporated into the 2022/23 accounts of the Council.  
 

 Other Land & 

Buildings  VPFE  Infrastructure

 Assets under 

Construction

 Surplus 

Assets

Heritage 

Assets Total Assets

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Carried at Historical Cost 359,297 93,324 270,751 54,174 15,584 1,036 794,166

New Certified Valuation

31st March 2022 57,449 - - - (4,140) - 53,309

1st April 2020 (223) - (106) - 412 (22) 61

1st April 2019 681 - - - (1,155) - (474)

1st April 2018 1,194 - - - 218 - 1,412

1st April 2017 36,465 - - - (4,178) - 32,287

Gross book value (GBV) 

at 31 March 2022
454,863 93,324 270,645 54,174 6,741 1,014 880,761

Property Plant & Equipment 

 
 
 
 
 
Common Good Assets Judicial Review 
 
Following a judicial review decision and the issue of a public consultation on the identification of Common 
Good assets in the Scottish Borders, a number of assets have been transferred from Scottish Borders 
Council’s Balance Sheet to the Common Goods Funds as a prior period adjustment.  These assets amount 
to a value of £0.491m.  Common Good building assets currently used by the Council to deliver services have 
been treated as finance lease assets and remain on the Council’s balance sheet at a carrying value of 
£8.971m.  This is on the basis that formal arrangements for continued Council use of the assets are anticipated 
to be agreed.    In the event that this process requires further asset transfers the necessary adjustments will 
be made when agreement has been reached.  

Page 136



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 78 

 

 
Note 13 Heritage Assets 
 

Museum 

Collection

Fine Arts 

Collection

Monuments, 

Memorials & 

Statues

Totals 

Tangible 

Fixed Assets

Total Heritage 

Assets

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2020 161 771 104 1,036 1,036 

Additions - - - - - 

Revaluation Increase/(Decrease) To Revaluation Reserve - - (22) (22) (22)

Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2021 161 771 82 1,014 1,014 

Additions - - 

Revaluation Increase/(Decrease) To Revaluation Reserve - - - - - 

Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2022 161 771 82 1,014 1,014  
 
 
One Heritage asset was revalued with no movement during 2021/22. 
 
The Council accepts the general principle that it is its responsibility to ensure to the best of its ability that all of 
the Collections in its care are adequately housed, professionally cared for, conserved and documented in line 
with their cultural and historic importance to the Communities of the Scottish Borders.  The Collection 
Policy approved in September 2010 can be obtained from the Education & Lifelong Learning Department of 
the Council. 
 
Museum Collection 
This collection is held for display in the various Museum Service venues throughout the Scottish Borders.  
Those items not on display are held in secure store in various locations. 
 
Fine Arts Collection 
This collection is on display at a number of Council owned locations in the Scottish Borders and through loan 
at other locations containing National Collections.  It comprises pictures by leading Border artists including 
Tom Scott and Anne Redpath and pictures of Border subjects. 
 
Archive Centre Collection 
The collecting policy for the papers and recordings in these growing collections is set out on the Heritage Hub 
website and a full index of papers held is available at the Archive Centre.  All of the material is available for 
public access and relates to Scottish Borders families, locations and institutions. 
 
Monuments, Memorials and Statues Collection 
This collection is recorded in the Property Services of the Infrastructure & Environment Department and 
includes the numerous War Memorials throughout the Borders, the monuments on Council land and the 
statues located in the parks and streets of the villages and towns of the Borders. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 79 

 

 
Note 14 Intangible Assets 
 
The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral 
part of a particular IT system.  Intangible assets in the form of purchased software are amortised on a straight 
line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset, which is estimated at 3 to 5 years. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

1,415 Gross book value (GBV) at 31 March 2,591

1,176 Expenditure in the year 98

2,591 Gross book value (GBV) at 31 March 2,689

(1,375) Cumulative amortisation at 31 March (1,409)

(34) Amortisation for the year (398)

- Impairment Losses Recognised in CIES - 

(1,409) Cumulative amortisation at 31 March (1,807)

1,182 Net book value at 31 March 882  
 
 
There were no revaluations of intangible assets in 2020/21 or 2021/22 
 
Note 15 Assets Held for Sale 
 
The Council had no assets held for sale in 2020/21 or 2021/22. 
 
Note 16 Private Finance Initiatives and Similar Contracts 
 
During 2006/07, the Council entered into a Public Private Partnership (PPP) for the provision of new secondary 
schools in Earlston, Duns and Eyemouth.  Since then, agreements have been entered into for Kelso High 
School and Jedburgh Intergenerational Community Campus. These schools have been recognised as net 
assets on the Balance Sheet.  
 
The Authority makes an agreed payment each year, which is increased each year by inflation, and can be 
reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards in any year but which is otherwise 
fixed. Payments remaining to be made under the PPP contract at 31 March 2022 are as follows: 
 

Payments for 

Services

Reimbursement of 

Capital 

Expenditure Interest Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable in 2022/23 6,945                          4,776                       3,431 15,152

Payable within two to five years 30,028                        17,695 14,323 62,046

Payable within six to ten years 45,802                        21,460                     17,273 84,535

Payable within eleven to fifteen years 56,333                        23,535 13,370 93,238

Payable within sixteen to twenty years 26,966                        14,771 9,604 51,341

Payable within twenty one to twenty five years 2,212                          4,700 3,906 10,818

Total 168,286                      86,937 61,907 317,130  
 
 
 
Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have been calculated 
to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services they provide, the capital expenditure they 
incurred and interest payable.  
 
Further details of the arrangements under Private Finance Initiatives can be found in our Accounting Policies 
on pages 60 and 61. 
 
 

Page 138



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 80 

 

 
 
Note 17 Leases 
 
Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The net book value of assets held under finance leases at the Balance Sheet date is as follows: 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Net Asset Value

111,289   Land and buildings 124,750

111,289 124,750  
 
 
The Council is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the long-
term liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Council and finance costs that will be payable by 
the Council in future years while the liability remains outstanding.  The balances shown under Land and 
Buildings relate to the Council’s PPP arrangement for the provision of five secondary schools, as detailed in 
Note 16.  The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:  
 

Land & Buildings Land & Buildings

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Finance Lease Liabilities

5,021 Not later than 1 year 4,776

18,523 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 17,695

70,592 Later than 5 years 64,466

Finance Costs Payable in Future Years

3,202                       Not later than 1 year 3,431                       

13,714                     Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 14,323                     

45,875                     Later than 5 years 44,153                     

156,926 Minimum Lease Payments 148,844  
 

 
The contingent rental figure, recognised as an expense in 2021/22 in respect of the Council’s PPP 
arrangements, was £2.457m (2020/21 £2.069m). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 139



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 81 

 

 
Operating Leases 
 
 
The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

308 Not later than 1 year 308

1,233 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,407

1,105 Later than 5 Years 796

2,645 Total 2,511  
 
 
 
Council as Lessor 
 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council has no finance leases as lessor. 
 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes: 

 for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community centres 

 for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses 
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

1,696 Not later than one year 1,622

1,174 Later than one year and not later than five years 1,138

2,690 Later than five years 2,525

5,560 Total 5,285  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 140



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 82 

 

 
Note 18 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing  
 
The total amount of Capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the  
resources that have been used to finance it.  
 

2020/21

£'000

313,402 Opening capital financing requirement 350,556 

Capital Investment

- Consent to Borrow - 

- Subordinated Debt - 

86,115 Property, plant and equipment 59,388 

1,176 Intangible assets 98 59,486 

Sources of Finance

(2,030) Capital Receipts (524)

(35,452) Government grants and other contributions (46,431)

- NHT Repayment of Principal (5,612)

(1) Subordinated Debt Repayment (1)

(12,654) Loans fund repayments (14,693) (67,261)

350,556 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 342,781 

2021/22

£'000

 
 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Explanation of Movements in Year

- 

Increase in underlying need to borrow  (supported by government financial 

assistance) - 

37,154 

Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrow  (not supported by 

government financial assistance) (7,775)

37,154 Increase/(Decrease) in capital financing requirement (7,775)  
 
 
 
 
Note 19 Termination Benefits  
During 2021/22 the Council terminated, or had agreed to terminate by the Balance Sheet date, the contracts 
of 4 employees, incurring expenditure of £0.104m - see the Remuneration Report for further detail on the exit 
packages granted and total cost per band. These packages are attributable to various areas throughout the 
Council. 
 
 
Note 20 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes   
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council makes 
contributions towards the cost of post-retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable 
until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose 
them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 141



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 83 

 

 
The Council participates in two formal pension schemes: 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is a funded defined benefit career average salary pension scheme, 
meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to  
balance the pension liabilities with investment assets. It is administered by the Council in accordance with the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2018, as amended.  The Pension Fund is  
subject to a triennial valuation by an independent, qualified Actuary, whose report indicates the required future 
employer’s contributions. 
 
The Teachers’ Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme. However it is accounted for as a defined 
contribution scheme. Further details can be found at Note 21. 
 
 
Transactions relating to retirement benefits 
 
The Council recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned 
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are 
required to make against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement 
benefits is reversed out in General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions 
have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance 
via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year. 
 

2020/21 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Cost of Services

25,513 Current Service Costs 41,744

0 Past Service Costs, including curtailments 38

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

3,378 Net Interest Expense 4,573

28,891 Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 46,355

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:-

(103,083) Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense) (21,985)

183,195 Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (62,099)

(23,777) Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions (5,233)

3,505 Other 2,134 

59,840 Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (87,183)

Movement in Reserves Statement

14,222 Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with the Code 30,998

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance  for pensions in the year

13,311 Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 13,983

1,358 Retirement benefits payable to pensioners 1,374

- Effect Of Business Combinations  & Disposals -

 
 
 
 

Page 142



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 84 

 

 
Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council`s obligation in respect of its defined benefit 
plan is as follows:- 
 

2020/21 Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 2021/22

£'000 £'000

961,716 Present value of the defined benefit obligation 936,561

(746,050) Fair value of plan assets (777,080)

215,666 Sub total 159,481

215,666 Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 159,481  
 
 
 
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. 
However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the authority 
remains healthy. The deficit will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of 
employees as assessed by the scheme actuary. Finance will only be required to cover discretionary benefits 
when the pensions are actually paid.  
 
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 
 
 

2020/21 Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 2021/22

£'000 £'000

635,319 Opening Fair Value of Scheme Assets 746,050 

14,524 Interest Income 14,853 

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:-

103,083 Return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest expense 21,985 

Other

13,311  Employer Contributions including unfunded pensions 13,983 

4,426  Contributions by Scheme Participants 4,614 

(24,613)  Estimated Benefits Paid (24,405)

- Effect Of Business Combinations  & Disposals

746,050 Closing Fair Value of Scheme Assets 777,080  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 143



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 85 

 

 
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation) 
 

2020/21 Reconciliation of the Present Value of Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligations) 2021/22

£'000 £'000

776,923  Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 961,716 

25,513  Current Service Cost 41,744 

17,902  Interest Cost 19,426 

4,426  Contributions by Scheme Participants 4,614 

- Effect Of Business Combinations  & Disposals - 

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:-

159,418 Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (67,332)

3,505 Other 2,134 

- Past Service Cost 38 

(24,613)  Benefits Paid (24,405)

(1,358)  Unfunded Pension Payments (1,374)

961,716  Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 936,561  
 
The pension liability represents the best estimate of the current value of pension benefits that will have to be 
funded by the Council.  The liability relates to benefits earned by existing or previous employees up to 31 
March 2022. 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:- 
 
All scheme assets have quoted prices in active markets other than the managed fund - Multi Assets, which is 
unquoted. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: £'000

13,613 Cash and cash equivalents 29,861

Equity Instruments

By industry type

38,362 Consumer 70,720

37,667 Manufacturing 41,948

44,931 Energy and utilities 4,134

37,265 Financial Institutions 33,953

13,112 Health and Care 20,405

17,471 Information Technology 19,830

2,582 Other 2,552

191,390 193,542

Investment Funds - Quoted in Active Market

147,679 Managed Fund - UK Equities Passive 116,282

82,460 Managed Fund - Property 118,962

155,499 Managed Fund - Bonds 156,690

385,638 391,934

Investment Funds - Not Quoted

155,409 161,743

746,050 Total Assets 777,080  

Page 144



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 86 

 

 
 
The risks relating to direct equity instruments in the scheme are also analysed by company size below: 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 Fair Value of Scheme Assets £'000

Equity instruments:

By company size

191,390 Large capitalisation 193,542

 
 
 
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the 
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels 
etc. The liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates 
for the Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2020. 
 
The principal assumptions used by the actuary are shown below: 

 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

2020/21 2021/22

Mortality assumptions

- longevity at 65 for current pensioners (years)

20.90   Men 20.70

23.50   Women 23.30

- longevity at 65 for future pensioners (years)

21.80   Men 21.60

25.40   Women 25.20

3.3% Rate of inflation - RPI 3.7%

2.4% Rate of inflation - CPI 3.0%

3.6% Rate of increase in salaries 3.9%

2.9% Rate of increase in pensions 3.2%

2.0% Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.7%

 
 
 
The Scheme assets consist of the following categories by proportion and the value of assets held: 

 

% £'000 % £'000

45 339,069 Equities 40 309,823

- - Gilts - - 

21 155,499 Other Bonds 20 156,690

11 82,460 Property 15 118,962

2 13,613 Cash 4 29,861

13 95,746 Multi-Asset Fund 12 92,180

- - Private Credit - - 

8 59,663 Infrastructure 9 69,564

100 746,050 Total 100 777,080

2020/21 2021/22

Category Analysis of the Scheme Assets as at 31 March 

2022

 
 
 
 

Page 145



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 87 

 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table 
above.  The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption 
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, 
assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women.  In practice, this is unlikely to occur, 
and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated.  The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have 
followed the accounting policies for the scheme, ie on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.  
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from 
those used in the previous period. 
 

Approximate % 

increase to 

Employers Liability

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

Adjustment to real discount rate - 0.1% decrease 2%

Adjustment to long term salary increase - 0.1% increase 0%

Adjustment to pension increase rate  - 0.1% increase 2%

Adjustment to mortality rating assumption  - 1 year increase 4%

 
 
 
Note 21 Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
 
Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme administered by the 
Scottish Public Pensions Agency, an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government. It provides teachers with 
defined benefits upon their retirement and the Council contributes towards the costs by making contributions 
based on a percentage of members’ pensionable salaries. In 2021/22 the Council paid £11.5m to teachers’ 
pensions in respect of teachers’ retirement benefits, representing 23% of pensionable pay for the period 1st 
April 2021 to 31st March 2022 (£11.4m and 23% in 2020/21).  The employer’s contribution increased as a 
result of a revaluation of the Scottish Teacher’s pension scheme under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.  
There were no contributions remaining payable at the year-end. 
 
The scheme is a defined benefit scheme. Although the scheme is unfunded, teachers’ pensions use a notional 
fund as the basis for calculating the employer’s contribution rate paid by local education authorities. However, 
it is not possible for the Council to identify a share of the underlying liabilities in the scheme attributable to its 
own employees. For the purposes of these Annual Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis 
as a defined contribution scheme. The Council is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded 
upon early retirement and added years it has awarded outside of the terms of the teachers’ Scheme. In 
2021/22 these amounted to £0.709m representing 1.41% of pensionable pay (£0.719m and 1.45% in 
2020/21). 
 
 
Note 22 Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund  
 
Scottish Borders Council manages and administers this Fund which provides pensions and other benefits to 
its employees and a further 16 employers in the Scottish Borders. As at 31 March 2022 there were 12,178 
members.  
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/234) require an 
administering authority to publish a separate pension fund annual report. This report will include a Fund  
Account, Net Asset Statement with supporting notes and disclosures prepared in accordance with proper 
practices.  
 
A copy of this report is available by contacting Scottish Borders Council, Treasury & Investments Department, 
Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, TD6 0SA.  
 

Page 146



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 88 

 

 
Note 23 Events After the Balance Sheet Date 
 
Further information from the pensions actuaries after the reporting period indicates that the fair value of 
scheme assets is higher than reported as at 31 March 2022.  The actuaries estimated based on data to 31 
December 2021 and forward forecast to 31 March 2022.  However, due to complexities of estimations, the 
actual estimated figure using data to 31 March 2022, results in an increase of the fair value of scheme assets.  
The resultant difference from the annual accounts to the final estimated figures is £14.01m more that the 
reported figure of £777.080m.  This has not been adjusted for in the annual accounts due to the nature of the 
complexities of the assumptions and the extent of the estimations. 
 
 
Note 24 Inventories 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

952 Balance outstanding at start of year
1,645

693 Movement during year (200)

1,645 Balance outstanding at year-end 1,445
 

 
 
Note 25 Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised in the accounts when: 
 

 The Council has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; 

 It is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and 

 A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Where it is estimated that a provision will be utilised within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date it is included 
within current liabilities. 
 

Contractual 

Claims Equal Pay

Voluntary 

Severance / Early 

Retirement

Asset 

Decommissioning Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2021 (61) (8) - (3,503) (3,572)

Additional charges to provisions (38) (123) (161)

Payments made or released 49 147 196

Balance at 31 March 2022 (50) (8) - (3,479) (3,537)

Within 12 Months (50) (8) - (90) (148)

Over 12 months - - - (3,389) (3,389)

Total (50) (8) - (3,479) (3,537)  
 
 
Provision for contractual claims is the anticipated cost for remedial works relating to SBc Contracts.  
 
Equal Pay Provision - Employment Tribunal proceedings have been raised against the Council by a number 
of staff relating to Equal Pay. 
 
Provision for asset decommissioning reflect the Council`s liability for restoration and ongoing maintenance in 
respect of the Langlee landfill site.  This has been provided for based on the net present value of estimated 
future costs.  

Page 147



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 89 

 

 
Note 26 Contingent Liabilities 
 
The following contingent liabilities are noted:  
 

 The Council is a scheme creditor of Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited (MMI). This organisation 
ceased operations in 1992 and has outstanding claim liabilities that are currently being managed by 
a board until the liabilities are extinguished. This will remain the position until the Scheme 
Administrator sees fit to revise the Levy percentage either upwards or downwards as required. As 
the final costs and timing of any further Council contributions cannot therefore be estimated with 
reasonable accuracy, no further provision has been made in the financial statements in respect of 
any potential additional payments at this stage. The remaining contingent liability at the Balance 
Sheet date in respect of claim payments to date, net of the initial levy paid, is £323,614, though MMI 
have stated that the first £50,000 of this will be free of any levy. The estimate of outstanding claims 
relating to the Council that have not yet been paid is £204,902 at the Balance Sheet date. 

 

 There has been a European Court of Justice ruling relating to workers annual leave payment 
entitlement.  The financial implications of this judgement for Scottish Borders Council are unclear at 
present and therefore this has been disclosed as a contingent liability in this years` annual accounts. 

 

 The Council has agreed to act as guarantor for Live Borders with regards to their admission to the 
Scottish Borders Pension Fund.  Should Live Borders be unable to meet their pension obligations, 
Scottish Borders Council as guarantor would be liable to do so.  Our Actuary has previously provided 
figures based on the projected bond level that would be needed to be established to reflect these 
pension fund liabilities with the most recent estimate being £2.937m. 
 

 On 26 October 2018, The High Court ruled that Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) should be 
equalised between men and women to address the discrepancies in members’ benefits arising from 
the contracting out of the additional state pension between 17 May 1990 and 6 April 1997.  However 
due to ongoing legal appeals and clarification of what has to be included it is not possible to quantify 
the impact this will have on Scottish Borders Council at this time. 

 

 There has been a legal case regarding pension obligations relating to Civil Partnerships, it is too 
early to assess what the financial implications of this will be on Local Government Pension Schemes. 
 

 Following a judicial review decision and the issue of a public consultation on the identification of 
Common Good assets in the Scottish Borders, a number of assets have been transferred from 
Scottish Borders Council’s Balance Sheet to the Common Goods Funds as a prior period adjustment.  
Common Good building assets currently used by the Council to deliver services have been treated as 
finance lease assets and remain on the Council’s balance sheet.  This is on the basis that formal 
arrangements for continued Council use of the assets are anticipated to be agreed.  In the event that 
this process requires further asset transfers the necessary adjustments will be made when 
agreement has been reached.  Consequently the Council considers any potential remaining transfers 
to be a contingent liability. 
 

 A recent case regarding child abuse has resulted in the Council admitting liability in respect of these 
events.  To date no claims have been brought regarding this and no evidence as to the nature of the 
harm occasioned has been produced.  As such, no reliable estimate can be made of potential 
damages the Council would be liable for.  In additions, this is an insured risk and our insurers have 
been made aware of the situation.  As the financial implications remain unclear this has been 
included as a contingent liability in the year’s annual accounts. 
 

Note 27 Contingent Assets 
 
The following Contingent Assets are noted: 
 

 The European Commission issued a decision which found that European truck manufacturers had 
engaged in price fixing and other cartel activities over a 14 year period between 1997 and 2011 in 
relation to trucks over six tonnes.  Scottish Borders Council has joined with other Scottish Local 
Authorities and public bodies to raise legal actions seeking compensation for losses it has suffered as 
a result of this illegal activity. 

 

Page 148



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 90 

 

 
Note 28 Grant Income 
 
The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account in 2021/22.  The table below includes £4.074m COVID-19 grant funding credited to 
services in 2021/22. 
 

Restated

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

(11,545) General Capital Grant (34,187)

(18,818) Other Grants (7,984)

(534) Developer Contributions (351)

(30,896) Total (42,522)

Credited to Services

(1,032) Infrastructure & Environment (2,005)

(2,123) Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships (2,888)

(9,189) Social Work & Practice (4,303)

(15,429) Education & Lifelong Leatning (17,582)

(24,970) Resilient Communities (22,758)

(1,356) Finance & Corporate Governance (716)

(107) People Performance & Change (40)

(54,206) (50,292)  
 
 
Note 29 Financial Instruments  
 
Scottish Borders Council have taken into consideration the requirements of IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments 
and, based on the financial instruments held, do not consider there to be any impact on these Financial 
Statements or prior year figures. 
 
A financial instrument is any contract which gives rise to a financial asset within one entity and a financial 
liability within another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial liabilities and financial asset. 
 
 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
Under IFRS 13 (Fair Value Measurement), the authority is required to maximise the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. To achieve this objective, local authorities are required 
to follow the fair value hierarchy, which categorises the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair 
value into the three levels as listed below. 
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can 
access at the measurement date  

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly  

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 149



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 91 

 

 
Fair Value Hierarchy For Financial Assets And Liabilities That Are Not Measured At Fair Value 
 

 

Quoted Prices in 

active markets for 

identical assets 

(Level 1)

Other significant 

observable inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs (Level 3) Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost:

PWLB debt (291,309) (291,309)

Market Debt (582) (582)

Other debt (62,518) (62,518)

Total - (354,409) - (354,409) 

31st March 2022

 
 
 

Quoted Prices in 

active markets for 

identical assets 

(Level 1)

Other significant 

observable inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs (Level 3) Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost:

PWLB debt - (305,961) - (305,961)

Market Debt - (587) - (587)

Other debt - (84,671) - (84,671)

Total - (391,219) - (391,219) 

31st March 2021

 
 

 

The fair value for financial liabilities and financial assets that are not measured at fair value included in levels 
2 and 3 in the table above, have been arrived at using a discounted cash flow analysis with the most 
significant inputs being the discount rate. 

The fair value for financial liabilities and financial assets that are not measured at fair value are shown at 
their carrying value since this is a reasonable approximation of their value.  These are short term assets and 
liabilities such as accounts payables and receivables. 

 

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 150



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 92 

 

 
Financial Instruments - Balances 
 
The following categories of financial instrument are carried on the Council’s Balance Sheet 
 

31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022

Restated Restated

£000 £000 £000 £000

Loans and Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 27,417 45,918 

Debtors 6,711 1,106 43,698 48,692 

Total Loans and Receivables 6,711                          1,106                         71,115 94,610 

Borrowings

Bank Overdraft - - - - 

Financial Liabilities (principal amount) (192,280) (210,490) (25,284) (1,778)

Accrued interest - - (3,229) (3,058)

Total Borrowings (192,280) (210,490) (28,513) (4,836)

Other Liabilities

PPP and finance lease liabilities (89,115) (82,161) (5,021) (4,776)

Bonds - - (1,732) (1,573)

Total other long-term liabilities (89,115) (82,161) (6,753) (6,349)

Creditors

Short term creditors at amortised cost 

(excluding Other Liabilities) - - (43,965) (53,538)

Total Creditors - - (43,965) (53,538)

Long Term Current

 
 
 
Borrowing is taken principally from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB), but is also taken from the money 
market, to meet the Council’s overall capital financing requirements. 
 

The following table shows a breakdown of borrowing: 
 
 

£'000 % £'000 %

(36,193) 15 Bonds and Mortgages (36,180) 17

(156,087) 72 Public Works Loan Board (174,310) 81

(192,280) 87 Long term borrowing (> 1 year) (210,490) 98

(28,513) 13 Short Term Borrowing repayable within 12 months (4,836) 2

(220,793) 100 Total Borrowing (215,326) 100

31 March 2021 31 March 2022

Restated

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 151



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 93 

 

 
 
 
Analysis of Borrowing by Maturity. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

Restated

£'000 £'000

(28,513) Less than 1 year (4,836)

(1,778) Between 1 and 2 years (572)

(27,047) Between 2 and 7 years (26,463)

(7,500) Between 7 and 15 years (27,500)

(155,955) More than 15 years (155,955)

(220,793) Total (215,326)  
 
 
 
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to 
financial instruments are as follows:  
 
 

Financial Financial

Liabilities Assets

Liabilities Loans Total

measured at and

amortised cost receivables

£'000 £'000 £'000

Interest expense 10,144 - 10,144

Interest payable and similar charges 10,144 - 10,144

Interest Income - (227) (227)

Interest and investment income - (227) (227)

Net (gain) / loss for the year 10,144 (227) 9,917

2021/22

 
 
 

Financial Financial

Liabilities Assets

Liabilities Loans Total

measured at and

amortised cost receivables

£'000 £'000 £'000

Interest expense 11,943 - 11,943

Interest payable and similar charges 11,943 - 11,943

Interest Income - (250) (250)

Interest and investment income - (250) (250)

Net (gain) / loss for the year 11,943 (250) 11,693

2020/21 Restated

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 152



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 94 

 

 
 
 
 
Fair value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost 
Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables are carried on the balance sheet 
at amortised cost.  Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that 
take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions: 

 

 For loans from the PWLB and other loans payable, premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been 
applied to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures 

 For loans receivable, prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to provide the fair value 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised 

 Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable, the fair value 
is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount 

 The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount 
 
The fair values calculated are as follows: 
 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

PWLB debt (156,087) (305,961) (174,310) (291,309)

Other debt (64,706) (85,258) (41,016) (63,100)

Total debt (220,793) (391,219) (215,326) (354,409)

Creditors (50,718) (50,718) (59,887) (59,887)

Total financial liabilities (271,511) (441,937) (275,213) (414,296)

Restated 31 March 2021 31 March 2022

 
 

 
The fair value is greater than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number 
of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the rates available for similar loans in the 
market at the balance sheet date. 
 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Loans and Receivables

Short Term Investments - - - - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,417 27,417 45,918 45,918

Debtors 43,698 43,698 48,692 48,692

Total loans and receivables 71,115 71,115 94,610 94,610

31 March 2021 31 March 2022

 
 

All of the financial assets were of less than one year duration and therefore the fair value equates to the 
amortised cost on the balance sheet.  
 
 
Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 
 
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are: 
 

 Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council 

 Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its day to day 
obligations to make payments  

 Re-financing risk – the possibility that the Council may need to renew a financial instrument on maturity 
at disadvantageous interest rates or terms 

 Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in such 
measures as interest rates movements 

 

Page 153



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 95 

 

 
 
 
 
Overall Procedures for Managing Risk 
 
The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and are 
structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks.  The procedures for risk management are 
determined through a legal framework based on the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 and associated 
regulations.  These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management in the Public Services and investment regulations issued through the Act.  Overall, 
these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways: 
 

 By formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 

 By the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its financial 
regulations 

 By approving annually, in advance, prudential indicators for the following three years limiting: 
 

o the Council’s overall borrowing 
o its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates 
o its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt 
o its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year 
 

 By approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both 
      investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with Government regulations 
 
These are required to be reported and approved at or before setting the Council’s annual Council Tax budget 
or before the start of the year to which they relate.  These items are reported with the annual Treasury 
Management Strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the Council’s 
financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported after each financial year, as is a mid-year 
update. 
 
These policies are implemented by a central treasury team.  The Council maintains a strategy for overall risk 
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the 
investment of surplus cash through Treasury Management Practices (TMPs).  These TMPs are a requirement 
of the Code of Practice and are reviewed periodically. 
 
The annual Treasury Management Strategy for 2021/22, which incorporates the prudential indicators, was 
approved by the Council on 19 March 2021. The key issues within the strategy were: 
 

 The Authorised Limit for 2021/22 was set at £531.1m. This is the maximum limit of external borrowings or 
other long-term liabilities 

 The Operational Boundary was expected to be £442.6m. This is the expected level of debt and other long-
term liabilities during the year 

 The maximum amounts of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at £442.6m and £154.9m 
based on the Council’s net debt 

 The maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of debt were as follows: 
 
 

Period Minimum Maximum

Under 12 months 0% 20%

1 to 2 years 0% 20%

2 to 5 years 0% 20%

5 to 10 years 0% 20%

Over 10 years 20% 100%  
 
 
 

Page 154



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 96 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the 
Council’s customers. 
 
This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with 
financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Moody’s 
and Standard & Poors Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also considers maximum 
amounts and time limits in respect of each financial institution located in each category. 
 
The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Council are detailed below. 
 
The Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services.  This service uses a 
sophisticated modelling approach with credit ratings from all three rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s, forming the core element.  However, it does not rely solely on the current credit ratings 
of counterparties but also uses the following as overlays: 
 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies 

 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings 

 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries 
 
The full Investment Strategy for 2021/22 was approved by the Council on 19 March 2021 and is available on 

the Council’s website:  http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/   
 
The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies 
cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the 
principal sum will be specific to each individual institution.  Recent experience has shown that it is rare for 
such entities to be unable to meet their commitments.  A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Council’s 
deposits, but there was no evidence at 31 March 2022 that this was likely to crystallise.  
 
No breaches of the Council’s counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the Council does 
not expect any losses for non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to its deposits. 
 
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council may not have sufficient cash available to meet its day to day obligation 
to make payments. 
 
The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and 
approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the Treasury and Investment Strategy reports), as well 
as through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice.  This 
seeks to ensure that cash is available when needed. 
 
The Council has ready access to borrowings from the Money Markets to cover any day to day cash flow need, 
and the PWLB and money markets for access to longer term funds.  The Council is also required to provide a 
balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures that sufficient monies are 
raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance 
to meet its commitments under financial instruments. 
 
 
Refinancing and Maturity Risk 
 
The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are 
considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer-term risk to the Council relates to managing the 
exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature.  This risk relates to both the maturing of longer 
term financial liabilities and longer term financial assets. 

Page 155

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 97 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits on investments placed 
for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk.  The Council  
approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the central treasury team address 
the operational risks within the approved parameters. This includes: 
 

 monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new borrowing 
or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and 

 monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Council’s day 
to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities and 
returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs. 

 
 
The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, together with the maximum and minimum limits for 
fixed interest rates maturing in each period, as approved by the Council in the Treasury Management Strategy 
on 19 March 2021: 
 

Approved Minimum 

Limits 

Approved Minimum 

Limits 

Approved Maximum 

Limits 

Approved Maximum 

Limits 

Actual 31 March    

2021

Actual 31 March 

2022

£'000 % £'000 % £'000 £'000

Less than one year 79,540 20 28,513 4,836

Between one and two 

years 79,540 20 1,778 572

Between two and 

seven years 79,540 20 27,047 26,463

Between seven and 

fifteen years 79,540 20 7,500 27,500

More than fifteen 

years 79,540 20 397,700 100 155,955 155,955

220,793 215,326Total  
 
 
 
Market Risk 
 
There are three main market risks to which the Council is exposed: 
 
(i) Interest Rate Risk - The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and 

investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending on how 
variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods.  For instance, a 
rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects: 

 

 Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement will rise 
 

 Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on revenue balances) 
 

 Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement will rise, and 

 

 Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue balances) 
 

 
Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate 
borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure.  However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings 

Page 156



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 98 

 

and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General 
Fund Balance.  
 
The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury Management 
Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations, 
including an expectation of interest rate movements.  From this Strategy a treasury indicator is set which 
provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure.  The central Treasury Team will monitor 
market and forecast interest rates within the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during 
periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate 
investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term returns. Similarly the drawing of longer 
term fixed rates borrowing would be postponed. 
 
If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be: 
 

£'000

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investment 220

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowing liabilities 56,689

(No impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure)  
 
 
The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being 
reversed. However, given the low interest rates currently available on deposits, it may simply mean then that 
no interest would be available. These assumptions are based on the same methodology as used in the Note 
– Fair value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost. 
 
(ii) Price Risk - The Council, excluding the Pension Fund, does not generally invest in equity shares or 

marketable bonds. 
 
(iii) Foreign Exchange Risk - The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in   

foreign currencies at the Balance Sheet date.  It therefore has no exposure to loss arising from 
movements in exchange rates. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 99 

 

 
 
Note 30 Debtor and Creditor Analysis 
 
The Council’s short term debtor and creditor balances can be categorised as follows:  
 
Debtors 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

19,859 Trade Receivables 18,033

3,912 Prepayments 9,109

31,874 Other Receivable Amounts 34,080

55,646 61,222  
 
 
 
Creditors 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

(16,670) Trade Payables (19,593)

(34,048) Other Payables (40,294)

(50,718) (59,887)  
 
 
 
Debtors for Local Taxation 
 
The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non-domestic rates) can be analysed 
by age as follows: 
 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

632 Less Than 2 Months 1,011

791 2 To 4 Months 525

2,689 4 To 6 Months 173

1,092 6 Months To 1 Year 2,022

23,388 More Than 1 Year 25,665

28,592 29,396  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 158



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 100 

 

 
 
Note 31 Movement in Reserves 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 
usable reserves (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. 
The surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s 
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is 
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council Tax 
setting purposes. The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Balances of the General Fund 
line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked 
Balances of the General Fund undertaken by the Council. 
 
 
 
 

Restated Balance 

as at 31 March 

2021

Transfers 

between 

reserves and 

funds

Gains or Losses 

for the Year

Balance as at 31 

March 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Usable Reserves

General Fund Balances (36,441) (13,787) (1,763) (51,991)

Capital Fund (9,929) (887) - (10,816)

Property Maintenance Fund (362) 311 - (51)

Insurance Fund (1,532) (91) - (1,623)

Unusable Reserves

Capital Adjustment Account (152,897) (21,228) - (174,125)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 6,122 (308) - 5,814

Revaluation Reserve (110,788) 5,127 (58,457) (164,117)

Pensions Reserve 215,666 30,998 (87,183) 159,481

Employee Statutory Adjustment Account 6,687 (135) - 6,552

Total (83,474) 0 (147,403) (230,876)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 159



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 101 

 

 
 
Adjustments Between Accounting Basis And Capital Funding Basis Under Regulations 
 
This details the adjustments that are made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure recognised by the 
Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by 
statutory provisions as being available to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
 
A summary of all reserves movements are shown below: 
 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations 2020/21 - Restated

General Fund 

Balance Capital Fund

Property 

Maintenance 

Fund

Insurance 

Fund

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Charges for depreciation & amortisation of non-

current assets (31,447) - - - (31,447) 31,447 - 12 & 14

Impairment losses (charged to CI&ES) (1,233) - - - (1,233) 1,233 - 

Revaluation Losses (2,982) - - - (2,982) 2,982 - 

Capital grants and contributions applied 30,896 - - - 30,896 (30,896) - 28 

Employee Statutory Adjustments (401) - - - (401) 401 - 

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of assets (401) (1,915) - - (2,316) 2,316 - 

Revenue Exp Funded From Capital under Statute (1,710) - - - (1,710) 1,710 - 

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CI&ES 

are different in accordance with statutory requirements 319 - - - 319 (319) - 

Net retirement charges per IAS 19 (27,533) - - - (27,533) 27,533 - 

Loans Fund principal repayments and Statutory 

premia 12,654 - - - 12,654 (12,654) - 

Capital Expenditure charged to General Fund balance 2,487 - - - 2,487 (2,487) - 

Employers contribution payable to Pension Fund 13,311 - - - 13,311 (13,311) - 

Net Transfers to or (from) other reserves 2,989 1,530 (361) (136) 4,022 (4,022) - 

Total in year adjustments (3,051) (385) (361) (136) (3,933) 3,933 -  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 160



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 102 

 

 
 
 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations  2021/22

General Fund 

Balance Capital Fund

Property 

Maintenance 

Fund

Insurance 

Fund

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Charges for depreciation & amortisation of non-

current assets (34,256) - - - (34,256) 34,256 - 12 & 14

Impairment Losses (charged to CI&ES) (1,995) - - - (1,995) 1,995 - 

Revaluation Losses (5,147) - - - (5,147) 5,147 - 

Capital grants and contributions applied 42,522 - - - 42,522 (42,522) - 28 

Employee Statutory Adjustments 135 - - - 135 (135) - 

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of assets (735) (730) - - (1,465) 1,465 - 

Revenue Exp Funded From Capital under Statute (2,683) - - - (2,683) 2,683 - 

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CI&ES 

are different in accordance with statutory requirements 308 - - - 308 (308) - 

Net retirement charges per IAS 19 (44,981) - - - (44,981) 44,981 - 

Loans Fund principal repayments and Statutory 

premia 14,693 - - - 14,693 (14,693) - 

Capital Expenditure charged to General Fund balance 2,015 - - - 2,015 (2,015) - 

Employers contribution payable to Pension Fund 13,983 - - - 13,983 (13,983) - 

Net Transfers to or (from) other reserves 2,354 (157) 311 (91) 2,417 (2,417) - 

Total in year adjustments (13,787) (887) 311 (91) (14,455) 14,454 -  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         

         

         

         

Page 161



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 103 

 

 
Usable Reserves 
 
Usable reserves are those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce the requirement to raise local 
taxation. 
 
The General Fund Balances are further analysed as follows: 
 

Restated Analysis as at 31 March 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

 Earmarked Balances of the General Fund

(1,220) Education & Lifelong Learning - Devolved School Management (1,599)

  Specific Departmental Reserves

(3,222) Infrastructure & Environment (4,573)

(1,809) Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships (6,410)

(83) Social Work & Practice (3,096)

(2,200) Education & Lifelong Leatning (7,325)

(1,538) Resilient Communities (3,301)

(15,380) Finance & Corporate Governance (10,498)

(130) People Performance & Change (387)

(2,027) Allocated Reserves - Financial Plan (4,953)

(27,609) (42,142)

(8,832) Non-Earmarked Balances of the General Fund (9,850)

(36,441) Total General Fund Reserve (51,991)  
 

 
 
Unusable Reserves 
Unusable reserves are those that the Council is not able to use to provide services. 
 
Capital Adjustment Account 
This account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the 
consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those 
assets under statutory provisions. 
 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
This account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for income 
and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per 
statutory provisions. 
 
Revaluation Reserve 
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by an Authority arising from increases in the value of its 
Property Plant and Equipment. The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, 
the date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Pension Reserve 
The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 
for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. 
 
Employee Statutory Adjustment Account 
This account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing 
for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at  
31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by 
transfers to or from the Account. 
 
 

Page 162



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 104 

 

 
Note 32 Cash Flow 

 
Restated

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 Reconciliation to General Fund Surplus £'000

(14,211) Net (Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (1,763)

Adjustments to (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 

for non cash movements

(31,413) Depreciation (33,858)

(4,216) Impairment & Revaluation Loss through I & E (7,143)

(34) Amortisation of intangible assets (398)

(14,222) Movement in pension liability (30,998)

(401) Gain/Loss on carrying amounts of assets disposed (735)

693 Net movement in inventories charged to I & E (200)

(2,736) Net movement in debtors charged to I & E 6,695

1,003 Net movement in creditors charged to I & E (10,705)

150 Net movement in provisions charged to I & E (112)

(51,176) (77,454)

Adjustments for items included in the net (surplus) or deficit on 

the provision of services that are investing and financing 

activities

30,896 Capital grants received 42,522

169

Any other items received for the financing of capital or to meet principal 

repayments which have been recognised through the I & E 787

31,065 43,309

(34,322) Net Cash Outflow / (Inflow) from Operating Activities (35,908)  
 
 
 
Note 33 
 
Impairment & Revaluation Losses 
 
During 2021/22, Scottish Borders Council recognised a net impairment and revaluation loss of £7.142m within 
the Net Cost of Services. This includes a reversal of £0.723m against losses in previous years. 
 
Note 34 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The balance of the cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

30 Cash held by  officers 20

2,387 Bank current accounts 398

25,000 Short term deposits 45,500

27,417 Total 45,918

Page 163



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 105 

 

Supplementary Financial Statements 

Council Tax Income Account  

 
The Council Tax Income Account (Scotland) shows the gross income raised from council taxes levied and 
deductions made under statute.  The resultant net income is transferred to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement of the Council. 
 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(75,122) Gross Charges Levied (75,705)

5,925 Less: Council Tax Reduction Scheme 5,463

5,925 5,463

8,175 Discounts and Exemptions 8,407

807 Allowance for Impairment 812

- Miscellaneous

14,907 14,682

(60,215) (61,023)

(60,215) (61,023)
Total Income Credited to the                                                                             

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

2020/21 2021/22

 
 
 

Notes to the Council Tax Income Account 
 
 
Note 1 Calculation of Council Tax base at 1 April 2021 
 
 
The calculation of the council tax base, ie the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band (adjusted 
for dwellings where discounts apply) after providing for non-payment, as an equivalent number of band D 
dwellings and the level of non-payment provided for. 
 

 
Number of Number of 

Band Properties Properties Proportion 2020/21 2021/22

2020/21 2021/22 £ £

A 16,480 16,507 240/360 835.94 835.94

B 12,748 12,755 280/360 975.26 975.26

C 7,148 7,227 320/360 1,114.59 1,114.59

D 6,084 6,182 360/360 1,253.91 1,253.91

E 6,522 6,581 473/360 1,647.50 1,647.50

F 4,946 5,021 585/360 2,037.60 2,037.60

G 4,578 4,630 705/360 2,455.57 2,455.57

H 480 487 882/360 3,072.08 3,072.08

Total 58,986 59,390

 
 

 

Page 164



Supplementary Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 106 

 

 

Council Tax Income Account  

 
Note 2 Water and Waste Water Charges 
 
The Council is required to bill and collect water and waste water charges on domestic properties along with 
Council Tax as part of an agency agreement.  These charges were determined by Scottish Water and for 
2021/22 the Band D charges were £212.49 for water and £246.69 for waste water.  
 

Non-Domestic Rate Income Account 

 
The Non-Domestic Rate Account (Scotland) is an agent`s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for 
billing authorities to maintain a separate Non-Domestic Rate Account.  The statement shows the gross 
income from the rates and deductions made under statute.  The net income is paid to the Scottish 
Government as a contribution to the national non-domestic rate pool.   
 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(52,679) Gross Rates Levied & Contribution in Lieu (51,687)

3,952 Prior Year Adjustments 1,547

27,541 Less: Reliefs and Other Deductions 22,694

253 Write-offs of uncollectable debts & allowance for impairment 647

- Interest paid on overpaid rates - 

27,793 23,341

(20,934) (26,799)

(20,934) Net Non-Domestic Rate Income (26,799)

- Adjustment to  Previous Years National Non-Domestic Rates -

(20,934) Contribution to National Pool (26,799)

23,388 26,668

(23,388) (26,668)

2020/21 2021/22

Distribution received from National Pool

Income Credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

Statement

Restated

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



Supplementary Financial Statements 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 107 

 

 
Notes to the Non-Domestic Rate Income Account 
 
Note 1 Rateable Subjects at 1 April 2021 

Rateable

Classification Number Value

£'000

Shops 1,250 19,917

Public Houses 78 1,380

Offices including Banks 970 8,115

Hotels etc 125 3,781

Industrial Factories,Warehouses,Stores 2,203 27,336

Leisure Entertainment,Caravans,Hol.Sites 1,239 6,512

Garages and Petrol Stations 213 2,356

Cultural 49 547

Sporting Subjects 1,118 1,978

Education and Training 99 10,532

Public Service Subjects 428 5,375

Communications (non Formula) 4 15

Quarries, Mines etc 12 592

Petrochemical 5 1,304

Religious 286 1,227

Health Medical 93 4,023

Other 428 2,010

Care Facilities 84 1,907

Advertising 7 12

Undertakings 32 5,016

Total 8,723 103,935  
 
 
Note 2 Non-Domestic Rates 
The Non-Domestic rate is fixed by the Scottish Government and for 2021/22 was: 
49.0p for properties with a rateable value up to £51,000 with supplements of 1.3p for properties with a rateable 
value between £51,000 and £95,000, 2.6p for properties with a rateable value in excess of £95,000. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 166



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 108 

 

Trust Funds    

                                                                                                                                     
Scottish Borders Council administers numerous charitable trusts and bequests.  Elected Members of the 
Council act as Trustees of these charities.  Those registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator 
(OSCR) are detailed below: 
 

 

 Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 

 Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 

 Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
 
 

These three charities were registered with OSCR on 1 April 2014 and each contains funds that are restricted 
by purpose and geographical area. 
 

 

 Following the successful transfer of 7 trusts into the SBC Community and Enhancement Trust and 
37 into the SBC Welfare Trust in 2018/19, The Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trust 
continues to administer 32 separate trusts and bequests as at the Balance Sheet date. 
 

 The Ormiston Trust for Institute remains as a separately registered trust with OSCR. 

 
 
All OSCR registered charities are subject to audit, in line with OSCR requirements and a full set of financial 
statements compliant with those requirements are published separately.  The Council also administers a 
further 39 non registered charities. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 167



Trust Funds 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 109 

 

 
A summary Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet are detailed below, recognising all 
registered and unregistered charities administered by the Council. 
 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statements 

 
2020/21 Charitable Other 2021/22

Total Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

(5) Donations & Legacies (3) (12) (15)

(105) Investments (79) (54) (133)

(18) Charitable Activities - (28) (28)

(313) Unrealised Gain On Investments - - - 

- Recognition Of Fixed Assets & Investments - - - 

- Revaluation Of Fixed Assets & Investments (349) (304) (653)

Expenditure

145 Raising Funds 128 101 229

33 Charitable Activities 33 47 80

4 Other : Governance Costs 3 1 4 

- Unrealised Loss On Investments 1 1 2 

(259) (Surplus) / Deficit for the Year (266) (248) (514)

(1,195) (Surplus) brought forward (727) (563) (1,290)

(145)

Funding (brought forward/carried forward) to Revaluation 

Reserve 221 214 435

309   Transfer to Capital Reserve (1) (1) (2)

(1,290) (Surplus) carry forward (773) (598) (1,371)  
 
 
Balance Sheet 

 

2020/21 Charitable Other 2021/22

Total Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current Assets

1,936 Tangible Fixed Assets 530 1,840 2,370

2,058 Investments 1,022 1,036 2,058

- Long term Loan - - - 

Current Assets

483 Short Term Investments 325 243 568

14                              Sundry Debtors 5 5 10

Current Liabilities

-   Sundry Creditors - (1) (1)

4,491 Net Assets 1,882 3,123 5,005

Financed by

(1,290)   Revenue Reserve (773) (598) (1,371)

(1,335)   Capital Reserve (631) (702) (1,333)

(1,866)   Revaluation Reserve (478) (1,823) (2,301)

(4,491) (1,882) (3,123) (5,005)

Page 168



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 110 

 

Common Good Funds 
 
 
The Council administers the Common Good Funds for twelve towns within its area. The statements below 
give the income and expenditure for the year and the assets and liabilities at 31 March 2022, for each of the 
funds. The accounting policies applied are those as set out in pages 54 to 63. 
 
All funds are invested in the Aegon Asset Management diversified income fund. 
 
The Common Good Financial Statements are presented in line with previous years.  A separate set of financial 
statements is published compliant with OSCR requirements and subject to full external audit.   
 
 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements 
 
 

Restated 

2020/21

Total Coldstream Duns Eyemouth Galashiels Hawick Innerleithen Jedburgh Kelso Lauder Melrose Peebles Selkirk Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

(3) Donantions & Legacies - - - - (1) - - - - - (1) (1) (3)

(120) Investments - (2) - (8) (23) - (49) (14) (13) (1) (26) (12) (148)

(287) Charitable Activities - - - - (102) - - - (11) - (55) (64) (232)

(443) Unrealised Gain On Investments - - - - - - - - - - - - -

(87) Revaluation Of Fixed Assets (30) - - (163) (49) (94) (35) (182) (114) (16) (260) (365) (1,308)

- 

Recognition Of Fixed Assets & 

Investments - - - - - - - - - - - - -

(940) (30) (2) - (171) (175) (94) (84) (196) (138) (17) (342) (442) (1,691)

Expenditure

628 Raising Funds 10 - - 56 151 31 12 61 64 4 128 151 668

92 Charitable Activities - - - - 30 - 22 2 2 - 11 10 77

54 Other: Governance Costs - 1 - 3 13 - 4 2 11 - 9 12 55

0 Unrealised Loss On Investments - - - - - - 1 - - - 1 1 3

774 10 1 0 59 194 31 39 65 77 4 149 174 803

(166) (Surplus) / Deficit carry forward (20) (1) - (112) 19 (63) (45) (131) (61) (13) (193) (268) (888)

2021/22

  

Page 169



Common Good Funds 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 111 

 

 
 
Balance Sheet 
 

Restated

2020/21

Total Coldstream Duns Eyemouth Galashiels Hawick Innerleithen Jedburgh Kelso Lauder Melrose Peebles Selkirk Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current Assets

13,509 Tangible Assets 286 - 2 737 4,387 546 552 1,008 1,681 38 1,073 4,048 14,358

2,857 Investments - 17 - 161 460 - 953 283 251 10 507 260 2,902

24

Long Term Loan to  Third 

Party - - - - - - 5 - - - - - 5

Current Assets

57 Sundry Debtors - - - 1 23 - 4 1 10 - 12 8 59

430 Short Term Investments - 2 - 16 141 - 100 37 16 9 79 57 457

Current Liabilities

(28) Sundry Creditors - - - - (12) - - - (11) - (9) (12) (44)

16,849 Net Assets 286 19 2 915 4,999 546 1,614 1,329 1,947 57 1,662 4,361 17,737

Financed by

(3,980) Restricted Income Funds (122) (19) (1) (331) (746) (135) (1,065) (321) (269) (37) (639) (334) (4,019)

(12,869) Revaluation Reserve (164) - (1) (584) (4,253) (411) (549) (1,008) (1,678) (20) (1,023) (4,027) (13,718)

(16,849) Total Reserves (286) (19) (2) (915) (4,999) (546) (1,614) (1,329) (1,947) (57) (1,662) (4,361) (17,737)

2021/22

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



 
 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 112 

 
 

Group Accounts  
 
 
Introduction to the Group Accounts 
 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the Code) and relevant 
accounting standards, require local authorities to consider all their interests in other organisations and to 
prepare a full set of group financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiary and associated 
entities and joint arrangements.  The Local Authority group is defined as the Local Authority and its interests 
in entities which would be regarded as its subsidiaries or associates or joint arrangements were it subject to 
the Companies Act.  The Code requires that group financial statements include the following statements along 
with the appropriate notes: 
 

 a Group Movement in Reserves Statement 

 a Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 a Group Balance Sheet 

 a Group Cash Flow Statement 
 

 The Group Accounts and Notes are set out on pages 112 to 120. 

The Group Accounts for 2020/21 have been restated to reflect the change in the Council’s management 
reporting structure during 2021/22. 

For the purposes of consolidation and incorporation within the Local Authority group, the Council has 
consolidated the following entities: 
 
Subsidiaries 
Subsidiary entities are those over which the Council has been deemed to have control.  The following bodies 
have been recognised as subsidiaries of Scottish Borders Council: 
 

 Common Good Funds 

 Charitable Trust Funds 

 Bridge Homes LLP 

 Live Borders 
 
The Council is the sole trustee of the Common Good Funds and the Charitable Trust Funds and summary 
financial results for these entities appear on pages 109 to 111. Bridge Homes LLP, a partnership between the 
Council and Scottish Futures Trust Investments Ltd, created to invest in residential property and in which the 
Council is entitled to 99.999% of the profits and equally exposed to 99.999% of the losses, is also treated as 
a subsidiary body. 
 
Live Borders, an integrated trust providing culture and leisure services on behalf of Scottish Borders Council 
was established on 1 April 2016. Services provided by the trust include Arts, Libraries, Archives, Museums, 
and Galleries, Sport and Leisure facilities.  
 
Live Borders accounts can be obtained from their Headquarters at Melrose Road, Galashiels, TD1 2DU. 
 
Lowood Tweedbank Limited, has been excluded from the Group accounts in 2020/21 and 2021/22 .This is in 
relation to the materiality threshold as agreed with Audit Scotland. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 171



Group Accounts 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 113 

 

 
Associates 
Associate entities are those over which the Council has been deemed to exercise significant influence.  The 
following body has been recognised as an associate of Scottish Borders Council: 
 
Jedburgh Leisure Facilities Trust, has been excluded from the Group accounts in 2020/21 and 2021/22.This 
is in accordance to the materiality threshold as agreed with Audit Scotland. 
 

 
Joint Arrangements 
Joint arrangements can be either joint operations or joint ventures.  Joint operations are joint arrangements 
where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the 
liabilities, relating to the arrangement.  Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have 
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The following body has been 
recognised as a Joint Venture. 
 

 Scottish Borders Health and Social Care Partnership 
 
The Council commenced a joint arrangement with NHS Borders to establish The Scottish Borders Health and 
Social Care Partnership on 6 February 2016. This is a partnership set up to bring about change in the way 
health and social care services are planned, commissioned and delivered from 1 April 2016. 
 
The Board`s draft Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement show gross expenditure of £218.076m 
and income of £234.432m for the year of which £89.243m and £81.066m has been recognised in the SBC 
Accounts.  In the Group Accounts, 50% of the net result and net assets has been included on the equity basis 
method. Both the Balance Sheet and Movement in Reserves Statement show a net position of £26.595m for 
2021/22. 
 
The financial statements for the Scottish Borders Health and Social Care Partnership are available from the 
Council Headquarters. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 172



Group Movement In Reserves Statement 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 114 

 
 

Movement in reserves during 2020/21 - Restated

Scottish 

Borders Council 

Usable 

Reserves

Group Entities 

Usable 

Reserves

Total Group 

Usable 

Reserves

Scottish 

Borders Council 

Unusable 

Reserves

Group Entities 

Unusable 

Reserves

Total Group 

Unusable 

Reserves

Total Group 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01/04/2020 (30,121) (10,762) (40,883) (95,965) (13,067) (109,032) (149,915)

Movement in reserves during 2020/21

Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (14,211) (5,145) (19,356) 56,822 2,189 59,011 39,655 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (3,933) (517) (4,450) 3,933 517 4,450 - 

Increase or Decrease in 2020/21 (18,144) (5,662) (23,806) 60,755 2,706 63,461 39,655 

Balance at 31/03/2021 carried forward (48,265) (16,424) (64,689) (35,209) (10,361) (45,570) (110,259)  

 
 
Movement in reserves during 2021/22

Scottish 

Borders Council 

Usable 

Reserves

Group Entities 

Usable 

Reserves

Total Group 

Usable 

Reserves

Scottish 

Borders Council 

Unusable 

Reserves

Group Entities 

Unusable 

Reserves

Total Group 

Unusable 

Reserves

Total Group 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01/04/2021 (48,265) (16,424) (64,689) (35,209) (10,361) (45,570) (110,259)

Movement in reserves during 2021/22

Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (1,763) (6,881) (8,644) (145,640) (2,602) (148,242) (156,886)

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (14,454) (677) (15,131) 14,454 677 15,131 - 

Increase or Decrease in 2021/22 (16,217) (7,558) (23,775) (131,186) (1,925) (133,110) (156,886)

Balance at 31/03/2022 carried forward (64,482) (23,982) (88,464) (166,395) (12,286) (178,681) (267,145)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173



Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 115 

 
 

 

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure 

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

88,556 (17,914) 70,642 Infrastructure & Environment 91,231 (15,845) 75,386

49,488 (7,587) 41,901 Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships 49,274 (6,040) 43,234

135,188 (82,934) 52,254 Social Work & Practice 141,806 (79,852) 61,954

112,841 (21,333) 91,507 Education & Lifelong Leatning 120,890 (21,208) 99,682

41,228 (26,480) 14,747 Resilient Communities 40,906 (24,405) 16,501

19,698 (3,357) 16,341 Finance & Corporate Governance 25,853 (6,094) 19,759

8,089 (236) 7,853 People Performance & Change 9,164 (653) 8,510

773 (290) 483 Common Good 803 (235) 568

182 (23) 159 Trust Funds 313 (43) 270

- (3,249) (3,249) Share of Operating Results Of Associates & Joint Ventures - (8,178) (8,178)

456,041 (163,404) 292,637 Services provided by the Council 480,239 (162,554) 317,686

456,041 (163,404) 292,637 Net Cost of Services 480,239 (162,554) 317,686

2,099 (2,100) (1) Roads Trading Operation (Surplus)/Deficit (External) 5,427 (5,170) 257

Other Operating Expenditure

2,316 (1,915) 401 (Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Assets 1,465 (730) 735

Financing & Investment Income and Expenditure

11,943 - 11,943 Interest Payable & Similar Charges 10,144 - 10,144

- (365) (365) Interest Receivable & Similar Income - (398) (398)

17,902 (14,524) 3,378 Net Interest Expense on the Net Defined Benefit Liability 19,426 (14,853) 4,573

- - - Share Of Associates & Joint Ventures Interest Payable - - - 

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

- (211,566) (211,566) Revenue Support Grant - (211,149) (211,149)

- (23,388) (23,388) Non-Domestic Rates Pool for Scotland - (26,668) (26,668)

- (60,215) (60,215) Council Tax - (61,023) (61,023)

- (30,896) (30,896) Capital Grants and Contributions - (42,522) (42,522)

(18,072) (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services (8,365)

Restated

2020/21 2021/22

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 174



Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 116 

 

 

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure 

Gross 

Expenditure
£'000

Net 

Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(18,072)
(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services

(8,365)

(3,170) (Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of Non Current Assets (60,418)

(828) Any Other (Gains) Or Losses 2,267

61,725 Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension assets/liabilities (90,370)

57,727 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (148,521)

39,655 Total Comprehensive (Income)/Expenditure (156,886)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 175



Group Balance Sheet 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 117 

 

 

Restated

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Property Plant and Equipment

422,195    Other Land and Buildings 470,217

27,545    Vehicle, Plant, Furniture & Equipment 30,823

133,554    Infrastructure 136,316

5,425    Surplus Assets 6,725

42,600    Assets Under Construction 53,247

1,039 Heritage Assets 1,039

1,182 Intangible Assets 882

4,915 Long Term Investments 4,960

5,120 Investments In Associates & Joint Ventures 13,298

1,123 Long Term Debtors 1,111

644,698 Long Term Assets 718,618

0 Intangible Assets - Current -

1,673 Inventories 1,507

56,206 Short Term Debtors 61,800

(11,948)    less Impairment of Receivables (12,530)

30,086 Cash and Cash Equivalents 48,601

76,016 Current Assets 99,378

- Bank Overdrafts -

(28,513) Short Term Borrowing (4,836)

(51,976) Short Term Creditors (61,220)

(134) Provisions (148)

(80,623) Current Liabilities (66,204)

(192,280) Long Term Borrowing (210,490)

(89,115) Deferred Liabilities (82,161)

(3,438) Provisions (3,389)

(23,348) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (25,393)

(308,181) Long Term Liabilities (321,433)

331,910 Net Assets excluding pension liability 430,359

(221,652) Pension Liability (163,214)

110,259 Net Assets/(Liabilities) including pension liability 267,145  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 176



Group Balance Sheet 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 118 

 

 

 

Restated Financed By:

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Useable Reserves 

(9,929) Capital Fund (10,816)

(36,441) General Fund Balance (51,991)

(362) Property Maintenance Fund (51)

(1,532) Insurance Fund (1,623)

(16,424) Share of Group Entities Usable Reserves (23,982)

Unusable Reserves

(152,897) Capital Adjustment Account (174,125)

6,122 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 5,814

(110,788) Revaluation Reserve (164,118)

215,666 Pension Reserve 159,481

6,687 Employee Statutory Adjustment Account 6,552

(10,361) Share of Group Entities Unusable Reserves (12,286)

(110,259) Total Reserves (267,145)  

 

The audited accounts were authorised for issue on 24 November 2022. 

 

 

 
Suzy Douglas CPFA 
Acting Chief Financial Officer 

 

  

Page 177



Group Cash Flow Statement 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 119 

 

 

Restated

2020/21

£'000 £'000 £'000

(18,072) Net (Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (8,366)

3,249

Adjustments for associate entities included in the net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services that are 

excluded from the group cash flow statement 8,178

(51,177) Adjustments to net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements (79,479)

31,064 Adjustments for items included in the net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services that are investing and 

financing activities
43,309

(34,936) Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (36,358)

Investing Activities

51,967 Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible assets 58,730

(1,915) Proceeds from  PP&E, investment property and intangible assets (730)

195 Purchase/(Disposal) of short & long term investments 160

(23,771) Other Items which are Investing Activities (51,993)

26,476 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 6,167

Financing Activities

(15,031) Cash received from loans & other borrowing (9,736)

5,591

Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases and on-balance sheet PFI 

contracts 7,198

769 Repayments of short and long term borrowing 15,000

(168) Other items which are financing activities (787)

(8,839) Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 11,675

(17,299) Net (Increase) or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (18,516)

12,787 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 30,085

30,086 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the reporting period 48,601

(17,299) Movement (18,516)

2021/22

 

 

 

  

Page 178



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 120 

 

Notes to the Group Accounts 
 

   Note 1 Group Accounting Policies 

The Financial Statements in the Group Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Council’s 
accounting policies set out in pages 54 to 63. 
 
The Council has accounted for its interest in each subsidiary using the acquisition method of accounting.  The 
Council’s interests in associates and joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting. Where applicable, consolidation adjustments have been made to eliminate inter-group 
transactions. 
 
Note 2 Group Cash Flow 
 
A reconciliation between the Group Income and Expenditure Statement and the revenue activities in the Group 
Cash Flow Statement is provided in the table below: 
 

Restated

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 Reconciliation to General Fund Surplus £'000

(18,072) Net (Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (8,366)

3,249

Adjustments for associate entities included in the net (surplus) or 

deficit on the provision of services that are excluded from the 

group cash flow statement 8,178

Adjustments to (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 

for non cash movements

(32,418) Depreciation (34,924)

(4,216) Impairment & Revaluation Loss through I & E (7,143)

(34) Amortisation of intangible assets (398)

(14,665) Movement in pension liability (31,932)

(401) Gain/Loss on carrying amounts of assets disposed (735)

663 Net movement in inventories charged to I & E (167)

(2,710) Net movement in debtors charged to I & E 6,745

2,504 Net movement in creditors charged to I & E (10,813)

100 Net movement in provisions charged to I & E (112)

(51,177) (79,479)

Adjustments for items included in the net (surplus) or deficit on 

the provision of services that are investing and financing 

activities

30,896 Capital grants received 42,522

168

Any other items received for the financing of capital or to meet principal 

repayments which have been recognised through the I & E 787

31,064 43,309

(38,185) Net Cash Outflow / (Inflow) from Operating Activities (44,536)  
 
 
Note 3 Financial Impact of Group Consolidation 
 
The inclusion of the group entities has an impact on the Council’s single entity position on provision of 
services.  The surplus of £147.403m on the Council’s single entity Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement becomes a group surplus of £156.887m.  The net asset position of the Council`s single entity 
Balance Sheet of £230.877m becomes £267.146m on group consolidation.  Overall, the Group Balance 
Sheet position has increased by £156.887m from 2020/21 largely as a result of the decrease in pension 
liability and increase in fixed asset valuations

Page 179



 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 121 

 

 

Glossary of Terms  
 
We recognise that financial statements by their nature need to include some technical terms and the purpose 
of this section is to explain some of the more important ones. 
 
Aggregate External Finance (AEF): this is the term given to the total of funding provided by the Scottish 
Government. It comprises three parts, which are explained below; 
  

 Revenue Support Grant (RSG): this is the largest part of AEF. It is a block grant which helps finance 
the overall cost of Council services. 

 

 Non-Domestic Rate Income (NDRI): local businesses pay rates based on a rateable value 
determined by the Assessor and a rate poundage determined by the Scottish Government. The 
Council pays rates levied into a national pool and receives income from the pool based on a formula.  

 

 Specific Grants: the final part of AEF. As the name suggests these grants are paid to support specific 
services/activities and can enable the Scottish Government to more directly influence service 
provision than with a block grant.  

 
Amortisation: similar to depreciation but applied to intangible assets i.e. the measurement of the value of an 
asset used during the year. 
 
Budget: the budget sets out what the Council intends to spend and how it will be paid for. Budgets are 
prepared and approved before the start of a financial year for both revenue and capital expenditure. Each 
financial year budget is part of a 5 year Revenue or a 10 year Capital Financial Plan. 
 
Capital Adjustment Account: provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which assets 
are depreciated and financed.   
 
Capital Borrowing: this is the element of the Capital Programme not financed by capital and revenue 
resources (i.e. capital receipts, capital grants and revenue contributions). The capital expenditure will give rise 
to a borrowing need; however it is important to note that the need may not result in actual external borrowing, 
and the decision may be taken to finance borrowing from within the Council. 
 
Capital Expenditure: spending on assets of lasting value, whose useful life exceeds the current year. 
Examples are schools, major road works, improving social work and leisure facilities.  Capital expenditure is 
financed principally from borrowing but can also be funded by capital receipts, grants and revenue 
contributions (CFCR). 
 
Capital Financed From Current Revenue (CFCR): this is expenditure on capital assets that is financed from 
the revenue account in the current financial year. 
 
Capital Fund: Established under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975. This fund is credited with the 
receipts of property sales and developer contributions. It can be used to fund capital expenditure or make 
payments of loan principal. 
 
Capital Grants: grants from bodies such as the European Union and Scottish Government can fund capital 
projects as can contributions from other organisations. 
 
Capital Receipt: a capital receipt arises when the Council sells a surplus asset, e.g. a piece of land or a 
building and this can be used to finance further capital expenditure or repay existing debt. 
 
Carrying Amount: the value at which an asset or liability is shown on the Balance Sheet.

Page 180



Glossary of Terms 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 122 

 

Common Good Funds: have been accumulated by former burghs since their foundation from the 12th 
Century onwards. They are held by the Council as custodian for the benefit of residents of the 12 former 
burghs, Coldstream, Duns, Eyemouth, Innerleithen, Galashiels, Hawick, Jedburgh, Kelso, Lauder, 
Melrose, Peebles and Selkirk. They are administered by the Council to have regard to the interest of 
the inhabitants of the area to which the Common Good formally related. All of the Common Good Funds 
are presently registered as a single charity with OSCR. 
 
Component Accounting: where fixed assets are valued and depreciated on the basis of individual 
components i.e. roof, heating system etc, opposed to one overall value. 
 
Contingent Liability: a possible future financial obligation which is reported as a specific note to the 
annual accounts because it cannot be judged as probable enough to warrant a provision. 
 
Council Tax: the major part of locally raised revenue income, based on a property being classified into 
one of eight bands. In the interests of consistency all Councils determine their Council Tax at the Band 
D level and the charges for properties in all other bands are expressed as a proportion of Band D. 
 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS):  Replaced Council Tax Benefit which stopped on 1 April 
2013 as part of the welfare reform programme.  CTRS is a reduction on your council tax that you may 
be entitled to if you are on a low income.  Responsibility for assisting those who need help to pay their 
Council Tax in Scotland now sits with the Scottish Government and Scottish Local Authorities.    
 
Current Assets: assets of a short-term nature, e.g. short term investments, inventories, short term 
debtors and cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Current Liabilities: liabilities expected to be due within the next year, e.g. short term creditors, short-
term borrowing and provisions. 
 
Depreciation: the measure of the value of a fixed asset used during the year. 
 
Fair Value: is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. 
 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account: an account that enables the effects of accounting for 
financial instruments to be neutral in terms of Council Tax. 
 
General Fund: the principal usable reserve of the Council that covers most areas of activity, the main 
exclusions being SBc Contracts and the Pension Fund. 
 
Group Accounts: statements that reflect the Council’s interest in any subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures.  
 
Heritage Assets:  assets preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, 
environmental or historical association.  It applies to assets held and maintained by the authority 
principally for the contribution to knowledge and culture. 
 
IAS19: the International Accounting Standard (IAS) which lays down the disclosure and reporting 
requirements for Retirement Benefits paid from our Pension Fund. 
 
IFRS: The Council’s accounts are governed by International Financial Reporting Standards.  
 
Impairment: an asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
 
Infrastructure: assets of a general and supporting nature, e.g. the roads and bridges network, car 
parks, pathways, sea defences and water/drainage systems. 
 
Insurance Fund: a fund that meets the costs of premiums for a range of external insurance cover, 
meets the cost of claims not covered by external insurance, and receives contributions from Council 
services. 

Page 181



Glossary of Terms 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 123 

 

Interest on Revenue Balances: the Council’s loans fund acts as an internal banker and pays interest 
where it has utilised any internal credit balances, e.g. the General Fund Reserves. 

 
Inventories: materials etc. that have been purchased but not yet consumed in the delivery of Council 
services. 
 
Loan Charges: sometimes called debt charges, these are the annual repayments of principal, interest 
and expenses in respect of loans taken to finance capital expenditure. 
 
Loans Fund: established as part of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975, the Council’s Loans 
Fund acts as an internal banker and makes use of internal funds as well as controlling the Council’s 
external borrowing needs. These balances represent the sums held in the Loans Fund on behalf of 
various funds.  The Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975 has been replaced by The Local Authority 
(Capital Finance and Accounting) (Scotland) Regulations 2016. 
 
Long-Term Borrowing: are sums borrowed to finance capital expenditure and not yet repaid, nor due 
to be repaid within one year. The majority of this is borrowed from the Public Works Loan Board and 
can be for periods of up to 60 years. 
 
Pension Fund: under relevant legislation the Council administers a Pension Fund for its employees 
(other than teachers, who are members of a national scheme) and employees of certain other ‘Admitted 
Bodies’. It is what is known as a ‘funded scheme’ whereby all monies not immediately required to pay 
pensions and benefits are invested.  
 
Provision: a liability of uncertain timing or extent for which an estimate must be included in our annual 
accounts. 
 
Ratios: financial analysis tools to support the evaluation of the financial health of the organisation. 
 
Rents, Fees and Charges: add in charges for specific service; examples include home care charges, 
commercial rents, hall lets and library fines. 
 
Reserves: sometimes referred to as ‘Balances’ they are the accumulated surpluses/deficits generated 
by the various funds. They are split between ‘usable’ and ‘unusable’ reserves. 
 

Usable Reserves: Capital Fund, General Fund Balance, Property Maintenance Fund and 
Insurance Fund. 

 
Unusable Reserves: Capital Adjustment Account, Financial Instruments Adjustment Account, 
Revaluation Reserve, Pension Reserve and STACA Statutory Mitigation Account. 

 
Revaluation Reserve: the balance represents the difference between the depreciated revalued 
amount and the depreciated historic cost of fixed assets at 1 April 2007.  The Revaluation Reserve 
contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. 
Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 

 
Revenue Expenditure: the day to day recurring costs of providing services. It includes wages and 
salaries, property costs such as power and light, transport costs and supplies and services. It also 
includes the annual repayment of loans which have financed capital expenditure. Revenue expenditure 
is always paid for in full as and when it happens either from Council Tax, rents, fees, charges, grants 
and Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and distributions from the national Non-Domestic Rates Pool from 
the Scottish Government. 
 
Significant Trading Operations: services provided in a competitive environment and which are 
charged for on a basis other than a straightforward recharge of costs, e.g. quoted lump sums, fixed 
rates etc. 
 
Trust Funds: The Council administers 116 trust funds and bequests, held for the benefit of specific 
functions or groups or beneficiaries, 77 of which have charitable status and have been reorganised into 
5 charities registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator (OSCR). 

Page 182



Glossary of Terms 

Scottish Borders Council | Annual Accounts 124 

 

 
Virement: because circumstances change, budgets need to remain flexible.  Virement is the approved 
transfer of resources from one area of the budget to another, the creation of new budgets to reflect 
additional income and related expenditure or the transfer of budget from one financial year to the next.

Page 183



 

 

 

Page 184



 

Page 185

Agenda Item 8d



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

1 

 

CONTENTS 

  Page 

Section 1 Introduction  

 Chairman’s Report 4 

 Management Commentary 5 

 Key Trends 12 

Section 2 Governance  

 Scheme Administration 14 

 Scheme Governance 14 

 Risk Management 16 

 Training Policy & Practice Statement 17 

 Annual Governance Statement 18 

 Annual Governance Compliance Statement 24 

Section 3 Financial Statements  

 Statement of Responsibilities 30 

 Fund Account 32 

 Net Assets Statement 33 

 Notes to the Accounts 34 

Section 4 Administration  

 Administration Strategy 64 

 Administration Performance 64 

 Fund Membership 67 

 Communications Policy and Performance 68 

Section 5 Funding  

 Funding Strategy Statement 72 

 Actuarial Statement 73 

Page 186



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

2 

Section 6 Investment  

 Statement of Investment Principles 76 

 Investment Strategy 77 

 Investment Performance 81 

 Responsible Investment  83 

Section 7 Independent Auditor’s Report 87 

   

Contacts  92 

   

Page 187



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 1 

 

 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Page 188



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

4 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

Introduction 
Welcome to the Annual Report and Accounts for the 
Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund for the year 
ended 31 March 2022.   This Annual Report has 
been produced to provide Elected Members, 
Scheme Members and Employers and other 
interested parties with information concerning the 
administration and performance of the Fund in 
financial year 2021/22. 
 
Highlights of the Year  
Pension Fund Committee/Pension Board 
The Fund has continued to strengthen its 
governance and stewardship of the Fund over the 
year.  This work was recognized at the LAPF 
Investments Awards which saw the Fund winning 
the LGPS Fund of Year (assets under £2.5bn).   
 
The Joint meetings of the Committee and Board 
continued as virtual meetings during 2021/22 
ensuring all necessary governance and decision 
making continued.  Most Members fully engaged 
successfully with new ways of working online, 
including meeting their individual training 
requirements. 
 
The Investment and Performance Sub-Committee, 
met all of the Fund’s investment managers during 
the year, which allowed the committee full scrutiny 
and oversight of the assets under management. 
 
Funding 
The Fund’s 2020 Triennial valuation resulted in a 
funding position of 110% and contributions rates 
maintained for the first 2 years, despite uncertainties 
arising from court cases, such as the McCloud 
judgement and the LGPS cost cap mechanism.  The 
Fund continues to monitor this position and the 
effect of the changes required to resolve the 
judgements.  The strong performance of the Fund’s 
investments has resulted in this continued strong 
funding position. 
 
Investment Assets  
The volatile market conditions caused by the 
continuation of Covid-19 and the growing political 
conditions with Russia has resulted in very difficult 
market environments.  Despite this the fund has 

grown by £50m with an overall positive 5.9% 
performance. 
 
Statement of Responsible Investment 
The Committee believes that a positive approach to 
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 
issues can positively affect the investment 
performance of the Fund.  The Fund fully reviewed 
and updated its policy, to include key priorities and 
improved monitoring.  The Fund also continues to 
monitor and work with all its managers to ensure 
ESG is fully integrated into all their investment 
decisions.   
 
The Fund undertook a full strategic asset review 
during 2021/22 with responsible investment being a 
key focus of the review.  The review resulted in the 
transition of its global equities with Baillie Gifford 
into their Global Alpha Paris Aligned fund and to 
change the passive equity allocation with UBS to 
ESG focused passive fund.  These changes add 
further to the Funds move to increased responsible 
investment.  The Fund also continued to support the 
Climate Action 100+ initiative, as a signatory, which 
is an initiative actively working to ensure the Paris 
Agreement on climate change targets are met.  
 
Pensions Administration 
Key targets have been met by the Pension 
Administration team with all payments processed on 
time and annual benefit statements issued within 
the required timescales.  The implementation of the 
Member Self Service portal is a welcome addition 
for scheme members which enhances 
communication and access to real time quotes with 
no detrimental impact on administrative resources. 
 
Covid-19 continued to bring challenges, which the 
service has met, with good progress made on the 
delivery of actions set out in the Pension Fund’s 
business plan.  Updates were made to the 
Communication Policy and Pensions Admin 
Strategy to reflect this and the implementation of the 
new portal and website. 
 
Acknowledgement 
I would like to thank the Members of the Pension 
Fund Committee, Pension Fund Board, officers of 
the Council, our investment managers, Isio and the 
Fund Actuary Hymans Robertson for their hard work 
during the year and their ongoing commitment to 
ensuring the Fund’s continued success.   

 

 
Chairman, Pension Fund Committee 

  Scottish Borders Council  
  

Page 189



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

5 

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY SUMMARY 

OVERVIEW OF FUND BUSINESS 

Under the statutory provision of the Local Government Pension Scheme Scottish Borders Council 

is designated as an “Administering Authority” and is required to operate and maintain a pension 

fund – Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”). 

 

The Fund is used to pay pensions, lump sum benefits and other entitlements to scheme 

members and their dependants.  Contributions to the Fund are made by employee members and 

by participating employers.  The Fund also receives income from its investments, which includes 

equities, bonds, property, infrastructure, private credit and diversified alternatives. 

 

The Fund operates under the regulations of the Local Government Pension Scheme, which is a 

public-sector pension arrangement.  Scheme membership is made up of active, deferred and 

pensioner members.  To be able to join the scheme, a person must be employed by a relevant 

employer and not eligible to join another public-sector pension scheme.  Teachers are not 

included as they have a separate national pension scheme. 

 

STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES 

Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund’s primary aim is “to provide for members, pension and 

lump sum benefits on their retirement or for their dependants, benefits on death before or after 

retirement, on a defined benefits basis”.  All the longer term policies, objectives and strategies of 

the Fund reflect this aim.   

 

The Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Committee agree all policies and strategies. Scrutiny 

of these decisions are provided by Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Board.  All key 

policies and strategies are located on the Fund’s website.  

 

KEY NUMBERS OF THE FUND 

 Total membership of 12,178 (11,664 in 2020/21) 

 Total pension paid £25.4m (£25.1m 2020/21) 

 Total contributions received £22.6m (£20.6m 2020/21) 

 Total investments held £909.4m (£859.7m 2020/21) 

 Investment performance of 5.9% for 2021/22 (20.1% 2020/21) 

 

GOVERNANCE 

The Pension Fund Committee aims to ensure the Fund is managed effectively, transparently and 

in compliance with regulations.  A review of the governance arrangements and performance is 

undertaken on an annual basis.  The review has confirmed the Fund is fully compliant with the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 requirements. 

 

As required within the Local Government Pension Scheme (Government)(Scotland) regulations 

the Fund has an established Pension Fund Board which meets jointly with the Pension Fund 

Committee.  The Pension Fund Board is responsible for assisting the Fund in securing 

compliance with the regulations and other legislation relating to the administration and 

governance of the Fund.  The Pension Fund Board has 4 members representing the employers 

and 4 trade union members representing the employees. 

  

Page 190



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

6 

The Fund, annually, agrees a three year business plan which sets out the action plan to deliver 

the key work areas identified to ensure objectives continue to be met and any new legislative 

requirements are built into work plans.  The actions are monitored and reported to the Joint 

Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fund Board.  The key actions completed in 2021/22 

were:- 

 

 Full review and update of the Funding Strategy Statement with inclusion of new cessation 

policy and correct employer contribution rates received. 

 Completion of the agreed training programme for all members of the Pension Fund 

Committee and Pension Fund Board. 

 Full review of Strategic Asset Allocation completed and implementation commenced. 

 Completion of a procurement exercise for ESG passive equity manager and 

Infrastructure manager per the approved strategic asset allocation. 

 Implementation and roll out of Members Self Service. 

 Review completed of Responsible investment policy further enhancing the Funds 

commitment to responsible investing. 

 Review completed of services provided by IT providers to ensure data is secure and 

adheres to cyber security requirements. 

Due to limited access to the office due to Covid-19 the review of Employer covenants has been 

re-scheduled to be completed by December 2022.  The finalisation of the GMP reconciliation has 

also been delayed due to the Pensions Administration team processing the recalculation of 

Pensions and Lump Sums following the late settlement of the SJC Pay Award for Scottish 

Borders Council employees, which was backdated to January 2021.  There have been no further 

legislative changes announced in relation to the remedy for McCloud; the Fund awaits 

confirmation of the requirements before developing an action plan to avoid repeated requests for 

information from the Employers. 

 

The Fund has agreed the following key areas of development and improvement within its 

2022/23 Business Plan. 

 Review of all forms of communication material. 

 Accuracy of Pension records including requirements for pension dashboard 

 System improvement to support home working 

 Submission of application for the Stewardship Code. 

 Commence preparation for 2023 triennial valuation  

 Review of the Funds strategic asset allocation following the 31 March 2020 

valuation. 

 Implementation of approved Responsible Investment policy and its monitoring 

requirements. 

 Review and implementation of The Pension Regulator’s “Single Code”. 

 

  

Page 191



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

7 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Awareness and management of risks is a key control of the Funds strategic and operational 

activities.  The Pension Fund is committed to a strong control environment to ensure risks are 

identified, understood, managed and monitored appropriately. 

 

A full risk register is maintained by the Fund in line with CIPFA guidance and the Council’s 

approach to risk management.  Each risk identified is assessed for likelihood and impact with no 

controls in place and after controls are applied. Further controls are identified and progress 

monitored and reported to the Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fund Board on a 

quarterly basis as part of Risk update reports.  The Fund currently has 51 identified risks spread 

over Assets & investments, Employer, Resource & skill, Liability, Administrative, Regulatory & 

Compliance and Reputation.  There is one risk remaining as a red assessment at 31 March 2022 

which is “Legislation and other regulatory framework changes impacting on the Fund”.  The Fund 

is managing and monitoring this risk by ensuring it actively participates in all consultations and 

keeps abreast of all legislative and regulatory changes. Further information on risk management 

and risks can be found on page 16. 

 

ADMINISTRATION AND MEMBERSHIP 

The Pension Administration Strategy sets out the performance standards required by both 

Scottish Borders Council, as the administrating authority and all employers of the Fund.  The 

performance of the Fund against these standards is reported on an annual basis to the Joint 

Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fund Board.  Performance against key performance 

indicators were very good with all targets being met, all contributions being received on time and 

no regulatory breaches which required to be reported to the Pension Regulator. 

 

The Fund has paid pensions benefits of £25.4m during the year (£25.1m in 2020/21) and 

received contributions of £22.6m (£20.6m in 2020/21).  The Fund is a mature fund but has seen a 

small reversal of this position during 2021/22 due to an increase in transfers in during the period.  

The Fund had a net withdrawal of £0.1m (£6.5m in 2020/21) during the year which was funded 

from investment returns.  Throughout the Covid-19 crisis, pensions have been paid on time and 

contributions have been collected in accordance with scheme regulations in all instances.  The 

ability for staff to work from home has allowed the administration function to continue to perform 

as normal through the adoption of alternative working practices.  Further information on the 

performance of Pension Administration and the Pension Administration Strategy can be found in 

section 4. 

 

The maturing nature of the Fund is reflected in the membership numbers which are shown in the 

table over.  Overall members at 31 March 2022 increased during the year to 12,178 but active 

contribution members now only represent 39% of the membership compared to 43% at 31 March 

2017.  The continued decrease in active members has resulted in the Fund looking to 

investments to provide income to ensure cash is available to pay the pensions as they are due. 

 

Page 192



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

8 

 

 

COMMUNICATION 

The Fund’s Communication Policy seeks to ensure communication in an efficient manner to all 

stakeholders.  Communication is undertaken in a number of ways including the Fund website, 

annual newsletters and statements, emails, face to face meetings including video calls and 

telephone. 

 

Due to Covid-19 the annual employer meeting was once again held virtually with additional 

information being shared virtually.  Information was posted on the website for both members and 

employers including information on the Shared Costs AVC, pension increases, guidance on how 

to sign up to online access for payslips and all publications such as the Annual Report.  The 

deployment of the Member Self Service functionality in August 2021 added an additional 

dimension to the communication methods and allowed us to move towards a more digital 

approach in line with best practice and expectation of the scheme members.  A new version of 

the website was deployed during the year and following a drop off in visits over November and 

December there was a significant increase in the number of hits recorded on the website from 

January to March 2022. 

 

FUNDING 

The three yearly Actuarial Valuation for 31 March 2020 was completed in March 2021 which 

resulted in a funding position of 110% (114% at 31 March 2017) for the Fund.  The next formal 

valuation of the Fund will be as at 31 March 2023.  Interim monitoring has been undertaken 

between the 2020 valuation during the year.  Monitoring of the funding position is undertaken on 

a quarterly basis and reported to the Pension Fund Committee.   

 

Uncertainties caused by GMP reconciliation, the scheme cost cap mechanism and legal 

challenges on the grounds of age discrimination, arising from the McCloud judgement may have 

an impact on the funding position.  The 2020 valuation has included allowance for McCloud but 

not cost cap.  The impact of any changes required due to the cost cap mechanism are currently 

unknown and therefore not able to be valued.  

 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Membership Numbers

Contributing Deferred Pensioners/Dependents

Page 193



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

9 

The Funding Strategy Statement approved on 4 March 2021 sets out the approach to funding.  

Further detail can be found in section 5 of the report and the full version of the Funding Strategy 

Statement is available via the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund website. 

 

INVESTMENT RETURNS 

The Fund’s investment objective is to support the Funding Strategy by adopting an investment 

strategy and structure, which incorporates an appropriate balance between risk and return.  

Following the 2020 Triennial Valuation, the Fund approved a revised asset allocation, which is 

shown in the diagram below.  The revised asset allocation further spreads investments over a 

number of key asset markets, thus further spreading the risk and increasing the diversification of 

the Fund.  Good progress has been made during the year in the implementation of the revised 

strategy. 

  

 
 

The Fund’s investment returns delivered a positive return of 5.9% during 2021/22 (20.1% 

2020/21) against a benchmark of 10.6% (18.3% 2020/21) for the year to 31 March 2022.  .  

Overall the Fund’s assets increased by £50m from 31 March 2021.  The 2021/22 performance 

although under its benchmark was a positive return in volatile and difficult market conditions.  The 

table over details the 3 year annualised return which is also slightly under benchmark for 

2021/22. 

 

Page 194



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

10 

 
 

Investment markets during April 2021 and December 2021 saw equities markets delivering 

strong returns due to sustained economic recovery from Covid-19, supported by fiscal and 

monetary measures taken by governments and central banks.  However, some of these gains 

were lost during January to March 2022 following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. 

 

Global credit markets experienced a difficult 12 months.  UK investment grade credit 

performance was negative due to rising interest rate expectations and in light of heightened 

inflationary pressures.   

 

Work to fully implement the strategy has continued, with equity exposure decreasing and the 

funds being invested in longer term illiquid assets such as infrastructure and infrastructure debt.  

The Fund has increased its infrastructure and infrastructure debt investment over the year by 

£17m. 

 

The Strategy has also resulted in increased levels of investment income which has allowed the 

Fund to meet the increasing net withdrawal for dealing with payments to members. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

The Fund has an overriding obligation to act in the best interest of the scheme beneficiaries.  As 

part of this role the Fund believes that a positive approach to Environmental, Social and 

Corporate Governance issues can positively affect the financial performance of investments.   

The Fund has, in line with its Statement of Responsible Investment Policy, completed its third 

annual monitoring report on all the Fund’s managers.  16 out of the 17 managers are signatories 

of UNPRI with the one remaining manager only representing 0.3% of the Fund’s assets.  The 

Fund has during the year declined investment opportunities offered by managers not signatories 

of UNPRI. 

Page 195



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

11 

The Fund has also during 2021/22 undertaken a full review of its Responsible Investment Policy 

and on 17th March 2022 approved 6 key responsible investment objectives.  These are  

 SDG 13 – Climate Change 

 SDG 7 – Affordable & Clean Energy 

 SDG 1 – No Poverty 

 SDG 2 – Zero Hunger 

 SDG 3 – Good Health & Well-being 

 SDG 10 – Reduce Inequalities 

Work has commenced in the assessment and collection of data to allow reporting and monitoring 
of SDG13 Climate change and SDG 7 Affordable & clean energy.  Due to the lack of robust 
measurement criteria or data the remaining objectives will be reviewed regularly as data 
collection is developed. 

The Fund also as part of its Strategic Asset Allocation review invested £94m into a Global ESG 
passive fund with LGIM and transitioned £114m of global equities into the Baillie Gifford Global 
Alpha Paris Aligned.  Both investments further enhance the Fund’s commitment to responsible 
investment. 

The Fund continues to look for further opportunities to enhance its commitment to sustainability 

and climate change which will form key criterion in future investment and procurement decision 

making. 

CLIMATE ACTION 100+ 

The Fund, as a signatory, continued to support the work undertaken by Climate Action 100+ 

which is working with Investors and Fund Managers to reduce carbon emission and ensure the 

Paris Agreement targets are met.  The three main aims are:- 

 Holding the increase in the global average temperature to well below 2oC above pre-

industrial levels and to pursue efforts to limit the temperature increase to 1.5oC above pre-

industrial levels, recognising that this would significantly reduce the risks and impacts of 

climate change; 

 Increasing the ability to adapt to the adverse impacts of climate change and foster climate 

resilience and low greenhouse gas emissions development in a manner that does not 

threaten food production; and 

 Making finance flows consistent with a pathway towards low greenhouse gas emissions 

and climate-resilient development. 

Further information on the Fund’s investments can be found in section 6 of this report. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

The contribution and commitment of all elected members, employer and employee representatives 
and staff involved in ensuring the continued success of the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund, 
particularly during this most challenging of years, is gratefully acknowledged. 

 

 

 

Councillor David Parker  David Robertson  Suzanne Douglas CPFA 
Chair  Acting Chief Executive  Acting Chief Financial 

Officer 
Pension Fund Committee  Scottish Borders Council  Scottish Borders Council 

Page 196



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

12 

KEY TRENDS 

Membership 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Active Members 4,409 4,376 4,573 4,647 4,703 

Deferred Members 2,751 2,878 2,909 2,977 3,194 

Pensioners 3,507 3,707 3,856 4,040 4,281 

Total Members 10,667 10,961 11,338 11,664 12,178 

 

Investments 2017/18 
£000 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

Opening Net  
Value 

653,207 685,681 731,048 712,319 859,794 

Movement in year 32,475 45,367 (18,728) 147,475 49,587 

Closing Net Value 685,681 731,048 712,319 859,794 909,381 

Investment 
Income 

8,195 13,314 13,938 12,749 17,600 

Investment Fees 8,192 5,848 5,296 5,310 5,668 

 

 2017/18 
£000 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

Administrative 
costs 

(292) (391) (363) (352) (378) 

Oversight & 
Governance costs 

(233) (289) (263) (318) (349) 

Pensions Income 19,610 20,647 21,200 21,727 25,939 

Pensions 
Expenditure 

(22,189) (24,257) (26,555) (28,296) (26,071) 

Net Pensions 
Cash flow 

(2,579) (3,610) (5,355) (6,569) (132) 

 

 

  

Page 197



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

13 

 

 

SECTION 2 

 

 

 

 

 

GOVERNANCE 
 
 
 

  

Page 198



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

14 

SCHEME ADMINISTRATION 

The Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund (the Fund) is Part of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (LGPS) and is administered by Scottish Borders Council (the Administering Authority). 

The Fund is administered in accordance with the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 and the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (Governance)(Scotland) Regulations 2014.  The Fund 

adheres to Scottish Borders Council policies for managing conflicts of interests, codes of 

conducts and register of interests. 

Suzy Douglas – Acting Chief Financial Officer (Section 95 Officer) is responsible for the financial 

administration of the Fund. 

SCHEME GOVERNANCE 

The Governance structure of the Fund can be seen below including the roles each of the parties 

undertakes.  The Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board meet jointly four times a year, 

with papers and minutes being available one week prior to the meeting. 

Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Governance:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pension Fund Committee – is the main decision making body for the Fund and is comprised of 

seven Scottish Borders Council Councillors; the Convener, one member of the Executive, three 

members of the Administration and two members of the opposition. 

Pension Board – assists the Committee in securing compliance with the regulations, other 

legislation and requirements of the Pensions Regulator.  The Board consists of four employer 

representatives and four employee Union representatives. 

Investment & Performance Sub-Committee – develops investment strategy and monitors 

investment performance.  Consists of the Pension Fund Committee Members, one employer and 

one employee representative from the Pension Board. 

Actuary – provides advice on funding.  This role is currently undertaken by Hyman Robertson. 

Investment Consultant – provides advice on all aspects of investment objectives, strategy and 

monitoring.  This role is currently undertaken by Isio. 

Pension Fund 

Committee 
Pension 

Board 

Investment & 

Performance Sub 

Committee 

Investment Consultant 

Investment Managers 

Actuary 

Auditors 

Scottish Borders Council Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

Page 199



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

15 

Investment Managers – manage the investment portfolios. 

Auditors – provide audit assurance that the Fund is adhering to regulations, other legislation and 

requirements of the Pension Regulator.  The internal audit function is provided by Scottish 

Borders Council’s Internal Audit department and the external audit function is provided by Audit 

Scotland. 

Scottish Borders Council Audit & Scrutiny Committee – provides independent scrutiny of the 

Pension Fund Committee’s adequacy, effectiveness and systems of internal control. 

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 

Members of the Pension Fund Committee have a fiduciary responsibility to the Pension Fund 

members and employers that are similar to those holding office of trustee in the private sector.  

The Members of the Committee are responsible for the decision making of the Fund and hold 

meetings four times a year. The Committee is comprised of seven Councillors of Scottish Borders 

Council.  The membership is shown below:- 

                      Councillor David Parker - Chair          Councillor Simon Mountford – Vice Chair 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        Councillor Pam Brown            Councillor Watson McAteer        Councillor Carol Hamilton        
            from 26/5/2022 from 26/5/2022   

                           Councillor Donald Moffat                           Councillor Sandy Scott  

 

Councillor Jim Brown to 4/5/2022 

Councillor Gordon Edgar to 4/5/2022 

PENSION FUND BOARD 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Government)(Scotland) regulations require each 

administering authority to have a Pension Board, responsible for assisting the Fund in securing 

compliance with the regulations and other legislation relating to the administration and 

governance of the Fund. 

The Pension Board comprises an equal number of employee and employer representatives 

appointed by scheme employers and relevant trade unions. 

Page 200



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

16 

As at 31 March 2022 the Scottish Borders Council Pension Board membership comprised the 

following:- 

Employer Representatives: 

 Councillor Sandy Aitchison – Scottish Borders Council to 4/5/2022 

 Hazel Robertson – Borders College 

 Linda Ross – LIVE Borders to 5/4/2022 

 Anthony Daye – South of Scotland Enterprise 

 

Employee Representatives: 

 David Bell – UNITE 

 Malcolm Drysdale -  GMB 

 Marc Everett - UNISON 

 Kay Marie Hughes – UNISON 

In accordance with the regulations the Pension Fund Board meets jointly at the same place and 

time as the Pension Fund Committee to allow consideration of the same agenda, presentations 

and advice from external advisors.  The Chair of the Pension Fund Committee acts as Chair of 

the joint meeting.  The Pension Board meet separately, immediately following the joint meeting. 

INVESTMENT & PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE 

The Investment and Performance Sub Committee is responsible for making recommendations to 

the Pension Fund Committee on all areas of investment management including the Statement of 

Investment Principles and the management of Investment Managers.  The Sub-Committee 

comprises Pension Fund Committee Members and an employee and employer representative 

from the Pension Board.  The Sub-Committee meets three times a year. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Fund is committed to a strong control environment to ensure that risks are identified, 

understood, managed and monitored appropriately. 

The Risk Register for the Pension Fund has been developed in line with CIPFA guidance and the 

Council’s approach to risk management and assesses risk using a scoring methodology based 

on likelihood and impact.  

A full risk review was undertaken in June 2021.  All identified actions are monitored and reported 

on a quarterly cycle, with the addition of any new risks that have materialised during the 

intervening period from the full risk review.   

  

Page 201



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

17 

The headings under which the Council consider risk and the analysis of the level and number of 

risks are set out below: 

 Risk Assessment 

Risk Category 
Before Controls After Controls 

Red Amber Green Red Amber Green 

Asset & Investment  5 7 - - 9 3 

Employer  1 6 - - 2 5 

Resource & Skill - 5 - - 1 4 

Liability  2 5 - - 2 5 

Administrative  - 8 - - 1 7 

Regulatory & Compliance  4 2 - 1 3 2 

Reputation  2 4 - - 2 4 

Total Number of Risks 14 37 0 1 20 30 

 

– Low (1-5) 

The one risk remaining as a red assessment, as at 31 March 2022, is “Legislation and other 

regulatory framework changes impacting on the Fund”.  The Fund is managing and monitoring 

this risk by ensuring it actively participates in all consultations and keeps abreast of all legislative 

and regulatory changes. 

 

TRAINING POLICY & PRACTICE STATEMENT 

The Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff and members, charged with the 

financial administration and decision making of the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund, are 

fully equipped with the knowledge and skills to discharge the duties and responsibilities allocated 

to them.  It therefore seeks to utilise individuals who are both capable and experienced.  Training 

for staff and members of the Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board is provided to enable 

them to acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skill. 

The approved Training Policy adopts the key recommendations of the CIPFA Code of Practice on 

Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills. The Policy also reflects guidance issued 

by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency and The Pension Regulator concerning skills and 

knowledge requirements. 

The Training Policy applies to members of the Pension Fund Committee and the Pension Board.  

It requires all members to complete the Pension Regulator’s Toolkit within six months of joining 

the Board and to attend at least two training events a year.  The Policy also requires an annual 

training plan to be agreed.  The 2021/22 plan was approved on 10 June 2021 and was based on 

assessment returns completed by all members.  The table over shows all members attended two 

or more events.  The toolkit has been completed by all members of the Committee and seven 

members of the Board.   

RED -Very High (15-25) AMBER – High (6-12) 

 

GREEN – Low (1-5) 

Page 202



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

18 

Training attendance 

No of events Committee Members Board Members 

% Number % Number 

6 42.8% 3 - - 

5 - - 12.5% 1 

4 14.3% 1 25.0% 2 

3 14.3% 1 50.0% 4 

2 28.6% 2 12.5% 1 

 

The training covered the following areas: 

 Financial Markets and Investment Products 

 Investment Concepts and Terminology 

 Environmental, Governance and Social governance 

 Fund governance and Stewardship 

 Key Pension Administration issues 

 Regulatory Environment 

All members are also required to attend, as a minimum, two meetings of the joint Pension Fund 

Committee and Pension Board a year.  The table below shows Six Members of the Pension Fund 

Committee and seven members of the Pension Fund Board have met the attendance 

requirement for 2021/22 

No of meetings Committee Members Board Members 

% Number % Number 

5 meetings 57% 4 - - 

4 meetings 29% 2 63% 5 

3 meetings - - 25% 2 

2 meetings - - - - 

Less than 2 14% 1 12% 1 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 requires Administering 

Authorities to measure their governance arrangements set out against standards set by Scottish 

Ministers. These standards are established via a number of best practice principles.  

The key document summarising the governance arrangements for the Pension Fund is the 

Governance Policy and Compliance Statement (as amended on 29 June 2022) which is available 

on the Council’s website: Governance Policy and Compliance Statement 

  

Page 203

https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=172&MId=5515&Ver=4


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

19 

Governance Framework 
 
The key elements of the Pension Fund’s governance arrangements include: 
 
a) Scottish Borders Council is the Administering Authority for the Local Government Pension 

Scheme for the Scottish Borders geographical area. The Council has acknowledged its 

responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance (incorporating the 

systems of internal control) and this is reflected in the Council’s governance arrangements.  

b) The Council has delegated its responsibilities as Scheme Manager, to the Pension Fund 

Committee. The Members of the Committee act as quasi-trustees and oversee the 

management of the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund.  The overall responsibility of 

ensuring there is a sound system of governance remains with the Chief Executive. 

c) The Pension Board meets jointly with the Committee, and formalises the involvement of the 

employers and trade unions representing the membership. All members of the Committee and 

Board are covered equally by the Training Policy to give them full opportunity to contribute 

effectively. 

d) The approval of the Pension Fund Business Plan covering the period 2021/22 – 2023/24, to 

improve planning and monitoring of the performance of the Fund and to demonstrate the 

“Myners Principle” relating to effective decision making. The Business Plan supports the 

delivery of the objectives of the Fund which are to deliver a high quality pension service to 

members that is managed effectively, transparently and is compliant.  The Business Plan 

ensures actions are included to address issues raised in the Annual Governance Statement. 

e) The Pension Fund appoints professional advisers and external service providers, covering 

investment advisory, custodian and actuarial services. 

f) The system of internal financial control operates within a financial strategy and is based on a 

framework of delegation and accountability for officers and Councillors embodied in 

procedural standing orders, financial regulations, Scheme of Delegation and Scheme of 

Administration.  This is supported by a framework of administrative procedures including the 

segregation of duties, and regular financial management information.  In particular, the system 

includes comprehensive accounting systems that record income and expenditure for both 

member and investment activities, regular reviews of investment reports that measure 

investment returns against agreed benchmarks and targets, and independent performance 

reviews of the Fund by the investment consultant and performance monitoring service 

provider. 

g) The Pension Fund follows the Council’s approach to risk management and assesses risk 

using a scoring methodology and subjects the Risk Register to regular review. 

h) The Acting Chief Financial Officer (Section 95 Officer) for the Council is responsible for 

ensuring the proper administration of the financial affairs of the Pension Fund. This includes 

ensuring appropriate professional advice is sought and is given to the Pension Fund on all 

financial matters, keeping proper financial records and accounts, and maintaining an effective 

system of internal financial control.  The Fund complies with the CIPFA Statement on “The 

Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 2016.”  The Chief Executive left the 

Council on the 12th September 2022.  Interim arrangements were agreed by Scottish Borders 

Council on the 12th July 2022 and have been enacted, with an acting Chief Executive and an 

acting Chief Financial Officer appointed while the Council undertakes a formal recruitment 

process. 

Page 204



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

20 

i) The Director – People, Performance and Change is responsible for the pension benefit policy 

oversight and day-to-day administration of member benefits in accordance with statutory 

legislation and the approved Pension Administration Strategy. 

j) The Chief Officer Audit & Risk (Head of Internal Audit) provides an independent and objective 

annual opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance 

based on the delivery of an approved plan of systematic and continuous internal audit review 

in conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

k) The Pension Fund responds to findings and recommendations of external audit and internal 

audit, as appropriate. The Audit and Scrutiny Committee is integral to overseeing independent 

and objective assurance and monitoring improvements in internal control and governance. 

Review of Framework 

The Council as Administering Authority of the Pension Fund, conducts an annual review of the 

effectiveness of its overall governance framework which is presented to the Audit and Scrutiny 

Committee whose role includes high level oversight of the Pension Fund’s governance, risk 

management, and internal control arrangements. 

The review is informed by the work of an officer assessment of the Fund’s compliance with the 

best practice principles, details of which are set out in the Governance Compliance Statement 

2021-22 (page 24 -28 ). 

The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control is informed by the work 

of professional accountancy staff within the Council, the assurances from the Chief Officer Audit 

& Risk’s annual internal audit report on the work of internal audit, and by the external auditors’ 

reports. 

The review cycle for the Risk Register is undertaken in line with agreed practice and the current 

status is summarised in the Risk Management Statement. 

Internal Audit Opinion 

The Chief Officer Audit & Risk’s opinion is that the systems of internal control operating within the 

Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund during 2021/22 are sound, and governance and risk 

management arrangements are effective  

 

During 2021/22 the Internal Audit work included: 

 An appraisal of the operation of corporate governance and risk management 

arrangements; 

 A review of key controls including pension administration and financial management 

arrangements in place; 

 A review of performance against objectives, including relevant performance information. 

 

The Fund has effective governance arrangements in place through the joint meetings of the 

Pension Fund Committee and the Pension Fund Board that support scrutiny and transparency of 

decisions made. A Skills and Knowledge self-assessment is carried out annually by Members, a 

Training Plan is proposed to meet those needs, and Members’ participation in training events is 

monitored to ensure Training policy commitments are met. Risk Management is fully embedded 

into the culture of the Pension Fund with evidence of risk deliberations in decision-making and 

Page 205



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

21 

regular reviews / updates of the Pension Fund risk register being carried out and reported to the 

joint meetings of the Committee and Board to demonstrate appropriate scrutiny and oversight of 

risk management. 

There was no specific testing of Pensioner Payroll payments within Internal Audit work on 

Business World ERP System Key Controls which focused on new areas of system functionality. 

Reliance can be placed on the previous year’s Internal Audit work which concluded 

comprehensive assurance on key controls and processes to ensure that payroll transactions are 

valid, complete and accurate. Internal Audit reviewed reports associated with Pensions resulting 

from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Data Matching exercise for 2020/2021. There was one 

discrepancy highlighted, this has been investigated and arrangements are in place for the 

repayment of the monies to the Fund. 

Best practice suggested that having a Business Plan for the Pension Fund was a good way of 

demonstrating compliance with the “Myners Principle” relating to effective decision making. The 

Business Plan 2021/22 to 2023/24 for the Pension Fund was approved by the Joint Pension 

Fund Committee and Pension Fund Board on 10 June 2021. It identified an Action Plan which 

would be delivered during the next three years to support the aims and objectives of the Pension 

Fund. The HR Shared Services Manager gave a demonstration of the Self Service Pension 

System under development at the joint Committee and Board meeting on 16 September 2021. 

This system would save considerable time for the Pension Administration team, and provide 

pension scheme members with a valuable tool. A Business Plan Performance Update, outlining 

progress on the Business Plan actions at mid-year, was presented to the Joint Pension Fund 

Committee and Pension Fund Board meeting on 14 December 2021. Quarter Performance 

Updates are presented in private by the Investment Advisor at the joint Committee and Board 

meetings. Pension Administration Performance is reported annually to the joint Committee and 

Board for its inclusion in the Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts. 

Internal Audit were involved in the testing phase of the Member Self-Service facility (MSS) which 

has been developed for members of the Councils pension fund.  This provides direct access for 

active and deferred scheme members to view personalised pension data on the portal and was 

completed in time for the Annual Benefit Statement issue.  Work is ongoing to increase uptake. 

External access to Business World ERP system for pension members to view payslips and P60s 

is in place. Work continues to promote this facility. 

The 2021/22 annual internal self-assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS) demonstrates sufficient evidence that the Council’s Internal Audit section conforms with 

the Definition of Internal Auditing, Code of Ethics, Attribute Standards and Performance 

Standards. 

Improvement Areas of Governance 

The Committee agrees a three year business plan on an annual basis to ensure the ongoing 

management and development of the Fund is in line with the longer term policy, objectives and 

strategy of the Fund.  The plan sets out the key actions and sets timescales of each.  The 

progress of the actions are reported mid-year to the Committee.  The actions completed from the 

2021/22 business plan are as follows; 

 Full review and update of the Funding Strategy Statement with inclusion of new cessation 

policy and correct employer contribution rates received. 

 Completion of the agreed training programme for all members of the Pension Fund 

Committee and Pension Fund Board. 

Page 206



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

22 

 Full review of Strategic Asset Allocation completed and implementation commenced. 

 Completion of a procurement exercise for ESG passive equity manager and 

Infrastructure manager per the approved strategic asset allocation. 

 Implementation and roll out of Members Self Service. 

 Review completed of Responsible investment policy further enhancing the Funds 

commitment to responsible investing. 

 Review completed of services provided by IT providers to ensure data is secure and 

adheres to cyber security requirements. 

 

The following areas have been identified and included in the 2022/23 action plan submitted to the 

Joint Pension Fund Committee and Board for approval.  These will enhance the existing 

governance arrangements:  

 Review of all forms of communication material. 

 Accuracy of Pension records including requirements for pension dashboard. 

 System improvement to support home working. 

 Submission of application for the Stewardship Code. 

 Commence preparation for 2023 triennial valuation.  

 Review of the Fund’s strategic asset allocation following the 31 March 2020 

valuation. 

 Implementation of approved Responsible Investment Policy and its monitoring 

requirements. 

 Review and implementation of The Pension Regulator’s “Single Code”. 

 

Impact of COVID-19 

At the start of the global Covid-19 pandemic Scottish Borders Council agreed temporary decision 

making arrangements to minimise social contact during the pandemic.  It was agreed all formal 

Council and Committee meetings be cancelled unless required for statutory reasons and 

additional powers delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with Officers and Members. 

Business continuity plans were implemented with staff mainly working at home with full access to 

systems and files.  

During 2021/22 all meetings were held virtually.  The overall governance of the Fund remained in 

place with all meetings being held and papers and decisions being made available via the 

internet.  All services have been fully maintained and all payments made in a timely 

manner.  Investments which initially fell at the start of the pandemic bounced back quickly and 

additional monitoring meetings with Officers and fund managers were held to ensure risks were 

identified and mitigating measures put in place.  A full review will be undertaken and future 

business continuity plans updated to reflect findings. 

  

Page 207



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

23 

Certification  

It is our opinion that reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness 

of Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund’s systems of internal control, governance and risk 

management. The annual review demonstrates sufficient evidence that the Pension Fund’s 

Governance Policy is operating effectively and that the Pension Fund fully complies with the best 

practice principles as demonstrated in the Governance Policy and Compliance Statement (pages 

24- 28). 

 

 

 

Councillor David Parker David Robertson 
Chair Acting Chief Executive 
Pension Fund Committee Scottish Borders Council 

 

  

Page 208



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

24 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 require Administering 

Authorities to measure their governance arrangements against standards set out by Scottish 

Ministers.  These standards are established via a number of best practice principles.   The 

following table contains an assessment of the Fund’s compliance with these principles. 

Principle 

Full 

Comp

liance 

Comments 

Structure 

A The management of the 

administration of benefits 

and strategic management of 

Fund assets clearly rests 

with the main committee 

established by the appointing 

Council. 

Yes Scottish Borders Council acts as administering 

authority for the Pension Fund and delegates 

its responsibilities as Scheme Manager to the 

Pension Fund Committee (the Committee). 

The Committee comprises seven 

Councillors. 

The Council’s Scheme of Administration 

sets out the Committee’s remit. 

B Representatives of 

participating LGPS 

employers, admitted bodies 

and scheme members 

(including pensioner and 

deferred members) are 

members of either the main 

or secondary committee 

established to underpin the 

work of the main committee. 

Yes The Pensions Board (the Board) formalises 

the involvement of the employers and trade 

unions representing the membership. 

The Fund’s Board has eight members (four 

employer representatives and four trade 

union representatives) covering all pension 

fund members.  

The Board’s constitution is in line with the 

regulations, a copy of which is included in 

the Fund’s Governance Policy and 

Compliance Statement. 

The Board meets jointly with the Committee 

and the Board’s Constitution and the 

Scheme of Administration set out how 

disputes between the two bodies should be 

resolved. 

The Investment and Performance Sub-

Committee (the Sub-Committee) 

established under the Committee. Its remit 

is set out in the Scheme of Administration.  

Membership of the Sub-Committee is seven 

elected Members from the Pension Fund 

Committee and two (non-voting) members 

from the Pension Board. 

Page 209



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

25 

Principle 

Full 

Comp

liance 

Comments 

C Where a secondary 

committee or panel has been 

established, the structure 

ensures effective 

communication across both 

levels 

Yes Minutes of the Sub-Committee and any 

other Sub-Groups are submitted to the 

Pension Fund Committee for approval. 

Two members from the Pension Board and 

all Members of the Committee are part of 

the Sub-Committee which has a remit to 

monitor investment performance. 

 

D Where a secondary 

committee or panel has been 

established, at least one seat 

of the main committee is 

allocated for a member from 

the secondary committee or 

panel. 

Yes The Scheme of Administration states that 

any Sub-Group established will have 

member(s) of the Committee as part of its 

membership. 

 

Committee Membership and Representation 

A All key stakeholders are 

afforded the opportunity to be 

represented within the main 

or secondary committee 

structure.  These include: 

(i) employing authorities 

(including non-scheme 

employers, e.g. admitted 

bodies) 

(ii) scheme members 

(including deferred and 

pensioner scheme members) 

(iii) where appropriate, 

independent professional 

observers, and 

(iv) expert advisors (on an 

ad-hoc basis) 

Yes The Pension Board and Pension Fund 

Committee meet jointly ensuring employer 

and member (trade union) representation at 

meetings.    

The Investment Sub-Committee has two 

non-voting members from the Pension 

Board.  

The Independent Investment Consultant, 

Finance and HR Officers also attend in an 

advisory capacity. 

 

B Where lay members sit on a 

main or secondary 

committee, they are treated 

equally in terms of access to 

papers, meetings and 

training They are given full 

opportunity to contribute to 

Yes All members of the Committee and Board 

are covered equally by the Training Policy 

(as amended annually in June).  

The Board was established by Council on 2 

April 2015. The Scheme of Administration 

for the Pension Fund Committee, and the 

Pension Board Constitution, provide for joint 

meetings, with equal rights to receive 

Page 210



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

26 

Principle 

Full 

Comp

liance 

Comments 

the decision making process, 

with or without voting rights. 

papers and access meetings. 

 

Selection and role of lay members 

A That committee or panel 

members are made fully 

aware of the status, role and 

function they are required to 

perform on either a main or 

secondary committee. 

Yes For Councillors this is part of the Council’s 

Code of Governance along with the 

Members’ induction programme.   

In addition, the Fund’s Training Policy 

provides for an annual training needs 

assessment, and an annual programme of 

training to be made available to all members 

of the Committee and Board.  All new 

members of the Committee and Board are 

also required, within six months of joining, to 

complete the Pension Regulator Trustee 

Toolkit. 

B At the start of any meeting, 

committee members are 

invited to declare any 

financial or pecuniary interest 

related to specific matters on 

the agenda 

 

Yes Part of the Council’s Code of Governance 

requires the declaration of Members’ 

interests for all committees as a standard 

agenda item. 

Voting 

A The policy of individual 

administrating authorities on 

voting rights is clear and 

transparent, including 

justification for not extending 

voting rights to each body or 

group represented on main 

LGPS committees. 

Yes This is set out in the Council’s Scheme of 

Administration and the Pension Board’s 

Constitution. 

Training/Facility time/Expenses 

A In relation to the way in which 

statutory and related 

decisions are taken by the 

administering authority, there 

is a clear policy on training, 

facility time and 

reimbursement of expenses 

Yes Councillors expenses are managed under 

the Council’s policies.  The Training Policy 

also covers the reimbursement of training 

related expenses. 

Page 211



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

27 

Principle 

Full 

Comp

liance 

Comments 

in respect of members 

involved in the decision-

making process. 

B Where such a policy exists, it 

applies equally to all 

members of committees, 

sub-committees, advisory 

panels or any other form of 

secondary forum. 

Yes The training policy for all members of the 

Pension Board and Pension Fund 

Committee is approved annually at the joint 

meeting in June. 

C The administering authority 

considers the adoption of 

annual training plans for 

committee members and 

maintains a log of all such 

training undertaken. 

Yes The Annual Training Plan is produced and 

implemented with logs of training 

attendance maintained. Compliance to the 

plan is reported to the Joint Pension Fund 

Committee and Board. 

Meetings (frequency/quorum) 

A An administering authority’s 

main committee or 

committees meet at least 

quarterly 

Yes The joint meetings of the Pension Fund 

Committee and Pension Board are 

quarterly. 

B An administering authority’s 

secondary committee or 

panel meet at least twice a 

year and is synchronised with 

the main committee dates. 

Yes The Investment Sub-Committee meets 

every four months between the joint 

Committee/Board meetings. 

C An administering authority 

who does not include lay 

members in their formal 

governance arrangements, 

must provide a forum outside 

of those arrangements by 

which the interests of key 

stakeholders can be 

represented. 

Not 

applic

able 

The Pension Board formally provides for 

stakeholders’ engagement. 

Access 

A Subject to any rules in the 

Council’s Constitution, all 

members of main and 

secondary committees or 

Yes Papers sent to all Committee/Board 

members as detailed in the Scheme of 

Administration. 

Page 212



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

28 

Principle 

Full 

Comp

liance 

Comments 

panels have equal access to 

committee papers, 

documents and advice that 

falls to be considered at 

meetings of the main 

committee 

Scope 

A Administering authorities 

have taken steps to bring 

wider scheme issues within 

the scope of their 

governance arrangements 

Yes The Scheme of Administration sets out the 

Committee as having a remit which covers 

all matters relating to the Council’s role as 

Administering Authority for the Scottish 

Borders Council Pension Fund, within the 

terms of all relevant Local Government 

Pension Scheme legislation and the 

requirements of the Pension Regulator. 

Publicity 

A Administering authorities 

have published details of 

their governance 

arrangements in such a way 

that stakeholders, with an 

interest in the way in which 

the scheme is governed, can 

express an interest if wanting 

to be part of those 

arrangements. 

Yes Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund has 

a standalone website with all governance 

documents and Fund information.  A link is 

provided to Minutes and public papers 

available via the Council’s website. 

 

 

  

Page 213



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

29 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 3 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 

  

Page 214



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

30 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITES 

COUNCIL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

Scottish Borders Council as the administering authority for Scottish Borders Council Pension 

Fund is required to: 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund’s 

financial affairs and to ensure that the proper officer of the authority has responsibility for the 

administration of those affairs in relation to Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund.  That 

officer is the Acting Chief Financial Officer. 

 

 Manage the affairs of Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund to secure the economic, efficient 

and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 

 

 Ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority 

Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014) and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in 

accordance with proper accounting practices (Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland 

Act 2003). 

 

 Approve Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Annual Accounts for signature. 

 

 

 

  

Page 215



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

31 

ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Acting Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of Scottish Borders Council 

Pension Fund’s Annual Accounts in accordance with proper practices as required by legislation 

and as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom (the Accounting Code).   

In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Acting Chief Financial Officer has: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently. 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 

 Complied with legislation, and 

 Complied with the local authority Accounting Code (in so far as it is compatible with 

legislation). 

The Acting Chief Financial Officer has also: 

 Kept adequate, up to date accounting records. 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

I certify that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Scottish 

Borders Council Pension Fund as at 31 March 2022 and the transactions of the Fund for the year 

then ended. 

 

 

Councillor David Parker   Suzanne Douglas CPFA 
Chair      Acting Chief Financial Officer 
Pension Fund Committee   Scottish Borders Council 
 
 
 

  

Page 216



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

32 

FUND ACCOUNT for year ending 31 March 2022 

2020/21 
£’000 

 
2021/22 
£’000 

Notes 

 
Dealings with members, employers and others directly 

involved in the scheme: 
  

20,666 Contributions  22,593 7 

1,061 Transfers in from other pension funds 3,346 8 

21,727  25,939  

(25,157) Benefits  (25,390) 9 

(3,139) Payments To And On Account Of Leavers (681) 10 

(28,296)  (26,071)  

(6,569) Net Additions/(Withdrawals) from Dealings with 

Members 

(132) 
 

(5,979) Management expenses (6,395) 11 

 Return on Investments:   

12,749 Investment Income 17,600 12 

146,680 
Profits and (Losses) on Disposal of Investments and 

Changes in the Market Value of Investments 
40,765 14 

(45) Taxes on Income (387)  

159,384 Net Return on Investments 57,978  

    

146,836 Net Increase/(Decrease) in the Fund during the Year 51,451  

712,858 Opening Net Assets of the Scheme 859,694 
 

859,694 Closing Net Assets of the Scheme 911,145  

 
The Fund Account shows the payments to pensioners, contribution receipts from employers and 
scheme members, and the income, expenditure and change in market value of the Fund’s 

investments. 
 

 

  

Page 217



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

33 

NET ASSETS STATEMENT as at 31 March 2022 

2020/21 

£’000 
 

2021/22 

£’000 
Notes 

860,013 Investment Assets 910,784 14 

(219) Investment Liabilities (1,403) 14 

859,794 Total net investment  909,381  

  

Current Assets & Liabilities  

  

2,614 Current Assets 4,174 21 

(2,714) Current Liabilities (2,410) 22 

(100)  1,764  

 

859,694 

 

Net Assets of the Fund available to fund benefits at the 

period end 

 

911,145 

 

 
 
The Net Assets Statement represents the value of assets and liabilities as at 31 March (excluding 
liability to pay pensioners). 
 
The unaudited accounts were issued on 29 June 2022 and the audited accounts were authorised 
for issue on 24 November 2022. 
 
 
 

 

 
Suzanne Douglas CPFA 
Acting Chief Financial Officer 
Scottish Borders Council 

  

Page 218



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

34 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 
1 DESCRIPTION OF THE FUND 
 
A) General 

The Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund (the Fund) is part of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) and is administered by Scottish Borders Council. 
 
The LGPS scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.  The Fund is 
administered by the Council in accordance with the following secondary legislation: 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2018 (as amended). 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2014. 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
(Scotland) Regulations 2016. 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Governance) (Scotland) Regulations 2015. 

It is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme administered by Scottish Borders Council to 
provide pensions and other benefits for pensionable employees of Scottish Borders Council and a 
range of other scheduled and admitted bodies within the Scottish Borders area. 

 
Organisations participating in the Fund include: 

 Scheduled Bodies – which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are 
automatically entitled to be members of the Fund. 

 Admitted Bodies – which are other organisations that participate in the Fund under an 
admission agreement between the Fund and the relevant organisation. 

B) Funding 

Pensions and other benefits are funded by contributions from employees, employers and 
investment earnings.   

The Pension Fund is subject to a triennial valuation by an independent, qualified Actuary, whose 
report indicates the required future employer’s contributions.  For 2021/22 this was based on the 
valuation undertaken as at the 31 March 2020, as amended by specific changes, agreed by the 
Committee relating to an individual employer.  The overall contribution rate was 18% for the Fund 
as a whole; however employers’ contribution rates during 2021/22 ranged from 18% to 21.1%. 
 
Contributions from active members of the Fund are paid on a tiered basis, the contribution rate 
being determined by the amount of salary falling into each earnings tier.  These rates are made in 
accordance with the 2008 Regulations and ranged from 5.5% to 12.0% of pensionable pay for the 
financial year ending 31 March 2022.  From 1 April 2015 these contributions are based on the 
LGPS Regulations 2014 in line with the updated LGPS Scheme. 
 

  

Page 219



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

35 

C) Benefits 

The Local Government Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme.  From 1st April 2015 

benefits are accrued at a rate of 1/49th of pensionable pay on a career average basis.  Prior to 

that date benefits were accrued on a final salary basis.  These benefits are fully protected on the 

basis under which they were accrued. 

The table below gives a summary of the scheme benefits: 
 

Membership up to 

31 March 2009 

 Membership from 1 April 

2009 to 31 March 

2015 

 
Membership from 1 

April 2015 

Annual pension = 

(service 

years/days x final 

pay)/80 

+ Annual pension = (service 

years/days x final 

pay)/60 

+ Annual pension = 

Pensionable pay 

each year /49 (half 

that if in 50/50 

section) 

+  +  + 

Automatic lump sum 

of 3 x annual 

pension. 

 

 

 No automatic tax free 

lump sum but can 

convert pension. 

 No automatic tax free 

lump sum but can 

convert pension. 

+  +  + 

 Annual revaluation and pensions increase in line with CPI inflation 

 Partners and dependents pensions 

 Ill health protection 

 Death in service protection 

 

Further details can be found on the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund website. 

All benefits are paid in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme regulations. 

  

Page 220



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

36 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial statements summarise the Fund’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial year and its 
position as at the 31 March 2022.  The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the Code) which is based 
upon International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.  In 
addition, consideration has been given to the Local Government Pension Scheme Fund Accounts 
2020/21 - example accounts and disclosure checklist published by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance Accountants (CIPFA). 
 
The financial statements also present the net assets available to pay pension benefits.  These do 
not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the 
financial year.  Local authorities responsible for administering a Pension Fund that forms part of 
the LGPS are required by The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 
to publish a Pension Fund Annual Report, which is required to include a Fund Account and Net 
Assets Statement prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
 
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

 
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

Fund Account 
 
Accruals Basis 
In accordance with the Code, the Fund’s Financial Statements are generally prepared on an 
accruals basis. The Net Assets Statement does not include liabilities to pay pensions and benefits 
after the end of the Fund year and the accruals concept is applied accordingly. Receipts and 
payments in respect of the transfer of benefits from and to other schemes are treated on a cash 
basis.  

 
Contributions Income 
Normal contributions, both from members and employers, are accounted for on an accruals basis 

at the percentage rate recommended by the Fund Actuary in the payroll period to which they relate.  

Employers augmented contributions and pension strain contributions are accounted for in the 

period in which the liability arises.  Any amounts in respect of strain on the Fund due in a year but 

unpaid are classed as a current financial asset.  

 

Transfers to and from other schemes 

Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have 

either joined or left the Fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with the 

LGPS Regulations. Individual transfers in/out are accounted for when the member liability is 

accepted or discharged. 

 
Investment Income 
 
i) Interest income 
Interest is recognised in the Fund Account as it accrues, using the effective interest rate of the 

financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination.  
 

  

Page 221



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

37 

 

ii) Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any income not 

received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current 

financial asset.  
  

iii) Distributions from pooled funds 

Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. 
 

iv) Movement in the net market value of investments 

Changes in the net market value of investments are recognised as income and comprise all 

realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.  

 

Benefits Payable 

Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the end of the 

financial year. Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current 

liabilities.  

 

Taxation 

The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance 

Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains 

tax on the proceeds of investments sold.  Income from overseas investments suffers withholding 

tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a 

Fund expense as it arises.  

 

Administration Expenses 

All administration expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Central Support Costs from 

Scottish Borders Council have been recharged to the Fund on the basis of time spent by staff on 

the service.  The recharge includes overheads apportioned to this activity. 

 

Investment Management Expenses 

Fees of the external investment managers and custodian are agreed in the respective mandates 

or subscription agreements governing their appointments.  Broadly, these are based on the market 

value of the investments under their management and therefore increase or reduce as the value 

of these investments change.  Management fees also include transaction costs incurred by the 

managers. 

 

Investment management expenses incurred by funds in the UK have come under increasing 

scrutiny in recent years resulting in establishment of the Cost Transparency Initiative (CTI) and the 

launch of collection templates in 2019.  All managers of the Fund have submitted their investment 

expenses information on the new template which will ensure consistency of reporting. 

 

Net Assets Statement 

 

Valuation of Investments 

The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined as follows: 

 Market-quoted investments – Investments listed on recognised Stock Exchanges are 

valued at the bid price on the close of business on 31 March.  

Page 222



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

38 

 Unquoted investments – directly held investments include investments in limited 

partnerships, shares in unlisted companies, trusts and bonds. Other unquoted securities 

typically include pooled investments in property, infrastructure, debt securities and private 

equity. The valuation of these pools or directly held securities is undertaken by the 

investment manager or responsible entity and advised as a unit or security price. The 

valuation standards followed in these valuations adhere to industry guidelines or to 

standards set by the constituent documents of the pool or the management agreement. 

 Pooled investment vehicles – are valued at bid price on the close of business on 31 

March. 

 Private equity/debt and infrastructure assets are independently valued by the appointed 

Fund Manager and General Partners.  Fair value is calculated by applying Private Equity 

and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines. 

 

The processes of the fund managers, who are listed in Note 14b, (page 45) are subject to external 

audit and verification and this is reported in their respective assurance reports on internal controls 

(in accordance with Technical Release AAF 01/06). 

 

Foreign Currency Transactions 

Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have been 

accounted for at spot market rates at the date of transaction.  End of year spot market exchange 

rates are used to value cash balances held in foreign currency bank accounts market values of 

overseas investments.  

 

Derivatives 

The Fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks (in 

particular currency) arising from its investment activities.  The Fund does not hold derivatives for 

speculative purposes. 

 

Derivative contract assets are fair valued at bid prices and liabilities are fair valued at offer prices. 

Changes in the fair value of the derivative contracts are included in the change in market value. 

 

The future value of forward currency contracts is based on market forward exchange rates at the 

year-end and determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding contracts were 

matched at the year-end with an equal and opposite contract. 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to minimal risk 

of change in value.  

 

Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the 

scheme Actuary in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 

19 and relevant actuarial standards.  As permitted under IAS 26, the Fund has opted to disclose 

the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the Net Assets 

Statement (Note 20, page 58). 

  

Page 223



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

39 

 

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) 
The Fund provides an additional voluntary contributions (AVC) scheme for its members, the assets 

of which are invested separately from those of the Fund.  The Fund has appointed Standard Life 

to act as AVC provider.  AVCs are paid to the AVC provider by employees and are specifically for 

providing additional benefits for individual contributors. Each AVC contributor receives an annual 

statement showing the amount held in their account and the movements in the year. 

 

AVCs are not included in the accounts in accordance with section 4(2) (b) of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme (Management and investment Funds) (Scotland) Regulations 2010 (SSI 

2010/233) but are disclosed as a note only (Note 23). 

 

Accounting Standards that were issued but not yet adopted. 

There are no accounting standards which have not yet been adopted. 

 

4 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Pension Fund Liability 

The Pension Fund liability is calculated every three years by the appointed Actuary (currently 

Hymans Robertson), with annual updates in the intervening years.  The methodology used is in 

line with the accepted guidelines and in accordance with IAS 19.  Assumptions underpinning the 

valuations are agreed with the Actuary and are summarised on page 57.  This estimate is subject 

to significant variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions. 

 

5 ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF 
ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities at the balance sheet 

date and the amounts reported for the revenues and expenses during the year.  Estimates and 

assumptions take into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors.  

However, the nature of estimation means that the actual outcomes could differ from the 

assumptions and estimates. 

 

The items in the financial statements at 31 March 2022 for which there is a significant risk of 

material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions 

Actuarial 

Present Value 

of Promised 

Retirement 

Benefits 

(Note 20, page 

58). 

Estimation of the net liability to pay 

pensions in the future depends on 

a number of complex judgements 

relating to the discount rate used, 

the rate at which salaries are 

projected to increase, changes in 

retirement ages, mortality rates 

and expected returns on pension 

fund assets.  Hymans Robertson is 

The effects on the net pension liability 

of changes in individual assumptions 

can be measured. 

- A 0.1% decrease in the discount 

rate assumption would result in a 

increase in the pension liability of 

£20m 

Page 224



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

40 

engaged to provide the Fund with 

expert advice about the 

assumptions to be applied. 

- A 0.1% increase in the Consumer 

Price Index assumption for 

inflation would increase the value 

of the liabilities by £18m 

- A 0.1% increase in the long-term 

rate of salary increase would 

increase value of the liabilities by 

£2m, and 

- A 1 year increase in assumed life 

expectancy would increase the 

liability by £42m 

Source – IAS26 report 2022 

Portfolio of 

Level 3 assets 

held  

Level 3 assets are those which do 

not have observable market data.  

The valuations are provided by 

administrators of the funds and are 

validated by independent 

administrators.  Such valuations 

are prepared in accordance with 

the valuation principles of IFRS 

and GAAP. There is, however a 

degree of estimation involved in 

the valuations. 

The total assets held in Level 3 

£323.7m and include Private Credit, 

Property, Infrastructure and 

Alternatives.  There is a risk that this 

investment may be under or 

overstated in the accounts.  Based 

on historical data and current market 

trends actual valuation could be 

between £356.3m and £291.1m 

 

 

6 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

There are no known events since 31 March 2022 which directly affect these accounts. 
 

  

Page 225



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

41 

 
7 CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE 

2020/21  2021/22 

Employers Members Total  Employers Members Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 

15,472 5,135 20,607 Normal 17,030 5,506 22,536 

28 - 28 Special/Pension Fund 

Strain 

42 - 42 

- 31 31 Additional Voluntary - 15 15 

15,500 5,166 20,666 Total 17,072 5,521 22,593 

 

2020/21   2021/22 

£'000   £'000 

17,739 Administering Authority 18,597 

917 Scheduled Bodies 989 

2,010 Admitted Bodies 3,007 

20,666   22,593 

 

8 TRANSFERS IN 

There were no group transfers in to the scheme during 2021/22 or 2020/21 and the total of £3.346m 

(2020/21: £1.061m) represents the total of transfer values in respect of individual members joining 

the scheme. 

 

9 BENEFITS PAYABLE 

2020/21   2021/22 

£'000   £'000 

19,754 Pension Payments 20,410 

4,727 

Commutation and lump sum retirement 

benefits 4,254 

676 Lump Sums death benefits 726 

25,157   25,390 

 

Page 226



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

42 

2020/21   2021/22 

£'000   £'000 

22,918 Administering Authority 22,361 

438 Scheduled Bodies 845 

1,801 Admitted Bodies 2,184 

25,157 
 

25,390 

 

10 PAYMENTS TO AND ON ACCOUNT OF LEAVERS 

2020/21   2021/22 

£'000   £'000 

49 Refunds to members leaving service 82 

1,286 Individual Transfers 599 

1,804 Group Transfers - 

3,139   681 

 

11  MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 

2020/21   2021/22 

£'000 £'000 

352 Administrative costs 378 

5,310 Investment management expenses 5,668 

317 Oversight and governance costs 349 

5,979 Total 6,395 

 

  

Page 227



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

43 

11(a) Investment Management Expenses 

  Total Management fees Transaction cost 

2021/22 £'000 £’000 £’000 

Equities 1,035 772 263 

Pooled Investments 2,290 1,648 642 

Private Equity/Infrastructure 1,400 1,274 126 

Property 880 442 438 

Total 5,605 4,136 1,469 

Custody fees 63   

Total 5,668   

  Total Management fees Transaction cost 

2020/21 £'000 £’000 £’000 

Equities 1,027 738 289 

Pooled Investments 2,917 2,415 502 

Private Equity/Infrastructure 722 620 102 

Property 560 232 328 

Total 5,226 4,005 1,221 

Custody fees 84   

Total 5,310   

 

12 INVESTMENT INCOME 

2020/21  2021/22 

£'000  £'000 

2,571 Dividends from equities 2,931 

6,521 Income from Pooled Investment vehicles 8,523 

3,657 Income from Pooled Property Investment vehicles 6,146 

0 Interest on Cash Deposits 0 

12,749   17,600 

 

Page 228



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

44 

13 OTHER FUND ACCOUNT DISCLOSURES 

13(a) External Audit Costs 

In 2021/22 the agreed audit fee for the year was £22,110 (2020/21 £21,510). The external auditor 

is Audit Scotland. 

 

14 INVESTMENTS 

 

Market Value at 
31 March 2021 

 
Market Value at 
31 March 2022 

£'000 
 

£'000 

 Investment Assets  

217,762 Equities 140,492 

172,971 Pooled Equities 212,653 

179,002 Pooled Bonds 184,351 

110,739 Pooled Other 116,036 

95,298 Pooled Property Investments 139,927 

69,690 Private Equity/Infrastructure 86,838 

- Diversified Alternatives - 

- Derivative Contracts - 

13,132 Cash Deposits 28,737 

994 Investment Income Due 858 

425 Amounts receivable for sales 892 

860,013 Total Investment Assets 910,784 

 Investment Liabilities  

(219) Amounts payable for purchases (1,403) 

859,794  Net Investment Assets 909,381 

 

14(a) Reconciliation of Movement in Investment and Derivatives 

The table below follows the guidance of the standard presentation for the movement in 
investments. 

 

Opening 

Market 

Value 

1/4/2021 

Purchases 

& Derivative 

Payments 

Sales & 

Derivative 

Receipts 

Change to 

Market 

value 

during year 

Closing 

Market 

Value 

31/3/2022 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Equities 217,762 48,057 (116,948) (8,379) 140,492 

Pooled Investments 462,713 104,403 (84,906) 30,830 513,040 

Pooled Property Investments 95,298 53,906 (23,065) 13,788 139,927 

Private Equity/Infrastructure 69,691 17,715 (5,417) 4,849 86,838 

Page 229



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

45 

   Derivative Contracts -  (1) 1 0 

 
845,464 224,081 (230,337) 41,089 880,297 

Other Investment Balances      

   Cash Deposits 13,132   (337) 28,737 

   Amount receivable for sales 424    892 

   Investment Income due 993    858 

Spot FX Contract 1   10 - 

   Amount Payable on   

Purchase (220)    (1,403) 

Net Investments  859,794   40,762 909,381 

 

Significant Transactions during the year: 

The Fund approved a revised Investment Strategy approved in June 2021.  The review maintained 

the allocation for equities but approved the movement of the passive equities into a ESG focused 

passive fund and the movement of Baillie Gifford Global Equities into their Paris Aligned Global 

Equity Fund.  The review also introduced an allocation to Housing, increased the allocation to Long 

Lease property and increased the allocation to infrastructure.  The Fund has made good progress 

on the implementation of these changes with the full funding of the new ESG passive equity fund 

with LGIM and has fully implemented the increased allocation to Long Lease property with 

Blackrock.  

14(b) Investment Analysed by Fund Managers 

Investment Management was undertaken on behalf of the Fund during the financial year by 20 

firms of investment managers, these are shown below. The Fund has also during 2021/22, 

continued to make investments into infrastructure, via collaborative working with Lothian Pension 

Fund and directly with Macquarie.  As at 31 March 2022 the market value of the assets under 

management, broken down by manager and mandate (including cash held within each mandate) 

was: 

31-Mar-21   
 

31-Mar-22 

£’000 %     £’000 % 

51,592 6.0 UBS Pooled Fund -UK Equities  0 - 

61,178 7.1 Baillie Gifford UK Equities  29,134 3.2 

164,059 19.1 Baillie Gifford Global Equities 114,705 12.6 

118,407 13.8 Morgan Stanley Pooled Fund - Global Equities 118,980 13.0 

- - LGIM Pooled Fund – Passive Global 

Equities 

93,673 10.3 

Page 230



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

46 

The benchmarks and performance targets for each manager as at the 31 March 2022 are 

contained in the Statement of Investment Principles published on the Pension Fund website.  

Investments representing more than 5% of Net Assets 

The value of the following investments exceeds 5% of the total value of the net assets of the 

Pension Fund at 31 March 2022.  Each of the investments comprises units in a managed fund. 

  

116,311 13.5 M&G Pooled Fund - Diversified 

Income 

117,271 12.9 

62,691 7.3 M&G Pooled Fund - Bonds 67,080 7.3 

37,221 4.3 UBS Pooled Fund -Property 26,563 2.9 

58,181 6.7 Blackrock Pooled Fund – Property 121,500 13.3 

59,823 7.0 LGT Pooled Fund - Alternatives 67,882 7.4 

27,424 3.2 Partners Group Pooled Fund – Private Credit 31,517 3.5 

24,728 2.9 Permira Pooled Fund – Private Credit 15,578 1.7 

3,100 0.4 Alinda Infrastructure 3,443 0.4 

3,449 0.4 KKR Infrastructure 2,940 0.3 

1,226 0.1. Infrared Infrastructure 1,107 0.1 

13,595 1.6 Dalmore Infrastructure 14,263 1.6 

1,421 0.2 Brookfield Infrastructure 3,602 0.4 

1,636 0.2 Macquarie Infrastructure 3,249 0.4 

1,701 0.2 Equitix Infrastructure 2,013 0.2 

2,162 0.3 Gaia Infrastructure 3,097 0.3 

2,342 0.3 Oaktree Infrastructure 66 0.0 

- - Gresham House Infrastructure 7 0.0 

39,059 4.5 Macquarie Pooled Fund -Infrastructure Debt 53,053 5.8 

8,488 0.9 Internal Internally Managed Cash & 

Investments 

18,658 2.4 

859,794    
 

909,381  

Page 231



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

47 

 

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2022 

£’000 
% of 

Fund 

£’000 % of 

Fund 

Blackrock – Long Lease Property 58,181 6.8 121,500 13.3 

Morgan Stanley Global Brands Fund    118,407 13.8 118,980 13.0 

M&G Alpha Opportunities Fund  116,311 13.5 117,271 12.9 

LGIM – Future World Global Equity Index    93,673 10.3 

LGT Crown SBC Segregated Portfolio 59,823 7.0 67,882 7.4 

M&G Index Linked 62,691 7.3 67,080 7.3 

 

Fund Performance 

The total Fund return for the year was 5.9% with a relative return under benchmark of 4.7%. 

Over three years the Fund has generated an annualised return of 7.7% per annum, with a relative 

return under benchmark of 1.0% per annum.  Further information on this is contained in Section 6 

-- Investments. 

14 (c) Stock Lending 

The Fund may participate in the stock lending programme managed by its Global Custodian, 

Northern Trust.  All loans are fully collateralised.  As at 31 March 2022 stock with a market value 

of £9.1m was on loan.  

14(d) Property Holdings 

The Fund’s investment in its property portfolio comprises of pooled investments with UBS and 

Blackrock. There are no directly owned properties. 

 

15 ANALYSIS OF DERIVATIVES 

The Funds approach to derivatives is to allow individual managers to decide to participate in 

derivative contracts subject to limits set out in their investment management agreements.  The 

Fund holds cash assets to allow for cash flow purposes.  Fund managers will also, on occasions, 

hold forward currency contracts.  There were no derivatives held at 31 March 2022 or 31 March 

2021. 

  

Page 232



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

48 

16  FAIR VALUE BASIS OF VALUATION 

Assets and liability valuations are classified into three levels according to quality and reliability of 

information used to determine fair values.   

1. Level 1 - are those where fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active 

markets for identical assets and liabilities.  Products classified as Level 1 comprise quoted 

equites and unit trusts.   Prices are quoted at bid prices. 

 

2. Level 2  - are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an 

instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation 

techniques are used to determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are 

based significantly on observable market data. 

 

3. Level 3 - are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the 

instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would include 

unquoted equity investments, which are valued using various valuation techniques that require 

significant judgement in determining appropriate assumptions.   

 

16(a) Fair Value Hierarchy 

Values as at 31 March 2022 Quoted 

market price 

 

Using 

observable 

inputs 

With significant 

unobservable 

inputs  

Total 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

£’000 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit & loss 

    

Equities 139,802 - 690 140,492 

Pooled Investments 303,330 94,835 68,071 466,236 

Pooled Property Investments - 18,610 121,317 139,927 

Private Equity/Infrastructure - - 133,642 133,642 

Cash Deposits 28,737 - - 28,737 

Other Investment assets - - - - 

Investment Income due 858 - - 858 

Amounts receivable for sales - 892 - 892 

Net Investment Assets 472,727 114,337 323,720 910,784 

Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit & loss 

    

Page 233



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

49 

Payable for investment purchase  (1,403)  (1,403) 

Total 472,727 112,934 323,720 909,381 

 

Values as at 31 March 2021 Quoted 

market price 

 

Using 

observable 

inputs 

With significant 

unobservable 

inputs  

Total 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

£’000 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit & loss 

    

Equities 217,762   217,762 

Pooled Investments 349,001 2,972 110,739 462,712 

Pooled Property Investments  29,795 65,503 95,298 

Private Equity/Infrastructure   69,691 69,691 

Cash Deposits 13,132   13,132 

Investment Income due  2  2 

Amounts receivable for sales 990 3  993 

Net Investment Assets  423  423 

Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit & loss 

580,885 33,195 245,933 860,013 

Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit & loss 

    

Payable for investment purchase  (219)  (219) 

Total 580,885 32,976 245,933 859,794 

 

16(b) Transfers between Levels 1 and 2 

There have been no funds transferred from level 1 to level 2 during the year. 

 

  

Page 234



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

50 

16(c)   Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements within level 3.  

 Market 
Value 1 April 

2021 
 

£’000 

Transfer in 
to level 3 

 
£000 

Purchases 
during year & 

derivative 
payments 

£’000 

Sales during 
the year and 

derivative 
receipts 
£’000 

Unrealised 
gains/ 

(losses) 
 

£’000 

Realised 
gains/ 

(losses) 
 

£’000 

Market 
Value 31 

March 
2022 
£’000 

Overseas 

Venture 

Capital 

9,985  2,063 (3,264) 391 729 9,904 

Overseas Equity 

Funds 

59,822  34 - 8,027 - 67,883 

Private Credit 

Funds 

50,916  10,508 (13,806) (440) (185) 46,993 

UK Property  65,505  54,265 (7,909) 8,656 800 121,317 

UK Venture 

Capital 

59,705  15,696 (2,146) 3,170 508 76,933 

Overseas 

Equities 

- 830 - - (140) - 690 

 245,933 830 82,566 (27,125) 19,664 1,852 323,720 

 Market 
Value 1 April 

2020 
 

£’000 

Transfer in 
to level 3 

 
£000 

Purchases 
during year & 

derivative 
payments 

£’000 

Sales during 
the year and 

derivative 
receipts 
£’000 

Unrealised 
gains/ 

(losses) 
 

£’000 

Realised 
gains/ 

(losses) 
 

£’000 

Market 
Value 31 

March 
2021 
£’000 

Alternatives 50,583   (50,583) (11,200) 11,200 - 

Overseas 

Venture 

Capital 

8,508  2,541 (1,321) (227) 484 9,985 

Overseas Equity 

Funds 

  50,583  9,239  59,822 

Private Credit 

funds 

51,230  3,998 (5,099) 787  50,916 

UK Property 66,088  1,200  (1,783)  65,505 

UK Venture 

Capital 

49,950  7,257 (333) 2,831  59,705 

Total 226,359  65,579 (57,336) (353) 11,684 245,933 

 
 
Transfers to level 3 reflect the investment into Infrastructure as part of the implementation of the 
revised Investment Strategy and the holdings with Brilliance China which have been temporally 
suspended from trading in Hong Kong due to financial irregularities of a subsidiary in the group.  
 
Purchases and sales during the year reflect the implementation of the revised Investment 
Strategy. 
 
Unrealised and realised gains and losses are recognised in the changes in value of investments 
line of the Fund Account. 
 
  

Page 235



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

51 

Sensitivity of Assets Valued at Level 3 
Having considered historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent 

advisors, the Fund has determined the valuation methods described above are likely to be 

accurate within the following ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential impact on 

the closing value of investments held at 31 March 2022. 

 

 

 

Assessed 

valuation 

range (+/-) 

% 

Value at 31 

March 2022 

 

£’000 

Value on 

increase 

 

£’000 

Value on 

decrease 

 

£’000 

Overseas Venture 

Capital 

15.0 9,904 11,389 8,418 

Overseas Equities 

Fund 

13.5 67,883 77,047 58,718 

Private Credit 10.5 46,993 51,927 42,058 

UK Property 8.0 121,317 131,022 111,612 

UK Venture Capital 9.5 76,933 84,241 69,624 

Overseas Equities 5.5 690 727 652 

Total  323,720 356,353 291,082 

 

17 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The following table analyses the carrying amount of financial instruments by category and net 

assets statement heading.  No financial instruments were reclassified during the accounting 

period. 

31 March 2021  31 March 2022 

Fair value 
through 
profit & 
loss 
 
£’000 

Loans & 
Receivab
les 
 
 
£’000 

Financial 
Liabilities 
at 
amortised 
cost 
£’000 

 Fair value 
through 
profit & 
loss 
 
£’000 

Loans & 
Receivab
les 
 
 
£’000 

Financial 
Liabilities 
at 
amortised 
cost 
£’000 

   Financial assets    

217,762 - - Equities 140,492 - - 

462,713 - - Pooled Investments 513,040 - - 

95,298 - - Pooled Property 

Investments 

139,927 - - 

69,691 - - Infrastructure 86,838 - - 

Page 236



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

52 

- 13,132 - Cash  28,737  

- 994 - Other Investment 

balances 

 858  

- 423 - Debtors  892  

845,464 14,549 -  880,297 30,487  

   Financial Liabilities    

- - (219) Creditors   (1,403) 

- -      

845,464 14,549 (219) Total   (1,403) 

859,794  909,381 

 

17 (a) Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments 

31 March 

2021 

£000 

 31 March 

2022 

£000 

 Financial assets  

146,959 Designated at fair value through profit & loss 41,089 

 Loans & receivables 11 

- Financial Liabilities  - 

9 Fair value through profit & Loss 1 

(288) Loans & receivables (336) 

146,680 Total 40,765 

 

The Pension Fund has not entered into any financial guarantees that are required to be 

accounted for as financial instruments. 

18  NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Risk and Risk Management  
The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. 

promised benefits payable to members).  Therefore the aim of investment risk management is to 

minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the Fund and to maximise the opportunity 

for gains across the whole Fund portfolio.  The Fund achieves this through asset diversification to 

reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk) and credit risk to an 

Page 237



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

53 

acceptable level.  In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity 

to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows.  

 

Responsibility for managing the Fund’s risk rests with the Pension Fund Committee.  A Risk 

Register for the Fund has been established to identify and analyse the risks that the Fund faces 

and the key messages from this process are covered in the Risk Management Statement on page 

16.   The Market Risk and Credit Risk aspects below come under the risk category of Assets and 

Investment in the Risk Register, whilst Liquidity Risk is a separate category of risk.   In addition, 

the Funding Strategy Statement and Statement of Investment Principles address risk management 

considerations as they apply to the particular objectives of each document. 

 
Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign 

exchange rates and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from its investment 

activities, particularly through its equity holdings. The level of risk exposure depends on market 

conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the asset mix. The objective of 

the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market risk exposure within 

acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.  

 

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio 

in terms of geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risk, the 

Council and its Investment Consultants undertake appropriate monitoring of market conditions and 

benchmark analysis. 

 

Other Price Risk 

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result 

of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange 

risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer 

or factors affecting all such instruments in the market.  

 

The Fund is exposed to share price risk, arising from investments held by the Fund for which the 

future price is uncertain.  All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum 

risk resulting from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. 

 

The Fund’s investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection 

of securities and other financial instruments is monitored by the Council to ensure it is within limits 

specified in the Fund’s Investment Strategy.  

 

Other Price Risk – Sensitivity Analysis 

In consultation with the Fund’s independent provider of performance and analytical data it has been 

determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for this 

reporting period.  
 

Asset Type 
Potential Market Movement  

 % 

UK Equities 20.5 

Page 238



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

54 

Global Equities 20.4 

UK Bonds 11.5 

Property 8.9 

Alternatives 10.5 

Cash 1.0 

 

Potential price changes are determined based on the observed historical volatility of asset class 

returns.  The potential volatilities are consistent with a one standard deviation movement in the 

change in value of the assets over the latest three years.  Had the market price of the Fund 

investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the net assets available to 

pay benefits in the market price could have been as follows: 

 

 

 

Asset Type 

Value as at 

31 Mar 22 

 £'000 

+/- % 

Change

* 

Value on 

Increase 

  £'000 

Value on 

Decrease 

 £'000 

UK Equities 29,134 20.5 35,107 23,164 

Global Equities 327,672 20.4 394,376 260,968 

UK Bonds 67,080 11.5 74,794 59,366 

Property 148,064 8.9 161,237 134,890 

Alternatives 319,088 10.5 352,701 285,476 

Cash 18,343 1.0 18,526 18,160 

Total Assets  

 
909,381  1,036,741 782,024 

 *The percentage change for total assets includes the impact of correlation across asset classes. 

 

Interest Rate Risk 
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. 

These investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk that the fair value or 

future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  

 
The Fund’s interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the Council and its Investment Consultants, 
including monitoring the exposure to interest rates and assessment of actual interest rates against 
the relevant benchmarks. 
 
The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 
is set out below and includes investment and operational cash balances. These disclosures present 
interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value: 
 

Page 239



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

55 

Asset Type 

At 31 March 

2021 

At 31 March 

2022 

£'000 £'000 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,091 21,310 

 

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis 

The Council recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund and 

the value of the net assets available to pay benefits. 

 

The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain 

constant, and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 100 

Basis Points (BPS) change in interest rates: 

 

  

Effect on Asset Values 

Asset Type 

Value as at 

31 Mar 22 

 £'000 

Favourable  Rate 

Move + 100 BPS 

£’000 

Unfavourable 

Rate Move -100 

BPS 

£’000 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,310 213 (213) 

 

Currency Risk 
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on 

financial instruments that are denominated in any currency other than the functional currency of 

the Fund (£UK).  The Fund is invested in equities overseas that are denominated in currencies 

other than £UK.  

The following table summarises the Fund’s currency exposure at 31 March 2022: 

Currency exposure by asset type  

As 31 March 2022 

£'000 

Overseas Equities 110,218 

Overseas Fixed Income Funds 117,271 

Overseas Equity Funds 280,535 

Overseas venture capital 9,904 

Total 517,928 

 
  

Page 240



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

56 

 
Currency risk – sensitivity analysis 

Asset Type 
Value as at 
31 Mar 22 

 £'000 

+/- % 
Change
* 

Value on 
Increase 

£'000 

Value on 
Decrease 

£'000 

Overseas Equities 110,218 9.2 120,358 100,078 

Overseas Fixed income 117,271 8.2 126,888 107,655 

Overseas Equity Funds 280,535 9.1 306,063 255,006 

Overseas venture capital 9,904 8.6 10,756 9,052 

Total Assets 517,928  564,024 471,791 

 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will 

fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss. The market values of 

investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of 

loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities. The 

selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that 

may occur through the failure to settle a transaction in a timely manner.  

 

The Fund is separately addressed within the Council’s Annual Treasury Strategy and this 

document sets out the Fund’s approach to credit risk for internally managed funds.  Deposits are 

not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently and meet the 

Council’s credit criteria. The Fund has also set limits as to the maximum percentage of the deposits 

placed with any one class of financial institution. 

 

The Fund believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk, and the Fund has had no experience 

of default or uncollectable deposits over the past five financial years. The Fund’s cash holding 

under its internal treasury management arrangements at 31 March 2022, including current account 

cash, was £2.9m (31 March 2021: £1.9m).  This was held with the following institutions: 

 

 

Rating 

Balance at  

31 March 2021 

Balance at  

31 March 2022 

 £’000 £’000 

Bank Current Accounts    

Bank of Scotland A+ 1,952 2,967 

Northern Trust AA 8,139 18,343 

Total 10,091 21,310 

 

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 

they fall due. The Council therefore takes steps to ensure that the Pension Fund has adequate 

cash resources to meet its commitments.  

 

The Council has immediate access to its internally managed Pension Fund cash holdings through 

use of instant access accounts or money market funds.  

Page 241



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

57 

 

The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three months. Illiquid 

assets are those assets which will take longer than three months to convert in to cash. As at 31 

March 2022, the Fund’s illiquid assets under this definition are some of the Property fund of funds 

holdings and the infrastructure holdings. 

 

19 FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS 

In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2018, the Fund’s Actuary 
undertakes a funding valuation every three years for the purpose of setting employer contribution 
rates for the forthcoming triennial period. 

The Actuarial Valuation assesses the health of the fund and provides a check that the Funding 
Strategy and assumptions used are appropriate. 
 

2020 Actuarial Valuation 
The 2020 Actuarial Valuation was undertaken for the Fund as at 31 March 2020 (full report available 

on the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund website). The Valuation was completed during the 

financial year 2020/21 by the Funds actuaries, Hyman Robertson.   It has been undertaken in 

accordance with Regulation 60 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) 

(Scotland) Regulations 2014. 

 

The funding level of the Fund as at the 31 March 2020 was 110%, compared to the 31 March 2017 

valuation of 114% and this corresponded to a surplus of £63m.  The following table summarises 

the funding position. 

 

Past Service Funding Position – Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 

Valuation Date as at 31 March 
2017 

£m 
2020 

£m 

Value of the Scheme Liabilities (573) (650) 

Smoothed Asset Value 654 713 

Surplus/ (Deficit) 81 63 

Funding Level 114% 110% 

 

The value of the scheme liabilities is an estimate of the assets required to pay pensions over the 

coming years. The smoothed asset value is the contributions received from employers and 

members as well as investment returns.  The surplus or deficit on the Fund is the difference 

between the two.  

The next detailed Actuarial Valuation will be carried out for the Fund as at 31st March 2023. 

Valuation Assumptions 
The valuation of the Fund has been undertaken using the projected unit method under which the 

salary increase for each member is assumed to increase until they leave active service by death, 

retirement or withdrawal from service.  

  

Page 242



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

58 

 

Financial Assumptions 
The principal assumptions used in the last triennial valuation (to March 2020) were: 
 

  2017 Valuation 2020 Valuation 

 %  p.a. %  p.a. 

Investment Return 5.0 3.8 

Pay Increases – Long 

Term 

3.8 2.6 

Pension Increases 2.8 1.9 

Discount Rate 5.0 3.8 

 
Demographic Assumptions 
The mortality assumptions used and applied to all members are bespoke set of Vita Curves tailored 

to fit the membership profile of the Fund.  The assumptions are shown below. 

 

Life Expectancy after age 65  
31 March 

2017 

31 March 
2020 

Pensioners Male 21.7 20.9 

Female 24.3 23.5 

Non Pensioners Male 23.5 21.9 

Female 26.2 25.4 

 

Commutation Assumption 

It is assumed that future retirees will commute pension to provide a lump sum of 50% of the 

maximum allowed under HMRC rules. 

 

50:50 option 

It is assumed that 0% of active members will take up the 50:50 option in the LGPS 2014 scheme. 

 

20 ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

In addition to the Triennial Funding Valuation, the Fund’s Actuary also undertakes a valuation of 
pension fund liabilities (actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits) at the accounting 
date as required by International Accounting Standard (IAS) 26, and calculated in line with IAS 19 
assumptions.  
 
This uses the same base data as the Triennial Funding Valuation rolled forward to the current 
financial year, taking account of changes in membership numbers and updating assumptions to 
the current year.  This valuation is not carried out on the same basis as that used for setting Fund 
employer contribution rates and the Fund Account does not take account of liabilities to pay 
pensions and other benefits in the future. 
 

The actuarial present values, calculated in line with IAS 19, are set out in the table below.  

 

Page 243



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

59 

 

Net Pension Asset/(Liability) as at: 

31 March 2020 

£m 

31 March 2021 

£m 

31 March 2022 

£m 

Present value of the defined 

benefit obligations 

(887) (1,088) (1,057) 

Fair Value of Fund Assets* 

(bid value) 

713 860 909 

Net Asset/(Liability)  (174) (228) (148) 

 
The McCloud judgement, which relates to age discrimination arising from public sector pension 

scheme transition arrangements has been included in the obligations figures above.  The 

obligations also include a calculation for the Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation 

which guidance from Treasury is awaited.  The GMP reconciliation exercise is still ongoing but is 

unlikely to be significant, no allowance has therefore been made in the obligations. The 

allowance included in the obligations is used for statutory accounting purposes by the Fund and 

complies with the requirements of IAS 26.  The assumptions underlying the figure are detailed 

below: 

 

 At 31 March 

2020 

At 31 March 

2021 

At 31 March 

2022 

 %  p.a. %  p.a. %  p.a. 

Discount Rate 2.3 2.00 2.7 

Pay Increases – Long Term 2.9 3.5 3.9 

Pension Increases 1.9 2.8 3.2 

 

As noted above, liabilities are calculated on an IAS 19 basis and therefore will differ from the results 

of the 2020 Triennial Funding Valuation (see Note 19) because IAS 19 stipulates a discount rate, 

rather than a rate that reflects the market rate for investment returns on the Fund’s assets. 

  

Page 244



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

60 

 

21 CURRENT ASSETS 

Current Assets  

As 31 March 
2021 

As 31 March 
2022 

£'000 £'000 

Short term debtors   

Contributions Due – Employees 30 22 

Contributions Due - Employers 87 67 

 117 89 

Transfer value receivable (joiners) 456 1,013 

Sundry Debtors 7 13 

Prepayments 82 92 

Total 662 1,207 

 
Cash Balances 

 
1,952 

 
2,967 

Total 2,614 4,174 

 

22 CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities  

As 31 March 
2021 

As 31 March 
2022 

£'000 £'000 

Transfer value payable (leavers) 566 258 

Sundry Creditors 1,939 1,582 

Benefits payable 209 570 

Total 2,714 2,410 

 

23 ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS 

Additional Voluntary Contributions are invested separately from the main Fund, securing 

additional benefits on a money purchase basis for those members that have elected to 

contribute.  All AVCs are managed by Standard Life and the value at 31 March 2022 was 

£1.949m (2021 £1.636m).  During the year contributions in totalled £0.458m, while payments out 

of the AVC fund totalled £0.202m.  In accordance with regulation 4(2)(b) of the Government 

Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)(Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SI 

2009/3093), AVCs are not included in the Pension Fund balance sheet. 

 
24 AGENCY SERVICES 

There are no agency service agreements in place. 
 
25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the year, the Pension Fund had an average balance of £1.40m (2021: £1.43m) of cash 

administered by Scottish Borders Council within separate external banking arrangements, which 

earned interest of £0.001m (2021 £0.005m).  The Council charged the Pension Fund £0.320m 

(2021 £0.281m) in respect of expenses incurred in administering the Fund.  There are no additional 

related party transactions that require to be disclosed.  The Pension Fund balance due to Scottish 

Page 245



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

61 

Borders Council by the Pension Fund at the balance sheet date and disclosed in the net assets 

statement was as follows:  

 

 
As at 31 March  

2021 2022 

£’000 £’000 

Due (to)/from Scottish Borders Council (244)  (50) 

 
 
Governance 
Six members of the Pension Fund Committee were active members of the Pension Fund during 

2021/22.  One member of the Pension Fund Committee was in receipt of pension benefits from the 

Fund. 

 

26 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

The key management personnel, during 2020/21 and 2021/22, of the Fund is Scottish Borders 
Council Director- Finance & Corporate Governance.  Total remuneration payable is set out below. 
As the Fund does not employ any staff directly a full remuneration report is not required. 
 

31 March 2021 
£000’s 

 31 March 2022 
£000’s 

111 Short-term benefits 113 

- Post-employment benefits - 

7 Other long-term benefits 5 

- Termination benefits - 

118 Total 118 

The figures above reflect the full remuneration as reported in Scottish Borders Council Accounts.  The 
Pension Fund is recharged 10% of the above post. 

 

27 CONTINGENT ASSETS 

One of the admitted body employers in the Pension Fund holds an insurance bond to guard against 

the possibility of being unable to meet their pension obligations.  This bond is drawn in favour of 

the Pension Fund and payment will only be triggered in the event of employer default. 

 

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITES 

GMP Equalisation 

On 26 October 2018, the High Court ruled that Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) should be 

equalised between men and women to address the discrepancies in members’ benefits arising 

from the contracting out of the additional state pension between 17 May 1990 and 6 April 1997.  

The Fund recognises the potential for liabilities arising from GMP equalisation.  As guidance has 

not yet been issued by the Treasury it is not possible to quantify the impact this will have on the 

Fund at this time, however, an allowance for full GMP indexation was included within the 31 March 

2020 funding valuation position and therefore the allowance is automatically included within the 31 

March 2022 accounts. 

 

GMP Reconciliation 

The exercise known as GMP Reconciliation to reconcile HM Revenue contracted out records with 

those of pension funds is reaching a conclusion.  The full cost implication of this is not yet known.  

Page 246



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

62 

Scottish Ministers are expected to legislate that any LGPS pensions that have been overpaid due 

to incorrect GMPs being held should not be reduced.  Instead it is expected that overpayments will 

be ring fenced and frozen at their current level.  Final information has been received from HMRC 

and will be added to the Pensions Administration System, this has been delayed since 2021-22 

due to other competing priorities. 

 

Goodwin 

The Goodwin tribunal relates to a recent employment tribunal that changes the pension 

entitlement of male survivors in opposite sex marriages to take into account the female member’s 

service from 6 April 1978. Previously, the male spouse survivor’s entitlement was based on 

service accrued from 6 April 1988. The change is backdated to 5 December 2005. The change 

therefore affects the pension of male spouse survivors where their entitlement arose (i.e. where 

the female member died) on or after 5 December 2005. It is too early to know what the likely 

effect may be on LGPS members’ benefits at this time. 

 

29 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

The unaudited Statement of Accounts was issued by the Acting Chief Financial Officer on 30 

June 2022.  Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or 

notes.  

  

Page 247



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

63 

 

 

SECTION 4 

 

 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION  
 

 

 

  

Page 248



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

64 

PENSION ADMINSTRATION STRATEGY 

The Pension Administration Strategy approved in 14 December 2021 sets out the procedures 

and performance standards required by both Scottish Borders Council, as administrating 

authority and the employers with the Fund.  The procedures and performance standards are 

agreed to ensure the efficient and effective administration of the pension scheme.  The strategy 

aims to ensure that 

 A high quality pension service is delivered to all scheme members 

 Pension benefits are paid accurately and on time 

 Successful partnership working develops between the Fund and its employers 

 Performance standards are understood, achieved and reported; and 

 Performance and service delivery comply with the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(LGPS) regulations, other related legislation and The Pension Regulator’s Codes of 

Practice. 

PERFORMANCE 

The Pension Administration Strategy sets out the statutory responsibilities of Scottish Borders 

Council as the administrating authority.  Service standards and key performance measures are 

agreed.  The performance against these agreed standards and measures are reported annually 

to the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fund Board. 

The performance for the year to 31 March 2022 is set out below. 

 

Employer Performance Measures 

Service Standards 

Standard – target completion 90% Volume %age Met 

New starts notification – within 20 working days 905 99.45% 

Change notification – within 20 days 872 100% 

Retirement info – at least 20 working days before 289 100% 

Early leaver notification – within 20 working days 663 100% 

Death in service notification – within 10 working days 4 100% 

 

Contribution Payments 

The following tables compare the date contribution payments are received against the target 

date, of 19th of the month, for each of the Scheduled and Active Admitted Bodies. 

 

Employer Body By Target Date Late % On Time 

Scottish Borders Council 12 - 100% 

Visit Scotland 12 - 100% 

Borders College 12 - 100% 

Scottish Borders Housing 
Association 

12 - 100% 

Page 249



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

65 

Jedburgh Leisure Facilities Trust 12 - 100% 

Borders Sport and Leisure Trust 12 - 100% 

AMEY Community Limited 12 - 100% 

SB Cares 12 - 100% 

CGI 12 - 100% 

South of Scotland Enterprise 13 - 100% 
 

There were no late payments received during 2021-22.  

 

Administering Authority Performance Measures 

Service Standards 

Standard Volume Target %age Met 

Estimates – Transfer In 51 20 days 68.00% 

Estimates – Transfer Out 64 20 days 56.25% 

Estimate – All Other 1,367 10 days  

 

With the continuation of homeworking, due to the pandemic, staff remained focused on ensuring 

payments were made on time and adapting to new working practices it was accepted that it was 

not going to be possible to record all queries received as in previous years. Therefore, it has not 

been possible to provide the split as previous. We also saw a move towards queries coming in 

via email and Members Self Service, which is reflected in the table below. 

Type of Query Volume Target %age Met 

Phone Calls logged 59 5 days 100% 

Phone Calls to team 6,022 Not measured 

Emails to pensions@scotborders.gov.uk mailbox 4,102 Not measured 

Emails to team members directly 6,692 Not measured 

Correspondence via Members Self Service 550 Not measured 

Total 17,425   

 

Other Measures 

Area Measure Completed 

Employer Liaison Meetings 1 per annum 15th March 2022 

Benefit Statements by end of August Issued by 16th August 

2021 

 

Page 250

mailto:pensions@scotborders.gov.uk


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

66 

The seventh liaison meeting, held virtually, with all Admitted and Scheduled Bodies was held 

during 2021/22 and re-enforced the changes that had been made to the annual reporting 

with the Fund Actuary from the 2020/21 year end and afforded the employers the chance to 

ask questions to the Pensions Team.  Going forward we will continue to hold the liaison 

meeting towards the end of the financial year where we will discuss up-coming legislative 

changes and requirements for the year end processing. 

 

The Annual Benefit Statements were issued in paper format to Deferred Members and 

loaded into the Member Self Service (MSS) portal, all Deferred Members were invited to sign 

up for MSS and advised that they will be published here going forward.  The Annual Benefit 

Statements for Active Members were published to MSS and personal invitations to sign up 

were issued to all members either via the email address held on system or through the 

Employers. 

Key Administration Tasks  

Task Total received 

New entrants 878 

Early leavers 663 

Retirements 289 

Deaths in service 4 

Deaths in deferment 3 

Deaths in retirement 120 

New Widows(ers), Child Pensions 63 

Estimates 1367 

Pension credit members 0 

Pay all Pensioners on 15th of the month or prior working day 

when 15th is a non-banking day 

100% achieved 

 

Member Self Service Statistics  

 

Task Total 

Active 

Target % Completed 

in target 

Active Members 4,703 100% 
27.52% 

Deferred Members 3,194 100% 

Benefit calculations run 12,579   

 

Page 251



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

67 

MEMBERSHIP 

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join the 
scheme, remain in the scheme or make their own personal arrangements outside the scheme. 

Teachers are not included as they are enrolled as members of schemes managed and 
administered by the Scottish Public Pension Agency. 

The current membership of the Fund is 12,178, of which 4,703 are actively contributing and 4,281 
are in receipt of their benefits.  The table over provides a summary of the trends in membership: 

 

 

There are 17 employer organisations with the Fund including the Council itself.  Membership by 

employer is analysed in the table below. 

Membership Details as at 31 March 
2022 

Number of 
Contributors 

Pensioners 
Deferred 

Pensioners 
Total 

Scheduled Bodies: 

Scottish Borders Council 4,158 3,806 2,756 10,720 

Borders College 211 104 81 396 

 4,369 3,910 2,837 11,116 

 

Scottish Borders Housing Association 60 109 73 242 

LIVE Borders 119 70 77 266 

Jedburgh Leisure Facilities Trust 2 2 - 4 

Amey Community Limited (TUPEE 
Staff only) 

2 10 2 14 

CGI (TUPEE Staff only) 26 10 9 45 

South of Scotland Enterprise 125 1 1 127 

 334 202 162 698 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Membership Numbers

Contributing Deferred Pensioners/Dependents

Page 252



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

68 

 

SB Cares - 126 170 296 

Gala Youth Project - 2 - 2 

Scottish Borders Careers - 3 1 4 

L&B Community Justice Authority - 3 6 9 

BC Consultants - 16 14 30 

Others - 19 4 23 

 - 169 195 364 

Total 4,703 4,281 3,194 12,178 

 

COMMUNICATION POLICY AND PERFORMANCE 

COMMUNICATION POLICY 

The Fund approved the current Communications Policy on 16 September 2021.  The overall aim 

of the Communications Policy is to provide communication in an efficient manner to all 

stakeholders, ensuring that it is: - 

 Delivered in a timely efficient and effective manner 

 Provides relevant content to the audience, with a clear purpose and message 

 Well written, avoiding being of a technical nature wherever possible based on the 

differing needs of the stakeholders 

 Becoming increasingly digital. 

 

The objective of this policy is to ensure that: - 

 Pension regulations and the policies of the Fund are communicated in a clear and 

informative manner 

 Benefits of the scheme are promoted to ensure this is recognised as an integral part of 

the employee reward package 

 Information is provided in the most appropriate manner to allow scheme members to 

make more informed decisions relating to their pensions 

 Communication methods are continually evaluated, assessed and redesigned where 

necessary to ensure continuing effectiveness 

 

The communication methods utilized are:- 

Fund website to provide information to as many stakeholders as possible at a time that suits 

them we provide access to the following: - 

 Scheme policies 

 Scheme benefits 

 Contact details 

 Links to other useful sites 

 

The Fund has deployed a secure portal for all active and deferred members of the LGPS, which 

provides direct access for scheme members to view personalised pension data and further 

enhances the communications with active and deferred scheme members in a modern digital 

manner. The portal also allows members to carry out the following: - 

 View all the details they need about their LGPS Pension in real time 

 Carry out pension quotes on demand without needing to contact The Pensions Team 

 Annual Benefit Statements available to view 

Page 253



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

69 

 Check and update nominations of beneficiary 

 Upload any documents that the Pensions Team request 

 Use the contact facility to raise any questions in an electronic manner 

 Provide feedback on the MSS application 

 

Scottish Borders Council Website for Pension Committee and Local Pension Board agendas and 

minutes can be found on the main Council website, www.scotborders.gov.uk  The Fund uses 

both surface and e-mail to send and receive general correspondence.   Roadshows and 

presentations are available to employer workplaces and attend roadshows, seminars, induction 

and pre-retirement presentations on request, a minimum period of four weeks’ notice will be 

required to allow for appropriate preparations.  Scheme members can arrange to visit our offices 

to speak to a member of our Pensions Administration Team, they can arrange to pre-book 

appointments by e-mail or telephone. 

 

The introduction of the Pension Fund website in June 2018 has allowed members to access 

information and documents.  The table below details the number of visits to the site since it was 

launched to end of March 2022. The scheme website can be found at 

www.scottishborderscouncilpensionfund.org 

 

COMMUNICATION PERFORMANCE 

The following communications took place during 2021/22 

 The Employer Liaison meeting was held as a virtual meeting due to the restrictions in 

place as a result of the Covid-19 situation.  In addition to the meeting an email was issued 

to all employers providing the details of the requirements for the year end reporting for 

the scheme and action to be taken in preparation for the coming years’ payroll   

 Deployment of Member Self Service with emails issued to all active members to 

encourage sign up and provide access to the Annual Benefit Statement 

 Annual Benefit Statements were issued in hard copy format to all deferred members 

including information on how to sign up for the Member Self Service portal and newsletter 

 Information continues to be posted within the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 

website, this included the following: - 

Page 254

https://scottishbordersintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=172


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

70 

 Notice that we were unable to issue payslips and guidance on how to sign up for online 

access to payslips 

 Information regarding Pensions Increase 

 Details of Shared Cost AVC 

  

Page 255



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

71 

 

 

 

SECTION 5 

 

 

 

 

FUNDING 

  

Page 256



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

72 

 

FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT 

The Local Government Pension Scheme regulations require each administering authority to 

publish and maintain a Funding Strategy Statement. 

 

The purpose of the Funding Strategy Statement is: 

 To establish a clear and transparent fund specific strategy which will identify how 
employers’ pension liabilities are best met going forward; 

 

 To support the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer contribution 
rates as possible; and 

 

 To take a prudent longer-tem view of funding the liabilities 
 
These objectives are desirable individually but may be mutually conflicting.  The Statement sets 
out how the administering authority balances the potentially conflicting aims of affordability and 
stability of contributions, transparency of processes, and prudence in the funding basis. 
 

The latest Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) was approved by the Pension Fund Committee on 
4 March 2021 and a copy of this document can be found at Funding Strategy Statement.   Key 
elements of the Funding Strategy Statement are the Funding Objective and Funding Strategy for 
the Pension Fund, an extract of these are included below. 
 
Aims and Purpose of the Fund (Section 1, page 2 of FSS) 
Aims To: 

 manage employers’ liabilities effectively and ensure that sufficient resources are available to 
meet all liabilities as they fall due; 

 

 enable primary contribution rates to be kept as nearly constant as possible and (subject 

to the Administering Authority not taking undue risks) at reasonable cost to all relevant 

parties (such as the taxpayers, scheduled and admitted bodies), while achieving and 

maintaining Fund solvency and long-term cost efficiency, which should be assessed in 

light of the risk profile of the fund and employers, and the risk appetite of the 

administering authority and employers alike; and 

 

 Seek returns on investment within reasonable risk parameters. 

Purpose To: 
 Pay pensions, lump sums and other benefits to scheme members as provided for under 

the Regulations; 

 Meet the costs associated in administering the Fund; and 

 Receive contributions, transfer values and investment income. 

 
Funding Strategy (Section 5, page 5 of FSS) 

The Funding Strategy seeks to achieve (via employee and employer contributions and investment 
income) three key objectives: 
 

 A funding level of 100%, as assessed by the Fund’s appointed actuary, triennially, in 
accordance with the Regulations;  

Page 257

https://www.scottishborderscouncilpensionfund.org/scottish-borders-council-pension-fund/about-us/forms-and-publications/


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

73 

 Ensuring the solvency of the Fund and the long-term cost efficiency of the Scheme; and  

 As stable an employer contribution rate as is practical. 
 

 

ACTUARIAL STATEMENT 

The Local Government Pension Scheme regulations require each administering authority to obtain 

an Actuarial Valuation of the assets and liabilities of the Fund every three years.  The last valuation 

was at 31 March 2020.  The regulations require each administering authority, after consultation 

with such persons as they consider appropriate, to prepare, maintain and publish a written 

statement setting out their Funding Strategy. 

 

In completing the valuation the Actuary must have regard to the current version of the administering 

authority’s Funding Strategy statement. 

 

The Actuarial Valuation is essentially a measurement of the Fund’s liabilities and assets.  The 

Funding Strategy deals with how the liabilities will be managed.  In practice, review of the Funding 

Strategy Statement and completion of the Actuarial Valuation are carried out in tandem to ensure 

that measurement and management processes are cohesive. 

 

Triennial Valuation 2020 

The Triennial Funding Valuation as at the 31 March 2020 was undertaken during 2020 and the 

final certified report was presented to the joint meeting of the Pension Fund Committee and 

Pension Board on 4 March 2021. The valuation was undertaken in accordance with Regulation 

60 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)(Scotland) Regulations 2014.  A 

copy of the report is available via the Council’s committee papers website Pension Fund/Board 

Committee papers 

 

The outcome of the 2020 Valuation was a funding level of 110% a slight reduction in the position 

assessed at 2017 of 114%.  The funding position equates to a surplus of over £63m and the 

advice of the Actuary is that this surplus be used over time to partially offset increases in the 

primary employer’s contribution rate of 21.9%.  The Fund’s common pool contributions rate 

remains stable for the first two years but due to uncertainties around the impact of McCloud and 

the Cost Cap Mechanism rates will be increased by 0.5% from 1 April 2023.  Employers out with 

the common pool have seen individual employer rates change for specific circumstances.   

 

 

 Past Service Funding Position – Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Fund 

Valuation Date as at 31 March 
2014 

£m 
2017 

£m 
2020 

£m 

Value of the Scheme Liabilities 487 (573) (650) 

Smoothed Asset Value 490 654 713 

Surplus/ (Deficit) 3 81 63 

Funding Level 101% 114% 110% 

 

Page 258

https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=172&Year=0
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=172&Year=0


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

74 

Note 19 to the Statement of Accounts on page 57, contains details of the outcome and 

assumptions used in the 2020 Valuation and the impact that it had on employer contribution 

rates. 

A major contributing factor to the improvement in the funding level has been the strong 

investment performance that the Fund has achieved over the past three years. 

Employer Contribution Rates 
As part of the 2020 Actuarial Valuation, the Actuary certified the primary rate at 21.9%.  However 

in agreement with the Actuary a secondary rate of 3.96% has been deducted to allow the common 

rate of contribution as 18% of payroll for the next two years with an increase of 0.5% on 1 April 

2023.  The secondary rate will reduce the surplus of £63m over 50 years.  

 

Individual and pooled employers’ rates vary from the common contribution rate (18.0%) depending 

on the demographic and actuarial factors particular to each employer.  The table below highlights 

the key employer contribution rates (i.e. the rate which employers in the Fund pay): 

 

Employers Contribution Grouping 

Employers Contribution Rate 

2020/21 2021/22 

Scottish Borders Council Common Pool  18.0% 18.0% 

Scottish Borders Housing Association – Individual  20.3% 20.3% 

CGI 21.1% 21.1% 

South of Scotland Enterprise 20.6% 20.6% 

 

Valuation for Statutory Accounts at 31 March 2022 
Note 20 to the Statement of Accounts on page 58, contains the present Actuarial Valuation for 

the Fund as required by the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 26.  This shows a net 

liability for the Fund of £148m.  However, the liabilities for this figure are calculated on an IAS 19 

basis and therefore will differ from the results of the 2020 Triennial Funding Valuation because 

IAS 19 stipulates a specific discount rate to enable comparability rather than a rate that reflects 

the market rate for investment returns on the Fund’s assets.  It is therefore not appropriate to use 

this as a measure for setting employer contribution rates or assessing the overall long term 

funding health of the Fund.  The full version of the Actuary report and the current Funding 

Strategy is available via the Pension Fund website: Pension Fund 

 

  

Page 259

https://scottishborderscouncilpensionfund.org/scottish-borders-council-pension-fund/about-us/forms-and-publications/


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

75 

 

 

 

SECTION 6 

 

 

 

 

INVESTMENTS 
 

  

Page 260



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

76 

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES 
 
The Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) is the Funds’ investment policy document and is 

reviewed regularly.  The SIP is updated to reflect any changes agreed by the Pension Fund 

Committee, the latest approved document, approved on 17 March 2022, can be found at 

Statement of Investment Principles.  

 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)(Scotland) 

Regulations 1998 as amended, require administering authorities to prepare, maintain and publish 

a Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) which includes the policy on: 
 The types of investment to be held 

 The balance between different types of investment 

 The risk considerations, including the ways in which risks are to be measured and 
managed 

 The expected return on investments 

 Realising of investments 

 Taking account of social, environmental or ethical considerations in investments 

 Exercising the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments  

 Stock Lending. 
 

The Pension Fund Committee is responsible for making decisions in relation to the SIP and 

approving any decisions in relation to any changes to fund managers, investment advisers and 

custodian.  The Pension Fund Investment and Performance Sub-Committee reviews the SIP and 

monitors the performance of managers.  The Sub-Committee makes recommendations to the 

Pension Fund Committee in relation to these areas. 

The key objectives of the Fund which form key considerations when agreeing the SIP are:- 

 Build up assets to produce levels of employer contributions 

 Seek to maintain a positive ratio of assets to liabilities for the Fund 

 Produce long term investment returns in line with Triennial Valuation assumptions. 

 

The 2017 Triennial Valuation reported a funding position of 114% with investment returns targeted 

at 5% per annum.  Following the 2020 Triennial Valuation which reported a funding position of 

110% and investment target returns of 3.8% the Fund undertook a review of its Statement of 

Investment Principles and its target asset allocation. 

These objectives are reflected in the underlying investment principles, which are considered in the 

development and agreement of the Fund’s Investment Strategy.  The key principles are shown 

below: 

 Long term perspective – by the nature of the Fund’s liabilities and employers, the Fund 

is able to take a long-term view and position it’s Investment Strategy on this basis. 

 Diversification – the Fund seeks to diversify its investments in order to benefit from a 

variety of return patterns and to manage risk. 

 Maturing nature – the contributions received are less than the benefits currently paid to 

pensioners meaning the Fund is a maturing Fund.  Income generation is therefore 

required. 

 Stewardship – the Fund is a responsible investor and adopts policies and practices which 

acknowledge the importance of environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues. 

Page 261

https://scottishborderscouncilpensionfund.org/media/4675/2019-statement-of-investment-principles.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

77 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

The Fund’s investment objective is to support the Funding Strategy by adopting an Investment 

strategy and structure, which incorporates an appropriate balance between risk and return. 

 

Following the 2020 Triennial Valuation, which showed the Fund at 110% funded, the Fund looked 

to increase diversification from volatile equity markets and to spread the risk across an increased 

number of managers.   

 
In common with many other Local Government Pension Schemes funds, the valuation showed: 
 

 Pensioner and deferred liabilities outweigh active member liabilities and; 

 Cash-flow contributions from members was lower than benefits paid to pensions, meaning 

the Fund is in a net outflow. 

 

Using the asset liability model, which assess risk/return against liabilities as the basis for modelling 

a revised Investment Strategy was approved in June 2021.  The diagram below shows the revised 

approved strategic asset allocation. 

 

 

The strategic asset allocation approved maintained the allocation for equities but approved the 

movement of the passive equities into a ESG focused passive fund and the movement of Baillie 

Gifford Global equities into their Paris Aligned global equity fund.  The review also introduced and 

allocation to Housing, increased the allocation to Long Lease property and increased the allocation 

to infrastructure.  These changes were made to increase the alignment of investments with 

liabilities and to increase the income generating investments to ensure funds are available to pay 

liabilities as they become due. 

 

The strategic asset allocation also diversifies the risk exposure in its use of managers.  The Fund 

currently has 11 Fund Managers over 13 funds; excluding Infrastructure. Shown below are the 

current Fund Managers, 

Page 262



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

78 

] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Funds infrastructure investment is split over two areas of infrastructure debt with Macquarie 

and a portfolio of investments developed in collaboration with Lothian Pension Fund.  The Fund 

Managers for these are shown below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The implementation of the Investment Strategy commenced in June 2021 saw the appointment of 

LGIM for ESG Passive Equity and IFM for Infrastructure (funding not yet drawn down).  The table 

over shows the position as at 31 March 2022 against the Strategy: 

  

Page 263



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

79 

 

Asset Class 

Asset 

Allocation  

at 31/3/21 

% 

Asset 

Allocation  

at 31/3/22 

% 

Strategic 

Benchmark 

% 

UK Equity 13.1 3.2 4.0 

Global Equity 32.9 36.0 36.0 

Bonds 20.8 20.3 16.0 

Alternatives 13.0 12.7 14.0 

Property  11.1 16.3 14.5 

Infrastructure 8.1 9.5 15.5 

Cash 1.0 2.0 0.0 

Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 

 

Investment Manager Allocation 

Each external Investment Manager is appointed to manage a specified % allocation of total fund 

investment assets.  The breakdown of the Fund’s assets by Investment Manager, mandate type 

and asset class at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 are show in the table below 

Manager Mandate Type 31 Mar 2021 

(%) 

31 Mar 2022 

(%) 

UBS Pooled Fund -UK Equities  6.0 0.0 

Baillie Gifford UK Equities  7.1 3.2 

Baillie Gifford Global Equities 19.1 12.6 

Morgan Stanley Pooled Fund - Global Equities 13.8 13.0 

LGIM Pooled Fund – Global Passive Equities - 10.3 

M&G Pooled Fund - Diversified Income 13.5 12.9 

M&G Pooled Fund - Bonds 7.3 7.3 

UBS Pooled Fund -Property 4.3 2.9 

Blackrock Pooled Fund – Property 6.8 13.3 

LGT Pooled Fund - Alternatives 6.9 7.4 

Page 264



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

80 

 

Holdings 

The table below shows the top 20 direct holdings at 31 March 2022.  All holdings are held with the 

Baillie Gifford Global and UK equities portfolios. 

Company  

Market Value 

of Holding 

£ m 

Company 

Market Value of 

Holding 

£ m 

Anthem Inc Com 4.5 Alphabet Inc Cap 3.9  

Microsoft Corp 3.8 Moodys Corp 3.6 

Taiwan Semicon 3.0 Amazon Com Inc 2.9 

Prosus N.V 2.9 Tesla Inc 2.7 

Gallager Arthur J & Co 2.7 Pernod Ricard NPV 2.4 

Service Corp Intl 2.4 Mastercard Inc 2.2 

Prudential  2.2 AIA Group Ltd 2.1 

Olympus Corp 2.0 CBRE Group 1.9 

The Trade Desk Inc 1.8 Cloudflare Ince 1.7 

Partners Group Pooled Fund – Private Credit 3.2 3.5 

Permira Pooled Fund – Private Credit 2.9 1.7 

KKR Infrastructure 0.4 0.3 

Infrared Infrastructure 0.1 0.1 

Dalmore Infrastructure 1.6 1.6 

Brookfield Infrastructure 0.2 0.4 

Macquarie Infrastructure 0.2 0.4 

Equitix Infrastructure 0.2 0.2 

Allinda Infrastructure 0.4 0.4 

Gaia LP Infrastructure 0.2 0.3 

Oaktree Infrastructure 0.3 0.0 

Macquarie Pooled Fund -Infrastructure Debt 4.5 5.8 

Cash Internally Managed Cash & Investments 1.0 2.4 

Page 265



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

81 

Thermo Fisher Corp 1.7 Estee Lauder Companies 1.6 

 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 

MARKET CONTEXT 

The start of 2021/22 was dominated by continuing effects of Covid-19 across the globe as countries 

continued to implement supportive monetary policies and fiscal support to their economies which 

were received positively by the markets. 

February 2022 saw Russia’s invasion of Ukraine resulting in significant ramifications for asset 

classes globally.  The expected impact of economic sanctions and supply chain issues 

underpinned equity markets volatility and a widening credit spread (meaning valuation fell).  

Commodity prices also spiked, given the region is a key exporter of several important raw materials 

including oil, gas and wheat.  This contribute to a further surge in inflation. 

Nominal and real gilt yields rose sharply driven by the Bank of England raising the base interest 

rate twice and the increasingly inflationary outlook.  Given the high inflationary environment, index 

linked gilts outperformed nominal gilts, albeit still driving negative returns. 

Real assets such as long lease property and infrastructure have been resilient and posted positive 

performance during the year despite the global volatility.  

FUND PERFORMANCE 

The Fund’s investment returns delivered a positive return of 5.9% during 2021/22 (20.1% 

2020/21) against a benchmark of 10.6% (18.3% 2020/21) for the year to 31 March 2022.  .  

Overall the Fund’s assets increased by £50m from 31 March 2021.  The 2021/22 performance 

although under its benchmark was a positive return in volatile and difficult market conditions.  The 

table over details the 3 year annualised return once which is also slightly under benchmark for 

2021/22. 

 

Page 266



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

82 

Each quarter, the Investment Consultants, Isio, reported on the Fund’s quarterly performance by 

individual Investment Manager and mandate to the Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension 

Board.  The Investment and Performance Sub Committee also met each Manager during the year 

giving Committee Members an opportunity to gain a deeper understanding of the investments, their 

decision making processes and their performance. 

The Fund achieved a positive return of 5.9% against a benchmark of 10.6% for the year.   

The table below provides an analysis of how the Fund’s investments performed against the Fund's 

benchmark. 

 

 
Return on Investment as at 

31/3/2022 

1 year rolling return 3 year rolling return 

Fund 
% 

Bench1 
% 

Fund 
% 

Bench1 
% 

Total Fund 5.9 10.6 7.7 8.7 

Global Equities  0.5 14.0 12.3 14.7 

UK Equities 0.9 13.2 2.5 5.6 

Bonds 2.9 3.9 4.5 3.5 

Alternatives 8.1 5.3 6.3 4.7 

Property 17.3 15.0 6.1 7.2 

Cash - - - - 

 

The table over shows the key driver of fund underperformance over the 1 and 3 years were UK 

and Global Equities, particularly over the 1 year period. This was driven by marked 

underperformance from Baillie Gifford and their growth style over the periods  

Over the 1 year period Bonds also underperformed slightly with Alternatives and Property 

outperforming. Over the 3 year period Bonds and Alternatives outperformed their respective 

benchmark whilst Property, UK and Global Equities underperformed. 

  
 

Page 267



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

83 

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT 

Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund's (SBCPF) overriding obligation is to act in the best 

interests of the scheme beneficiaries. In this fiduciary role the Fund believes that a positive 

approach to Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance (ESG) issues can positively affect 

the financial performance of investments whereas a failure to address these considerations can 

have a detrimental effect.  In accordance with Trustee fiduciary duty, it is imperative that we act 

‘prudently, responsibly and honestly’ and therefore consider both short term and long-term risks 

when making investment decisions. 

The Fund approved a revised Statement of Responsible Investment Policy on 17 March 2022 

setting out the approach to responsible investment and arrangements to monitoring manager 

performance against the principles of the policy on an annual basis.  The key principles within the 

policy are: 

 All new managers adhere to and report on the United Nations Principles for Responsible 

Investment (UNPRI) Code & Stewardship Code, Managers will be expected to use ESG 

factors as a tool for gathering information to improve decision making, thereby managing 

risks. 

 The Fund minimises any harm to the environment and society, whilst ensuring it builds 

up a portfolio of assets that are best placed to meet its future liabilities.   

 The Fund wishes to see its environmental footprint minimised, its social responsibilities 

maximised and the highest standards of employee relations and corporate governance 

maintained.   

 The Fund requires its Investment Managers to adhere to these standards in all their 

investments activities and plans to monitor how these standards are upheld for the 

following set of overarching principles. 

The approved Policy also approved 6 key responsible investment objectives.  These are  

• SDG 13 – Climate Change 
• SDG 7 – Affordable & Clean Energy 
• SDG 1 – No Poverty 
• SDG 2 – Zero Hunger 
• SDG 3 – Good Health & Well-being 
• SDG 10 – Reduce Inequalities 
 

Work has commenced in the assessment and collection of data to allow reporting and monitoring 
of SDG13 Climate change and SDG 7 Affordable & clean energy.  Due to the lack of robust 
measurement criteria or data the remaining objectives will be reviewed regularly as data 
collection is developed. 

 

The Fund actively engages with managers to ensure they are meeting these key principles and is 
incorporating ESG considerations into their investment decisions.   

The Responsible Investment Policy also requires the Fund to review and report on an annual basis 
the performance of Managers.  The third monitoring report was presented and approved by the 
Pension Fund Committee on 14 December 2021.  The key highlights of this report are as follows: 

 16 out of 17 Managers are signatories of UNPIR representing 99.8% of the Fund. 

Page 268



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

84 

 Internal scoring methodology scored 98.8%; of the funds managed by managers, scored 

80% or more than the total available scores, compared to 96.8% in the previous 

monitoring period. 

 

For managers scoring less than 80% in the internal scoring methodology additional monitoring and 

engagement was undertaken. 

The Fund actively investigates opportunities to increase investment in sustainable funds.  This 

active management resulted in a £94m investment with LGIM in their Global ESG Passive Equity 

fund and the transition of £114m from the Baillie Gifford Global Equity Fund to their Global Paris 

Aligned Fund.  

 

Climate Change is a global challenge, which will have a significant impact on the global economy, 
corporations and society as a whole.  The Paris Agreement of the United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change sets three main aims: 

 Holding the increase in the global average temperature to well below 2oC above pre-

industrial levels and to pursue efforts to limit the temperature increase to 1.5oC above 

pre-industrial levels, recognising that this would significantly reduce the risks and impacts 

of climate change; 

 Increasing the ability to adapt to the adverse impacts of climate change and foster climate 

resilience and low greenhouse gas emissions development, in a manner that does not 

threaten food production; and 

 Making finance flows consistent with a pathway towards low greenhouse gas emissions 

and climate-resilient development. 

 

The Pension Fund as part of its responsible investment 

policy has become a signatory to Climate Action 100+ 

which was launched in December 2017 with the support 

of 225 investors representing $26.3 trillion of assets.  It 

now has 575 investors with assets of $54 trillion under 

management.  Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 

became a signatory to this in March 2020.   

Page 269



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

85 

As a signatory the Fund gives it support to the Climate Action 100+ in its engagement with boards 

and senior management of companies to:  

 Implement a strong governance framework which clearly articulates the board’s 

accountability and oversight of climate change risks and opportunities; 

 Take action to reduce greenhouse gas emissions across the value chain, consistent with 

the Paris Agreement’s goals of limiting global average temperature increase to well below 

2oC above pre-industrial levels; 

 Provide enhanced corporate disclosure in line with the final recommendations of the Task 

Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) to enable investors to assess the 

robustness of companies’ business plans against a range of climate and improve 

investment decision making. 

 

Due to the work of Climate Action 100 and other there were a record 215 climate-related 

shareholder resolutions in the recent 2022 proxy season.  Work undertaken also saw the first ever 

net zero accounting related resolution at a FSTE 100 AGM.  Climate Action 100 with support of 

signatories like Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund continue to work with companies to make 

improvements and commitments to Climate change targets. 

 

 

  

Page 270



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

86 

 

 

 

SECTION 7 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

REPORT 
 

 

 

Page 271



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

87 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Scottish Borders 
Council as administering authority for Scottish Borders Council 
Pension Fund and the Accounts Commission 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the annual report of Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Fund for the year ended 31 March 2022 under Part VII of 
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The financial statements comprise the 
Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and notes to the accounts, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that 
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international 
accounting standards, as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the 2021/22 Code). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law 
and the 2021/22 Code of the financial transactions of the 
fund during the year ended 31 March 2022 and of the 
amount and disposition at that date of its assets and 
liabilities; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted 
international accounting standards, as interpreted and 
adapted by the 2021/22 Code; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, The Local 
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the 
Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.  

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by 
the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of my report. I was appointed under arrangements approved by 
the Accounts Commission on 18 July 2016. The period of total uninterrupted 
appointment is 6 years. I am independent of the fund in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK 
including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit 
services prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the council. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Page 272

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

88 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant 
doubt on the fund’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 

These conclusions are not intended to, nor do they, provide assurance on the fund’s 
current or future financial sustainability. However, I report on the fund’s 
arrangements for financial sustainability in a separate Annual Audit Report available 
from the Audit Scotland website. 

Risks of material misstatement 

I report in my Annual Audit Report the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement that I identified and my judgements thereon. 

Responsibilities of the Acting Chief Financial Officer and Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Fund Committee for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Acting Chief 
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the Acting Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Acting Chief Financial Officer is responsible 
for assessing the fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless there is an intention to discontinue the fund’s operations. 

The Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund Committee is responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined above to 

Page 273

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

89 

detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Procedures 
include: 

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and 
regulatory framework and how the fund is complying with 
that framework; 

 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the 
context of the fund; 

 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to 
material misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 

 considering whether the audit team collectively has the 
appropriate competence and capabilities to identify or 
recognise non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including 
fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness 
of the fund’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures 
performed. 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The capability of 
the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the 
skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of 
collusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, and the 
seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s 
report. 

Reporting on other requirements 

Other information  

The Acting Chief Financial Officer is responsible for other information in the annual 
report. The other information comprises the Management Commentary, Annual 
Governance Statement, Annual Governance Compliance Statement, Statement of 
Responsibilities and other reports included in the annual report other than the 
financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.  

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, I am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material 
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work I have 

Page 274

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

90 

performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I 
am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the Management 
Commentary, Annual Governance Statement and Annual Governance Compliance 
Statement to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinions prescribed by the 
Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Management 
Commentary, Annual Governance Statement and Annual Governance 
Compliance Statement 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 the information given in the Management Commentary for 
the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with statutory 
guidance issued under the Local Government in Scotland 
Act 2003; 

 the information given in the Annual Governance Statement 
for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with the Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016): 
and 

  the information given in the Annual Governance Compliance 
Statement for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance 
with The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) 
Regulations 2018. 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the 
accounting records; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I 
require for my audit.  

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Page 275



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

91 

Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities 

In addition to my responsibilities for the annual accounts, my conclusions on the 
wider scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice, including those in 
respect of Best Value, are set out in my Annual Audit Report. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with 
Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In 
accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, I do not undertake to 
have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third 
parties. 

 

 

 

 

 

Gillian Woolman MA FCA CPFA  
Audit Director  
Audit Scotland  
102 West Port  
Edinburgh  
EH3 9DN 

  

Page 276



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022 

 

92 

CONTACT DETAILS 

 

For further information and advice on administration, benefits and scheme membership please 

contact: 

Pensions Team Telephone  01835 – 825052/3  

 E-mail pensions@scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Scheme members should have a copy of the “Employees’ Guide to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Administered by the Scottish Borders Council”, and can obtain their own 
copy of an Annual Report on request. 

or visit Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund website at: 
www.scottishborderscouncilpensionfund.org 
 

 

For further information on the Fund’s investments, please contact 

 

Suzanne Douglas Telephone 01835 – 824000 ext 5881 

Acting Chief Financial Officer E-mail  Sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 277

http://www.scottishborderscouncilpensionfund.org/
mailto:Sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


 

93 

 

Page 278



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ANNUAL REPORT AND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
COMMON GOOD FUNDS 

 

Charity Registration Number: SC031538 
 

FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 279

Agenda Item 8e



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

Contents 
 
 Page 

  

Foreword 3 

  

Trustees’ Annual Report 4 

  

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities for the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements 

9 

  

Financial Statements  

 Statement of Financial Activities 10 

 Balance Sheet 11 

 Cash Flow Statement 12 

   

Accounting Policies 13 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements 15 

  

Independent Auditor’s Report 23 

  

Additional Information 27 

  

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 280



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

3 
 

 
 
 
The implementation of the audit and reporting requirements of the Office of the Scottish Charity 
Regulator (OSCR) requires that full audited accounts for this Charity are prepared. 
 
The Charity comprises of the twelve Common Good Funds within Scottish Borders Council, each 
holding property which it is responsible for maintaining, with many distributing grants to local causes 
which are eligible within its charitable purpose.  
 
Each Common Good Fund within the charity has financial investments and / or property assets; the 
operational management of which is overseen by individual Sub-Committees of Elected Members from 
the relevant ward(s), supported by officers from the Council.  
 

FOREWORD

Page 281



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

4 
 

 
 
The Trustees present their Annual Report and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2022. 

 

Structure 
 
a) The Charity comprises a number of separate funds for the former Burghs of: 

 
 
 

  

   
 
 
 

b) Each fund is administered by a Sub-Committee of Elected Members representing the Council 
wards in which each Burgh is situated. 

TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT

Coldstream Duns Eyemouth Galashiels Hawick

Kelso Lauder Melrose Peebles SelkirkJedburgh

Innerleithen

Page 282



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

5 
 

 

•The charitable purposes of the Common Good Funds are that, subject to their
legal responsibilities in terms of any assets held by the charities, the funds are
operated for the common good of the residents of the aforesaid former
Burghs and may be used to provide advancement of citizenship or
community development.

•In respect of those funds which have land and property, the Trustees recognise
their obligations to ensure that these assets are maintained.

Charitable Purpose

•The Charity has taken steps to ensure that the assets of the Funds are
properly managed and accounted for. Quarterly budget monitoring reports
have been prepared for consideration by the Trustees forming the Working
Group for each individual Burgh and the minutes of these meetings reported to
the full Council in terms of the Code of Governance.

•Maintenance work has been approved and carried out on fixed assets and
responses made to applications for financial assistance as detailed in the Notes
to the Financial Statements from page 15 onwards.

•A number of the individual funds have made donations to eligible beneficiaries
in their Burghs with a total of £76,714 being paid out in the year.

Summary of the Main Activities

•The Common Good Funds will continue to maintain their heritable assets and
will look to maximise their income from any of these assets which are let
commercially. Where assets are used by third parties towards the Common
Good of the Burgh then rental levels may reflect this aspect of the tenants’
activity.

•Where funds permit, the Common Good Funds will look to make grants to
organisations in their Burghs which will provide benefit to the Burgh residents,
as approved by the individual Common Good Committees.

Plans for the Future

Page 283



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

6 
 

Governance and Management 
 
Type of Governing Documents 
 

a) The overarching governance of the Charity is the principle of statute and common law.  The 
statutory framework is the successive Acts from the Common Good Act 1491 through to the 
Local Government Scotland Act 1994, with the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 
provisions still in force, and the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.  Cognisance is also to 
be taken of the various judicial opinions in case law governing the treatment of Common Goods. 

  
b) The funds are governed by Trustees in line with the Local Code of Corporate Governance of 

Scottish Borders Council, consideration being given to: 
 

 
 

c) When considering any action in connection with the Common Good Funds the Trustees have 
regard to the interests of the inhabitants of the area to which the Common Good formerly related. 

 

d) The financial statements comply with the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102), the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) 
Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).  
 

Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees  
 

There is no recruitment process. Appointment is by virtue of election to the Council and the relevant 
ward, i.e. those wards covering former Burgh areas and in terms of the Council’s Code of Governance. 
 

Financial Review 
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with current statutory requirements and 
the charity's governing document. 
 

The applications of the Funds are detailed in the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
Reserves  
 

The charity has considered the reserves required and have taken into account its current and future 
liabilities, ensuring reserves will be maintained at a level sufficient to respond to: 

 all approved applications for grants 

 all financial obligations in respect of properties owned by the charity, where relevant, and 

 all support and governance costs. 
 

At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Common Good Funds amounted to: 

 Restricted Income Funds - £4,019k 

 Revaluation Reserves - £13,718k 
 

Investments 
  
Per the Council’s Common Good and Trust Fund investment strategy the main balance of funds are 
invested in the Aegon Asset Management Diversified Income Fund.   
 
 
 
 

Financial 
Regulations

Code of 
Corporate 

Governance

Procedural 
Standing 
Orders

Scheme of 
Administration

Scheme of 
Delegation

Page 284



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

7 
 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
Charity Name Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 

 
Charity registration number SC031538 

 
Business Address Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders  
 TD6 0SA 

 
Trustees 
 
The Trustees of this charity for the year to 31 March 2022 were the duly elected members of Scottish 
Borders Council (the Council) at that time.  These were: 
 

Sandy Aitchison Andy Anderson Heather Anderson 

Stuart Bell Jim Brown Kris Chapman 

Caroline Cochrane Gordon Edgar Jim Fullarton 

John Greenwell Carol Hamilton Scott Hamilton 

Shona Haslam Euan Jardine Helen Laing 

Jenny Linehan  Stuart Marshall Watson McAteer 

Tom Miers Donald Moffat Simon Mountford 

David Parker David Paterson Clair Ramage 

Neil Richards Euan Robson Mark Rowley 

Harry Scott Sandy Scott Eric Small 

Robin Tatler Elaine Thornton-Nicol George Turnbull 

Tom Weatherston   

 
Due to Local Government elections on 5 May 2022, the Trustees for the year to 31 March 2023 will 
change. 
 
 
Chief Executive - During the period of these financial statements, the Chief Executive of 

Scottish Borders Council was Netta Meadows; at the date the audited 
accounts are authorised for issue, the Director Finance & Corporate 
Governance, David Robertson, is covering the duties undertaken by the 
Chief Executive. 

 
 
Auditor   Audit Scotland 
   102 West Port 
   Edinburgh 
   EH3 9DN 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 285



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

8 
 

Professional support 
 
The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to the Common Good 
Funds which is recognised within Other: governance costs in the financial statements.  All financial 
transactions go through the Council's books of account and their Bankers are the Royal Bank of 
Scotland, Newtown St Boswells. 

 
 
Parent Entity 
 
Scottish Borders Council is a local authority, constituted under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1994, whose principal purpose is to provide a range of public services such as education, housing and 
planning, social care, roads and transport, economic development, environmental protection, and 
waste management.  A copy of the group financial statements can be obtained from the Council’s 
website www.scotborders.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Euan Jardine 
Trustee 
Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 

  

Page 286

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

9 
 

 
 
Under charity law, the trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. The trustees have elected to 
prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
charity and of the excess of income over expenditure for that period. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, generally accepted accounting practice entails that the 
trustees: 

 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended  

Practice have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained  

in the financial statements; 

 State where applicable, whether the financial statements comply with the trust deeds  

and rules, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial  

statements and 

 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to  

presume that the charity will continue in business. 

 
 
The trustees are required to act in accordance with the rules of the charity and within the framework 
of trust law.  They are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, sufficient to disclose at any 
time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity at that time, and to enable the 
trustees to ensure that, where any statements of accounts are prepared by them under the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, those statements of accounts comply with the 
requirements of regulations under that Act.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as 
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the charity and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities.   

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and other information 
included on the charity’s information/section on the Scottish Borders Council website.  Legislation in 
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 

  

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 287



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

10 
 

 
 

2020/21 
£’000 

RESTATED 
 

2021/22 
£’000 Notes 

 Income from:   

3 Donations and legacies 3 1 

120 Investments 148 2 

287 Charitable activities 232 3 

410 Total Income 383  

    

 Expenditure on:   

(628) Raising funds (668)  

(92) Charitable activities (77)  

(54) Other: governance costs  (55) 5 

(774) Total Expenditure (800) 4 

    

443 Gains / (losses) on investment assets – unrealised (3) 7, 12 
    

79 Net Income / (Expenditure) (420)  

    

 Other Recognised Gains / (Losses)   

87 Profit on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 1,308 6 
    

166 Net Movement in Funds 888  

    

 Reconciliation of Funds   

16,683 Total funds brought forward 16,849  
    

16,849 Total Funds Carried Forward 17,737 12, 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES for the year ended 31 March 
2022

Page 288



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

11 
 

 
 

as at 31 March 
2021 

RESTATED 

 as at 31 March 
2022 

Notes 

£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 

  Long Term Assets    

 

13,484 

25 

  Tangible fixed assets: 

- Land & buildings 

- Heritage assets 

 

14,333 

25 

 6 

2,857   Investments 2,902  7 

24   Long term loan to third party 5  8 

 16,390 Total Long Term Assets  17,265  
      

  Current Assets    

57   Debtors 59  9 

430   Short term investment in SBC loans fund 457  10 

 487 Total Current Assets  516  
      

  Current Liabilities    

   Creditors:    

 (28)  Amounts falling due within 1 year  (44) 11 

 459 Net Current Assets  472  

 16,849 Total Net Assets   17,737  
       

  The Funds of the Charity    

 (3,980)  Restricted income funds  (4,019) 12 

 (12,869)  Revaluation reserve  (13,718) 13 
       

 (16,849) Total Charity Funds  (17,737)  
 

All income and expenditure transactions derive from continuing activities. 
 

The Accounting Policies on pages 13 and 14 and the Notes on pages 15 to 19 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 
 

The unaudited accounts were issued on 27 June 2022 and the audited accounts were authorised for 
issue on 24 November 2022. 
 
 
 
Suzanne Douglas CPFA Euan Jardine 

Acting Chief Financial Officer Trustee 

 Scottish Borders Council Common Good 
Funds 

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022

Page 289



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

12 
 

  

 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows how the Common Good Funds generate and use cash as classified 
into operating, investing and financing activities.  The amount of cash held by Common Good Funds at 
the year-end is always nil, as all surplus cash is invested in the short term, in the SBC Loans Fund. 
 

as at 31 March 
2021 

RESTATED 

 as at 31 March 
2022 

Notes 

£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activities    

 (43) Net cash provided by / (used in) operating 
activities 

 (93) 14 

      

  Cash flows from Investing Activities    

120  Dividends and Interest 148   

0  (Purchase) of tangible fixed assets 0   

(79)  (Purchase)/Disposal of investments (48)   

(29)  Movement in short term investments (26)   

 12 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities  74  

      

  Cash flows from Financing Activities    

31  Cash Received from Loans 19   

 31 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities  19  

 0 Net Movement in Cash   0  

 
  

CASH FLOW STATEMENT as at 31 March 2022

Page 290



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

13 
 

 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 
 

Basis of Preparation 
 
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items recognised at cost or 
transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these accounts. 
 
 

 Funds Structure 

Unrestricted income funds comprise those funds which the trustees are free to use for any purpose in 
furtherance of the charitable objects.  Unrestricted funds include the designated funds where the 
trustees, at their discretion, have created a fund for a specific purpose. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the 
donor or trust deed. 
 

Income Recognition 
 
Under FRS102, income is recognised when its receipt is “probable”, rather than “virtually certain”, 
which was the case under the previous Charities SORP 2005.  
 
Full recognition criteria are: 

 Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic benefit has passed to the 
charity 
 

 Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits will flow to the charity 
 

 Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income and the costs to complete the 
transactions can be measured reliably 

 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

 Donations and grants are recorded as expenditure when the activity they relate to takes 
place, regardless of when applications are approved. 
 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.   
 

 Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, 
unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

  

 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 291



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

14 
 

Donations & Legacies      

 
All donations and gifts are included within incoming resources under Restricted Funds.  Donations and 
Gifts in Kind are brought into the financial statements at their market value to the charity. 
       

Resources Expended      

 
Resources expended are analysed between charitable activities, costs of raising funds and governance 
costs.  Charitable activities include all direct costs and other support costs.   
 

Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation      

 
Tangible fixed assets, comprising land & buildings and heritage assets, with a value greater than 
£5,000, having a value to the business greater than one year, other than those acquired for the purpose 
of specific projects, are capitalised. 
 
Where purchased, Heritage assets are held at acquisition cost, and for donations the initial valuation is 
used as the deemed cost, removing the need for subsequent valuations.  These Heritage assets are 
deemed to have indeterminable lives and accordingly depreciation is not charged. 
 
Land is held at current valuation and is not depreciated.  All land and buildings are subject to revaluation 
every five years, with the last revaluation being undertaken in 2021/22.  Depreciation is charged on all 
tangible fixed assets other than land and heritage assets at a rate which will reduce the current value 
of the asset to its residual value over the remaining effective life of the asset. 
 
Following a judicial review decision and the issue of a public consultation on the identification of 
Common Good assets in the Scottish Borders, a number of assets have been transferred from Scottish 
Borders Councils’ Balance Sheet to the Common Good Funds as a prior period adjustment.  Common 
Good building assets currently used by the Council to deliver services have been treated as finance 
lease assets by the Council and remain on the Councils’ balance sheet.  This is on the basis that formal 
arrangements for continued Council use of the assets are anticipated to be agreed.    In the event that 
this process requires further asset transfers the necessary adjustments will be made following 
agreement. 
 

Investments      

 
Investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and subsequently measured at their 
market value as at the balance sheet date using closing quoted market price. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between market value at the beginning and the 
end of the financial year, or if purchased in the year, the difference between cost and market value at 
the end of the financial year.  Realised gains and losses represent the difference between the proceeds 
and cost. 
      

Short Term Investments 
      
Short Term Investments are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or 
disrupting the business and are either convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their 
carrying values.  Short Term Investments comprise of call deposits with the Council. 
 
 
  

Page 292



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

15 
 

 
 

1 Donations and Legacies 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
£’000  £’000 

0 Coldstream 0 
0 Duns 0 
0 Eyemouth 0 
0 Galashiels 0 
1 Hawick 1 
0 Innerleithen 0 
0 Jedburgh 0 
0 Kelso 0 
1 Lauder 0 
0 Melrose 0 
0 Peebles 1 
1 Selkirk 1 

3  3 

 

2 Income from Investments 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
£000  £’000 

1 Bank Interest Receivable from SBC Loans Fund  1 
119 Income from Investment Portfolio 147 

120  148 
 

Following a prior year drop in the income from the Aegon Investment Fund due to the impact of 
Covid-19, dividend income has returned to pre-pandemic levels in the current year. 
 

3 Analysis of Charitable Income 
 

Charitable income is comprised of rental income for properties which are owned by Common 
Good Funds and let commercially; as well as income from the sale of trees from the Burgh 
Woodlands in Hawick of £61k causing a large increase in the prior year. 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
£’000  £’000 

0 Coldstream 0 
0 Duns 0 
0 Eyemouth 0 
1 Galashiels 0 

164 Hawick 102 
0 Innerleithen 0 
0 Jedburgh 0 
0 Kelso 0 

10 Lauder 11 
0 Melrose 0 

48 Peebles 55 
64 Selkirk 64 

287  232 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 293



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

16 
 

4 Analysis of Charitable Expenditure 
 

2020/21 
Total 

RESTATED  

Activities 
Undertaken 

Directly 

Support and 
Governance 

Costs 

Property 
Cost & 

Depreciation 

2021/22 
Total 

£’000  £’000 £’000         £’000 £’000 

10 Coldstream 0 0 10 10 
1 Duns 0 1 0 1 
0 Eyemouth 0 0 0 0 

61 Galashiels 0 3 56 59 
245 Hawick 30 13 151 194 
31 Innerleithen 0 0 31 31 
19 Jedburgh 22 4 12 38 
68 Kelso 2 2 61 65 
66 Lauder 2 11 64 77 
3 Melrose 0 0 4 4 

95 Peebles 11 9 128 148 
175 Selkirk 10 12 151 173 

774  77 55 668 800 

 

5 Governance Costs 
 

Governance costs are comprised of a recharge from SBC and reflect the cost of the 
proportionate administration, finance, and legal time spent on Common Good funds.  The fee 
for the external audit of the charity is charged against Scottish Borders Council General Fund 
and notionally recharged to the Common Good Funds, recognised under Governance Costs.  
This fee amounted to £3,500 in 2021/22.  A notional grant from SBC to cover the full cost is 
recognised under Donations and Legacies. No Trustee remuneration or other expenses were 
incurred. 
 

6 Tangible Fixed Assets 
 

The change in the value of tangible fixed assets has been driven by the following movements: 
 

As at 31 March 
2021 

Total 
RESTATED 

 

As at 31 March 2022 

 

Asset 
Additions 

Gain/(Loss) on 
Revaluation of 

Assets 
Depreciation Total 

£’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

266 Coldstream 0 30 (10) 286 
0 Duns 0 0 0 0 
2 Eyemouth 0 0 0 2 

628 Galashiels 0 163 (54) 737 
4,402 Hawick 0 49 (64) 4,387 

483 Innerleithen 0 94 (31) 546 
529 Jedburgh 0 35 (12) 552 
887 Kelso 0 182 (61) 1,008 

1,603 Lauder 0 114 (36) 1,681 
25 Melrose 0 16 (3) 38 

891 Peebles 0 260 (78) 1,073 
3,793 Selkirk 0 365 (110) 4,048 

13,509  0 1,308 (459) 14,358 

 
 

Page 294



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

17 
 

Tangible fixed assets are broken down between Land & buildings and Heritage assets as 
follows: 

 

As at 31 March 
2021 
Total 

RESTATED 

 
As at 31 March 2022 

 

Land & 
Buildings at 
Net Book 

Value 

Heritage 
Assets 

Total Long 
Term 

Assets 

£’000  £’000 £’000  £’000 

266 Coldstream 286 0  286 
0 Duns 0 0  0 
2 Eyemouth 2 0  2 

628 Galashiels 737 0  737 
4,402 Hawick 4,384 3  4,387 

483 Innerleithen 546 0  546 
529 Jedburgh 552 0  552 
887 Kelso 989 19  1,008 

1,603 Lauder 1,681 0  1,681 
25 Melrose 38 0  38 

891 Peebles 1,071 2  1,073 
3,793 Selkirk 4,047 1  4,048 

13,509  14,333 25  14,358 

      

 Following a judicial review decision and the issue of a public consultation on the identification of 
Common Good assets in the Scottish Borders, a number of assets have been transferred from 
Scottish Borders Councils’ Balance Sheet to the Common Good Funds as a prior period 
adjustment.  These assets amount to a value of £421k as at 1 April 2020.  Common Good 
building assets currently used by the Council to deliver services have been treated as finance 
lease assets by the Council and remain on the Councils’ balance sheet at a carrying value of 
£10,261k.  This is on the basis that formal arrangements for continued Council use of the assets 
are anticipated to be agreed.    In the event that this process requires further asset transfers the 
necessary adjustments will be made following agreement. 

 
7 Investments 

 

All investments are through regulated funds or are traded on a recognised investment exchange. 
 
At 31 March 2022 all investments were with the Aegon Asset Management Diversified Monthly 
Income Fund; while the market value of the funds invested continues to exceed the book value, 
there is a small unrealised loss for the 12 month period of these accounts.  Investment amounts 
and unrealised losses on these investments at 31 March 2022, per Common Good Fund are 
detailed below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 295



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

18 
 

As at 31 March 
2021 

 

Total 
Investment 

 
As at 31 March 2022 

 

Additional 
Investments / 

(Disinvestment) 

Aegon 
Unrealised 

(Loss) 

Total 
Investment 

£’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 

0 Coldstream 0 (0) 0 
17 Duns 0 (0) 17 
0 Eyemouth 0 (0) 0 

161 Galashiels 0 (0) 161 
460 Hawick 0 (0) 460 

0 Innerleithen 0 (0) 0 
953 Jedburgh 1 (1) 953 
267 Kelso 15 (0) 282 
251 Lauder 0 (0) 251 
10 Melrose 0 (0) 10 

508 Peebles 1 (1) 508 
230 Selkirk 31 (1) 260 

2,857  48 (3) 2,902 

 
8 Long Term Loan to Third Party 

 

Balance at 
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

 
Advances 
paid out 
£’000 

Repayments 
received 

£’000 

Balance at 
31 March 

2022 
£’000 

14 Jedburgh 0 (9) 5 
10 Peebles 0 (10) 0 

24  0 (19) 5 
 

9 Debtors 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£’000  £’000 

40 Trade debtors 44 
10 Prepayments and accrued income 14 
7 Other debtors 1 

57  59 

 

10 Short Term Investments in SBC Loans Fund 
 

All surplus cash invested on behalf of the charity with Scottish Borders Council 
 

11 Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£’000  £’000 

0 Grants payable 0 
28 Accruals and deferred income 44 

28  44 

 
 
 

Page 296



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

19 
 

12 Restricted Income Funds 
 

The funds held with the Charity are restricted by area, purpose or both.   

 

Balance at 
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

 
SOFA 

(Surplus) / 
Loss 

Unrealised 
movement 

on 
investment 

assets 

Balance at 
31 March 

2022 
£’000 

(122) Coldstream 0 (0) (122) 
(18) Duns (1) (0) (19) 
(1) Eyemouth 0 (0) (1) 

(327) Galashiels (3) (0) (330) 
(750) Hawick 4 (0) (746) 
(135) Innerleithen 0 (0) (135) 

(1,043) Jedburgh (21) (1) (1,065) 
(311) Kelso (10) (0) (321) 
(287) Lauder 18 (0) (269) 
(37) Melrose 0 (0) (37) 

(628) Peebles (11) (1) (640) 
(321) Selkirk (12) (1) (334) 

(3,980)  (36) (3) (4,019) 

 
13 Revaluation Reserve 

 

Balance at 
31 March 

2021 
RESTATED 

£’000 

 
SOFA (Surplus)  

/ Loss 
£’000 

Balance at 
31 March 

2022 
£’000 

(144) Coldstream (20) (164) 
0 Duns 0 0 

(1) Eyemouth 0 (1) 
(475) Galashiels (109) (584) 

(4,268) Hawick 15 (4,253) 
(348) Innerleithen (63) (411) 
(526) Jedburgh (23) (549) 
(887) Kelso (121) (1,008) 

(1,600) Lauder (78) (1,678) 
(7) Melrose (13) (20) 

(841) Peebles (182) (1,023) 
(3,772) Selkirk (255) (4,027) 

(12,869)  (849) (13,718) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 297



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

20 
 

14 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from 
Operating Activities 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
£’000 

RESTATED  £’000 

166 Net income/(expenditure) for the year ended 31 March 888 

459 
(443) 
(120) 

1 
(19) 
(87) 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation charges 
(Gains) / losses on Investments 
Dividends and interest 
(Increase) / decrease in debtors 
Increase / (decrease) in creditors 
Other non-cash item (revaluation/recognition of fixed asset) 

459 
3 

(148) 
(3) 
16 

(1,308) 

(43) Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (93) 

 

15 Contingent Assets 
 

The charity granted a secured grant to Jedburgh Golf Club in 2004 to purchase land.  The grant 
is to be written down over 20 years.  If during this period the land is sold the balance of the 
remaining funds are to be returned to the charity. 
 

16 Related Party Transactions 
 

Due to the nature of the operations and composition of the Common Good Funds (Trustees 
are comprised of Elected Council Members of Scottish Borders Council), Scottish Borders 
Council is registered as a related party.  Transactions with Scottish Borders Council for the 
year under review are listed below: 

 

 £ 

Interest received on funds invested in SBC Loans Fund 546 
  

Service Charge paid for central administrative support 51,295 

 
17 Restatement of prior year balances 

 

The published figures for 2020/21 have been restated to recognise that assets belonging to 
the Common Good Funds which were previously included within the Scottish Borders Council 
accounts have now been transferred to the Common Good Funds.  The opening balances as 
at 1 April 2020 have increased by a total of £421k in recognition of assets and corresponding 
reserves belonging to Hawick £23k, Kelso £6k, Lauder £298k and Peebles £94k. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 298



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

21 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

2020/21 
published 
accounts 

£’000 

2020/21 
restated 
balances 

£’000 

Income from:   
Donations and legacies 3 3 
Investments 120 120 
Charitable activities 287 287 
Total Income 410 410 
   

Expenditure on:   
Raising funds (610) (628) 
Charitable activities (92) (92) 
Other: governance costs (54) (54) 
Total Expenditure (756) (774) 
   

Gains/(Losses) on investments assets - unrealised 
Profit/(Loss) on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 

443 
0 

443 
87 

Net Movement in Funds 97 166 
   

Reconciliation of Funds   
Total funds brought forward 16,262 16,683 
   

Total Funds Carried Forward 16,359 16,849 
    

 

BALANCE SHEET 

2020/21 
published 
accounts 

£’000 

2020/21 
restated 
balances 

£’000 

Long Term Assets   

Tangible fixed assets – Land & buildings 12,994 13.484 

Tangible fixed assets – Heritage assets 25 25 

Investments 2,857 2,857 

Long term loan to third party 24 24 

Total Long Term Assets 15,900 16,390 
   

Current Assets   

Debtors 57 57 

Short term investment in SBC loan fund 430 430 

Total Current Assets 487 487 
   

Current Liabilities   

Creditors: Amounts falling due within 1 year (28) (28) 
   

Net Current Assets 459 459 
   

Total Net Assets 16,359 16,849 
   

The Funds of the Charity   

Restricted income funds (3,980) (3,980) 

Revaluation reserve (12,379) (12,869) 
   

Total Charity Funds 16,359 16,849 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 299



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

22 
 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

2020/21 
published 
accounts 

£’000 

2020/21 
restated 
balances 

£’000 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   
   

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating 
activities 

(43) (43) 
   

Cash flows from Investing Activities   
Dividends and Interest 120 120 
(Purchase) of tangible fixed assets 0 0 
(Purchase) of investments (79) (79) 
Movement in short term investments (29) (29) 
   

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 12 12 
   

Cash Flows from Financing Activities   
Cash Received from Loans 31 31 
   

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 31 31 
   

Net Movement in Cash 0 0 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 300



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

23 
 

 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the statement of 
accounts of Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds for the year 
ended 31 March 2022 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) 
Act 2005. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial 
Activities, the Balance Sheet, and notes to the financial statements, including 
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity as at 31 
March 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of 
resources for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 
8 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit 
Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I 
am independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including 
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the trustees of Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds and 
the Accounts Commission for Scotland

Page 301

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

24 
 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the charity’s ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for 
assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the trustees intend to discontinue the charity's 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined 
above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud. Procedures include: 

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory 
framework and how the charity is complying with that framework; 

 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of 
the charity; 

 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 

 considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate 
competence and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, 

Page 302



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

25 
 

the effectiveness of the charity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent 
of the audit procedures performed. 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The 
capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on 
factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual 
amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report. 

Reporting on other requirements 

Other information  

The trustees are responsible for other information in the statement of 
accounts. The other information comprises the Trustees’ Annual Report.  

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. 
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the 
Trustees’ Annual Report to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinion 
prescribed by the Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Trustees’ 
Annual Report 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the 
information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by The Charity Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report 
to you if, in my opinion: 

 proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

Page 303

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

26 
 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting 
records; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for 
my audit. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in 
accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit 
Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in 
their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 

 

 

Asif A Haseeb OBE  
4th Floor  
102 West Port Edinburgh  
EH3 9DN  
 

Asif A Haseeb OBE is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Part VII of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 
  

Page 304



Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

27 
 

 

 

Contact Details 
 
For further information on the Common Good Funds, please contact: 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 824000 Ext 5881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Page 305

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


Page 306



 

29 
 

 

Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
ANNUAL REPORT AND 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
WELFARE TRUST 

 

Charity Registration Number: SC044765 
 

FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 309

Agenda Item 8f



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 
 

 Page 

  

Foreword 3 

  

Trustees’ Annual Report 3 

  

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities for the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements 

8 

  

Financial Statements  

 Statement of Financial Activities 9 

 Balance Sheet 10 

   

Accounting Policies 11 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements 13 

  

Independent Auditor's Report 15 

  

Additional Information 19 

  

  

Page 310



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

3 
 

 
 
The implementation of the audit and reporting requirements of the Office of the Scottish Charity 
Regulator (OSCR) now requires that full audited accounts for this Charity are prepared. 
 
Working with OSCR, Scottish Borders Council completed the first step of the re-organisation of a 
number of trusts.  This resulted in the establishment of the SBC Welfare Trust, the “Trust”, which was 
established for the purpose of:  
 

a) The prevention or relief of poverty; 
b) The relief of those in need by reason of age, ill–health, disability, financial hardship or other 

disadvantage; or 
c) The advancement of health, including the advancement of education in health. 

 
By among other things, the payment of grants and/or loans to such charities or other organisations or 
to such individuals who are deserving of benefit as the Trustees shall, in their sole and unfettered 
discretion, select as suitable recipients of such benefit, to be applied by such recipients for the 
charitable purposes of either the prevention or relief of poverty or the relief of those in need or the 
advancement of health, as appropriate. 
 
During 2017/18 further work on the reorganisation of charity funds continued and on 21st December 
2017, Scottish Borders Council approved the reorganisation, in consultation with OSCR, for a number 
of funds to be amalgamated into this Trust on 1st April 2018. 
 
This fund is administered by the Communities & Partnership Team, and features on the Scottish 
Borders Council website and each of the 5 Area Partnership Funding Information Tables in order to 
raise awareness of the fund, and to support openness, transparency and equality regarding funding 
that is available to communities. 
 
 

 

 
 
The Trustees present their Annual Report and the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 

 
Structure 
 
Scottish Borders Council has delegated authority to the Director, Resilient Communities, for the 
following: 
 
1. Approve applications for funding up to the value of £500 from the SBC Community Enhancement 

Trust and SBC Welfare Trust; 
2. Approve applications for grants from £501 to £2,500 to the SBC Welfare Trust, subject to the 

agreement of at least 50% of the Members in the relevant Wards; and 
3. Approve applications for grants from £501 to £5,000 to the SBC Community Enhancement Trust, 

subject to the agreement of at least 50% of the Members in the relevant Wards. 
 

Grants over £5,000 require approval by the Executive Committee of Scottish Borders Council. 

FOREWORD

TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT

Page 311



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

4 
 

 

 

•The prevention or relief of poverty

•The relief of those in need by reason of age, ill-health, disability, financial
hardship or other disadvantage or

•The advancement of health, including the advancement of education in health

•By among other things, the payment of grants and/or loans to such charities or
other organisations or to such individuals who are deserving of benefit as the
Trustees shall, in their sole and unfettered discretion, select as suitable
recipients of such benefit, to be applied by such recipients for the charitable
purposes of either the prevention or relief of poverty or the relief of those in
need or the advancement of health, as appropriate.

Charitable Purpose

•The Charity has taken steps to ensure that the assets of the funds are properly
managed and accounted for. The charity made 15 donations totalling £15,174
during the financial year to 31 March 2022.

•There is varied success in dispertion of the Trust - in some areas nearly all of the
available funding has been awarded, and in others around 25%, despite ongoing
promotion of the Trust.

Summary of the Main Activities

•This fund is administered by the Communities & Partnership Team, and
features on the SBC website and each of the 5 Area Partnership Funding
Information Tables in order to raise awareness of the fund, and to support
openness, transparency and equality regarding funding that is available to our
communities:

• https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20076/community_grants_and_funding

•The Trust is also promoted at each of the 5 Area Partnerships held quarterly
across the Scottish Borders.

•It is anticipated that due to the current cost of living crisis, that there may be
more applications and awards made during 2022/23.

Plans for the Future

Page 312



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

5 
 

Governance and Management 
 
Type of Governing Documents 
 
a) A Trust Deed has been established and approved by OSCR detailing the purpose and structure 

of the newly established Charity. 
  
b) In terms of the Trustee's governance of the fund, these have been approved by Scottish Borders 

Council at its meeting on 21 May 2015 and have been reflected in its governance codes.  The 
codes covering the governance of the Charity comprise of the following: 
 

 
 

c) When considering any action in connection with the Charity the Trustees have to act in the 
interest of the Charity Funds. 
 
The financial statements comply with the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102), the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) 
Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

 
Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees  
 
There is no recruitment process. Appointment is by virtue of election to the Council. 
 
 

Financial Review 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with current statutory requirements and 
the charity's governing document. 
 
The applications of the Funds are detailed in the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
Reserves 
 
The charity has considered the reserves required and have taken into account its current and future 
liabilities, ensuring reserves will be maintained at a level sufficient to respond to: 

 all approved applications for grants 

 all support and governance costs are covered 
 

At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the SBC Welfare Trust amounted to: 

 Restricted Income Funds - £804,063 
 
Investments 
 
Per the Councils Common Good and Trust Fund investment strategy, the main balance of funds are 
invested with Aegon Asset Management in a diversified income fund. 
 
 
 
 

Financial 
Regulations

Code of 
Corporate 

Governance

Procedural 
Standing 
Orders

Scheme of 
Administration

Scheme of 
Delegation

Page 313



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

6 
 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
Charity Name Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 

 
Charity registration number SC044765 

 
Business Address Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders 
 TD6 0SA  

 
Trustees 
 
The Trustees of this charity for the year to 31 March 2022 were the duly elected members of Scottish 
Borders Council (the Council), a local authority constituted under the Local Government (Scotland) 
Act 1994, at that time.  These were: 

Sandy Aitchison Andy Anderson Heather Anderson 

Stuart Bell Jim Brown Kris Chapman 

Caroline Cochrane Gordon Edgar Jim Fullarton 

John Greenwell Carol Hamilton Scott Hamilton 

Shona Haslam Euan Jardine Helen Laing 

Jenny Linehan Stuart Marshall Watson McAteer 

Tom Miers Donald Moffat Simon Mountford 

David Parker David Paterson Clair Ramage 

Neil Richards Euan Robson Mark Rowley 

Harry Scott Sandy Scott Eric Small 

Robin Tatler Elaine Thornton-Nicol George Turnbull 

Tom Weatherston   

 
Due to Local Government elections on 5 May 2022, the Trustees for the year to 31 March 2023 will 
change. 

 
 
Chief Executive - During the period of these financial statements, the Chief Executive of 

Scottish Borders Council was Netta Meadows; at the date the audited 
accounts are authorised for issue, the Director Finance & Corporate 
Governance, David Robertson, is covering the duties undertaken by the 
Chief Executive. 

 
 
Auditor   Audit Scotland 
   102 West Port 
   Edinburgh 
   EH3 9DN 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 314



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

7 
 

Professional support 
 
The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to the Welfare Trust.  
All financial transactions go through the Council's books of account and their Bankers are the Royal 
Bank of Scotland, Newtown St Boswells. 

 
 
Parent Entity 
 
Scottish Borders Council is a local authority, constituted under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1994, whose principal purpose is to provide a range of public services such as education, housing and 
planning, social care, roads and transport, economic development, environmental protection, and 
waste management.  A copy of the group financial statements can be obtained from the Council’s 
website www.scotborders.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
Euan Jardine 
Trustee 
Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 

  

Page 315

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

8 
 

 
 
Under charity law, the trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. The trustees have elected to 
prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).  

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
charity and of the excess of income over expenditure for that period. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, generally accepted accounting practice entails that the 
trustees: 

 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended  

Practice have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained  

in the financial statements; 

 State where applicable, whether the financial statements comply with the trust deeds  

and rules, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial  

statements and 

 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to  

presume that the charity will continue in business. 

 
 
The trustees are required to act in accordance with the rules of the charity, within the framework of 
trust law.  They are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, sufficient to disclose at any 
time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity at that time, and to enable the 
trustees to ensure that, where any statements of accounts are prepared by them under the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, those statements of accounts comply with the 
requirements of regulations under that Act.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as 
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the charity and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities.   

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and other information 
included on the charity’s information/section on the Scottish Borders Council website.  Legislation in 
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 

  

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 316



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

9 
 

 
 

2020/21 
£  

2021/22 
£ Notes 

 Income From:   

500 Donations and legacies 500 3 

28,072 Investments 33,337 1 

28,572 Total Income 33,837  

    

 Expenditure on:   

0 Raising funds 0  

(625) Charitable activities (15,174) 2 

(500) Other: Governance costs (500) 3 

(1,125) Total Expenditure (15,674)  

    

99,000 Gain / (loss) on investment assets  (636)  
   

 

126,447 Net Income / (Expenditure) 17,527  

    

 Other Recognised Gains / (Losses)   

0 Recognition of Investments 0  
   

 

126,447 Net Movement in Funds 17,527  

    

 Reconciliation of Funds   

660,089 Total funds brought forward 786,536  
   

 

786,536 Total Funds Carried Forward 804,063 8 

 
  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES for the year ended 31 March 
2022

Page 317



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

10 
 

 
 

as at 31 March 2021  as at 31 March 2022 

Notes 

£ £  £ £ 

  Fixed Assets    

626,213   Investments 626,205  4 

 626,213   626,205  
      

  Current Assets    

2,250   Debtors 2,972  5 

158,073   Short term investment in SBC loans fund 174,886  6 

 160,323   177,858  
      

  Current Liabilities    

   Creditors:    

 0  Amounts falling due within 1 year  0 7 

 160,323 Net Current Assets  804,063  
      

 786,536 Total Net Assets   804,063  

      

  The Funds of the Charity    

(786,536)   Restricted income funds (804,063)  8 
      

 (786,536) Total Charity Funds  (804,063)  

 
All income and expenditure transactions derive from continuing activities. 
 
The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 14, form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 
The unaudited accounts were issued on 27 June 2022 and the audited accounts were authorised for 
issue on 24 November 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suzanne Douglas CPFA Euan Jardine 

Acting Chief Financial Officer Trustee 

 Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
  

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022

Page 318



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

11 
 

 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 

 
Basis of Preparation 
 
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items recognised at cost or 
transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these accounts. 

 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

 Donations and grants are recorded as expenditure when they are approved or if approved in 
principle only, when final confirmation of amount is received by the applying body. 
 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, 
a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.   
 

 Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, unless they 
properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

  
 Funds Structure 

 
Unrestricted income funds comprise those funds which the trustees are free to use for any purpose in 
furtherance of the charitable objects.  Unrestricted funds include the designated funds where the 
trustees, at their discretion, have created a fund for a specific purpose 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the 
donor or trust deed. 

 
Income Recognition 
 
Under FRS102, income is recognised when its receipt is “probable”, rather than “virtually certain”, 
which was the case under the previous Charities SORP 2005.  
 
Full recognition criteria are: 

 Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic benefit has passed to the 
charity 
 

 Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits will flow to the charity 
 

 Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income and the costs to complete the 
transactions can be measured reliably 
 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 319



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

12 
 

Donations & Legacies      

 
All donations and gifts are included within incoming resources under Restricted Funds. 
 
Donations and Gifts in Kind are brought into the financial statements at their market value to the charity. 

 
Resources Expended      

 
Resources expended are analysed between charitable activities, costs of raising funds and governance 
costs.  Charitable activities include all direct costs and other support costs.  
  

Investments      

 
Investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and subsequently measured at their 
market value as at the balance sheet date using closing quoted market price. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between market value at the beginning and the 
end of the financial year, or if purchased in the year the difference between cost and market value at 
the end of the financial year.  Realised gains and losses represent the difference between the proceeds 
and cost. 

      
Short Term Investments 
      
Short Term Investments are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or 
disrupting the business and are either convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their 
carrying values.  Short Term Investments comprise of call deposits with the Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 320



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

13 
 

 
 

1 Investment Income 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
£  £ 

144 Bank Interest Receivable 87 
27,928 Income from Investment Portfolio 33,250 

28,072  33,337 

 
Following a prior year drop in the income from the Aegon Investment Fund due to the impact of 
Covid-19, dividend income has returned to pre-pandemic levels in the current year. 
 

2 Charitable Activities 
 

The charitable activities during 2021/22 are shown in note 8 by individual fund within the charity. 
 

3 Governance Costs 
 

The fee for the external audit of the charity is charged against Scottish Borders Council General 
Fund and notionally recharged to the SBC Welfare Trust, recognised under Governance Costs.  
This fee amounted to £500 in 2021/22.  A notional grant from SBC to cover the full cost is 
recognised under Donations and legacies.  No Trustee remuneration or other expenses were 
incurred. 
 

4 Investments 
 

All investments are through regulated funds or are traded on a recognised investment exchange. 
 
At 31 March 2022 all investments were with the Aegon Asset Management Diversified Monthly 
Income Fund; while the market value of the funds invested continues to exceed the book value, 
there is a small unrealised loss for the 12 month period of these accounts.   
 

5 Debtors 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

2,250 Prepayments and accrued income 2,972 

2,250  2,972 

 

6 Short Term Investments in SBC Loans Fund 
 

All surplus cash is invested on behalf of the charity with Scottish Borders Council 
 

7 Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

0 Grants payable 0 

0  0 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 321



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

14 
 

8 Restricted Funds 
 

The funds held with the Charity are restricted by area, purpose or both. 
 
The restrictions for each are shown in the table below.  The purpose of these funds are: 
 
a) The prevention or relief of poverty 
b) The relief of those in need by reason of age, ill-health, disability, financial hardship or 

other disadvantage or 
c) The advancement of health, including the advancement of education in health 

 

2020/21 
Balance 

Restricted by Area 
Restricted 

by 
Purpose 

Income 

 
Expendi-

ture 
 

 
Unrealised 
Gain/(Loss) 

 

2021/22 
Balance 

£ £  £ £ £ £ 

242,100 Berwickshire a&b 10,018 (2,648) (195) 249,275 

136,048 Galashiels & District a&b 6,163 (5,091) (120) 137,000 

24,254 Hawick, Denholm & Hermitage a&b 996 (826) (19) 24,405 

47,003 Jedburgh & District a&b 1,942 (506) (38) 48,401 

9,848 Leaderdale & Melrose a&b 406 (6) (8) 10,240 

8,101 Tweeddale East & West a&b 334 (5) (7) 8,423 

825 Tweeddale East & West Unrestrict’d 34 (0) (1) 858 

63,929 Mid & East Berwickshire a&b 2,499 (1,031) (49) 65,348 

28,940 Hawick & Hermitage c 1,197 (993) (23) 29,121 

630 Hawick & Hermitage a&b 26 (0) (1) 655 

7,742 Hawick Denholm a&b 321 (43) (6) 8,014 

23,905 Jedburgh & District c 1,233 (1,018) (18) 24,102 

7,799 Kelso & District a&b 322 (267) (6) 7,848 

96,327 Selkirkshire a&b 3,974 (329) (77) 99,895 

18,148 Lauder a&b 763 (633) (15) 18,263 

8,341 Melrose & District a&b 350 (5) (7) 8,679 

62,244 Tweeddale a&b 3,244 (2,273) (45) 63,170 

352 Bowden a&b 15 (0) (1) 366 

786,536   33,837 (15,674) (636) 804,063 

 

9 Related Party Transactions 
 

Due to the nature of the operations and composition of the SBC Welfare Trust (Trustees are 
comprised of Elected Council Members of Scottish Borders Council), Scottish Borders Council 
is registered as a related party.  Transactions with Scottish Borders Council for the year under 
review are listed below: 

 
 £ 

Interest received on funds invested in SBC Loans Fund 87 
 

  

Page 322



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

15 
 

 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the statement of 
accounts of Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust for the year ended 31 
March 2022 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the 
Balance Sheet, and notes to the financial statements, including significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in their preparation is applicable law and the United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity as at 31 
March 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of 
resources for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 
8 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit 
Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I 
am independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including 
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the trustees of Scottish Borders Welfare Trust and the Accounts 
Commission for Scotland

Page 323

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

16 
 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the charity’s ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for 
assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the trustees intend to discontinue the charity's 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined 
above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud. Procedures include: 

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory 
framework and how the charity is complying with that framework; 

 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of 
the charity; 

 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 

 considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate 
competence and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, 

Page 324



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

17 
 

the effectiveness of the charity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent 
of the audit procedures performed. 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The 
capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on 
factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual 
amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report. 

Reporting on other requirements 

Other information  

The trustees are responsible for other information in the statement of 
accounts. The other information comprises the Trustees’ Annual Report.  

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. 
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the 
Trustees’ Annual Report to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinion 
prescribed by the Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Trustees’ 
Annual Report 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the 
information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by The Charity Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report 
to you if, in my opinion: 

 proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

Page 325

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

18 
 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting 
records; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for 
my audit. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in 
accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit 
Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in 
their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 

 

 

Asif A Haseeb OBE  
4th Floor  
102 West Port Edinburgh  
EH3 9DN  
 

Asif A Haseeb OBE is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Part VII of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 
  

Page 326



Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

19 
 

 

 

Contact Details 
 
For further information on the SBC Welfare Trust, please contact: 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 824000 Ext 5881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

 

  

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Page 327

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

20 
 

 

Page 328



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT AND 
 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
EDUCATION TRUST 

 

Charity Registration Number: SC044762 
 

FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

Page 329

Agenda Item 8g



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

2 

Contents 
 
 Page 

  

Foreword 3 

  

Trustees’ Annual Report 3 

  

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities for the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements 

8 

  

Financial Statements  

 Statement of Financial Activities 9 

 Balance Sheet 10 

  

Accounting Policies 11 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements 13 

  

Independent Auditor's Report 15 

  

Additional Information 19 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 330



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

3 

 
 
The implementation of the audit and reporting requirements of the Office of the Scottish Charity 
Regulator (OSCR) now requires that full audited accounts for this Charity are prepared. 
  
Working with OSCR, Scottish Borders Council completed the first step of the re-organisation of a 
number of trusts.  This resulted in the establishment of the SBC Education Trust, the “Trust”, in 
2014/15.  Investigative work commenced in 2015/16 to identify further “Educational” trusts which could 
be integrated into this Charity.  This work has been ongoing throughout the year and a further report 
will be submitted to Scottish Borders Council during 2022/23 around the possible amalgamation of 
educational based trusts and bequests into the SBC Education Trust. 
 
 

 
The Trustees present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2022. 

 
Structure 
 
Following the establishment of the Trust, Scottish Borders Council on 21 May 2015 approved the 
delegation of authority to the Director, Education & Lifelong Learning, for the following: 
 

1. Make payments to individuals from educational trusts and SBC Education Trust according to set 
criteria. 

 
 

FOREWORD 

TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT

Page 331



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

4 

 

 

• To advance and/or promote cultural exchange by, among other things, the
payment of grants and/or loans, the award of bursaries, the award of prizes,
payment towards cultural exchanges that further an educational purpose both
within Scottish Borders area and further afield (including abroad), to such
educational institutions, charities or other organisations or to such individuals
deserving of benefit as the Trustees shall, in their sole and unfettered discretion,
select as suitable recipients of such benefit, to be applied by such recipients for
the charitable purpose of the advancement of education and/or promotion of
cultural exchange.

Charitable Purpose

•The Charity has taken steps to ensure that the assets of the funds are properly
managed and accounted for. The charity has not made any donations during the
year to 31 March 2022.

Summary of the Main Activities

•The fund will be promoted via Scottish Borders Council web site and continue to
grant awards to recipients who may be eligible for disbursement of funds under
the eligibility restrictions of the funds.

•The ongoing reorganisation work undertaken by Scottish Borders Council and 
led by Director, Education & Lifelong Learning, including further refinement of 
existing disbursement criteria, will result in submissions to OSCR for approval 
to amalgamate other registered and non-registered trusts and bequests into the 
SBC Education Trust.

Plans for the Future

Page 332



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

5 

Governance and Management 
 
Type of Governing Documents 
 
a) A Trust Deed has been established and approved by OSCR detailing the purpose and structure 

of the Charity. 
  
b) In terms of the Trustees’ governance of the fund, these have been approved by Scottish Borders 

Council at its meeting on 21 May 2015 and have been reflected in its governance codes.  The 
codes covering the governance of the Charity comprise of the following: 
 

 
 

c) When considering any action in connection with the Charity the Trustees have to act in the 
interest of the Charity Funds. 

 
d) The financial statements comply with the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 

Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with 
FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 

 
Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees  
 
There is no recruitment process. Appointment is by virtue of election to the Council. 
 
 

Financial Review 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with current statutory requirements and 
the charity's governing document. 
 
The applications of the Funds are detailed in the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
Reserves 
 
The charity has considered the reserves required and have taken into account its current and future 
liabilities, ensuring reserves will be maintained at a level sufficient to respond to: 

 all approved applications for grants 

 all support and governance costs 
 

At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the SBC Education Trust amounted to: 

 Restricted Income Funds - £8,503 
 

 
Investments 
 
Per the Councils Common Good and Trust Fund investment strategy, the main balance of funds are 
invested with Aegon Asset Management in a diversified income fund. 
 
 

Financial 
Regulations

Code of 
Corporate 

Governance

Procedural 
Standing 
Orders

Scheme of 
Administration

Scheme of 
Delegation

Page 333



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

6 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
Charity Name Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 

 
Charity registration number SC044762 

 
Business Address Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders 
 TD6 0SA  

 
Trustees 
 
The Trustees of this charity for the year to 31 March 2022 were the duly elected members of Scottish 
Borders Council (the Council) at that time.  These were: 
 

Sandy Aitchison Andy Anderson Heather Anderson 

Stuart Bell Jim Brown Kris Chapman 

Caroline Cochrane Gordon Edgar Jim Fullarton 

John Greenwell Carol Hamilton Scott Hamilton 

Shona Haslam Euan Jardine Helen Laing 

Jenny Linehan Stuart Marshall Watson McAteer 

Tom Miers Donald Moffat Simon Mountford 

David Parker David Paterson Clair Ramage 

Neil Richards Euan Robson Mark Rowley 

Harry Scott Sandy Scott Eric Small 

Robin Tatler Elaine Thornton-Nicol George Turnbull 

Tom Weatherston   

 
Due to Local Government elections on 5 May 2022, the Trustees for the year to 31 March 2023 will 
change. 

 
 
Chief Executive - During the period of these financial statements, the Chief Executive of 

Scottish Borders Council was Netta Meadows; at the date the audited 
accounts are authorised for issue, the Director Finance & Corporate 
Governance, David Robertson, is covering the duties undertaken by the 
Chief Executive. 

 
 
Auditor   Audit Scotland 
   102 West Port 
   Edinburgh 
   EH3 9DN 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 334



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

7 

Professional support 
 
The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to the Education 
Trust.  All financial transactions go through the Council's books of account and their Bankers are the 
Royal Bank of Scotland, Newtown St Boswells. 

 
 
Parent Entity 
 
Scottish Borders Council is a local authority, constituted under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1994, whose principal purpose is to provide a range of public services such as education, housing and 
planning, social care, roads and transport, economic development, environmental protection, and 
waste management.  A copy of the group financial statements can be obtained from the Council’s 
website www.scotborders.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Euan Jardine 
Trustee 
Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 

Page 335

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

8 

 
 
Under charity law, the trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. The trustees have elected to 
prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
charity and of the excess of income over expenditure for that period. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, generally accepted accounting practice entails that the 
trustees: 

 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended  

Practice have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained  

in the financial statements; 

 State where applicable, whether the financial statements comply with the trust deeds  

and rules, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial  

statements and 

 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to  

presume that the charity will continue in business. 

 
 
The trustees are required to act in accordance with the rules of the charity, within the framework of 
trust law.  They are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, sufficient to disclose at any 
time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity at that time, and to enable the 
trustees to ensure that, where any statements of accounts are prepared by them under the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, those statements of accounts comply with the 
requirements of regulations under that Act.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as 
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the charity and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities.   

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and other information 
included on the charity’s information/section on the Scottish Borders Council website.  Legislation in 
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 

  

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 336



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

9 

 
 

2020/21 
£  

2021/22 
£ Notes 

 Income from:   

500 Donations and legacies 500 3 

502 Investments 556 1 

1,002 Total Income 1,056  

    

 Expenditure on:   

0 Raising funds 0  

0 Charitable activities 0 2 

(500) Other : Governance costs (500) 3 

(500) Total Expenditure (500)  

    

802 Gain / (loss) on investment assets - unrealised (5)  
 

 
  

1,304 Net Income / (Expenditure) 551  

    

 Other Recognised Gains / (Losses)   

0 Recognition of Investments 0  
    

1,304 Net Movement in Funds 551  

    

 Reconciliation of Funds   

6,648 Total funds brought forward 7,952  
    

7,952 Total Funds Carried Forward 8,503 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES for the year ended 31 March 
2022

Page 337



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

10 

 
 

as at 31 March 2021   as at 31 March 2022 Notes 

£ £   £ £  

  Fixed Assets    

5,074   Investments 5,074  4 

 5,074    5,074  
       

  Current Assets    

18   Debtors 24  5 

2,860   Short term investment in SBC loans 
fund. 

3,405  6 

 2,878 Total Current Assets  3,429  
       

 7,952 Total Net Assets   8,503  

       

  The Funds of the Charity    

 (7,952)  Restricted income funds  (8,503) 7 
       

 (7,952) Total Charity Funds   (8,503)  

 
All income and expenditure transactions derive from continuing activities. 
 
The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 14 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 
The unaudited accounts were issued on 27 June 2022 and the audited accounts were authorised for 
issue on 24 November 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suzanne Douglas CPFA Euan Jardine 

Acting Chief Financial Officer Trustee 

 Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
  

 
 
 

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022

Page 338



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

11 

 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 
 

Basis of Preparation 
 
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items recognised at cost or 
transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these accounts. 
 

 Funds Structure 

Unrestricted income funds comprise those funds which the trustees are free to use for any purpose in 
furtherance of the charitable objects.  Unrestricted funds include the designated funds where the 
trustees, at their discretion, have created a fund for a specific purpose 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the 
donor or trust deed. 
 

Income Recognition 
 
Under FRS102, income is recognised when it is receipt is “probable”, rather than “virtually certain”, 
which was the case under the previous Charities SORP 2005.  
 
Full recognition criteria are: 

 Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic benefit has passed to the 
charity 
 

 Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits will flow to the charity 
 

 Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income and the costs to complete the 
transactions can be measured reliably 

 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

 Donations and grants are recorded as expenditure when they are approved or if 
approved in principle only, when final confirmation of amount is received by the 
applying body. 
 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
balance sheet.   
 

 Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, 
unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

  

 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 339



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

12 

 Donations & Legacies      

 
All donations and gifts are included within incoming resources under Restricted Funds.  Donations and 
Gifts in Kind are brought into the financial statements at their market value to the charity. 
       

Resources Expended      

 
Resources expended are analysed between charitable activities, costs of raising funds and governance 
costs.  Charitable activities include all direct costs and other support costs.   
 

Investments      

 
Investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and subsequently measured at their 
market value as at the balance sheet date using closing quoted market price. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between market value at the beginning and the 
end of the financial year, or if purchased in the year the difference between cost and market value at 
the end of the financial year.  Realised gains and losses represent the difference between the proceeds 
and cost. 
      

Short Term Investments 
      
Short Term Investments are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or 
disrupting the business and are either convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their 
carrying values.  Short Term Investments comprise of call deposits with the Council. 
 
 
  

Page 340



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

13 

 
 

1 Investment Income 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

3 Bank Interest Receivable 2 
499 Income from Investment Portfolio 554 

502  556 

 
Following a prior year drop in the income from the Aegon Investment Fund due to the impact of 
Covid-19, dividend income has returned to pre-pandemic levels in the current year. 
 

2 Charitable Activities 
 

The charity has not provided any grants to eligible beneficiaries during the year to 31 March 
2022. 
 

3 Governance Costs 
 

The fee for the external audit of the charity is charged against Scottish Borders Council General 
Fund and notionally recharged to the SBC Education Trust, recognised under Governance 
Costs.  This fee amounted to £500 in 2021/22.  A notional grant from SBC to cover the full cost 
is recognised under Donations and legacies.  No Trustee remuneration or other expenses were 
incurred. 
 

4 Investments 
 

All investments are through regulated funds or are traded on a recognised investment exchange. 
 

At 31 March 2022 all investments were with the Aegon Asset Management Diversified Monthly 
Income Fund; while the market value of the funds invested continues to exceed the book value, 
there is a small unrealised loss for the 12 month period of these accounts. 

 

5 Debtors 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

18 Prepayments and accrued income 24 

18  24 

 

6 Short Term Investments in SBC Loans Fund 
 

All surplus cash invested on behalf of the charity with Scottish Borders Council. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 341



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

14 

7 Restricted Income Funds 
 

The funds held with the Charity are restricted by area, purpose or both. 
 

2020/21 
Balance 

Restricted by Area Income 
Expendi-

ture 
Unrealised 
Gain/(Loss) 

2021/22 
Balance 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 

2,365 Borders Wide 376 (178) (1) 2,562 

5,587 Peeblesshire 680 (322) (4) 5,941 

7,952  1,056 (500) (5) 8,503 

 

8 Related Party Transactions 
 

Due to the nature of the operations and composition of the SBC Education Trust (Trustees are 
comprised of Elected Council Members of Scottish Borders Council), Scottish Borders Council 
is registered as a related party.  Transactions with Scottish Borders Council for the year under 
review are listed below: 

 
 £ 

Interest received on funds invested in SBC Loans Fund 2 
 

  

Page 342



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

15 

 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the statement of 
accounts of Scottish Borders Council Education Trust for the year ended 31 
March 2022 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the 
Balance Sheet, and notes to the financial statements, including significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in their preparation is applicable law and the United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity as at 31 
March 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of 
resources for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 
8 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit 
Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I 
am independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including 
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the trustees of Scottish Borders Council Education Trust and the 
Accounts Commission for Scotland

Page 343

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

16 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the charity’s ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for 
assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the trustees intend to discontinue the charity's 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined 
above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud. Procedures include: 

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory 
framework and how the charity is complying with that framework; 

 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of 
the charity; 

 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 

 considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate 
competence and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, 

Page 344



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

17 

the effectiveness of the charity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent 
of the audit procedures performed. 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The 
capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on 
factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual 
amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report. 

Reporting on other requirements 

Other information  

The trustees are responsible for other information in the statement of 
accounts. The other information comprises the Trustees’ Annual Report.  

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. 
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the 
Trustees’ Annual Report to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinion 
prescribed by the Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Trustees’ 
Annual Report 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the 
information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by The Charity Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report 
to you if, in my opinion: 

 proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

Page 345

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

18 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting 
records; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for 
my audit. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in 
accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit 
Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in 
their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 

 

 

Asif A Haseeb OBE  
4th Floor  
102 West Port Edinburgh  
EH3 9DN  
 

Asif A Haseeb OBE is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Part VII of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 

  

Page 346



Scottish Borders Council Education Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

19 

 
 
Contact Details 
 
For further information on the SBC Education Trust, please contact: 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 824000 Ext 5881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Page 347

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


 

 

 

Page 348



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      
 

ANNUAL REPORT AND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT 

TRUST 
 

Charity Registration Number: SC044764 
 

FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 349

Agenda Item 8h



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

Contents 
 
 

Page 

  

Foreword 3 

  

Trustees’ Annual Report 3 

  

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities for the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements 

8 

  

Financial Statements  

 Statement of Financial Activities 9 

 Balance Sheet 10 

  

Accounting Policies 11 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements 13 

  

Independent Auditor's Report 15 

  

Additional Information 19 

  

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 350



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

3 
 

 
 
The implementation of the audit and reporting requirements of the Office of the Scottish Charity 
regulator (OSCR) now requires that full audited accounts for this Charity are prepared. 
 
Working with OSCR, Scottish Borders Council completed the first step of the re-organisation of a 
number of trusts.  This resulted in the establishment of the SBC Community Enhancement Trust, the 
“Trust”, which was established from 10 funds held by Scottish Borders Council.  The purpose of the 
trust is as follows: 
 

a) The advancement of community development; 
b) The advancement of the arts, heritage, culture or science, including the upkeep of heritage 

assets; 
c) The provision of recreational facilities, or the organisation of recreational activities, with the 

object of improving the conditions of life for the persons for whom the facilities or activities are 
primarily intended; or 

d) The advancement of environmental protection or improvement. 
 

During 2017/18 further work on the reorganisation of charity funds continued and on 21st December 
2017, Scottish Borders Council approved the reorganisation, in consultation with OSCR, for a number 
of funds to be amalgamated into this Trust on 1st April 2018. 
 
This fund is administered by the Communities & Partnership Team, and features on the Scottish 
Borders Council website and in each of the 5 Area Partnership Funding Information Tables in order to 
raise awareness of the fund, and to support openness, transparency and equality regarding funding 
that is available to communities. 

 
 
 

 
 
The Trustees present their Annual Report and the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 

 

Structure 
 
Scottish Borders Council has delegated authority to the Director, Resilient Communities, for the 
following: 

 
1. Approve applications for funding up to the value of £500 from the SBC Community 

Enhancement Trust and SBC Welfare Trust; 
2. Approve applications for grants from £501 to £2,500 to the SBC Welfare Trust, subject to the 

agreement of at least 50% of the Members in the relevant Wards; and 
3. Approve applications for grants from £501 to £5,000 to the SBC Community Enhancement 

Trust, subject to the agreement of at least 50% of the Members in the relevant Wards. 
 
Grants over £5,000 require approval by the Executive Committee of Scottish Borders Council. 

FOREWORD

TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT

Page 351



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

4 
 

 

 

•The advancement of Community Development;

•The advancement of the arts, heritage, culture or science, including the upkeep
of heritage assets;

•The provision of recreational facilities, or the organisation of recreational
activities, with the object of improving the conditions of life for the persons for
whom the facilities or activities are primarily intended; or

•The advancement of environmental protection or improvment.

Charitable Purpose

•The Charity has taken steps to ensure that the assets of the funds are properly
managed and accounted for. The charity made 6 donations totalling £4,105
during the financial year to 31 March 2022.

•There is varied success in the dispersion of this Trust across the Borders.  In 
some areas all of the funding has been awarded, and in other areas there have 
been only a few applications - despite ongoing promotion of the Trust.

Summary of the Main Activities

•This fund is administered by the Communities & Partnership Team, and 
features on the SBC website and in each of the Area Partnership Funding 
Information Tables in order to raise awareness of the fund, and to support 
openness, transparency and equality regarding funding that is available to our 
communities:

•https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20076/community_grants_and_funding

•The Fund is also promoted at each of the 5 Area Partnerships held quarterly
across the Scottish Borders.

•It is anticipated that due to the current cost of living crisis, there may be more
demand across all of the Borders during 2022/23.

Plans for the Future

Page 352



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

5 
 

Governance and Management 
 
Type of Governing Documents 
 
a) A Trust Deed has been established and approved by OSCR detailing the purpose and structure 

of the Community Enhancement Trust. 
  
b) In terms of the Trustees’ governance of the fund, these have been approved by Scottish Borders 

Council at its meeting on 21 May 2015 and have been reflected in its governance codes.  The 
codes covering the governance of the Charity comprise of the following: 
 

 
 

c) When considering any action in connection with the Charity the Trustees have to act in the 
interest of the Charity Funds. 

 
d) The financial statements comply with the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 

Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102), the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) 
Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 

 
Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees  
 
There is no recruitment process.  Appointment is by virtue of election to the Council. 
 
 

Financial Review 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with current statutory requirements and 
the charity's governing document. 
 
The applications of the Funds are detailed in the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
 
Reserves 
 
The charity has considered the reserves required and have taken into account its current and future 
liabilities, ensuring reserves will be maintained at a level sufficient to respond to: 

 all approved applications for grants 

 all support and governance costs are covered 
 

At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the SBC Community Enhancement Trust amounted to: 

 Restricted Income Funds - £212,148. 
 
 
Investments 
 
Per the Councils Common Good and Trust Fund investment strategy, the main balance of funds are 
invested with Aegon Asset Management in a diversified income fund. 

 

Financial 
Regulations

Code of 
Corporate 

Governance

Procedural 
Standing 
Orders

Scheme of 
Administration

Scheme of 
Delegation

Page 353



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

6 
 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
Charity Name Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 

 
Charity registration number SC044764 

 
Business Address Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders 
 TD6 0SA  

 
Trustees 
 
The Trustees of this charity for the year to 31 March 2022 were the duly elected members of Scottish 
Borders Council (the Council) at that time.  These were: 
 

Sandy Aitchison Andy Anderson Heather Anderson 

Stuart Bell Jim Brown Kris Chapman 

Caroline Cochrane Gordon Edgar Jim Fullarton 

John Greenwell Carol Hamilton Scott Hamilton 

Shona Haslam Euan Jardine Helen Laing 

Jenny Linehan  Stuart Marshall Watson McAteer 

Tom Miers Donald Moffat Simon Mountford 

David Parker David Paterson Clair Ramage 

Neil Richards Euan Robson Mark Rowley 

Harry Scott Sandy Scott Eric Small 

Robin Tatler Elaine Thornton-Nicol George Turnbull 

Tom Weatherston   

 
Due to Local Government elections on 5 May 2022, the Trustees for the year to 31 March 2023 will 
change. 

 
 
Chief Executive - During the period of these financial statements, the Chief Executive of 

Scottish Borders Council was Netta Meadows; at the date the audited 
accounts are authorised for issue, the Director Finance & Corporate 
Governance, David Robertson, is covering the duties undertaken by the 
Chief Executive. 

 
 
Auditor   Audit Scotland 
   102 West Port 
   Edinburgh 
   EH3 9DN 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 354



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

7 
 

Professional support 
 
The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to the Community 
Enhancement Trust.  All financial transactions go through the Council's books of account and their 
Bankers are the Royal Bank of Scotland, Newtown St Boswells. 

 
 
Parent Entity 
 
Scottish Borders Council is a local authority, constituted under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1994, whose principal purpose is to provide a range of public services such as education, housing 
and planning, social care, roads and transport, economic development, environmental protection, 
and waste management.  A copy of the group financial statements can be obtained from the 
Council’s website www.scotborders.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
Euan Jardine 
Trustee 
Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 

  

Page 355

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

8 
 

 
 
Under charity law, the trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. The trustees have elected to 
prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).  

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
charity and of the excess of income over expenditure for that period. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, generally accepted accounting practice entails that the 
trustees: 

 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended  

Practice have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained  

in the financial statements; 

 State where applicable, whether the financial statements comply with the trust deeds  

and rules, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial  

statements and 

 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to  

presume that the charity will continue in business. 

 
 
The trustees are required to act in accordance with the rules of the charity, within the framework of 
trust law.  They are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, sufficient to disclose at any 
time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity at that time, and to enable the 
trustees to ensure that, where any statements of accounts are prepared by them under the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, those statements of accounts comply with the 
requirements of regulations under that Act.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as 
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the charity and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities.   

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and other information 
included on the charity’s information/section on the Scottish Borders Council website.  Legislation in 
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 

  

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 356



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

9 
 

 
 

2020/21 
£  

2021/22 
£ Notes 

 Income from:   

    

500 Donations and legacies 500 3 

7,619 Investments 9,181 1 

20 Charitable activities 40  

8,139 Total Income 9,721  

    

 Expenditure on:   

0 Raising funds 0  

(579) Charitable activities (4,105) 2 

(500) Other : Governance Costs (500) 3 

(1,079) Total Expenditure (4,605)  

    

28,142 Gain / (loss) on investment assets - unrealised (181)  
    

35,202 Net Income / (Expenditure) 4,935  

    

 Other Recognised Gains / (Losses)   

0 Recognition of Investments  0  
    

35,202 Net Movement in Funds 4,935  

    

 Reconciliation of Funds   

172,011 Total funds brought forward 207,213  
    

207,213 Total Funds Carried Forward 212,148 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES for the year ended 31 March 2022

Page 357



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

10 
 

 
 

as at 31 March 2021  as at 31 March 2022 

Notes 

£ £  £ £ 

  Fixed Assets    

178,011   Investments 178,009  4 

 178,011   178,009  
      

  Current Assets    

640   Debtors 845  5 

28,562   Short term investment in SBC loans fund 33,294  6 

 29,202   34,139  
      

 207,213 Total Net Assets   212,148  

      

  The Funds of the Charity    

(207,213)   Restricted income funds (212,148)  7 
      

 (207,213) Total Charity Funds   (212,148)  

 
All income and expenditure transactions derive from continuing activities. 
 
The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 14 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 
The unaudited accounts were issued on 27 June 2022 and the audited accounts were authorised for 
issue on 24 November 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suzanne Douglas CPFA Euan Jardine 

Acting Chief Financial Officer Trustee 

 Scottish Borders Council Community 
Enhancement Trust 

  

  

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022

Page 358



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

11 
 

 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 
 

Basis of Preparation 
 
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items recognised at cost or 
transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these accounts. 
 
 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

 Donations and grants are recorded as expenditure when they are approved or if 
approved in principle only, when final confirmation of amount is received by the applying 
body. 
 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.   
 

 Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, 
unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

  

 Funds Structure 

 
Unrestricted income funds comprise those funds which the trustees are free to use for any purpose in 
furtherance of the charitable objects.  Unrestricted funds include the designated funds where the 
trustees, at their discretion, have created a fund for a specific purpose. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the 
donor or trust deed. 
 

Income Recognition 
 
Under FRS102, income is recognised when its receipt is “probable”, rather than “virtually certain”, 
which was the case under the previous Charities SORP 2005.  
 
Full recognition criteria are: 

 Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic benefit has passed to the 
charity 
 

 Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits will flow to the charity 
 

 Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income and the costs to complete the 
transactions can be measured reliably 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 359



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

12 
 

Donations & Legacies      

 
All donations and gifts are included within incoming resources under Restricted Funds. 
 
Donations and Gifts in Kind are brought into the financial statements at their market value to the charity. 
       

Resources Expended      

 
Resources expended are analysed between charitable activities, costs of raising funds and governance 
costs.  Charitable activities include all direct costs and other support costs.   
 

Investments      

 
Investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and subsequently measured at their 
market value as at the balance sheet date using closing quoted market price. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between market value at the beginning and the 
end of the financial year, or if purchased in the year the difference between cost and market value at 
the end of the financial year.  Realised gains and losses represent the difference between the proceeds 
and cost. 
      

Short Term Investments 
      
Short Term Investments are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or 
disrupting the business and are either convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their 
carrying values.  Short Term Investments comprise of call deposits with the Council. 
 
 
 
  

Page 360



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

13 
 

 
 

1 Investment Income 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
£  £ 

23 Bank Interest Receivable 15 
7,596 Income from Investment Portfolio 9,166 

7,619  9,181 

 
Following a prior year drop in the income from the Aegon Investment Fund due to the impact of 
Covid-19, dividend income has returned to pre-pandemic levels in the current year. 
 

2 Charitable Activities 
 

The charitable activities during 2021/22 are included in note 7 by individual fund within the 
charity.  All expenditure incurred was for direct charitable activities. 

 

3 Governance Costs 
 

The fee for the external audit of the charity is charged against Scottish Borders Council General 
Fund and notionally recharged to the SBC Community Enhancement Trust, recognised under 
Governance Costs.  This fee amounted to £500 in 2021/22.  A notional grant from SBC to cover 
the full cost is recognised under Donations and legacies.  No Trustee remuneration or other 
expenses were incurred. 
 

4 Investments 
 

All investments are through regulated funds or are traded on a recognised investment exchange. 
 
At 31 March 2022 all investments were with the Aegon Asset Management Diversified Monthly 
Income Fund; while the market value of the funds invested continues to exceed the book value, 
there is a small unrealised loss for the 12 month period of these accounts.   
 

5 Debtors 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

640 Prepayments and accrued income 845 

640  845 

 

6 Short Term Investments in SBC Loans Fund 
 

All surplus cash invested on behalf of the charity with Scottish Borders Council. 
 

7 Restricted Income Funds 
 

The funds held with the Charity are restricted by area, purpose or both.   
 
The restrictions for each are shown in the table below.  The purpose of these funds are: 
 

a) Advancement of Community Development 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 361



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

14 
 

b) The advancement of the arts, heritage, culture or science, including the upkeep of 
heritage assets 

c) The provision of recreational facilities, or the organisation of recreational activities are 
primarily intended, or 

d) Advancement of environmental protection or improvement 
 

2020/21 
Balance 

Restricted by Area 
Restricted by 

Purpose 
Income 

Expendi-
ture 

Unrealised 
Gain / 
(Loss) 

2021/22 
Balance 

£   £ £ £ £ 

1,843 Cheviot Allerley Well Park 79 (4) (2) 1,916 

1,745 Borders Wide b 73 (88) (1) 1,729 

22,816 Hawick, Denholm & Hermitage b 992 (51) (19) 23,738 

37,653 Mid & East Berwickshire b 1,929 (1608) (36) 37,938 

7,865 Hawick, Denholm & Hermitage b&d 338 (17) (6) 8,180 

16,610 Berwickshire Unrestricted 713 (566) (13) 16,744 

606 Berwickshire 
Henderson Park & 

War Memorial 
30 (2) (1) 633 

1,717 Selkirk Unrestricted 83 (4) (2) 1,794 

18,474 Earlston Unrestricted 818 (42) (15) 19,235 

1,178 Earlston b 76 (4) (1) 1,249 

8,407 Galashiels & District b 398 (20) (7) 8,778 

484 Hawick, Denholm & Hermitage c 22 (1) (1) 504 

23,656 Hawick, Denholm & Hermitage Unrestricted 1,148 (909) (21) 23,874 

255 Hawick Denholm b 12 (1) (0) 266 

456 Hawick & Hermitage b 22 (1) (0) 477 

1,892 Jedburgh & District b 85 (4) (2) 1,971 

936 Kelso & District b 44 (2) (1) 977 

1,657 Melrose b 78 (4) (1) 1,730 

11,856 Selkirk & District b 561 (29) (11) 12,377 

3,389 Selkirkshire b 89 (4) (1) 3,473 

7,043 Tweeddale b 317 (265) (6) 7,089 

386 Berwickshire c 18 (1) (0) 403 

36,289 Lauder & District b 1,796 (978) (34) 37,073 

207,213   9,721 (4,605) (181) 212,148 

 

8 Related Party Transactions 
 

Due to the nature of the operations and composition of the SBC Community Enhancement 
Trust (Trustees are comprised of Elected Council Members of Scottish Borders Council), 
Scottish Borders Council is registered as a related party.  Transactions with Scottish Borders 
Council for the year under review are listed below: 

 

 £ 

Interest received on funds invested in SBC Loans Fund 15 
 

  

Page 362



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

15 
 

 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the statement of 
accounts of Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust for the 
year ended 31 March 2022 under Part VII of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee 
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise the 
Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, and notes to the 
financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and the United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial 
Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 
UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity as at 31 
March 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of 
resources for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 
8 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit 
Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I 
am independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including 
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the trustees of Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement 
Trust and the Accounts Commission for Scotland

Page 363

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

16 
 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the charity’s ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for 
assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the trustees intend to discontinue the charity's 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined 
above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud. Procedures include: 

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory 
framework and how the charity is complying with that framework; 

 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of 
the charity; 

 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 

 considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate 
competence and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, 

Page 364



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

17 
 

the effectiveness of the charity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent 
of the audit procedures performed. 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The 
capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on 
factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual 
amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report. 

Reporting on other requirements 

Other information  

The trustees are responsible for other information in the statement of 
accounts. The other information comprises the Trustees’ Annual Report.  

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. 
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the 
Trustees’ Annual Report to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinion 
prescribed by the Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Trustees’ 
Annual Report 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the 
information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by The Charity Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report 
to you if, in my opinion: 

 proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

Page 365

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

18 
 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting 
records; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for 
my audit. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in 
accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit 
Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in 
their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 

 

 

Asif A Haseeb OBE  
4th Floor  
102 West Port Edinburgh  
EH3 9DN  
 

Asif A Haseeb OBE is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Part VII of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 
  

Page 366



Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

19 
 

 

 

Contact Details 
 
For further information on the SBC Community Enhancement Trust, please contact: 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 824000 Ext 5881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

 
  

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Page 367

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


Scottish Borders Council Community Enhancement Trust 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

20 
 

 

Page 368



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
ANNUAL REPORT AND 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
ORMISTON TRUST FOR INSTITUTE 

 

Charity Registration Number: SC019162 
 

FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2022 
 

Page 369

Agenda Item 8i



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

2 

Contents 
 

 Page 

  

Foreword 3 

  

Trustees’ Annual Report 3 

  

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities for the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements 

7 

  

Financial Statements  

 Statement of Financial Activities 8 

 Balance Sheet 9 

   

Accounting Policies 10 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements 12 

  

Independent Auditor's Report 15 

  

Additional Information 19 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 370



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

3 

 
 
The implementation of the audit and reporting requirements of the Office of the Scottish Charity 
Regulator (OSCR) now requires that full audited accounts for this Charity are prepared. 
 
Due to the Ormiston Institute containing heritable assets it has not been included in the new Charities 
recently established by Scottish Borders Council following a reorganisation of a number of trusts, in 
consultation with OSCR.  The Ormiston Institute remains a single registered charity. 
 
 

 
 
The Trustees present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2022. 

 

Structure 
 
The Charity is a single standalone charity for the Ormiston Institute in Melrose and is registered with 
OSCR. 
 
 

FOREWORD

TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT

Page 371



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

4 

 

 

•The fund is to be used to provide and maintain the property known as the
Ormiston Institute in Melrose to provide recreational and educational rooms in
the town for the inhabitants of the Town and district.

Charitable Purpose

•The Charity has taken steps to ensure that the assets of the funds are 
properly managed and accounted for.  

•The funds generated during 2021/22 have been fully utilised during the year.  
The funds are expended on behalf of the Charity by Live Borders who 
manages the facility on behalf of the Trustees.

•A project, led by the Trimontium Trust, which aimed to expand and improve 
the Trimontium Museum, located within the Ormiston Institute, has now been 
completed and opened its doors to visitors in August 2021.

Summary of the Main Activities

•Scottish Borders Council will continue to manage the service on behalf of 
Trustees ensuring access to the services and building is provided.

Plans for the Future

Page 372



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

5 

Governance and Management 
 
Type of Governing Documents 
 
a) The charity came to be administered by the Council during local government reorganisation in 

1996.  A Trust Disposition and settlement by the late Charles Walker Ormiston was requested 
with the books of Council and Session 13 February 1882.  The present Council are the statutory 
successors to that body. 

  
a) The funds are governed by Trustee’s in line with the Local Code of Corporate Governance of 

Scottish Borders Council, consideration being given to: 
 

 
 

c) When considering any action in connection with the Charity the Trustees must act in the interest 
of the Charity Funds. 

 
b) The financial statements comply with the Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102), the 

Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) 
Regulations 2006 (as amended).  
 

 
Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees  
 
There is no recruitment process. Appointment is by virtue of election to the Council and the relevant 
ward, i.e. those wards covering former Burgh areas and in terms of the Council’s Code of Governance. 
 
 

Financial Review 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with current statutory requirements and 
the charity's governing document. 
 
The applications of the Funds are detailed in the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
 
Reserves 
 
The charity has considered the reserves required and have taken into account its current and future 
liabilities, ensuring reserves will be maintained at a level sufficient to respond to: 

 all approved applications for grants 

 all support and governance costs 
 

At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Ormiston Trust for Institute amounted to: 

 Restricted Income Funds - £540,216 
 
 
Investments 
 
Per the Council’s Common Good and Trust Fund investment strategy, the main balance of funds are 
invested with Aegon Asset Management in a diversified income fund. 

 
 

Financial 
Regulations

Code of 
Corporate 

Governance

Procedural 
Standing 
Orders

Scheme of 
Administration

Scheme of 
Delegation

Page 373



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

6 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
Charity Name Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 

 
Charity registration number SC019162 

 
Business Address Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders 
 TD6 0SA 

 
Trustees 
 
The Trustees of this charity for the year to 31 March 2022 were the duly elected members of the 
Leaderdale and Melrose ward of Scottish Borders Council (the Council) at that time.  These were: 
 

David Parker Jenny Linehan  Tom Miers 

 
Due to Local Government elections on 5 May 2022, the Trustees for the year to 31 March 2023 will 
change. 

 
Chief Executive - During the period of these financial statements, the Chief Executive of 

Scottish Borders Council was Netta Meadows; at the date the audited 
accounts are authorised for issue, the Director Finance & Corporate 
Governance, David Robertson, is covering the duties undertaken by the 
Chief Executive. 

 
Auditor   Audit Scotland 
   102 West Port 
   Edinburgh 
   EH3 9DN 

 
Professional support 
 
The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to the Ormiston Trust 
for Institute.  All financial transactions go through the Council's books of account and their Bankers 
are the Royal Bank of Scotland, Newtown St Boswells. 

 
Parent Entity 
 
Scottish Borders Council is a local authority, constituted under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1994, whose principal purpose is to provide a range of public services such as education, housing and 
planning, social care, roads and transport, economic development, environmental protection, and 
waste management.  A copy of the group financial statements can be obtained from the Council’s 
website www.scotborders.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
David Parker 
Trustee 
Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
 
 

Page 374

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

7 

 
 

Under charity law, the trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. The trustees have elected to 
prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).  

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
charity and of the excess of expenditure over income for that period. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, generally accepted accounting practice entails that the 
trustees: 

 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended  

Practice have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained  

in the financial statements; 

 State where applicable, whether the financial statements comply with the trust deeds  

and rules, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial  

statements and 

 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to  

presume that the charity will continue in business. 

 
 
The trustees are required to act in accordance with the rules of the charity, within the framework of 
trust law.  They are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, sufficient to disclose at any 
time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity at that time, and to enable the 
trustees to ensure that, where any statements of accounts are prepared by them under the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, those statements of accounts comply with the 
requirements of regulations under that Act.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as 
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the charity and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities.   

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and other information 
included on the charity’s information/section on the Scottish Borders Council website.  Legislation in 
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 

  

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 375



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

8 

 
 

2020/21 
£  

2021/22 
£ Notes 

 Income from:   

500 Donations and legacies 500 4 

416 Investments 504 1 

916 Total Income 1,004  

 
 

  

 Expenditure on:   

(55,000) Raising funds (128,333) 2 

(416) Charitable activities (504) 3 

(500) Other : Governance costs (500) 4 

(55,916) Total Expenditure (129,337)  

    

 Other Recognised Gains/(Losses)   

0 Gains on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 349,333  

1,554 Gain / (loss) on investment assets - unrealised (10)  
    

(53,446) Net Movement in Funds 220,990  

 
 

  

 Reconciliation of Funds   

372,672 Total funds brought forward 319,226  
    

319,226 Total Funds Carried Forward 540,216 10, 11 

 
 
 
 
 
  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES for the year ended 31 March 
2022

Page 376



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

9 

 
 

as at 31 March 2021   as at 31 March 2022 

Notes 

£ £   £ £ 

  Fixed Assets    

309,000   Tangible assets 530,000  5 

9,833   Investments 9,833  6 

 318,833    539,833  
       

  Current Assets    

35   Debtors 46  7 

519   
Short term investment in SBC 
loans fund. 

532  8 

 554 Total Current Assets   578  
       

  Current Liabilities    

   Creditors:    

 (161)  Amounts falling due within 1 year  (195) 9 

 393 Net Current Assets  383  
       

 319,226 Total Net Assets   540,216  

       

  The Funds of the Charity    

(61,824) 

(257,402) 
  

Restricted income funds 

Revaluation reserve 

(61,814) 

(478,402) 
 

10 

11 
       

 (319,226) Total Charity Funds  (540,216)  
 

All income and expenditure transactions derive from continuing activities. 
 

The Accounting Policies on pages 10 and 11 and the Notes on pages 12 to 14 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 

The unaudited accounts were issued on 27 June 2022 and the audited accounts were authorised for 
issue on 24 November 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suzanne Douglas CPFA David Parker 
Acting Chief Financial Officer Trustee 
 Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for 

Institute 
  

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022

Page 377



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

10 

 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 
 

Basis of Preparation 
 
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items recognised at cost or 
transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these accounts. 
 

 Funds Structure 

Unrestricted income funds comprise those funds which the trustees are free to use for any purpose in 
furtherance of the charitable objects.  Unrestricted funds include the designated funds where the 
trustees, at their discretion, have created a fund for a specific purpose. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the 
donor or trust deed. 
 

Income Recognition 
 
Under FRS102, income is recognised when its receipt is “probable”, rather than “virtually certain”, 
which was the case under the previous Charities SORP 2005.  
 
Full recognition criteria are: 

 Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic benefit has passed to the 
charity 
 

 Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits will flow to the charity 
 

 Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income and the costs to complete the 
transactions can be measured reliably 

 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

 Donations and grants are recorded as expenditure when they are approved or if 
approved in principle only, when final confirmation of amount is received by the applying 
body. 
 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.   
 

 Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, 
unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

  

  

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 378



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

11 

Donations & Legacies      

 
All donations and gifts are included within incoming resources under Restricted Funds.  Donations and 
Gifts in Kind are brought into the financial statements at their market value to the charity. 
       

Resources Expended      

 
Resources expended are analysed between charitable activities, costs of raising funds and governance 
costs.  Charitable activities include all direct costs and other support costs.   
 

Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation      

 
Tangible fixed assets, with a value greater than £5,000, having a value to the business greater than 
one year, other than those acquired for the purpose of specific projects, are capitalised. 
 
Land is held at current valuation and is not depreciated.  All tangible fixed assets are subject to 
revaluation every five years, with the last revaluation being undertaken in 2021/22.  Depreciation is 
charged on all tangible fixed assets other than land at a rate which will reduce the current value of the 
asset to its residual value over the remaining effective life of the asset. 
 

Investments      

 
Investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and subsequently measured at their 
market value as at the balance sheet date using closing quoted market price. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between market value at the beginning and the 
end of the financial year, or if purchased in the year the difference between cost and market value at 
the end of the financial year.  Realised gains and losses represent the difference between the proceeds 
and cost. 
      

Short Term Investments 
      
Short Term Investments are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or 
disrupting the business and are either convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their 
carrying values.  Short Term Investments comprise of call deposits with the Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 379



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

12 

 
 

1 Investment Income 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

1 Bank Interest Receivable 0 
415 Income from Investment Portfolio 504 

416  504 

 
Following a prior year drop in the income from the Aegon Investment Fund due to the impact of 
Covid-19, dividend income has returned to pre-pandemic levels in the current year. 
 

2 Expenditure on Raising Funds 
 

Expenditure on Raising Funds includes a depreciation charge for the use of the asset and is 
funded from the Restricted Funds.  This is not a cash transaction. 
 

3 Charitable Activities during 2021/22 
 

A single grant is made to Live Borders to maintain the property and provide the services required 
under the Charity terms. 

 

4 Governance Costs 
 

The fee for the external audit of the charity is charged against Scottish Borders Council General 
Fund and notionally recharged to the Ormiston Institute, recognised under Governance Costs.  
This fee amounted to £500 in 2021/22.  A notional grant from SBC to cover the full cost is 
recognised under Donations and Legacies.  No Trustee remuneration or other expenses were 
incurred. 
 

5 Tangible Fixed Assets 
 

The charity has a fixed asset of the Ormiston Institute building and land at Greenyards in 
Melrose.  Following completion of the recent building works to the Ormiston Institute building, 
an out of cycle revaluation has been carried out as at 1 April 2021. 
 
The movement in the value of Tangible Fixed Assets has been driven by the following 
movements: 
 

 

Ormiston 
Trust 

Institute  
£ 

Greenyards 
Trust 

 
£ 

Total 
 
 

£ 

Opening Balance at 1 April 2021 190,000 119,000 309,000 

Gain on revaluation of assets 349,333 0 349,333 

Depreciation for year (128,333) 0 (128,333) 

Closing Balance at 31 March 2022 411,000 119,000 530,000 

 

6 Investments 
 

All investments are through regulated funds or are traded on a recognised investment 
exchange. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 380



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

13 

At 31 March 2022 all investments were with the Aegon Asset Management Diversified Monthly 
Income Fund; while the market value of the funds invested continues to exceed the book value, 
there is a small unrealised loss for the 12 month period of these accounts.   
 

7 Debtors 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

35 Prepayments and accrued income 46 

35  46 

 

8 Short term investment in SBC Loans Fund 
 

All surplus cash invested on behalf of the charity with Scottish Borders Council. 
 

9 Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

161 Grants payable 195 

161  195 

 

10 Restricted income funds 
 

The funds held with the Charity are restricted by area, purpose or both. 
 

2020/21 
Balance 

Trust Fund Income 
Expendi-

ture 

Unrealised 
movement 

on 
investment 

assets 

2021/22 
Balance 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 

55,790 Ormiston Trust Institute 388 (388) (4) 55,786 

6,034 Greenyards Trust 616 (616) (6) 6,028 

61,824  1,004 (1,004) (10) 61,814 

 

11 Revaluation reserve 
 

The Revaluation Reserve contains only revaluation gains made by the Trust arising from 
increases in the value of its tangible fixed assets.  The movement in the value of the revaluation 
reserve has been driven by the following movements: 
 

 

Ormiston 
Trust 

Institute  
£ 

Greenyards 
Trust 

 
£ 

Total 
 
 

£ 

Opening Balance at 1 April 2021 138,402 119,000 257,402 

Gain on revaluation of assets 349,333 0 349,333 

Depreciation for year (128,333) 0 (128,333) 

Closing Balance at 31 March 2022 359,402 119,000 478,402 

 
 
 
 

Page 381



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

14 

12 Related Party Transactions 
 

Due to the nature of the operations and composition of the SBC Ormiston Trust for Institute 
(Trustees are comprised of Elected Council Members of Scottish Borders Council), Scottish 
Borders Council is registered as a related party.  Transactions with Scottish Borders Council 
for the year under review are listed below: 

 
 £ 

Interest received on funds invested in SBC Loans Fund 0 
 

  

Page 382



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

15 

 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the statement of 
accounts of Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute for the year 
ended 31 March 2022 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) 
Act 2005. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial 
Activities, the Balance Sheet, and notes to the financial statements, including 
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity as at 31 
March 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of 
resources for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 
8 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit 
Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I 
am independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including 
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the trustees of Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
and the Accounts Commission for Scotland

Page 383

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

16 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the charity’s ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for 
assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the trustees intend to discontinue the charity's 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined 
above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud. Procedures include: 

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory 
framework and how the charity is complying with that framework; 

 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of 
the charity; 

 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 

 considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate 
competence and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, 
the effectiveness of the charity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent 
of the audit procedures performed. 

Page 384



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

17 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The 
capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on 
factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual 
amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report. 

Reporting on other requirements 

Other information  

The trustees are responsible for other information in the statement of 
accounts. The other information comprises the Trustees’ Annual Report.  

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. 
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the 
Trustees’ Annual Report to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinion 
prescribed by the Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Trustees’ 
Annual Report 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the 
information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by The Charity Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report 
to you if, in my opinion: 

 proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting 
records; or 

Page 385

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

18 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for 
my audit. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in 
accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit 
Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in 
their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 

 

 

Asif A Haseeb OBE  
4th Floor  
102 West Port Edinburgh  
EH3 9DN  
 

Asif A Haseeb OBE is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Part VII of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 
  

Page 386



Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

19 

 

 
Contact Details 
 
For further information on the Ormiston Trust for Institute, please contact: 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 824000 Ext 5881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

 
  

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Page 387

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


Scottish Borders Council Ormiston Trust for Institute 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

20 

 

Page 388



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

ANNUAL REPORT AND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL  
CHARITABLE TRUSTS 

 

Charity Registration Number: SC043896 
 

FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 389

Agenda Item 8j



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

2 

 
 
 
Contents 

 
 Page 

  

Foreword 3 

  

Trustees’ Annual Report 3 

  

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities for the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements 

8 

  

Financial Statements  

 Statement of Financial Activities 9 

 Balance Sheet 10 

  

Accounting Policies 11 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements 13 

  

Independent Auditor's Report 15 

  

Additional Information 19 

  

  

 

Page 390



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

3 

 
 
The implementation of the audit and reporting requirements of the Office of the Scottish Charity 
regulator (OSCR) now requires that full audited accounts for this Charity are prepared. 
 
In late 2012/13 the charitable status of 76 various funds was formally recognised under a single Charity 
registration.   
 
Work commenced in 2014/15 to re-organise a number of the other registered Charities managed by 
Scottish Borders Council into three new Charities covering Welfare, Community Enhancement and 
Education.  Following public consultation meetings and discussion with OSCR during 2017 a report 
was presented to Scottish Borders Council on 21 December 2017 recommending the transfer of a 
number of the restricted funds to the Scottish Borders Council Welfare Trust and Scottish Borders 
Council Community Enhancement Trust.  The formal submission requests were submitted to OSCR 
during February 2018 for approval; following receipt of this approval from OSCR, the transfer took 
place on 1 April 2018 leaving 32 various funds remaining within this Charity.  The next step of 
reorganisation work to be undertaken is being led by Director, Education & Lifelong Learning, in 
relation to the Education related Trusts/Bequests.  This will include further refinement of existing 
disbursement criteria and will result in submissions to OSCR for approval to amalgamate into Scottish 
Borders Council Education Trust. A further report will be submitted to Scottish Borders Council for the 
remaining Funds. 
 
 

 
 
The Trustees present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2022. 

 
Structure 
 
The Charity currently comprises 32 charitable funds originally established for a variety of purposes - 
their charitable status was regulated by OSCR at the end of 2012/13. 

 
 

FOREWORD

TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT

Page 391



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

4 

 
 

•The charitable purpose of this charity is to hold funds for each Trust, Endowment
or Bequest comprising the Charity. Each of these funds have their own purpose
related to the general purpose of the prevention or relief of poverty by reason of
age, ill-health, disability, financial hardship or other disadvantage.

Charitable Purpose

•A number of the funds have made donations to eligible beneficiaries during the 
year to 31 March 2022.  22 donations totalling £13,208 were made including 
contributions through area based Education Trusts for Further Education 
including course fees, residential trips and living expenses.  This expenditure is 
included within the Charitable activities figure in the Statement of Financial 
Activities, which is detailed further in Notes 2 and 8 to the Financial Statements.

Summary of the Main Activities

•Reorganisation work to be undertaken and led by Director, Education & Lifelong 
Learning, in relation to the Education related Trusts/Bequests.  This will include 
further refinement of existing disbursement criteria and will result in submissions 
to OSCR for approval to amalgamate into Scottish Borders Council Education 
Trust.

Plans for the Future

Page 392



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

5 

 
Governance and Management 
 
Type of Governing Documents 
 
a) Since this Charity was originally formed as a holding charity for some 76 individual funds there 

is no overall governance document. 44 of these funds have now been successfully 
amalgamated into other SBC Trusts.  An ongoing review is being undertaken into each of the 
remaining constituent funds with a view to further amalgamation into existing SBC Trusts. 

  
b) In terms of the Trustees’ governance of the fund, these have been approved by Scottish Borders 

Council at its meeting on 21 May 2015 and have been reflected in its governance codes.  The 
Local Code of Corporate Governance of Scottish Borders Council covers the governance of the 
Charity and is comprised of the following: 

 
 

c) When considering any action in connection with the Charity the Trustees have to act in the 
interest of the Charity Funds. 

 
d) The financial statements comply with the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 

Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102), the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) 
Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).  

 
 
Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees  
 
There is no recruitment process. Appointment is by virtue of election to the Council. 
 

Financial Review 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with current statutory requirements and 
the charity's governing document. 
 
The applications of the Funds are detailed in the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
Reserves 
 
The charity has considered the reserves required and have taken into account its current and future 
liabilities, ensuring reserves will be maintained at a level sufficient to respond to: 

 all approved applications for grants 

 all support and governance costs  
 

At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the SBC Charitable Trust Funds amounted to: 

 Restricted Income Funds - £317,203 
 
Investments 
 
Per the Councils Common Good and Trust Fund investment strategy, the main balance of funds are 
invested with Aegon Asset Management in a diversified income fund. 
 
 

Financial 
Regulations

Code of 
Corporate 

Governance

Procedural 
Standing 
Orders

Scheme of 
Administration

Scheme of 
Delegation

Page 393



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

6 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
Charity Name Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 

 
Charity registration number SC043896 

 
Business Address Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders 
 TD6 0SA  

 
Trustees 
 
The Trustees of this charity for the year to 31 March 2022 were the duly elected members of Scottish 
Borders Council (the Council) at that time.  These were: 
 

Sandy Aitchison Andy Anderson Heather Anderson 

Stuart Bell Jim Brown Kris Chapman 

Caroline Cochrane Gordon Edgar Jim Fullarton 

John Greenwell Carol Hamilton Scott Hamilton 

Shona Haslam Euan Jardine Helen Laing 

Jenny Linehan  Stuart Marshall Watson McAteer 

Tom Miers Donald Moffat Simon Mountford 

David Parker David Paterson Clair Ramage 

Neil Richards Euan Robson Mark Rowley 

Harry Scott Sandy Scott Eric Small 

Robin Tatler Elaine Thornton-Nicol George Turnbull 

Tom Weatherston   

 
Due to Local Government elections on 5 May 2022, the Trustees for the year to 31 March 2023 will 
change. 

 
 
Chief Executive - During the period of these financial statements, the Chief Executive of 

Scottish Borders Council was Netta Meadows; at the date the audited 
accounts are authorised for issue, the Director Finance & Corporate 
Governance, David Robertson, is covering the duties undertaken by the 
Chief Executive. 

 
 
Auditor   Audit Scotland 
   102 West Port 
   Edinburgh 
   EH3 9DN 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 394



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

7 

Professional support 
 
The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to the Charitable 
Trusts.  All financial transactions go through the Council's books of account and their Bankers are the 
Royal Bank of Scotland, Newtown St Boswells. 

 
 
Parent Entity 
 
Scottish Borders Council is a local authority, constituted under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1994, whose principal purpose is to provide a range of public services such as education, housing 
and planning, social care, roads and transport, economic development, environmental protection, 
and waste management.  A copy of the group financial statements can be obtained from the 
Council’s website www.scotborders.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
Euan Jardine 
Trustee 
Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 

  

Page 395

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

8 

 
 
Under charity law, the trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. The trustees have elected to 
prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).  

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
charity and of the excess of income over expenditure for that period. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, generally accepted accounting practice entails that the 
trustees: 

 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended 

Practice have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 

in the financial statements; 

 State where applicable, whether the financial statements comply with the trust deeds  

and rules, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial  

statements; and 

 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the charity will continue in business. 

 
 
The trustees are required to act in accordance with the rules of the charity, within the framework of 
trust law.  They are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, sufficient to disclose at any 
time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity at that time, and to enable the 
trustees to ensure that, where any statements of accounts are prepared by them under the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, those statements of accounts comply with the 
requirements of regulations under that Act.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as 
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the charity and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities.   

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and other information 
included on the charity’s information/section on the Scottish Borders Council website.  Legislation in 
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 

 
  

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 396



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

9 

 
 

2020/21 
£  

2021/22 
£ Notes 

 Income from:   

500 Donations and legacies 500 3 

25,089 Investments 35,514 1 

25,589 Total Income 36,014  

    

 Expenditure on:   

(9,901) Charitable activities (13,208) 2 

0 Raising funds 0  

(500) Other : Governance Costs (500) 3 

(10,401) Total Expenditure (13,708)  

    
32,130 Gain / (loss) on investment assets - unrealised (206)  

    

47,318 Net Movement in Funds 22,100  

    

 Reconciliation of Funds   

247,785 Total funds brought forward 295,103  
    

295,103 Total Funds Carried Forward 317,203 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES for the year ended 31 March 
2022

Page 397



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

10 

 
 

as at 31 March 2021  as at 31 March 2022 

Notes 

£ £  £ £ 

  Fixed Assets    

203,233   Investments 203,230  4 

 203,233   203,230  
      

  Current Assets    

730   Debtors 964  5 

91,140   Short term Investment in SBC loans 
fund 

113,009  6 

 91,870  Total Current Assets  113,973  
       

   Current Liabilities    

   Creditors:    

 0  Amounts falling due within 1 year  0 7 

 91,870  Net Current Assets  113,973  
      

 295,103  Total Net Assets   317,203  

      

  The Funds of the Charity    

(295,103)   Restricted income funds (317,203)  8 
      

 (295,103)  Total Charity Funds  (317,203)  

 
All income and expenditure transactions derive from continuing activities. 
 
The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 14 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 
The unaudited accounts were issued on 27 June 2022 and the audited accounts were authorised for 
issue on 24 November 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suzanne Douglas CPFA Euan Jardine 

Acting Chief Financial Officer Trustee 

 Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 

  

  

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022

Page 398



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

11 

 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 
 

Basis of Preparation 
 
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the FRS102, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 
 
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items recognised at cost or 
transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these accounts. 
 

 Funds Structure 

Unrestricted income funds comprise those funds which the trustees are free to use for any purpose in 
furtherance of the charitable objects.  Unrestricted funds include the designated funds where the 
trustees, at their discretion, have created a fund for a specific purpose. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the 
donor or trust deed. 
 

Income Recognition 
 
Under FRS102, income is recognised when its receipt is “probable”, rather than “virtually certain”, 
which was the case under the previous Charities SORP 2005.  
 
Full recognition criteria are: 

 Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic benefit has passed to the 
charity 
 

 Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits will flow to the charity 
 

 Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income and the costs to complete the 
transactions can be measured reliably 

 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

 Donations and grants are recorded as expenditure when they are approved or if approved 
in principle only, when final confirmation of amount is received by the applying body. 
 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  
 

 Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, unless 
they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

  

 

 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Page 399



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

12 

 Donations & Legacies      

 
All donations and gifts are included within incoming resources under Restricted Funds.  Donations and 
Gifts in Kind are brought into the financial statements at their market value to the charity. 
       

Resources Expended      

 
Resources expended are analysed between charitable activities, costs of generating funds and 
governance costs.  Charitable activities include all direct costs and other support costs.   
 

Investments      

 
Investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and subsequently measured at their 
market value as at the balance sheet date using closing quoted market price. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between market value at the beginning and the 
end of the financial year, or if purchased in the year the difference between cost and market value at 
the end of the financial year.  Realised gains and losses represent the difference between the proceeds 
and cost. 
      

Short Term Investments 
      
Short Term Investments are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or 
disrupting the business and are either convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their 
carrying values.  Short Term Investments comprise of call deposits with the Council. 
 
 
  

Page 400



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

13 

 
 

1 Investment Income 
 

2020/21  2021/22 
£  £ 

79 Bank Interest Receivable from SBC Loans Fund 48 
25,010 Income from Investment Portfolio 35,466 

25,089  35,514 

 
Following a prior year drop in the income from the Aegon Investment Fund due to the impact of 
Covid-19, dividend income has returned to pre-pandemic levels in the current year. 
 

2 Charitable Activities 
 

The charitable activities during 2021/22 are included in note 8 by individual fund within the 
charity.  All expenditure incurred was for direct charitable activities. 
 

 

3 Governance Costs 
 

The fee for the external audit of the charity is charged against Scottish Borders Council General 
Fund and notionally recharged to the SBC Charitable Trust, recognised under Governance 
Costs.  This fee amounted to £500 in 2021/22.  A notional grant from SBC to cover the full cost 
is recognised under Donations and Legacies. No Trustee remuneration or other expenses were 
incurred. 
 

4 Investments 
 

All investments are through regulated funds or are traded on a recognised investment exchange. 
 
At 31 March 2022 all investments were with the Aegon Asset Management Diversified Monthly 
Income Fund; while the market value of the funds invested continues to exceed the book value, 
there is a small unrealised loss for the 12 month period of these accounts.   
 

5 Debtors 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

730 Prepayments and accrued income 964 

730  964 

 

6 Short Term Investments in SBC Loans Fund 
 

All surplus cash invested on behalf of the charity with Scottish Borders Council 
 

7 Creditors: amounts falling due within 1 year 
 

2020/21  2021/22 

£  £ 

0 Grants payable 0 

0  0 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 401



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

14 

8 Restricted Funds 
 

The funds held with the Charity are restricted by area, purpose or both. 
 

2020/21 
Balance Fund Income 

Expendi-
ture 

Unrealised 
Gain/(Loss) 

2021/22 
Balance 

£  £ £ £ £ 

1,140 Andrew, Agnes & John Kyle 111 (1) (1) 1,249 

8,854 Berwickshire Educational Trust 889 (12) (6) 9,725 

368 C W Dunnet Award 37 (1) (0) 404 

1,050 Campbell Calderhead Prize 74 (1) (1) 1,122 

3,901 Col. Jem Richard Prize Fund 263 (4) (2) 4,158 

1,123 Coldstream Guards Prize 115 (2) (1) 1,235 

1,809 Dr Milne Memorial Fund 119 (2) (1) 1,925 

22,816 Geoffrey Simpson Bequest 2,390 (33) (15) 25,158 

671 Hans D Langmack Prize Fund 62 (1) (0) 732 

3,021 J Purves Bequest 284 (4) (3) 3,298 

28,632 J A S Henderson Memorial Scholarship 4,752 (7,066) (14) 26,304 

1,364 James Robertson Trust 97 (1) (1) 1,459 

1,774 Jane Grieve Endowment 122 (2) (1) 1,893 

2,296 Jean Kincaid Grieve Endowment 152 (2) (1) 2,445 

1,732 Jedburgh Public Library Fund 72 (1) (1) 1,802 

838 John Jamieson Prize Fund 55 (1) (1) 891 

705 Kelso Library Book Fund 29 (0) (1) 733 

809 Kennedy Medal Fund 56 (1) (0) 864 

1,896 Kenneth Cochrane Library Fund 78 (1) (2) 1,971 

5,684 F W Dobson VC 536 (767) (4) 5,449 

1,130 Mary Dickson Prize Fund 90 (1) (1) 1,218 

1,041 Mr & Mrs W F Johnstone Fund 65 (1) (1) 1,104 

1,236 Mrs Clelland Memorial Prize 81 (1) (1) 1,315 

3,949 Murray Medal Fund 306 (4) (3) 4,248 

298 Peebles Public Library 13 (0) (0) 311 

27,776 Peeblesshire Educational Trust 3,356 (447) (21) 30,664 

134,904 Roxburghshire Educational Trust 14,700 (3,452) (93) 146,059 

1,461 Special Air Service Reg. Fund 135 (2) (1) 1,593 

4,061 Selkirk Library Fund 168 (2) (3) 4,224 

12,521 Selkirkshire Educational Trust 1,838 (826) (11) 13,522 

14,622 Sir Walter Leitch Scholarship 4,865 (1,068) (14) 18,405 

1,621 Walter Geddes Prize Fund 104 (1) (1) 1,723 

295,103  36,014 (13,708) (206) 317,203 

 

9 Related Party Transactions 
 

Due to the nature of the operations and composition of the SBC Charitable Trusts (Trustees 
are comprised of Elected Council Members of Scottish Borders Council), Scottish Borders 
Council is registered as a related party.  Transactions with Scottish Borders Council for the 
year under review are listed below: 

 

 £ 

Interest received on funds invested in SBC Loans Fund 48 

Page 402



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

15 

  

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the statement of 
accounts of Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts for the year ended 31 
March 2022 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the 
Balance Sheet, and notes to the financial statements, including significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in their preparation is applicable law and the United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity as at 31 
March 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of 
resources for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 
8 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit 
Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I 
am independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including 
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the trustees of Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts and the 
Accounts Commission for Scotland

Page 403

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf


Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

16 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the charity’s ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for 
assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the trustees intend to discontinue the charity's 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. I design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined 
above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud. Procedures include: 

 obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory 
framework and how the charity is complying with that framework; 

 identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of 
the charity; 

 assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 

 considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate 
competence and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, 
the effectiveness of the charity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent 
of the audit procedures performed. 

Page 404



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

17 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The 
capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on 
factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual 
amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report. 

Reporting on other requirements 

Other information  

The trustees are responsible for other information in the statement of 
accounts. The other information comprises the Trustees’ Annual Report.  

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. 
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the 
Trustees’ Annual Report to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinion 
prescribed by the Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Trustees’ 
Annual Report 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the 
information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by The Charity Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report 
to you if, in my opinion: 

 proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting 
records; or 

Page 405

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

18 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for 
my audit. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in 
accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and 
for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit 
Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in 
their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 

 

 

Asif A Haseeb OBE  
4th Floor  
102 West Port Edinburgh  
EH3 9DN  
 

Asif A Haseeb OBE is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Part VII of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 
  

Page 406



Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

19 

 
 

Contact Details 
 
For further information on the SBC Charitable Trusts, please contact: 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 824000 Ext 5881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

 

  

Page 407

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


Scottish Borders Council Charitable Trusts 
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

20 

 

Page 408



 

  

Page 409

Agenda Item 8k



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

 

 
 
Contents 
 

 Page 

  

  

  

Members’ Annual Report 2 

  

Statement of Members' Responsibilities for the Members’ Report and Financial 
Statements 

6 

  

Financial Statements  

 Profit and Loss Account 7 

 Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 7 

 Balance Sheet 8 

 Cash Flow Statement 9 

 Statement of Changes in Equity 10 

  

Accounting Policies 11 

  

Notes to the Accounts 13 

  

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Bridge Homes LLP 16 

  

Contact Information 19 

  

  

 

Page 410



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

2 

 

MEMBERS’ ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 
The Members present their Annual Report and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 
 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
 
Company Name Bridge Homes LLP 
 
 
Company Registration Number SO304775 
 
 
Registered Office Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders  
 TD6 0SA 
 
 
Designated Members 
 
The members who held office during the year and to the date of these financial statements were as 
follows: 
 

Scottish Borders Council 
 

Scottish Future Trust Investments Ltd 
 

  

The Council has two votes and Scottish Futures Trust has one vote as per the Members Agreement 
resulting in Scottish Borders Council having a controlling share of the LLP. 
 
The members who held office at the date of approval of this members report confirm that, so far as 
they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which Bridge Homes’ auditor is 
unaware; and each member has taken all the steps they ought to have taken as a member to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that Bridge Homes’ auditor is 
aware of that information. 

 
Auditor  KPMG LLP  

20 Castle Terrace  
Saltire Court  
Edinburgh  
EH1 2EG  

 
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed 
and KPMG LLP will therefore remain in office.  
 
Professional support 
 
The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to Bridge Homes. 
 
 
 

Page 411



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

3 

Principal Activity 
 
The principal activity of Bridge Homes during the year was investment in mid-market residential 
property for domestic rental to meet an identified social need within the Scottish Borders. 
 
Policy with respect to members’ drawings and subscription and repayments of amounts 
subscribed or otherwise contributed by members 
 

1. Cash received by Bridge Homes, excluding property disposal proceeds, will be allocated 
firstly to pay any operating costs, secondly in payment of any accrued interest charges on 
loan advances, thirdly to reimburse any amounts paid out under the Scottish Government 
guarantee (see below) and fourthly to establish and maintain the required Reserve Account 
balance.  Any residual balances after making the above payments will be held to apply in 
early repayment of loan advances.  Such balances will not be distributed without the 
unanimous approval of members and where any payment under the Facility Agreement 
(between Bridge Homes and Scottish Borders Council) has not been made in accordance 
with its terms. 

 
2. Cash received from property disposals will be allocated firstly to reimburse any amounts paid 

out under the Scottish Government guarantee, secondly to pay any operating costs relating 
to the property disposed, thirdly in payment of any accrued interest charges on loan 
advances, fourthly to establish and maintain the Reserve Account balance, fifthly to repay 
any loan principal, sixth to pay any residual disposal proceeds to Scottish Borders Council 
and finally, following disposal of the final property, to repay the initial capital. 

 

Business Review 
 
Background 
 
Scottish Borders Council (the Council) in partnership with Scottish Futures Trust Investments Ltd 
(SFT) have established a Council Led House Building Programme (National Housing Trust (NHT) 
Local Authority (LA) Variant in order to deliver more affordable housing in the Scottish Borders in line 
with the Local Housing Strategy.  This NHT LA Variant, Bridge homes LLP aims to deliver up to 200 
homes for mid-market rent. 
 
Bridge Homes is 99.999% owned by the Council and is financed under a Facility Agreement with the 
Council to borrow up to £18.8m along with a £3.3m contribution from the Councils’ Affordable 
Housing Investment Budget. 
 
The Scottish Government provides a guarantee of rent to cover the loan of up to £3,000 per housing 
unit delivered. 
 
SFT monitors the projects as a result of the Scottish Government guarantee for the loans.  
 
Governance 
 
The Bridge Homes Board has been established with 2 Council Senior Officers and 1 SFT Senior 
Officer on the Board.  The Board meets quarterly and the financial viability of projects require to be 
signed off by all 3 Directors. 
 
A Project Board, supported through the Council, has been established and meets regularly to 
oversee the development and delivery of the initiative.  A Project Team, consisting of officers from 
the Council, has also been established to identify properties, secure property management service 
providers, develop systems and deliver the project. 
 
 
 

Page 412



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

4 

 
Activity Summary 
 
Bridge Homes was legally established in 2014/15 as a Limited Liability Partnership between Scottish 
Borders Council and Scottish Futures Trust in order to provide additional affordable housing for mid-
market rent via the National Housing Trust / Local Authority Variant Initiative. By 31 March 2018 
Bridge Homes owned 45 homes at Castle View Ayton, Queen Elizabeth Drive Galashiels, 
Standalane Way Peebles, Croft Field Court Denholm, Henderson’s Court Kelso, and Waverley Road 
Innerleithen.  
 
During 2018/19 Bridge Homes acquired an additional 4 flats at Hydro Gardens Peebles and 5 
houses at Washington Avenue Kelso. Therefore by year end 31 March 2019 Bridge Homes owned 
54 affordable homes across Scottish Borders. These final 9 acquisitions effectively brought an end to 
the development, or acquisition, phase of Bridge Homes’ activity. 31 March 2019 was also the 
extended initiative deadline for completed homes delivery agreed between the Council and Scottish 
Government. 
 
In August 2018, Bridge Homes agreed to extend the existing 3 year Managing Agent contract with 
Orchard and Shipman by a further 2 years on the same terms and conditions.  During 2019/20, there 
were   subsequent discussions between the parties which culminated in the contract being extended 
for a further 3 years, with the fee being increased slightly,  starting from 31 August 2020. 
 
Following the decision by Borders Property Maintenance to withdraw from its relationship with 
Orchard and Shipman for the provision of response repairs, a range of alternative contractors 
covering all trades has been secured. Response Repairs and other Key Performance Indicator 
reporting arrangements continue as per the contract.  
 
The Covid-19 pandemic prompted concerns regarding potentially adverse impact on response, 
repairs and rent collection performance. These have been monitored closely since the start of the 
pandemic. The latter was a particular concern since it could potentially impact by triggering the 
Scottish Government rental guarantee.  In order to enhance scrutiny of this potential risk, Scottish 
Futures Trust developed and implemented an additional standard monthly rent monitoring template 
which has been implemented by all the LLPs established through the National Housing Trust / Local 
Authority Initiative. Orchard and Shipman has been providing the requested   information. Repairs 
performance and rental income collected have been closely monitored and remained at a high level, 
and have not been proven to be matters of concern.    
 
The National Housing Trust / Local Authority Variant model is predicated on the disposal of Bridge 
Homes properties sometime between their fifth and tenth year anniversaries in order to repay the 
loan capital to the Council. The terms of The Local Authority Variant model means that Bridge 
Homes LLP tenants did not have the option to purchase. Eildon Housing Association has previously 
expressed  a willingness to collaborate with the Council and Scottish Futures Trust to explore ways 
to transfer all of the the LLP’s housing stock to the Association, thereby retaining the homes in the 
affordable housing sector in perpetuity, and enabling existing tenants to continue  living in their 
homes.  
 
Council Officers consequently met with their Scottish Government / More Homes Division and 
Scottish Futures Trust counterparts in order to identify and agree a preferred way forward for a 
potential disposal strategy. The experience gained by Scottish Futures  Trust and Scottish 
Government / More Homes Division and Housing Policy staff from previous  LLP disposals helped 
progress the thinking regarding how best to progress the Bridge Homes  LLP disposal.   

  
Slippage in spend across the National and Scottish Borders Affordable Housing Supply Programmes 
“AHSP” early in 2021/22, presented the ideal opportunity to grant assist the disposal of Bridge Homes 
LLP housing stock to Eildon Housing Association.  
 

Page 413



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

5 

Discussions between the stakeholders confirmed a willingness to agree a plan and process to transfer 
the houses to Eildon HA if it could be achieved by 31 March 2022. This was critical since this would 
ensure that the Association would secure AHSP grant to assist them purchase the homes.  
 
The proposed disposal to the Association was agreed by the meeting of Scottish Borders Council on 
16 December 2021, and subsequently by the Board of the LLP on 17 January 2022.  This cleared the 
way for the disposal strategy to be successfully implemented, with the transfer to the Association 
settling on 25 March 2022 as planned.  
 
Since settlement date, Scottish Futures Trust and Council staff have been working on progressing 
payment of a small number of residual outstanding invoices relating to activity and responsibilities 
prior to 25 March 2022. This has been assisted by Orchard and Shipman’s cooperation with the 
ending of their managing agent role. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
David Robertson CPFA 
Designated Member 
Scottish Borders Council 
24th November 2022 

Page 414



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

6 

 
STATEMENT OF MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF 
THE MEMBERS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 
The members are responsible for preparing the Members’ Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations.   

The Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) 
Regulations 2008 require the members to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  
Under that law the members have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with 
UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), 
including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.   

Under Regulation 8 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 the members must not approve the financial statements 
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the LLP and of 
its profit or loss for that period.  In preparing these financial statements, the members are required 
to:   

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;   

 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;   

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;   

 assess the LLP’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern; and  

 use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the LLP or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. As the intention is to liquidate 
Bridge Homes, members have used a basis other than going concern.  

Under Regulation 6 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008, the members are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the LLP’s transactions and disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the LLP and enable them to ensure 
that its financial statements comply with those regulations.  They are responsible for such internal 
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for 
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the LLP and to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.   

The members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the LLP’s website.  Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdiction 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 415



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

7 

 
 
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 

 
2020/21 

 

    
2021/22 

 
Notes 

£   £ 

       

275,055    Turnover 247,983 1 

(70,666)    Cost of Sales (79,613) 2 

     

204,390                   Gross Profit 168,370   

      
(14,023) 

0 

   Administrative Expenses 
Revaluations 

(17,685) 3 
0 

     

190,366                  Operating Profit 150,685   

      

(110,873) 
   Interest Payable & Similar Expenses 

Loss On Disposal of Property 
 

(109,640) 
 (42,889) 
  

4 

      

79,493 

  

Profit/(Loss) For The Financial Year Available For 
Discretionary Division Among Members 

(1,844) 5 

        

                   Other Comprehensive Income   

140,000    Revaluation Reserve Realised 1,611,279  

219,493 

  

Total Comprehensive Income 1,609,435 
 

 
The LLP’s turnover and expenses all relate to continuing operations throughout the year.  With the 
sale of the properties these will no longer be continuing operations. 
 

The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 15 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 

Page 416



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

8 

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022 
 

2020/21 
  

  2021/2022 
Notes 

£     £ £ 

     Fixed Assets 
 

    

7,877,889 
 

Property, Plant and Equipment  0 5 

 
 

      

     Current Assets     

37,249 
 

Debtors 67,508  6 

298,710 
 

Cash at Bank 321,822    

335,959 
 

  389,330    

     Creditors     

 
(25,438) 

 
 

 
Amounts falling due within 1 year 
 

 
(37,764) 

 
 

 

 
7 
 
 

310,520     Net Current Assets  351,565   

 
 

  
  

  

8,188.409 Net Assets attributable to Members 
 

351,565   

 

 
   

 
  

     Represented By: 
 

    
 

 
  

 
    

5,611,982  

Loans and Other Debts due to 
Members  

0 8 

 
 

  
 

   

     Members' Other Interests 
 

 9  

894,002 
 

Capital Account 2  
 
 

71,146 
 

Profit and Loss Reserve 351,563    

1,611,279  Revaluation Reserve 0 351,565  

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
    

8,188.409 Total Members' Interests  351,565   

 
The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 15 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 
These financial statements were approved by the members and authorised for issue on 24th 
November 2022 and are signed on their behalf by:  
 
 
 
David Robertson CPFA 
Designated Member 
Scottish Borders Council 
24th November 2022 

 
Company Registered Number: SO304775

Page 417



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

9 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 

 
2020/21 

 
£ 

  

 
2021/22 

£ 

  Reconciliation of Profit to Net Cash Flow  

   from Operating Activities  

79,493 
 

Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year (1,844) 

110,873  Adjustments to Profit for Non Cash Movements 152,529 

15,625  (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors (30,259) 

(735) 
 

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors due within 1 
year 

12,326 

205,256 Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 132,752 

   

 

 
2020/21 

  
  

 
2021/22 

£ £ 

  Cash Flow Statement  

205,256 

     Net Cash Inflow from Operating  
     Activities 
 
      Investing Activities 
      Disposal of Investment Properties 
      Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing 
      Activities                                                   

132,752 
 
 

7,835,000 
7,835,000 

 
 

   

0 
0 
0 

      Financing Activities 
      Balance of Sales Proceeds Paid to Members 
      Capital Repayment 
      Loan Repayment 

(1,329,000) 
(894,000) 

(5,611,982) 

(110,873)       Interest Payable  (109,640) 

(110,873) 
      Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing  
      Activities 

(7,944,640) 

  
   

94,383       Increase/(Decrease) in Cash 23,112 

  
   

94,383 Movement in Cash in Period 23,112 

 
 
The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 15 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 
 

 

Page 418



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

10 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year ended 31 
March 2022 
 

 
 

 

 
The Accounting Policies on pages 11 and 12 and the Notes on pages 13 to 15 form part of these 
Financial Statements. 

 
 
 
 
 

  Members 
Capital 

(Classified 
As Equity) 

Profit & 
Loss 

Reserve 

 
 
 
 

Revaluation 
Reserve 

Loans & 
Other Debts 

Due To 
Members 

Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Balance at 1 April 2021 894,002 71,146 1,611,279 5,611,982 
8,188,409 

Profit/(Loss) For The Year 
Available for Discretionary 
Division Among Members 
 

     

0 (1,844) 0 0 (1,844) 

     

Repaid to SBC (894,000)   (5,611,982) (6,505,982) 

Revaluation Reserve 
transferred following disposal 
 

0 1,611,279 (1,611,279) 0 0 

Balance of Sales Proceeds Paid 
to Members 

   (1,329,017) (1,329,017) 

Balance at 31 March 2022 2 1,680,580 0 (1,329,017) 351,565 

  Members 
Capital 

(Classified 
As Equity) 

Profit & 
Loss 

Reserve 

 
 
 
 

Revaluation 
Reserve 

Loans & 
Other Debts 

Due To 
Members 

Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Balance at 1 April 2020 894,002 (8,344)      1,471,279 5,611,982 7,968,917 

Profit For The Year 
Available for Discretionary 
Division Among Members 

     

0 79,493 0 0 79,493 

     

Revaluations 0 0 140,000 0 140,000 

Balance at 31 March 2021 894,002  71,146  1,611,279  5,611,982  8,188,409  

Page 419



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

11 

 
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 
 
Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under historic cost accounting rules modified for the 
revaluation of certain fixed assets and in accordance with FRS 102 1A, the Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, and the Statement of Recommended Practice: 
Accounting by Limited Liability Partnerships (effective 2019) issued by the CCAB (Consultative 
Committee of Accountancy Bodies). 
 
Basis Other than Going Concern 
 
Bridge Homes is 99.999% owned by Scottish Borders Council and is financed under a Facility 
Agreement with the Council to borrow up to £18.8m along with a £3.3m contribution from the 
Councils’ Affordable Housing Investment Budget.    
 
As at 31 March 2022, as a result of the sale of properties to Eildon Housing Association, the drawn 
down amounts under the facility agreement have been repaid.   
 
The Members have undertaken a going concern assessment. As a result of the disposal of the 
properties and the intention to cease trading, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis 
other than going concern.  Bridge Homes LLP continues in existence albeit as a non-trading 
company.  There were no adjustments necessary for the Assets and Liabilities as a result of the basis 
other than going concern. 
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

- Fees, charges and rents due from tenants are accounted for as income at the date the 
relevant service is provided. 

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

- Interest payable on capital advances is accounted for based on the applicable 41/2 - 5 
year PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) fixed interest rate applicable at the date the 
borrowing was initially incurred. 

- Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.   

- Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the revenue account, unless they 
properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

Turnover 
 
Turnover represents invoiced rental income from tenanted investment properties.  This rental income 
is exempt from value added tax. 
 
 

Page 420



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

12 

 
 
Tangible Fixed Assets      
 
Tangible fixed assets, with a value greater than £1,000, having a value to the business greater than 
one year, other than those acquired for the purpose of specific projects, are capitalised. 
 
With the sale of the Properties, Bridge Homes no longer has fixed assets reported on the Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March 2022. 
      
Cash and Liquid Assets 
      
Cash, for the purposes of the cash flow statement, comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on 
demand.  Liquid resources are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or 
disrupting the business and are either convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their 
carrying values.  Liquid resources comprise term deposits of less than one year. 
 
Inventories 
      
Any inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
Support Services 
      
The costs of support services provided by Scottish Borders Council are charged to Bridge Homes LLP 
in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17 
(SeRCOP). 
       
Accounting estimates and judgments disclosure note  
 
The Annual Accounts no longer contain estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by 
Bridge Homes about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  

Page 421



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

13 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
1 Turnover 

 
 

2020/21 
 
 

 
2021/22 

£   £ 

275,055 Rental Income/Grant 247,983 

275,055   247,983 

 
 

2 Cost of Sales 
 

 
2020/21  

 
2021/22 

£   £ 

68,314 Management Charges 76,908 

669 Insurance 866 

876 Landlord Registration 0 

(152) Other 879 

960 Utilities 960 

70,666   79,613 

 

 
3 Administrative Expenses 

 
 

2020/21 
  

 
2021/22 

£   £ 

543 Accountancy and Legal 685 

13,480 Audit 17,000 

14,023   17,685 

 

 
4 Interest Payable & Similar Charges 

 

2020/21 
 
 

2021/22 

£   £ 

49           Bank Charges 30 

110,824 Interest Payable to Local Authority 109,610 

110,873   109,640 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 422



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

14 

5 Property, Plant and Equipment 
(Property, Plant and Equipment consists of Land and Buildings) 

 

2020/21 
 
 

2021/22 

£   £ 

7,737,889 
0 

          NBV at 31 March 2021 
 Sale of Properties 

7,877,889 
(7,877,889) 

140,000 
 Revaluation Gains Credited to the Revaluation    
 Reserve        

0 

7,877,889  NBV at 31 March 2022 0 

 
              
 
 

6 Debtors 
 

 
2020/21  

 
2021/22 

£   £ 

27,264 Unpaid Rental Income 56,282 

9,985 Grant for Central Support Costs 10,184 

0 Other Debtors/Prepayments 1,041 

37,249   67,508 

 
 

7 Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year 
 

2020/21   
 

2021/22 

£   £ 

2,454 Management Charges 6,348 

0 Repairs & Maintenance 6,832 

0 Utilities 0 

13,000 Audit 14,400 

2,492 Accountancy 2,542 

3,234 Legal Fees 3,299 

4,259 Miscellaneous 4,344 

25,438   37,764 

 
 

 

8 Loans & Other Debts Due To Members 
 

 
2020/21 

  
 

2021/22 

£   £ 

5,611,982 Loan from Local Authority 0 

 
 In the event of liquidation of the LLP, Loans & other debts due to Members will be repaid 
following settlement of other unsecured creditors, including reimbursement of amounts paid 

Page 423



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

15 

out under the Scottish Government Guarantee in respect of any Interest Payment Shortfalls, 
projected costs of liquidation and payment of accrued interest charges per Paragraph 6 Part 6 
of the Members Agreement. 

 
 

9 Members’ Capital 
 

 
2020/21  

 
2021/22 

£   £ 

1 Initial Capital - Scottish Borders Council 1 

1 Initial Capital – Scottish Futures Trust Investments Ltd 1 

894,000 Capital Grant - Scottish Borders Council 0 

894,002   2 

 
 

 

10 Related Party Transactions 
 

Throughout the year Bridge Homes was controlled by the members.  During the year, Bridge 
Homes entered into the following transactions with Scottish Borders Council: 

  

 Transaction Debtor/ 
(Creditor)  

At 31 March 2022 

  £ £ 

 
Loan 

(5,611,982) 0 

Capital Grant (894,002) (2) 

Revenue Grant 10,184 (10,184) 

Service Charge (10,184) 10,184 

Balance of Sales Proceeds (1,329,017) (1,329,017) 

Loan Interest (109,610) 0 

 (7,944,611) (1,329,019) 

   

 
 

11 Ultimate Controlling Party 
 

The Bridge Homes is controlled by the Designated Members as detailed on page 2.

Page 424



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

16 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
BRIDGE HOMES LLP 

 
 

Opinion   
We have audited the financial statements of Bridge Homes LLP (“the LLP”) for the year ended 31 
March 2022, which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, 
Statement of Changes in Equity, and related notes, including the accounting policies. 

In our opinion the financial statements:   

 give a true and fair view of the state of the LLP’s affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of its profit for 
the year then ended;   

 have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards applicable to smaller 
entities, including Section 1A of FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland; and   

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.   

Basis for opinion   
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below.  We have fulfilled our ethical 
responsibilities under, and are independent of the LLP in accordance with, UK ethical requirements 
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a 
sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.   

Emphasis of matter – non-going concern basis of preparation  
We draw attention to the disclosure made in note 1.3 to the financial statements which explains that 
the financial statements are now not prepared on the going concern basis for the reasons set out in 
that note. Our opinion is not modified in the respect of this matter.  
 
Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations – ability to detect 
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud: 

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or 
conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to 
commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included: 

 Enquiring of members as to the LLP’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect 
fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. 

 Used analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships. 

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any 
indications of fraud throughout the audit.  

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures to address the risk of management 
override of controls, in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate 
accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition 
because revenue comprises of simple transactions and is being collected monthly by a third party. 

We did not identify any additional fraud risks. 

We also assessed significant accounting estimates for bias. 

 
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and 
regulations 

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any 
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit. The potential effect of these laws and regulations 
on the financial statements varies considerably. 

Page 425



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

17 

Firstly, the LLP is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including 
financial reporting legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and 
regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.   

Secondly, the LLP is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for 
instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most 
likely to have such an effect: health and safety, anti-bribery, employment law, residential tenancy 
regulations, recognising the financial nature of the LLP’s activities and its legal form. Auditing 
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and 
regulations to enquiry of the members and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. 
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant 
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach. 

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation 

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have 
detected some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly 
planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further 
removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in 
the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing 
standards would identify it.   

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible 
for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all 
laws and regulations. 

Other Information 

The members are responsible for the members’ report.  Our opinion on the financial statements does 
not cover that report and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.   

Our responsibility is to read the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our 
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our audit knowledge.  Based solely on that work:   

 we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report;   

 in our opinion the information given in that report for the financial year is consistent with the 
financial statements; and   

 in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.   

Matters on which we are required to report by exception   

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:   

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or   

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or   

 certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or   

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or   

We have nothing to report in these respects.   

 

 

 

Page 426



Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

18 

 

Member’s responsibilities   

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such 
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the LLP’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the LLP or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.   

Auditor’s responsibilities   

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an 
auditor’s report.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the financial statements.   

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.   

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities   

This report is made solely to the LLP’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 
of the Companies Act 2006.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the LLP’s 
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone 
other than the LLP and the LLP’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed.   

 

Hugh Harvie (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 
Saltire Court 
20 Castle Terrace 
Edinburgh 
EH1 2EG 
Date: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 427

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Bridge Homes LLP 
Members’ Report and Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022 

 

19 

 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION      

 
 
For further information on Bridge Homes LLP, please contact 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 – 825881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 428

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


 

 

 

Page 429



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Page 431

Agenda Item 8l



 

 

 
   

 

Contents 
 
  

                                                                                                                               Page  

Reference and Administrative Information                                                              2  

  

Financial Statements 
 

 

Profit and Loss Account                                                                                               3                                                                                                          
 

Balance Sheet                                                                                                              3 
 
Accounting Policies                                                                                                   5                                                                                                                

 

 
Notes to the Accounts                                                                                               6 
 
Contact Information                                                                                                   7                                                                                                             

 

  

  

  

   

 

   

   

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

Page 432



 

1 

 
 
 

Reference and Administrative Information 
 
Company Name Lowood Tweedbank Limited 
 
Company Registration Number SC615148 
 
Registered Office Council HQ 
 Newtown St Boswells 
 Melrose 
 Scottish Borders  
 TD6 0SA 
 
Designated Members 
 
The members who held office during the year and to the date of these financial statements were as 
follows: 
 

Scottish Borders Council 
 
 

  

 
Professional support 
 

The Council provides the Administrative, Legal and Financial support and advice to Lowood Tweedbank 
Limited. 
 
 

Principal Activity 
 

Lowood Tweedbank Limited was established on 30 November 2018.  Its principal activity is to act as 
mid-landlord of the residential properties at Lowood Estate in order to ensure the continuation of the 
tenancy arrangements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 433



 

2 

 
 
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 
 

 

2021/22 

 
Notes 

      

  
 

Turnover 42,643 1 

  
 

Cost of Sales (42,643) 2 

    

                  Gross Profit 0 
 

  

     
    

                 Operating Profit 0 
 

  

     

     

 

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2022 
 

   2021/2022 
Notes 

    £ £ 

    Fixed Assets  0    
       

    Current Assets     
 Debtors 1  3 

 Cash at Bank 
37,055 

 
   

       

    Creditors     

 Amounts falling due within 1 year (37,055)  
4 

 
       

    Net Current Assets  1   
       

Net Assets attributable to Members  1   
       

    Represented By:      
       

 Capital Account 1  5 
 Profit and Loss Reserve 0    

     
       

Total Members' Interests  1   

 

Page 434



 

3 

 
 
The Accounting Policies on page 5 and the Notes on page 6 form part of these Financial Statements. 
 
For the financial year 2021/22 the company was entitled to exemption under section 477 of the 
Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies. 
 
No members have required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for 2021/22 in accordance 
with section 476 of the Companies Act 2006.  The directors acknowledge their responsibility for 
complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to accounting records and for the preparation 
of accounts. 
 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the micro entity provisions. 
 
These financial statements were approved for signature by the Council as it`s meeting on 24th 
November 2022. 
 
 
 
 
David Robertson CPFA 
Designated Member 
Scottish Borders Council 
24th November 2022 

 
Company Registered Number: SC615148

Page 435



 

4 

  
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material to the financial statements. 
 
Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under historic cost accounting rules modified for the 
revaluation of certain fixed assets and in accordance with FRS 102 1A, the Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, and the Statement of Recommended Practice: 
Accounting by Limited Liability Partnerships (effective 2017) issued by the CCAB (Consultative 
Committee of Accountancy Bodies). 
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

- Fees, charges and rents due from tenants are accounted for as income at the date the 
relevant service is provided. 

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

- Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.   

- Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the revenue account, unless they 
properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 

Turnover 
 
Turnover represents invoiced rental income from tenanted residential properties.   
 
      
Cash and Liquid Assets 
      
Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand.  Liquid resources are current asset 
investments which are disposable without curtailing or disrupting the business and are either convertible 
into known amounts of cash at or close to their carrying values.  Liquid resources comprise term 
deposits of less than one year. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 436



 

5 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
1 Turnover 

 
2021/22 

£ 

Rental Income 
 

42,643 

42,643 

 
 

2 Cost of Sales 
 

2021/22 

£ 

Rental Income paid to Scottish Borders Council (37,055) 

Property Repairs and Maintenance Costs (5,586) 

Bank Charges (2) 

  

  (42,643) 

 

3 Debtors 
 

2021/22 

  £ 

Unpaid Rental Income 0 

Share Issue 1 

  
 1 

 
 

4 Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year 
 

  
2021/22 

£ 

Unpaid Rental Income due to Scottish Borders Council (37,055) 

  

  (37,055) 

 
 

5 Members’ Capital 
 

2021/22 

  £ 

Initial Capital - Scottish Borders Council 1 

  

             1 

Page 437



 

6 

 
 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION      
 
 
For further information on Lowood Tweedbank Limited, please contact 
 

Suzy Douglas Telephone: 01835 – 825881 

Financial Services Manager E-mail: sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk 

Scottish Borders Council Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE 
TD6 0SA 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 438

mailto:sdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk


 

7  Page 439



This page is intentionally left blank



Scottish Borders Council 24 November 2022    

 

 

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2021/22 
 
Report by Acting Chief Financial Officer 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
24 November 2022 
 

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY 

 1.1 This report presents the annual treasury management activities 
undertaken during the 2021/22 financial year. 

 1.2 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services 
(the Code) requires an annual report on treasury management to be 
submitted to Council following the end of each financial year.  This report 
highlights the Council’s treasury activity undertaken in the year ended 31 
March 2022 and the performance of the Treasury function. 

 1.3 Appendix 1 is the annual report of treasury management activities for 
2021/22 and contains an analysis of performance against targets set in 
relation to Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators.  The 
performance comparisons reported are based on the revised indicators 
agreed as part of the mid-year report approved on 16 December 2021. 

 1.4 The Appendix shows the Council’s borrowing requirement to fund the 
capital investment undertaken during 2021/22, how much the council 
actually borrowed against the sums budgeted and the level of external debt 
within approved limits. 

 1.5 During the year the Council has again, where possible, deferred borrowing 
using surplus cash rather than undertaking new borrowing.  However, in 
March 2022, the Council did proactively undertake long term borrowing of 
£20m towards the financing of the capital program before interest rates 
were increased by the Bank of England, saving £3.94m over the life of the 
loan on a comparable basis to 2 November 2022 rates. 

 1.6 Treasury management activity for the year has been undertaken in 
compliance with approved policy and the Code.  The Council remains 
under-borrowed against its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) at 31 
March 2022. 

2 STATUS OF REPORT 

 2.1 This report undertook the standard consultation for submission to Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee on 23 November and comments received during this 
consultation have been incorporated.  However due to the timelines 
comments received from Audit and Scrutiny Committee were not available.  
Comments received from this Committee will be highlighted to Council at 
this meeting. 

3 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 3.1 It is recommended that the Members: 

  (a) note that treasury management activity in the year to 31 
March 2022 was carried out in compliance with the 
approved Treasury Management Strategy and Policy as 
detailed in this report and in Appendix 1. 

 Page 441

Agenda Item 9



Scottish Borders Council 24 November 2022    

 
4 BACKGROUND 

 4.1 The Council approved the Treasury Management Strategy (the Strategy) 
for 2021/22 at the Council meeting on 19 March 2021.  This report meets 
the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in the Public Services (the Code) and CIPFA Prudential Code 
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

 4.2 The Council received a mid-year report on 16 December 2021 and 
approved the revised Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators for 
2021/22 following the updating of assumptions, in particular capital 
expenditure estimates. 

 4.3 As set out in the Strategy, the Audit and Scrutiny Committee has a role to 
scrutinise the Annual and Mid-Year Reports before submission to Council 
for final approval. 

5 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT TO 31 MARCH 2022 

 5.1 The Annual Treasury Management Report for 2021/22 is shown in Appendix 
1. 

 5.2 Appendix 1 shows the Council’s borrowing requirement to fund capital 
investment undertaken during 2021/22, how much the Council actually 
borrowed against the sums budgeted and the level of external debt carried 
on the Council’s balance sheet within approved limits. 

 5.3 In addition, Appendix 1 contains an analysis of the performance against the 
targets set in relation to Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators.  
All of the 2021/22 target indicators reported are based on the revised 
indicators agreed as part of the mid-year report on 16 December 2021. 

 5.4 The key Prudential Indicators (PI) and Treasury Management Indicators 
(TI), detailing the impact of capital expenditure activities during the year to 
31 March 2022, with comparators, are as follows: 

 2021/22 
Actual 

£m 

2021/22 
Estimate* 

£m 

Variance 
 

£m 

Actual Capital Expenditure (PI-1) 59.6 84.2 (24.6) 

Total Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) (PI-2)** 342.3 364.6 (22.3) 

(Under)/Over Gross Borrowing 
against the CFR (PI-6) *** (128.7) (153.1) 24.4 

 *Revised estimate, approved by Council 16 December 2021 as part of the mid-year report  
** The CFR for this calculation is based on expenditure to 31 March 2022 only 
*** The CFR for this calculation includes the current year and projected movement for the 
next two subsequent years. 

  (a) PI-2 Total Capital Financing Requirement 
The year-end total CFR decreased in comparison to that projected as 
a result of the underspend in capital expenditure during the year. 

  (b) PI-6 (Under)/Over Gross Borrowing against the CFR 
There is a decrease in the level of under-borrowing, compared to 
that projected; as this indicator includes the projected movement for 
the next two subsequent years, this is due to the re-phasing of 
works into future years in the capital plan. 

 Page 442



Scottish Borders Council 24 November 2022    

 
  (c) Investments 

Investments held on 31 March 2022 amounted to £46.9m.  This is an 
increase from the £27.9m at 31 March 2021 as a result of the delays 
in the capital program, and the drawdown of £20m loan funds prior 
to the end of the financial year. 

 5.5 Treasury management activity for the year has been undertaken in 
compliance with the approved policy and the Code and the Council remains 
under-borrowed against its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) at 31 
March 2022. 

6 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 6.1 The Investment Objectives and Policy states that ‘the Council will aim to 
achieve the optimum return on its investments corresponding with proper 
levels of security and liquidity’. 

 6.2 The current Sector Limit for Money Market Funds (AAA) is £25m, with an 
individual Counterparty Limit of £5m for AAA rated Money Market Funds.   

 6.3 Due to high levels of cash held at certain times of the year, the £25m limit 
on Money Market Funds are fully used and excess funds are placed with the 
Government’s Debt Management Office (DMO).  The rates available from 
DMO for overnight investments are less than the Money Market Funds. 

7 IMPLICATIONS 

 7.1 Financial 

  There are no further financial implications relating to this report.  The 
outcomes from the Council’s treasury management activities are explained 
in detail within Appendix 1. 

 7.2 Risk and Mitigations 

  This report is an account of the outcomes arising from the tightly controlled 
risk management work that the Council’s Treasury staff have carried out.  
The report is an important element of the overall risk management 
environment but has no specific risk implications of its own. 

 7.3 Integrated Impact Assessment 

  There is no impact or relevance to Equality Duty or the Fairer Scotland 
Duty for this report.  This is a routine financial monitoring report which 
forms part of the governance of the Treasury function within the Council.  
Nevertheless, a light touch assessment has been conducted and this will be 
published on SBC’s Equality and Diversity Pages of the website as in doing 
so, signifies that equality, diversity and socio–economic factors have duly 
been considered when preparing this report. 

 7.4 Sustainable Development Goals 

  There are no direct economic, social or environmental issues with this 
report which would affect the Council’s sustainability policy. 

 7.5 Climate Change 

  There are no direct carbon emissions impacts as a result of this report. 

 7.6 Rural Proofing  

  It is anticipated there will be no adverse impact on the rural area from the 
proposals contained in this report. 

 

Page 443



Scottish Borders Council 24 November 2022    

 

 7.7 Data Protection Impact Statement 

  There are no personal data implications arising from the proposals 
contained in this report.  

 7.8 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation 

  No changes to the Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation are 
required as a result of this report. 

8 CONSULTATION 

 8.1 The Chief Legal Officer (including as Monitoring Officer), the Chief Officer 
Audit and Risk, Director People Performance & Change, Communications 
and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted and their appropriate 
comments have been incorporated into this report. 

Approved by 
 
Suzy Douglas      Signature ……………………..…… 
Acting Chief Financial Officer 
 
Author(s) 
Name Designation and Contact Number 
Suzy Douglas 
Sara Wilson 

Financial Services Manager - Tel 01835 824000 Ext 5881 
Treasury Business Partner - Tel 01835 825155 

 
Background Papers:   
Previous Minute Reference:  Scottish Borders Council 19 March 2021 and 16 
December 2021. 
 
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  The Pension and Investment 
Team can also give information on other language translations as well as providing 
additional copies. 
 
Contact us at Pension and Investment Team, Council Headquarters, Newtown St 
Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA Tel: 01835 825249 Fax 01835 825166. email: 
T&Cteam@scotborders.gov.uk 
  
 

Page 444

mailto:T&Cteam@scotborders.gov.uk


 

 
     

 
             
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  
YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

Page 445



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 2 of 15 

 
CONTENTS 
 
 
   Page 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3 
2 COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2021/22 4 
 2.1 Capital Expenditure 4 
 2.2 Financing the Capital Programme 4 
 2.3 Capital Financing Requirement and External Debt 5 
3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 6 
 3.1 Gross Borrowing and the CFR 6 
 3.2 Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit  6 
 3.3 Maturity Profile of External Debt 7 
4 INTEREST RATE MOVEMENTS AND EXPECTATIONS 7 
 4.1 Investment Rates in 2021/22 7 
 4.2 Borrowing Rates in 2021/22 8 
5 INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 2021/22 11 
 5.1 Investment Objectives 11 
 5.2 Investment Activity 12 
 5.3 Current Investment Position 12 
6 TREASURY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 12 
 6.1 Debt Performance Indicators 12 
 6.2 Investment Performance Indicators 12 
 6.3 Impact on Revenue Budget 13 
 6.4 Treasury Management Indicators 14 
    
Annex  A SUMMARY OF PRUDENTIAL & TREASURY INDICATORS  15 

  
  

Page 446



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 3 of 15 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 

to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2021/22. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

 
 This paper highlights activity in relation to the treasury management function during 2021/22, the 

Council’s strategy with regard to interest rates and future expectations and how the capital 
expenditure incurred by the Council in 2021/22 was funded. The investment strategy for 2021/22 
is summarised in Section 5 and Members are provided with details of how well the treasury function 
has performed in relation to a set of standard performance indicators.  

 
1.2 During 2021/22, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements.  

   
1.3  Key Prudential (PI) and Treasury Management Indicators (TI), detailing the impact of capital 

expenditure activities during the year, with comparators, are as follows: 
 

Table 1 2021/22 
Actual 

£m 

2021/22 
Estimate* 

£m 

Variance 
 

£m 

Actual Capital Expenditure (PI-1) 59.6 84.2 (24.6) 

Total Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) ** 
(PI-2) 342.3 364.6 (22.3) 

(Under)/Over Gross Borrowing against the 
CFR  (PI-6) *** (128.7) (153.1) 24.4 

  
 * Revised estimate, approved by Scottish Borders Council on 16 December 2021 as part of the 

Mid Year Treasury report 2021/22  
 ** The CFR for this calculation includes current capital expenditure to 31 March 2022  
 *** The CFR for this calculation includes the current and two future years projected capital 

expenditure. 
 
1.4 Long term borrowing for the purpose of cash flow was undertaken during 2021/22 amounting to 

£20m.  The statutory borrowing limit (the authorised limit) was not breached. 
 
1.5 The economic environment during the 2021/22 financial year continued to remain challenging, with 

low investment returns. 
 
  

Page 447



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 4 of 15 

 
2. COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2021/22 
 
2.1 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE (Prudential Indicator 1) 
 

a) The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may either 
be: 
• Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources (capital 

receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant impact on the 
Council’s borrowing need, or 

• If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the 
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need. 

 
b) The final capital expenditure for 2021/22 was lower than projected as a result of delays in 

expenditure on a number of projects, including Hawick Flood Protection (£3.9m), Land & 
Property Infrastructure (£2.2m), Road & Transport Infrastructure (£2.2m), IT Transformation 
(£3.3m), School Estate (£6.1m) and Economic Regeneration (£3.7m).   
 
The specific drivers for each of the movements have been disclosed in the regular monitoring 
reports to the Executive throughout 2021/22 and in the out-turn report presented on 14 June 
2022. 

 
2.2 FINANCING THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

 
a) Capital Expenditure may either be financed: 

 
(i) Immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources (capital receipts, 

capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which does not impact on the Council’s 
borrowing need, or 

(ii) If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the 
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need. 

 
b) Table 2 below summarises the main funding elements of the 2021/22 capital expenditure.   

 
Table 2 
 

2021/22 
Actual 

£m  

2021/22 
Estimate 

£m 

 
Variance 

£m 
Capital Expenditure 
Other Relevant Expenditure * 

59.6 
0.0 

84.2 
0.0 

(24.6) 
(0.0) 

Total Expenditure 59.6 84.2 (24.6) 
Financed by:    
Capital Grants & Other Contributions (42.7) (49.3) 6.6 
SBC Revenue Funding  (2.0) (4.4) 2.4 
Capital Fund/Capital Receipts (0.5) (1.4) 0.9 
Plant & Vehicle Fund (1.9) (2.0) 0.1 
Total identified finance (47.1) (57.1) 10.0 
Net Financing Need for the Year 12.5 27.1 (14.6) 

 
The decrease in unfinanced capital expenditure compared with the estimate in the mid-year 
report resulted principally from timing movements as detailed in paragraph 2.1 b). 

 
 
 

Page 448



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 5 of 15 

2.3 CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT AND EXTERNAL DEBT  (Prudential Indicators 2 and 5)  
 
a) The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR) and is a key prudential indicator. The CFR results from the 
capital activity of the Council and the resources that have been used to pay for the capital 
spend. It represents the 2021/22 unfinanced capital expenditure (see Table 2 in section 2.2 
(b)), and prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for 
by revenue or other resources.   

 
b) Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury function organises the 

Council’s cash position to ensure sufficient cash is available to meet the capital plans and 
cash flow requirements. This may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies, such 
as the Public Works Loan Board or the money markets, or utilising cash resources within the 
Council. 

 
c) Reducing the CFR – the Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise 

indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged 
to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to make an annual revenue 
charge, called the scheduled debt amortisation (or loans fund repayment), to reduce the CFR.  
This is effectively a repayment of the borrowing need. This differs from the treasury 
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital commitments.  
External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not change the CFR. 
The total CFR can also be reduced by: 

 
• the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital 

receipts); or  
• charging more than the scheduled debt amortisation for loans repayment.  

 
The Council’s borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators, including those 
comparing gross borrowing, the CFR and the authorised limit. 

 
d) The extent to which the Council is under/over borrowed at 31 March 2022 is calculated by 

comparing actual external debt against the CFR and is shown in Table 3 below.  It includes 
“Other long term liabilities”, such as PFI and leasing schemes on the balance sheet.  These 
increase the Council’s borrowing need, however, as no borrowing is actually required against 
these schemes, these amounts have been deducted in Table 3. 

 
Table 3 
 
 

 
31 March 

2022 
Actual  

£m 

 
31 March 

2022 
Estimate 

£m 

 
 

Variance 
 

£m 
CFR  (PI-2)* 342.3 364.6 (22.3) 

Less: Other long term liabilities ** 86.9 89.1 2.2 

Underlying borrowing requirement 255.4 275.5 (20.1) 

External Borrowing at 31/3/22 211.7 222.7 (11.0) 

(Under)/Over borrowing (43.7) (52.8) (9.1) 

*The CFR for this calculation includes current capital expenditure to 31 March 2022 
**PPP/PFI/Finance Lease balances 

  

Page 449



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 6 of 15 

3. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 
 
3.1 GROSS BORROWING AND THE CFR (Prudential Indicator 6) 
 

a) In order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the medium term and only for a capital 
purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the 
short term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the current year (2021/22) 
plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the next two financial 
years. This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue 
expenditure. This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its 
immediate capital needs in 2021/22.  The table below highlights the Council’s gross 
borrowing position against the CFR.  The Council has complied with this prudential indicator. 

 

Table 4 31 March 
2022 

Actual 
£m 

31 March 
2022 

Estimate 
£m 

 
Variance 

 
£m 

Fixed rate funding    
 PWLB 176.1 187.1 (11.0) 
 Market -  - - 
Variable rate funding    
 Market * 35.6 35.6 - 
External Borrowing 211.7 222.7 (11.0) 
Other long term liabilities ** 86.9 89.1 (2.2) 
Total Debt 298.6 311.8 (13.2) 
CFR (inc. next 2 year estimates) 427.3 464.9 (37.6) 

(Under)/Over Gross Borrowing against the CFR 
(PI-6) (128.7) (153.1) 24.4 

*  LOBO loans (where a rate change could be instigated by the lender at certain intervals) 
**  PPP/PFI/Finance Lease balances 
 

The reason for the decrease in the CFR (inc. next 2 year estimates) and level of under-
borrowing, compared to that projected, is due to the re-phasing of works in future years of 
the capital plan. 

 
b) Council deposits were made on a short term basis throughout 2021/22. 
 
c) On 23 March 2022 the Council borrowed £20m over 10 years at a rate of 2.41%. 

 
3.2  OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY AND AUTHORISED LIMIT (Prudential Indicators 7 and 8) 
 

a) The Operational Boundary and the Authorised Limit are indicators which are intended to 
act as limits to the overall level of borrowing activity. The Authorised Limit represents the 
maximum limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited. The Operational Boundary represents 
the level of external borrowing that the Council is expected to operate within. Table 5 
compares the External Debt position with these indicators and demonstrates that the 
Council has not breached either limit during 2021/22. 

 

 
Table 5 

31 March 
2022 

Actual 
£m 

Authorised 
Limit 
(PI-8) 

£m 

 
 

Variance  
£m 

Operational  
Boundary 

(PI-7) 
£m 

 
 

Variance 
£m 

Total Gross 
Borrowing  298.6 492.2 (193.6) 410.2 (111.6) 

Page 450



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 7 of 15 

3.3   MATURITY PROFILE OF EXTERNAL DEBT 
 

a) Table 6 presents an analysis of the maturity structure of the Council’s external debt portfolio. 
 

Table 6 
 

31 March 
2022 

£m 
Under 12 months  1.8 
12 months and within 5 years 24.9 
5 years and within 10 years 21.6 
Over 10 years 163.4 
Total 211.7 

 
 
4. INTEREST RATE MOVEMENTS AND EXPECTATIONS 
 
4.1 INVESTMENT RATES IN 2021/22 

 

 
 

 
 
a) Investment returns remained close to zero for much of 2021/22.  Most local authority lending 

managed to avoid negative rates and one feature of the year was the continued growth of inter 
local authority lending. The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management 
strategy for 2021/22 was that Bank Rate would remain at 0.1% until it was clear to the Bank of 

-0.20

-0.10

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80
Bank Rate vs backward looking SONIA rates % 1.4.21 - 31.3.22

Bank Rate SONIA 7 day 30 day 90 day 180 day 365 day

Bank Rate SONIA 7 day 30 day 90 day 180 day 365 day
High 0.75 0.69 0.69 0.56 0.39 0.23 0.14

High Date 17/03/2022 18/03/2022 25/03/2022 31/03/2022 31/03/2022 31/03/2022 31/03/2022
Low 0.10 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Low Date 01/04/2021 15/12/2021 16/12/2021 16/12/2021 16/12/2021 07/06/2021 13/12/2021
Average 0.19 0.14 0.13 0.12 0.09 0.07 0.06
Spread 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.51 0.34 0.18 0.09

Page 451



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 8 of 15 

England that the emergency level of rates introduced at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic 
were no longer necessitated. 

b) The Bank of England and the Government also maintained various monetary and fiscal 
measures, supplying the banking system and the economy with massive amounts of cheap 
credit so that banks could help cash-starved businesses to survive the various 
lockdowns/negative impact on their cashflow. The Government also supplied huge amounts of 
finance to local authorities to pass on to businesses.  This meant that for most of the year there 
was much more liquidity in financial markets than there was demand to borrow, with the 
consequent effect that investment earnings rates remained low until towards the turn of the 
year when inflation concerns indicated central banks, not just the Bank of England, would need 
to lift interest rates to combat the second-round effects of growing levels of inflation (CPI was 
6.2% in February). 

c) While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully appreciative of 
changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms of additional capital and 
liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial crisis. These requirements have 
provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, with annual stress tests by regulators 
evidencing how institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme stressed market and 
economic conditions. 

d) Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy of using 
reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than borrowing externally from the 
financial markets. External borrowing would have incurred an additional cost, due to the 
differential between borrowing and investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown above 
and below. Such an approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing the counterparty 
risk exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the financial markets. 

4.2 BORROWING RATES IN 2021/22 
 
 

a) During 2021-22, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This meant that the 
capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not fully funded with loan 
debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used as an 
interim measure. This strategy was prudent as investment returns were very low and 
minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be considered. 
 

b) A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that was not 
immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused a temporary 
increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – the difference between 
(higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns.  

 
c) The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has served well 

over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review to avoid incurring higher 
borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not be able to avoid new borrowing to 
finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing debt.  
 

d) Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was adopted with 
the treasury operations. The Director Finance & Corporate Governance therefore monitored  
interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the following 
principles to manage interest rate risks: 

 
• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short 

term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of 
risks of deflation), then long term borrowings would have been postponed, and 
potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing would have 
been considered. 

Page 452



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 9 of 15 

 
• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and 

short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the 
start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase 
in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio 
position would have been re-appraised.  Most likely, fixed rate funding would have 
been drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected to be in the next 
few years. 

 
e) Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed borrowing 

rates during 2021/22 and the two subsequent financial years until the turn of the year, when 
inflation concerns increased significantly.  Internal, variable, or short-term rates, were 
expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing until well into the second half of 2021/22. 
 
Forecasts at the time of approval of the treasury management strategy report for 2021/22 
were as follows: - 
 

 
 
PWLB RATES 2021/22 
 

 
 

Link Group Interest Rate View  8.2.21

Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

BANK RATE 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

  3 month ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

  6 month ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

12 month ave earnings 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20

5 yr   PWLB 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20

10 yr PWLB 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.40 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60

25 yr PWLB 1.90 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20

50 yr PWLB 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

0.60%

0.80%

1.00%

1.20%

1.40%

1.60%

1.80%

2.00%

2.20%

2.40%

2.60%

2.80%

3.00%
PWLB Rates 1.4.21 - 31.03.22

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 50 year target %

Page 453



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 10 of 15 

 
 
HIGH/LOW/AVERAGE PWLB RATES FOR 2021/22 
 

 
 
f) PWLB rates are based on gilt (UK Government bonds) yields through H.M.Treasury 

determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields.  The main influences on gilt yields are 
Bank Rate, inflation expectations and movements in US treasury yields. Inflation targeting by 
the major central banks has been successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation and 
the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of 
borrowing by consumers: this means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much 
now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the 
overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets over the last 30 years.  We 
have seen, over the last two years, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn 
negative on expectations that the EU would struggle to get growth rates and inflation up from 
low levels. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US 
whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a 
precursor of a recession.  Recently, yields have risen since the turn of the year on the back of  

g) Graph of UK gilt yields v. US treasury yields   

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year
01/04/2021 0.80% 1.20% 1.73% 2.22% 2.03%
31/03/2022 1.91% 2.25% 2.43% 2.64% 2.39%

Low 0.78% 1.05% 1.39% 1.67% 1.25%
Low date 08/04/2021 08/07/2021 05/08/2021 08/12/2021 09/12/2021

High 2.03% 2.37% 2.52% 2.75% 2.49%
High date 15/02/2022 28/03/2022 28/03/2022 23/03/2022 28/03/2022
Average 1.13% 1.45% 1.78% 2.10% 1.85%
Spread 1.25% 1.32% 1.13% 1.08% 1.24%

Page 454



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 11 of 15 

 

h) Gilt yields fell sharply from the spring of 2021 through to September and then spiked back up 
before falling again through December.  However, by January sentiment had well and truly 
changed, as markets became focussed on the embedded nature of inflation, spurred on by a 
broader opening of economies post the pandemic, and rising commodity and food prices 
resulting from the Russian invasion of Ukraine. At the close of the day on 31 March 2022, all 
gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were between 1.11% – 1.45% while the 10-year and 25-year 
yields were at 1.63% and 1.84%. 

i) Regarding PWLB borrowing rates, the various margins attributed to their pricing are as 
follows:-   
 

• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps) 
• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 
• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

 
j) There is likely to be a further rise in short dated gilt yields and PWLB rates over the next three 

years as Bank Rate is forecast to rise from 0.75% in March 2022 to 1.25% later this year, with 
upside risk likely if the economy proves resilient in the light of the cost-of-living squeeze.  
Medium to long dated yields are driven primarily by inflation concerns but the Bank of 
England is also embarking on a process of Quantitative Tightening when Bank Rate hits 1%, 
whereby the Bank’s £895bn stock of gilt and corporate bonds will be sold back into the 
market over several years.  The impact this policy will have on the market pricing of gilts, 
while issuance is markedly increasing, is an unknown at the time of writing. 

 
 
5. INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 2021/22 
 
5.1 INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 
 

a) The Council’s investment strategy is governed by Scottish Government investment 
regulations and sets out the approach for choosing investment categories and counterparties, 
based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by 
additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc). 

 

0.25

0.75

1.25

1.75

2.25

2.75

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2

Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22

10
 ye

ar 
Tre

as
ur

y y
iel

d (
%)

10
 ye

ar 
Gi

lt y
iel

d (
%)

Gilts Forwards - Gilts Treasuries Forwards - Treasuries

Page 455



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 12 of 15 

b) The primary objectives of the Council’s investment strategy are: 
(i)  the safeguarding or security of the repayment of the principal and interest of 

investments on a timely basis;   
(ii)  ensuring adequate liquidity within the Council; and  
(iii) maximising investment yield or return. 
 

c) The Council will ensure: 
(i) It maintains a policy covering the categories of investment types it will invest in, the 

criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security, and the 
monitoring of their security; and 

(ii) It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it sets out procedures for 
determining the maximum periods for which funds may prudently be committed. The 
Council’s Prudential Indicators cover the maximum period over which sums can be 
invested.  

 
5.2 INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 
 

a) The investment activity during the year conformed to the above approved strategy, and the 
Council had no liquidity difficulties. All money deposited with the Council’s bank, Royal Bank 
of Scotland, was done on an overnight basis to minimise security and liquidity risk to the 
Council. 

 
5.3 CURRENT INVESTMENT POSITION 
 

a) The total value of investments/deposits for the Council at 31 March 2022 was £46.9m. Cash 
was held on a short term basis throughout 2021/22 with major banks and various money 
market funds (the latter having a credit rating of AAA).   

 
 
6 TREASURY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

The Treasury Management Function has established the following additional performance 
indicators. 
 

6.1 DEBT PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

These indicators are additional to the prudential & treasury management indicators covered earlier 
in this report. The Indicators are: 
 
a) Average ‘Pool Rate’ charged by the Loans Fund compared to Scottish Local Authority 

average Pool Rate. Target is to be at or below the Scottish Average for 2021/22. 
  
 The Council’s loans fund pool rate for 2021/22 was 3.62%. The Scottish Local Authority 

average “pool rate” for 2021/22 is not yet available at the time of writing, but was 3.58% in 
2020/21 and is not expected to be materially different for 2021/22. 

 
b) Average rate movement year on year. Target is to maintain or reduce the average 

borrowing rate for the Council versus 2020/21. The Council’s pool rate of 3.62% for 2021/22 
was 0.01% lower than the reported Council’s rate of 2020/21. 

 
6.2 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

a) Security 

Page 456



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 13 of 15 

(i) The Council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current portfolio, when 
compared to historic default tables, is 0.02% historic risk of default.  

(ii) During 2021/22, money was deposited in accounts on a short term basis, not exceeding 
3 months.  

 
b) Liquidity 

(i) Liquid short term deposits should be at least £500,000, available with a week’s notice. 
(ii) This indicator was adhered to in 2021/22 
(iii) Weighted Average Life benchmark is expected to be 0.5 years (equivalent to a 

weighted average life of 6 months), with a maximum of 1.00 years.  
(iv) The weighted average life for 2021/22 was 0.01 years, well below the 0.5 year target.  

 
c) Yield 

Due to the removal part-way through the year of the LIBID benchmarking rates, the target 
yield is now to have internal returns on cash investment above the 365 day backward looking 
SONIA (Sterling Overnight Index Average) uncompounded rate. The return for 2021/22 
averaged 0.06%, compared against the 365 day backward looking SONIA uncompounded 
rate for the year to 31 March 2021 of 0.06%.  
 
2020/21 comparison figures for average internal returns and 7 day LIBID were 0.11% and -
0.07% respectively.   
 
Although yields remain low, the Council continues to make deposits on a short term basis 
with the Government’s Debt Management Office (DMO) and Money Market Funds. The DMO 
is a very secure (Credit Rating of AAA) form of investment, but delivers a low rate of return 
(rising to 0.50% from 0.01% in 2020/21).  The Money Market Funds used for deposits are 
also secure (with a Credit Rating of AAA).  The planned deposit allocation between these two 
investment types has resulted in the returns mentioned above. 

 
6.3 IMPACT ON REVENUE BUDGET 
 

a) Ratio of actual financing costs to net revenue stream (Prudential Indicator 3) 
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue funding for the Council. 
The comparison of the revised estimate approved in the 2021/22 mid year report to the 
outturn as at 31 March 2022 is as follows: 
 

Table 8 Actual Estimate 
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue 
stream (PI-3) 

% 
8.6 

% 
8.9 

 
b) Net Cost of Servicing Debt (Loan Charges) – Table 9 below summarises the comparison 

of the outturn versus estimate for the revenue cost of servicing the debt for the Council, 
including interest relating to PPP schools unitary charges. 

 
Table 9 2021/22 

Outturn 
£m 

2021/22 
Mid-Year 
Estimate 

£m 

Variance 
(Under) /Over 

£m 

Interest on Borrowing 9.6 10.2 (0.6) 
Investment Income (0.2) (0.2) - 
Capital Repayments 7.5 9.2 (1.7) 
Total Loan Charges 16.9 19.2 2.3 

 

Page 457



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 14 of 15 

(i) The interest on borrowing costs represents the interest paid on external debt and to 
internally managed funds (e.g. Pension Fund, Common Good Funds).  

 
6.4 TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS (Treasury Indicators 1 – 5) 
 

a) The Treasury Indicators (TIs) are shown in Table 10 below. The Council remained well within 
these Indicator limits throughout 2021/22 

 
Table 10 

 
2021/22 
Revised 
Indicator 

2021/22 
Actual as at 

31 March 2022 
Upper limits – Debt with fixed and variable interest rates 

Upper limits on fixed interest rates  
(TI-1) 438.2 410.2 

Upper limits on variable interest rates 
(TI-2) 153.4 143.6 

Maturity Structure of borrowing 
 Upper 

(TI-3) 
Lower 
(TI-4) 

 
Actual 

Under 12 months 20% 0% 0.84% 
12 months to 2 years 20% 0% 0.27% 
2 years to 5 years 20% 0% 11.47% 
5 years to 10 years 20% 0% 10.20% 
10 years and above 100% 20% 77.22% 

Prudential limits for principal sums invested (TI-5) 

Cash Deposits < 12 months 100% 100%  
Cash Deposits > 12 months 20% 0% 

 
 

Page 458



Scottish Borders Council 
Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

 
    Page 15 of 15 

ANNEX A 
 
Indicator 
Reference 

Indicator Page 
 Ref. 

2021/22 
Original 

estimate 

2021/22 
Revised 
estimate 

2021/22 
 

Actual 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
Capital Expenditure Indicator 
PI-1 Capital Expenditure (£m) 3 87.4 84.2 59.6 

PI-2 Capital Financing Requirement (£m) 
(CFR) 5 384.4 364.6 342.3 

Affordability Indicator  

PI-3 Ratio of Financing Costs to Net 
Revenue 12 8.7% 8.9% 8.6% 

PI-4 Incremental Impact of Capital 
Investment Decisions on Council Tax N/A £0.01 £(0.00) £0.01 

External Debt Indicators  

PI-5 Actual Debt (£m) 6 328.7 311.8 298.6 

PI-7a Operational Boundary  
(inc. Other Long Term Liabilities) (£m) 6 442.6 438.2 410.2 

PI-7b Operational Boundary  
(exc. Other Long Term Liabilities) (£m) 6 349.1 349.1 323.2 

PI-8a Authorised Limit 
(inc. Other Long Term Liabilities) (£m) 6 531.1 525.9 492.2 

PI-8b Authorised Limit 
(exc. Other Long Term Liabilities) (£m) 6 437.6 436.8 405.3 

Indicators of Prudence  

PI-6 (Under)/Over Gross Borrowing against 
the CFR (£m) 6 (144.6) (153.1) (128.7) 

TREASURY INDICATORS  

TI-1 Upper Limit to Fixed Interest Rates 
based on Net Debt (£m) 13 442.6 438.2 410.2 

TI-2 Upper Limit to Variable Interest Rates 
based on Net Debt (£m) 13 154.9 153.4 143.6 

TI-3 & TI-4 Maturity Structure of Fixed Interest 
Rate Borrowing 13 Upper Lower 

 Under 12 months 20% 0% 

 12 months to 2 years 20% 0% 

 2 years to 5 years 20% 0% 

 5 years to 10 years 20% 0% 

 10 years and above 100% 20% 

TI-5 Maximum Principal Sum invested 
greater than 364 days 13 20% 20% 20% 

 

Page 459



This page is intentionally left blank



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

 

 
 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE: COUNCIL EMISSIONS AND PUBLIC 
REPORTING  
 
 
Report by Director Infrastructure and Environment  
 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL  
 
24 November 2022 
 

 
1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY 

 
1.1 This report requests that Council approves the draft Public Bodies 

Climate Change Duties Compliance Report 2021/22 (Appendix 1), 
and an organisational target for achieving zero direct greenhouse 
gas emissions.  The Council is also asked to agree a change in 
governance remit with the Executive Committee taking the lead role 
on matters of environmental sustainability, including leading and 
driving action to combat the negative impacts of climate change, 
build resilience to adapt to climate change and to deliver ‘Net Zero’. 

 
1.2 By the end of November each year, the Council, in common with other 

public bodies, is required to report to Scottish Government on its progress 
in delivering climate action organisationally and within the Local Authority 
area for the preceding financial year.  Amendments introduced this year 
place additional reporting requirements on the Council including net zero 
targets and alignment of spend and resources with those targets.  

 
1.3   The Council has been working with the Edinburgh Climate Change Institute 

(ECCI) to develop an approach to meeting these requirements.  This 
approach proposes increasing the sources of emissions which the Council 
reports against.  This is consistent with the approach of other similar 
organisations and it increases the Council’s understanding of its emissions 
impact, while enhancing its ability to manage that impact on a trajectory 
consistent with national targets and the Council’s own targets.   

 
1.4   As a consequence of additional national reporting requirements, the Council 

must set a target for its own emissions.  In response, it is requested that 
Council agree:  

 
• A high level organisational target of Net Zero by 2045 (or earlier if 

achievable) reflecting the national target for emissions; and 
 

• The development of sectoral targets within the Council’s operations, set 
for 5 year timescales to focus and drive forward meaningful action 
against those targets.   

 

Page 461

Agenda Item 11



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

1.5   Recognising that the Sustainable Development Committee is restricted to 
performing a role of oversight and scrutiny, it is proposed that responsibility 
for matters of environmental sustainability overseen by the Committee, 
including leading and driving action to combat the negative impacts of 
climate change, building resilience to adapt to climate change and to 
delivering ‘Net Zero’, be remitted to the Council’s Executive Committee with 
former members of the Committee continuing to operate as a cross-party 
consultative group on matters of environmental responsibility.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 462



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 I recommend that Council:  

a) Approves the draft Public Bodies Climate Change Duties 
Compliance Report 2021/22 (Appendix 1) for submission, with 
authority for final sign off being delegated to the Director of 
Infrastructure and Environment in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Environment and Transport; 

b) Approves an organisational target for achieving zero direct 
greenhouse gas emissions as follows: 

i. A high level organisational target of Net Zero by 2045 (or 
earlier if achievable) reflecting the national target for 
emissions, and 

ii. The development of sectoral targets within the Council’s 
operations, set for 5 year timescales to focus and drive 
forward meaningful action against the targets, as more 
particularly described in para 6.4 of this report;   

c) Agrees to amend the Scheme of Administration to remove the 
Sustainable Development Committee and to add the following 
delegated functions to the Council’s Executive Committee: 

(i) Provide direction, oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s 
strategies, plans, policies and actions in leading and driving 
action to combat the negative impacts of climate change, 
build resilience to adapt to climate change and to deliver net 
Zero carbon by 2045 (at the latest) both organisationally and 
in the Scottish Borders overall. 

(ii) Provide direction, oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s 
strategies, plans, policies and actions in leading and driving 
action to undertake, promote and deliver environmental 
practices which accord with the UN Sustainable Development 
Goals 

(iii) Take cognisance of the Just Transition to a Net Zero Scottish 
Borders ensuring that all communities benefit from the 
transition and that co-benefits are maximised (e.g. circular 
economy employment opportunities, health benefits) 

d) Agrees to set up a Sustainability Members Reference Group, 
comprising the current membership of the Sustainable 
Development Committee and with the terms of references as 
detailed in Appendix 2. 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 463



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

3 BACKGROUND 
 
 3.1 Having declared a Climate Emergency on 29 September 2020, the Council 

approved the ‘Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map’ (CCRM) on 17 
June 2021 and a Plan of Priority Actions to animate and expedite progress 
on climate action on March 2022.    

 
 3.2 Through these steps, the Council has been trying to establish ‘Net Zero 

practice’ and the cultural conditions in which that practice becomes 
increasingly embedded and pervasive in the organisation and in driving 
climate action.  There are a number of elements which underpin this 
practice: baselining (i.e. establishing a clear start line from which progress 
can be mapped and evaluated); strategy; action plan; delivery; and 
monitoring.  This is an exercise, which repeats with increasing rigour and 
refinement.   

 
3.3 Scottish Borders Council has been working with the Edinburgh Climate 

Change Institute (ECCI) to support it on the next steps for delivering the 
Council’s Climate Change Route Map (CCRM).  Delivery of the CCRM 
requires the Council to strengthen its baseline of emissions data, to help the 
Council plan, manage and monitor progress against key emissions sources 
at an organisational level. Additionally, in designing and delivering its own 
programme for emissions reduction, we must establish the foundation to 
lead an area-wide strategy, which delivers a net zero region by 2045, in line 
with Scotland’s national targets.  

   
3.4 Two workshops with Council Managers and Directors took place on 30 

August and 6 October 2022 to support these objectives, while a third 
workshop will focus specifically on the Council’s role in leading area-wide 
emissions reduction. 

 
 The workshops facilitated by ECCI will help the Council to: 
 

• Assess the climate impact of council operations and decisions 
• Target key areas for emissions reduction 
• Develop targeted actions across both service delivery and support 

functions   
• Understand where the Council has control or influence over emissions in 

the Scottish Borders area 
• Understand how the Council can support emissions reduction across the 

region. 
 

4 THE CONTENTS OF THE REPORT 
 

4.1 The CCRM set out a generalised baseline picture for the region, but, in 
common with other Local Authorities and public bodies, it was always 
recognised that the Council needed to strengthen its understanding and 
assessment of both Scottish Borders area-wide emissions and the Council’s 
emissions as an organisation.  That need has been given further impetus by 
Scottish Government’s mandatory requirements that (among other things) 
the Council sets a target for direct organisational emissions, as well as 
developing a clear picture of our aims around indirect emissions.   

  

Page 464



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

 
4.2 At this juncture, it would be helpful to clarify what is meant by direct 

emissions and indirect emissions.  Almost all carbon reporting frameworks 
(including those used by the UK and Scottish Governments) are built around 
the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol developed by the World Business 
Council for Sustainable Development and the World Resources Institute. 
The GHG Protocol defines direct and indirect emissions as follows: 
 
• Direct GHG emissions are emissions from sources that are owned or 

controlled by the reporting entity. 
• Indirect GHG emissions are emissions that are a consequence of the 

activities of the reporting entity, but occur at sources owned or 
controlled by another entity. 

 
The GHG Protocol further categorises these direct and indirect emissions 
into three broad scopes: 

 
o Scope 1 emissions, or direct emissions, refer to emissions released 

directly from buildings or assets owned by the organisation in question. 
This would include emissions from gas, oil, coal or other fuels burnt in 
boilers; emissions from company owned vehicles; and emissions from 
incinerators owned and operated by the organisation. It would also 
include emissions of so-called fugitive gases: emissions of GHGs from 
pressurised equipment due to leaks and other unintended releases. For 
most public sector organisations this would most likely only be in the 
form of leaks of CFC refrigerant gases (which are GHGs) from older 
refrigeration equipment. 

 
o Scope 2 emissions (which can be categorised as “energy indirect‟ 

emissions) are from heat, steam and electricity purchased by the 
organisation for use in buildings or assets that it owns and controls. 

 
o Scope 3 emissions (other indirect emissions) are a consequence of the 

organisation’s actions, but are different in that they do not arise from 
assets owned and controlled by the organisation.  They do, however, 
result indirectly from the organisation’s activities in some way.  These 
emissions occur at sources which the Council does not own or control 
and which are not already covered under the scope 2 classification.  
Examples include: travel for business by employees commuting (the 
organisation does not own the cars, trains, aircraft, etc. that employees 
travel in, though this travel is directly related to the organisation and its 
activities); and goods and services purchased by the organisation 
(emissions arise from factories or buildings owned and operated by 
suppliers; yet a share of these emissions result from the purchasing 
organisation’s activities in that they are creating the demand that leads 
to suppliers‟ activity, which in turn generates emissions). 

 
Lastly, when calculating the level of greenhouse gas emissions, scientists 
have devised an equivalent measure – CO2e (which literally means carbon 
dioxide equivalent).  Typically, at scale.  CO2e is expressed in tonnes.  CO2e 
allows other greenhouse gas emissions to be expressed in terms of CO2 
based on their relative global warming potential (GWP). 
 

Page 465



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

CO2 has a GWP of 1, methane has a GWP of approximately 25 (on a 100-
year time horizon). In other words, for every 1 tonne of methane (CH4) 
emitted, an equivalent of 25 tonnes of CO2 would be emitted.  In this way, 
greenhouse gas emissions can be expressed as an equivalent of CO2 using 
the GWP principle.  This ensures that all greenhouse gases can be included 
for each activity in scope, and provides reassurance that an organization's 
emissions impact has been captured. 

 
4.3  To navigate a path through these complex and interrelated issues, the next 

part of this report comprises the following sections:   
 
• Section 5 - sets out the Council’s responsibilities under Climate Change 

Public Bodies Reporting Requirements and highlights for members some 
of most salient aspects of the draft report, including the Council’s 
reported organisational emissions. 

 
• Section 6 – explores the additional Climate Change reporting 

requirements to which the Council is subject as a public body.  It also 
sets out how the Council proposes to undertake its Climate Change 
reporting requirements and, specifically, how it proposes to set an 
organisational target for direct emissions in response to the augmented 
reporting requirements. 

 
• Section 7 - recognises that the Council’s governance arrangements 

must keep pace with the weight of responsibilities which flow from the 
Council’s mandatory duties of action and reporting, and the Council’s 
own commitment to climate action manifested in the Climate Emergency 
Declaration and subsequent Council decisions.  Currently, oversight and 
scrutiny resides with the Sustainable Development Committee.  It is 
proposed that responsibility for matters of environmental sustainability 
overseen by the Committee, including leading and driving action to 
combat the negative impacts of climate change, building resilience to 
adapt to climate change and to delivering ‘Net Zero’, be remitted to the 
Council’s Executive Committee with former members of the Sustainable 
Development Committee continuing to operate as a cross-party 
consultative group on matters of environmental responsibility.   

 
5 CLIMATE CHANGE (DUTIES OF PUBLIC BODIES: REPORTING 

REQUIREMENTS)  
 

5.1   Since 2015, all public bodies in Scotland have been required to complete 
annual climate change reports required by the end of November each year 
through the Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report (PBCCDR).  

 
5.2   This unique public bodies reporting duty has been widely credited with 

driving climate action, tracking progress across the sector in reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions, improving climate resilience and encouraging 
sustainable delivery of public sector services and functions. 

 
5.3 Public sector bodies play a key role in meeting Scotland’s ambitious climate 

targets and have a statutory duty to cut greenhouse gas emissions, prepare 
for the impacts of climate change and act sustainably.  

 

Page 466



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

5.4  The Climate Change (Duties of Public Bodies: Reporting Requirements) 
(Scotland) Order 2015 requires listed public bodies (including the Council) 
to report annually on their compliance with the following duties by the end 
of November each year:   

 
• Profile of the body – e.g. budget and staff numbers  
• Climate change governance, management and strategy  
• Corporate emissions, projects and targets  
• Adaptation – including risk assessments and management  
• Procurement – how goods and services are managed to help meet 

targets and minimise impacts from climate risks.   
• Validation of report data and information 

 
5.5 Council is asked to approve the draft Public Bodies Climate Change Duties 

Compliance Reporting Template 2021/22.  In so doing, Elected Members 
should note the following points: 

 
a) There are a number of gaps in the report.  This reflects two issues: 
 

i. Both the reporting exercise and organisation’s capability in reporting 
and the climate action which supports that reporting continue to 
develop.  For the Council specifically, the work undertaken with ECCI 
is improving its ability to assess the Council’s emissions.  Indeed, it is 
hoped to move next year to internal quarterly reporting of emissions 
data in line with the Council’s current corporate performance 
reporting. This will make the whole reporting process more beneficial 
to the Council, monitoring the Council’s ongoing progress culminating 
in the submission of the report to Scottish Government in November 
every year. 

 
ii. The report template (which is Excel-based) is not generally regarded 

as ‘user-friendly’.  Dialogue to improve the template continues 
between the Scottish Government, Sustainable Scotland Network 
which has a role in supporting and guiding public bodies in completion 
of the report, and the officers of public bodies who undertake the role 
of completing the report. 

 
b) The timescales for reporting against the Climate Change Public Bodies 

Reporting Requirements operate are annually in arrears.  This means 
that the actions identified in the Plans of Priority Actions agreed by SBC 
on 10 March 2022 fall to be reported in November 2023.  As noted 
however, officers are proposing to report emissions data quarterly from 
2023, which will build a developing picture of the Council’s emission 
during the course of the year, providing a stronger and more timely 
picture of progress from which the mandatory annual report to Scottish 
Government is developed.   

 
c) The emissions report appears to highlight an increase in Council 

emissions, but the reasons for this relate to an increased number of 
emissions sources being reported rather than an ostensible increase in 
the Council’s emissions.  The relevant section is Section 3 of the Report 
on ‘Emissions and Projects’ which has questions on: 

 
 

Page 467

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2015/347/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2015/347/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2015/347/schedule/1/made


Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

• 3a Overall emissions 
• 3b Breakdown of emissions 

 
 Previously SBC has drawn a minimal boundary of: 
 

• Electricity, natural gas and other fuels in buildings 
• Diesel from fleet 
• Homeworking (since 2020/21) 

 
 Most Local Authorities in Scotland report a more comprehensive 

boundary and SBC has good data to be able to improve reporting.  
Accordingly, the Council’s emissions boundary has been extended to 
include Waste, Water, Homeworking and Business Mileage.  

 
The report template requests information on projects implemented in 
the reporting year and the associated total carbon emissions saved.  
This is an area that the Council needs to improve on: 
• Primarily ensuring carbon reduction opportunities are considered at 

project outset to avoid the unnecessary long term locking-in of 
carbon; 

• Sharing information on projects so that lessons are learned; and 
• Having project information readily available for reporting purposes. 
 

d) While the complex and generational nature of delivering a Just 
Transition to Net Zero means there is no place for complacency, genuine 
progress is being made.  The Council has effectively already met the 
national targets of ‘5% waste to landfill by 2025 and ‘Zero 
Biodegradable Municipal Waste to landfill by 2025’ five years early (para 
3d Organisational Targets - Public Bodies Climate Change Duties 
Compliance Reporting Template 2021/22). 

 
6    SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL EMISSIONS TARGET-SETTING 
 

6.1   The Climate Change (Duties of Public Bodies: Reporting Requirements) 
(Scotland) Amendment Order 2020 introduced additional reporting 
requirements, including net zero targets and alignment of spend and 
resources with those targets.  These changes took effect from April 2021 for 
all annual reports due by 30 November 2022. 

 
6.2   Most immediately, all compliance reports must include an 

organisational target date for achieving zero direct emissions of greenhouse 
gases. 

 
6.3   This report seeks agreement as to how the Council should approach this 

mandatory requirement.  As noted, ECCI has supported development of the 
proposed approach.  It is also worth saying at the outset that Scottish 
Government recognises that compliance with the new duties is challenging.  
In particular, the Scottish Government recognises that smaller public bodies 
may lack sufficient technical expertise/capacity to set appropriate targets, 
and has prepared an illustrative Net Zero Statement for them to adapt in 
completing their compliance reports.  The Council’s aim is to be more 
ambitious than this, but its approach with respect to its own indirect 
emissions and area-wide emissions continues to be developed with a further 
ECCI-supported workshop.  Meanwhile work is also going on ensure that the 

Page 468

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2020/281/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2020/281/contents/made


Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

Council’s spending plans and use of resources are clearly aligned to 
reducing emissions and delivering its emissions reduction targets. 

 
6.4  SBC’s proposed approach to achieving zero direct emissions comprises the 

following: 
 

a) A high level organisational target of Net Zero by 2045 (or earlier if 
achievable).  This is consistent with Scotland’s national target of net 
zero by 2045 and the intermediate targets set out in the Climate 
Change (Emissions Reduction Targets) (Scotland) Act 2019. 

 
b) The developmental of sectoral targets within the Council’s operations, 

set for 5 year timescales to focus and drive forward meaningful action 
against the targets, beginning with the following: 

 
i. 20% reduction in fleet fossil fuel consumption (petrol, diesel) 

consumption and a 20% reduction in business mileage, where 
employees use their own car, over the period 2019/20 to 2024/25. 

 
ii. Five percent waste to landfill by 2025 and zero biodegradable 

municipal waste to landfill by 2025.  As noted in para 5.5d), for 
practical purposes, these targets have been achieved. 

 
iii. A target for direct emissions associated with the Council’s estate is in 

development and is expected to form part of the target setting and 
Public Bodies Climate Change Duties reporting in November 2023. 

 
The rationale for the proposed sectoral targets is that, for all the Council 
does in terms of service delivery, its direct carbon emissions are largely 
connected to two things: energy in running our buildings and in transport 
around the region.  

 
6.5 As processes are developed and refined, Council should expect that it will be 

presented with further and adjustments of sectoral targets.  In time, this 
may enable the overarching organisational target of Net Zero by 2045 also 
to be advanced.  This is entirely consistent with what other Local Authorities 
and public bodies are doing.  The process is necessarily iterative.  No-one 
currently has all the answers on how to deliver the transition over the next 
23 years to 2045, or how emerging technologies can be deployed efficiently 
at scale.  Many of the solutions rely on further technological innovation, 
market development and wider take up and adoption as well as action by 
others. 

 
6.6 Council will note that the Zero Direct Emissions target for the organisation 

is expressed as 95%.  This reflects the anticipated reality of some residual 
emissions, for example, associated with the Council’s buildings.  The 
objective will be to ensure that these are ‘netted off’ by compensatory 
measures, delivering on the overall organisational target of ‘Net Zero by 
2045’.   

 
7 CHANGE IN GOVERNANCE REMIT  
  

7.1   At its meeting on 17 June 2022, the Sustainable Development Committee 
Members discussed the role of the Committee and requested that the 

Page 469



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

functions delegated to it be changed to reflect a wider remit not focused 
solely on climate change, and the name of the Committee be changed to 
take account of this.  The discussion acknowledged that the activity in which 
the Committee is engaged had a paramount focus on climate action but also 
included much broader responsibility across environmental sustainability, 
linked to the UN Sustainable Development Goals as well as the Climate 
Change Route Map.   

 
7.2 Following further discussion with the Executive Member for Environment 

and Transport and other senior members, it is proposed as follows: 
 
a) The following responsibilities be remitted to the Council’s Executive 

Committee: 
 

1. Provide direction, oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s strategies, 
plans, policies and actions in leading and driving action to combat 
the negative impacts of climate change, build resilience to adapt to 
climate change and to deliver net Zero carbon by 2045 (at the 
latest) both organisationally and in the Scottish Borders overall.  

 
2. Provide direction, oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s strategies, 

plans, policies and actions in leading and driving action to 
undertake, promote and deliver environmental practices which 
accord with the UN Sustainable Development Goals   

 
3. Take cognisance of the Just Transition to a Net Zero Scottish 

Borders ensuring that all communities benefit from the transition 
and that co-benefits are maximised (e.g. circular economy 
employment opportunities, health benefits) 

 
b) The Sustainable Development Committee shall cease, but its Members 

shall continue to operate as a cross-party reference and consultative 
group (the ‘Sustainability Members Reference Group’).  A draft Terms 
of Reference is attached (see Appendix 2).  

 
  The rationale for these changes is as follows: 
 

• It is considered that the urgency of the Climate and Nature Emergency 
requires the full weight of the Council’s Executive behind it, with its 
ability to set and make decisions on strategic matters of such 
paramount concern.   
 

• The cross-party dialogue of the Sustainable Development Committee 
worked well, and should continue to add value to the Council’s 
deliberations through a Sustainability Members Reference Group. 

 
8 IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 Financial  

a) Following agreement of an overarching strategy – the Scottish Borders 
Climate Change Route Map (CCRM) - in June 2021, the Council agreed a 
plan of priority actions in March 2022.  Among other things, this is 
intended to consolidate a single programme of climate action within the 
Council, which is developed and augmented on a rolling basis and which 

Page 470



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

informs the Council’s budget-setting process.  At the same time, Elected 
Members/Directors are undergoing carbon literacy training to enhance 
their understanding in respect of the significance of local authority 
leadership action, the co-benefits of investment in climate mitigation 
and adaptation, the crucial impact of mitigation trajectory in driving 
down emissions and the relationship of all these elements to financial 
planning and budgetary alignment with climate objectives and targets. 
 

b) Public Bodies Climate Change Duties reporting and a clear 
understanding of Scottish Borders area-wide and the Council’s 
organisational emissions are essential in supporting the journey to Net 
Zero by 2045.  The Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map and the 
evolving Priority Action Plan outline the activities and resources required 
to deliver project outcomes as an element of that journey.  The budget 
requirement for many projects has been identified, but this is an 
ongoing and iterative process.  Budgetary implications or requirements 
will continue to be worked up and reported to members as part of the 
Council’s budget-setting process this year and in subsequent years.  If 
budget is unavailable or insufficient, adjustments will be required to the 
Plan of Priority Actions setting out what is deliverable. 

 
c) As a result of budget limitations, some actions described in the Plan of 

Priority Actions may mean that the way the Council delivers some 
services in future is likely to change to help meet emissions targets.  It 
should be recognised, however, that changes to service delivery will 
often be appropriate to drive carbon emissions reductions irrespective of 
budget pressures. 

 

8.2 Risk and Mitigations 
(a) Climate Change was identified in 2015 as a corporate risk as part of 

SBC's corporate risk management process, and was revisited following 
the Council’s Declaration of a Climate Change Emergency in 2020. The 
corporate risk relating to climate change is reviewed quarterly by 
relevant senior officers and the appropriate Director.  The Strategic 
Leadership Team of Chief Executive and Directors have oversight of the 
Corporate Risk Register, which includes this Climate Change risk, on a 
quarterly basis in line with SBC Risk Management Policy and Strategy. 
This risk underpins the refreshed Council Plan 2022/23 and the specific 
‘Clean, Green Future’ outcome.  A number of mitigation actions are 
being pursued to manage and minimise this risk as far as is possible. 
Furthermore, risks and mitigations are considered by the Sustainability 
Board of officers and will be remitted to the Council’s Executive 
Committee going forward. 
 

(b) Risk to the Council is defined under 4 key aspects –  
• Failure of the Council to deliver against its legal duties under current 

and developing climate legislation and policy commitments, including 
Public Bodies Climate Change Duties reporting.  It is essential that 
appropriate skills development takes place and that adequate 
resource and capacity is available to deliver against these 
requirements.  Regular monitoring and review processes will be 
required to ensure compliance and delivery.  This includes the 
direction, overview and scrutiny of the Executive Committee as 

Page 471



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

proposed in this report, together with the expected contributions of 
the Sustainability Reference Group.  Furthermore, the recruitment of 
a Climate Change Officer and consultancy support have significantly 
enhanced the technical capability and capacity of the Council in 
assessing carbon emissions reductions.   

 
• The Council committed to ‘tackling climate change’ in its Council Plan 

2022/23, and related commitments and actions within the CCRM and 
the Plan of Priority Actions.  The Council will face significant 
reputational risk if it fails to support delivery of the actions required 
to make good on this commitments. 

 
• There are also potential financial and service delivery risks associated 

with not addressing the need to prepare for the impacts of a changing 
climate.  These impacts will include increased likelihood of extreme 
weather events, effects on transport and access to services and 
service delivery, security of supply of energy, food and other goods.  
By taking action on the basis of the CCRM and Plan of Priority Actions, 
the Council will mitigate these risks. 

 
• The changes required to place and maintain the Council and the wider 

Scottish Borders on a Just Transition to Net Zero are without 
precedent.  Quite apart from the changes required in our processes, 
the extent of behaviour change required presents significant public 
expectation management risks.  It is intended to address these 
through direction and oversight of the Executive, supported by the 
proposed Sustainability Reference Groups. 

 
c) The SBC Internal Audit Strategy states “Key components of the Internal 

Audit planning process include a clear understanding of the Council’s 
functions, associated risks and potential range and breadth of audit 
areas for inclusion within the plan.  To capture potential areas of risk 
and uncertainty more fully, key stakeholders have been consulted and 
risks and mitigations on corporate/service risk registers have been 
considered”.  Annual Internal Audits since 2012/13 have focussed on 
the progress and reporting requirements of the Carbon Management 
Programme and Carbon Reduction Commitment for assurance on how 
the Council is fulfilling its obligations.  In order to reflect the revisited 
Climate Change corporate risk following the Council’s Declaration of a 
Climate Change Emergency in 2020, the risk-based Internal Audit 
Annual Plans for 2021/22 and 2022/23 include an audit covering this 
area, generically named ‘Sustainable Environment’ to assess progress 
with the development of new governance arrangements and action 
plans to meet obligations.  An Executive Summary of findings of the 
2021/22 audit was reported to the Council’s Audit Committee in June 
2022, including two improvement actions.  At the start of the 2022/23 
audit engagement, discussions have been held with Internal Audit to 
ensure the scope of the audit includes the monitoring of progress with 
action plans and outcomes in respect of climate change and carbon 
targets.  The development of the Internal Audit Strategy for 2023/24 
will include integrating climate change into all assurance audits as a 
cross-cutting risk to provide assurance that the underlying controls and 
processes in all Services that support climate change commitments, 
plans and programmes are operating as intended’. 

Page 472



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

 
8.3 Integrated Impact Assessment 

A full Integrated Impact Assessment is being finalised and will be published 
by 24 November 2022.   

 
8.4 United Nations Sustainable Development Goals  

These comprise 17 interlinked goals. UN SDG 13: ‘Take urgent action to 
combat climate change and its impacts’ is clearly the most relevant to the 
proposals contained within the Plan of Priority Actions.  However, the Plan 
also strives to deliver against other UN SDGs with Goal 1 – to end poverty, 
2 – promote sustainable agriculture, 7- Ensure access to affordable, 
reliable, sustainable and modern energy for all, relevant to the objective of 
a ‘just transition’. 

 
8.5 Climate Change  
 The purpose of this report is to establish an effective approach to carbon 

emissions oversight, essential to progress against the CCRM in supporting 
the Council and Plan of Priority Actions to deliver a just transition to net-
zero emissions by 2045 and appropriate adaptation and resilience measures 
in the Scottish Borders. 
 

8.6 Rural Proofing 
The Council’s baselining approach, and its approach to the CCRM and Plan 
of Priority Actions are underpinned by the Council’s commitment to deliver 
on the UN SDGs, and its duties under Equalities legislation.  Thus, an 
equalities based approach, including in rural settings, is built into the 
recommendations of this report which are complementary and conducive to 
the objective of Rural Proofing. 
 

8.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation 
Approval of the present report will require amendment to the Scheme of 
Administration as stated in section 7, specifically paragraph 7.2.  No 
changes are required to the Scheme of Delegation arising from the 
proposals in this report.  
 

9 CONSULTATION 
 
9.1 The Acting Chief Financial Officer, the Monitoring Officer/Chief Legal Officer, 

the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Director (People Performance & 
Change), the Clerk to the Council and Corporate Communications have been 
consulted and their comments incorporated into the final report. 

 
 
 
 

 
Approved by 

 
John Curry      Signature …………………………………….. 
Director Infrastructure and Environment  
 
 
 
Author(s) 

Page 473



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022   

Name Designation and Contact Number 
Michael Cook  Corporate Policy Advisor 01835 825590 
Louise Cox Environmental Strategy Co-ordinator 01835 825596 
Jenny Fausset Climate Change Officer 

 
Background Papers:   
Previous Minute Reference:   
Scottish Borders Council, 10 March 2022 
 
 
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Jenny Wilkinson can also give information on 
other language translations as well as providing additional copies. 
 
Contact us at Jenny Wilkinson, Scottish Borders Council, Council HQ, Newtown St 
Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA  Tel:  01835 825004  Email: 
jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk 

Page 474

mailto:jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk


Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Compliance Reporting Template 2021/22

1.Overview

2. Guidance

1. Please save-as this workbook with your organisation's name in the title before completing
2. Question 1f must be completed to ensure the correct emission factors are applied in Q3b,
3. If you need to add more rows please email the file to ccreporting@ed.ac.uk
4. Hybrid/homeworking emissions - please include an estimate of FTEs  working remotely - hybrid/home in the designated row provided in table 3b
    In order for this to be calculated correctly the total no. of FTEs must be entered in Q1c 
5. Local Authorities completeing the recommended tab should select their local authority region at the top of the sheet
    and their emissions will be provided automatically from BEIS datasets

3. Colour Coding used in the template

Dropdown box - select from list of options 

Uneditable/fixed entry cell
Editable cell 

This template is provided for public bodies required to report annually in accordance with the 
Climate Change (Duties of Public Bodies Reporting Requirements) (Scotland) Order 2015, as 
amended by the Climate Change (Duties of Public Bodies: Reporting Requirements) (Scotland) 
Amendment Order 2020 which took effect for reporting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2021.

Reports must be submitted to ccreporting@ed.ac.uk by 30th November. Late submissions may not 
be accepted for analysis and may be classed as non-compliant with Public Bodies Duties legislative 
reporting requirements. 

1

P
age 475



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

PART 1 Profile of Reporting Body

1a Name of reporting body
Provide the name of the listed body (the "body") which prepared this report.

Scottish Borders Council

1b Type of body
Select from the options below

Local Government

1c Highest number of full-time equivalent staff in the body during the report year

3191.8 THIS MUST BE COMPLETED

1d Metrics used by the body

Metric Units Value Comments
Population size served population 115510 2019 census figure from SBC website
Please select from drop down box  
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box  
Please select from drop down box  
Please select from drop down box  
Please select from drop down box  
Please select from drop down box  
 Other (please specify in comments) 
 Other (please specify in comments) 
 Other (please specify in comments) 
 Other (please specify in comments) 
 Other (please specify in comments) 
 Other (please specify in comments) 

15  Other (please specify in comments) 

1e Overall budget of the body
Specify approximate £/annum for the report year.
Budget Budget Comments

£378,400,000 £378,400,000 Gross

Public Sector Report on Compliance with Climate Change Duties 2022 Template

Specify the metrics that the body uses to assess its performance in relation to climate change and sustainability.

2

P
age 476



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

1f Report type
Specify the report year type
Report type Report year comments

Financial 2021-22 THIS MUST BE COMPLETED

1g Context
Provide a summary of the body's nature and functions that are relevant to climate change reporting.

Scottish Borders is a predominantly rural local authority area in south east Scotland - covering an area of 4,732 km2 and has a 30 kms coastline.  Its population density is  24.35 persons per km2.  No. of households is 54,413.

The region is the fourth most sparsely-populated mainland Local Authority area in Scotland after Highland, Argyll and Bute and Dumfries and Galloway. Just under 30% of the population live in settlements of under 500 people 
or in isolated hamlets, and no towns have a population over 14,000. However, the region sits on the edge of three city regions (Edinburgh, Newcastle and Carlisle) which provides significant opportunities in terms of cross 
border co-operation, jobs, tourism, leisure, work and study.

The following Council Services have a role to play in addressing climate change and promoting sustainability: 
People, Performance & Change: Human Resources; Payroll; Transformation & Business Change; Organisational Development; Corporate Training, Learning & Development; Corporate Performance
Infrastructure & Environment: Building Standards, Planning, Waste Management; Property Management; Fleet,Passenger Transport, Capital Projects & Monitoring; Green Space Team; Estates, Architects, Facilities 
Management, Housing Strategy
Resilient Communities: Customer Services; Revenues, Benefits & Financial Inclusion; Community Planning & Engagement; Economic Development; Business Support
Education & Lifelong Learning: Schools & Education; Statutory Quality standards and inspections; Corporate Parenting; Youth work; Teacher training, learning and development;  Community Learning & Development; 
Employability
Social Work & Practice: Adults Social Work; Children Social Work; Public Protection; Criminal Justice; Homeless Support
Strategic Commissioning & Partnerships: Commissioning Lead; Homecare; Residential Care; Lead for ICT Client and Strategic Contract with CGI; Lead for Strategic Partnerships
Finance & Corporate Governance: Finance, Procurement, Audit & Risk, Legal Services, Licensing, Protective Services, Health & Safety, Democratic Services, Assessors
Chief Executive's: Strategic Planning & Policy; Emergency Planning; Communications

3

P
age 477



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

PART 2 Governance, Management and Strategy

Governance and management

2a

2b

Provide a summary of the roles performed by the body’s governance bodies and members in relation to climate change. If any of the body’s activities in relation to climate change sit outside its own governance 
arrangements (in relation to, for example, land use, adaptation, transport, business travel, waste, information and communication technology, procurement or behaviour change), identify these activities and the governance 
arrangements. Provide a diagram / chart to outline the governance structure within the body.

Responsibility for strategic & operational climate change activity (mitigation, adaptation and acting sustainably) in Scottish Borders Council sits with the Director Infrastructure and Environment (I&E).  The Strategic Leadership Team 
(SLT) play a key role in terms of structural/governance and climate change policy development. 

Senior Leadership Team (SLT) - Director of I&E is the lead for climate change on SLT and chairs the internal Sustainability Board of officers.  
Sustainable Development Committee (11 cross-party Elected Members) oversees the work of the Sustainability Board, and acts in an advisory role.  The structure below shows the areas of activity covered by this Directorate, key 
areas are Property, Infrastructure, Fleet and Transport Management. 

Scottish Borders Council declared a Climate Emergency on 25th September 2020 and approved a Climate Change Route Map in June 2021.   Priority Actions to deliver on the Climate Change Route Map were approved on 11 March 
2022.   

<Insert Diagram Here or Attach File>

How is climate change action managed and embedded in the body?
Provide a summary of how decision-making in relation to climate change action by the body is managed and how responsibility is allocated to the body’s senior staff, departmental heads etc. If any such decision-making sits outside 
the body’s own governance arrangements (in relation to, for example, land use, adaptation, transport, business travel, waste, information and communication technology, procurement or behaviour change), identify how this is 
managed and how responsibility is allocated outside the body. Provide a diagram to show how responsibility is allocated to the body’s senior staff, departmental heads etc.

The business planning guidance used by Council services to develop Business Plans requires that low carbon and sustainability impacts are assessed during plan development. 

All Council Committee reports now contain impact assessment sections on Climate Change and embedding the United Nations Sustainable Developments Goals, with written guidance provided for authors on how to complete these 
assessments.  This process has been in place since March 2021.

Public Sector Report on Compliance with Climate Change Duties 2022 Template

How is climate change governed in the body?

<Insert Diagram Here or Attach File>

4

P
age 478



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

Strategy

2c

Provide a brief summary of objectives if they exist.

Wording of objective

Declares a Climate Emergency and agrees to set a target for achieving a 
reduction in the Council’s carbon emissions, which is at least consistent 
with the Scottish Government’s target of net zero by 2045 and the 
intermediate targets set out inthe Climate Change (Emissions Reduction 
Targets) (Scotland) Act 2019;

Climate Change Declaration

Resilience: To help deliver Net Zero, reduce inequalities, deliver inclusive 
economic growth, and improve health and wellbeing across the region.

Decarbonising Transport Use: To help deliver Net Zero, reduce 
inequalities, deliver inclusive economic growth and improve health and 
wellbeing across the region.

Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map (accompanied by priority actions for each objective)

Nature Based Solutions: A transformation in agriculture and the use of 
farmland while maintaining the same levels of food per head produced 
today and region where woodlands, peatlands, heathlands and pastures 
are widely restored and managed sustainably.

Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map (accompanied by priority actions for each objective)

Reducing Energy Conumption: To transition to Net Zero GHG emissions 
from the energy we consume in our industry, commerce and domestic 
buildings and related activities through clean fuels, energy efficiency and 
understanding how our infrastructures can be used more effectively.

Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map (accompanied by priority actions for each objective)

Decarbonising Waste Management: To address GHG emissions by 
ensuring waste is managed sustainably through reducing, reusing, 
recycling and recovering waste to improve resource efficiency.

Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map (accompanied by priority actions for each objective)

https://data.climateemergency.uk/media/data/plans/scottish-borders-council-9b45ab8.pdf

Does the body have specific climate change mitigation and adaptation objectives in its corporate plan or similar document?

Name of document Document Link

Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map (accompanied by priority actions for each objective)

https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=5139&Ver=4

Council's Corporate Plan (covering FY 2021-22)

5

P
age 479



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

2d

2e
Provide the name of any such document and the timeframe covered.

Topic area Name of document Link Time period covered Comments

Adaptation Flood Risk Management https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/download/1046/flood
_risk_management_plans

May-19

Business travel Business Travel Decision Maker Business Travel Decision Maker | Scottish Borders Council 
(scotborders.gov.uk)

Staff Travel Employee Travel & Mileage Policy Employee Travel and Mileage Policy | Scottish Borders Council 
(scotborders.gov.uk)

2017-2022

Energy efficiency No Strategy in place
Fleet transport Fleet Strategy 2022-2027
ICT Scottish Borders Council Digital Strategy https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s49954/Item

%20No.%209%20-%20Digital%20Strategy.pdf
2021 Scottish Borders Council Digital Strategy approved 

February 2021

Renewable energy No plan currently in place
Sustainable/renewable heat No plan currently in place
Waste management No plan currently in place
Water and sewerage No plan currently in place
Land Use Local Development Plan Local development plan - adopted | Local development plan | 

Scottish Borders Council (scotborders.gov.uk)
Adopted May 2016

Other (please specify in comments) Regional Economic Strategy & Delivery 
Plan

South of Scotland Regional Economic Partnership - South of 
Scotland Regional Economic Partnership (dumgal.gov.uk)

2021-2031

Other (please specify in comments) Local Housing Strategy Strategies, plans and policies directory - Local housing strategy | 
Scottish Borders Council (scotborders.gov.uk)

2017-2022

Other (please specify in comments) Local Transport Strategy Currently being reviewed and will be updated in alignment 
with national & regional strategies. 

Adaptation Woodland Strategy Woodland strategy | Scottish Borders Council (scotborders.gov.uk)

Other (please specify in comments) Winter Service Plan 2021-22 Council Plan | Scottish Borders Council (scotborders.gov.uk) https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloa
ds/file/8334/winter_service_plan_2021-22

Other (please specify in comments) Commercial & Commissioned Services 
Strategy (2018-2023)

Commercial and Commissioned Services Strategy 2018-23 | Scottish 
Borders Council (scotborders.gov.uk)

Other (please specify in comments) Adding Value to the Community through 
Procurement 

https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s2959/Item%
20No.%2014%20%20Adding%20Value%20to%20Communities%20th
rough%20Procurement%20-%20Guidance%20Policy.pdf

Ensure that sustainable considerations are embedded into 
each procurement strategy from the outset. 

Please select from drop down box

2f What are the body’s top 5 priorities for climate change governance, management and strategy for the year ahead?
Provide a brief summary of the body’s areas and activities of focus for the year ahead.

The Council approved its Climate Change Route Map (CCRM) for the Scottish Borders region in June 2021.  A plan of priority actions to deliver on the CCRM was adopted in March 2022 and will be reported on annually. 

https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s56082/Item%20No.%2012%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20SB%20CLIMATE%20CHANGE%20ROUTE%20MAP%20FINAL.pdf
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=6147&Ver=4

Does the body have any plans or strategies covering the following areas that include climate change?

Following adoption of the Climate Change Route Map and the plan of Priority Actions (March 2022), the Council will:

• Provide carbon literacy training for elected members;
• Establish its organisational carbon emissions baseline;
• Integrate carbon reporting into the Council's performance reporting process;
• Report to Council on progress with respect to the CCRM Priority Actions;
• Liaise with its key partners (e.g. South of Scotland Enterprise), organisations, communities and neighbouring local authorities to establish an area-wide emissions baseline.

Does the body have a climate change plan or strategy?
If yes, provide the name of any such document and details of where a copy of the document may be obtained or accessed.

6

P
age 480



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

2g
If yes, please provide details of the key findings and resultant action taken. 

(a) This refers to the tool developed by Resource Efficient Scotland for self-assessing an organisation’s capability / performance in relation to climate change. 

Further information

2h Supporting information and best practice

Has the body used the Climate Change Assessment Tool (a) or equivalent tool to self-assess its capability / performance?

No. 

Provide any other relevant supporting information and any examples of best practice by the body in relation to governance, management and strategy.

7

P
age 481



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22 8

PART 3 Corporate Emissions, Targets and Project Data

Emissions
3a Emissions from the start of the year which the body uses as a baseline (for its carbon footprint) to the end of the report year

Reference year Year Year type Scope 1 Scope 2 Scope 3 Total Units Comments
Baseline Year 2014/15 Financial 12,372                                                                         9,830                                  860                           23,062                           tCO2e

3 Year 1 carbon footprint 2015/16 Financial 11,153                                                                         8,698                                  718                           20,569                           tCO2e

4 Year 2 carbon footprint 2016/17 Financial 10,208                                                                         6,968                                  630                           17,806                           tCO2e

5 Year 3 carbon footprint 2017/18 Financial 10,537                                                                         5,732                                  536                           16,805                           tCO2e

6 Year 4 carbon footprint 2018/19 Financial 9,870                                                                           4,517                                  385                           14,772                           tCO2e

7 Year 5 carbon footprint 2019/20 Financial 10,179                                                                         3,652                                  314                           14,145                           tCO2e

8 Year 6 carbon footprint 2020/21 Financial 9,297                                                                           3,320                                  286                           12,903                           tCO2e

9 Year 7 carbon footprint 2021/22 Financial 10,772.37                                                                    3,299.70                            2,107.19                   16,179.26                     tCO2e
There is an increase in the total emissions due to more emission sources 
being reported in this financial year.

10 Year 8 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

11 Year 9 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

12 Year 10 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

13 Year 11 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

14 Year 12 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

15 Year 13 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

16 Year 14 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

17 Year 15 carbon footprint 0 Financial -                                 tCO2e

3b Breakdown of emissions sources

Emission Factor Year 2021 The emission factor year is auto-assigned based on your answer to Q1f, if it is incorrect please contact SSN.
You can now filter emission sources by "type" in column C to enable quicker  selection of emission source in column D.
User defined emission sources can be entered below remote/homeworking emissions - rows 101 to 129. If you require extra rows in the table please send the template to ccreporting@ed.ac.uk.

Emission Emission source Scope Consumption data Units Emission factor Units Emissions (tCO2e) Comments

Electricity Grid Electricity (generation) Scope 2 15,540,427                                                                  kWh 0.21233 kg CO2e/kWh 3,299.70                     Operational Buildings
Electricity Grid Electricity (transmission & distribution losses) Scope 3 15,540,427                                                                  kWh 0.01879 kg CO2e/kWh 292.00                        Operational Buildings
Fuels Natural Gas Scope 1 25,342,992                                                                  kWh 0.18316 kg CO2e/kWh 4,641.82                     Operational Buildings
Fuels LPG litres Scope 1 59,983                                                                         litres 1.55709 kg CO2e/litre 93.40                          Operational Buildings
Fuels Gas Oil litre Scope 1 512,282                                                                       litres 2.75857 kg CO2e/litre 1,413.17                     Operational Buildings - Gas Oil used for heating. 
Biofuels Biomass (Wood Pellets) kWh Scope 1 257,871                                                                       kWh 0.01513 kg CO2e/kWh 3.90                            
Biofuels Biomass (Wood Chips)kWh Scope 1 146,161                                                                       kWh 0.01513 kg CO2e/kWh 2.21                            
Water Water - Supply Scope 3 188,196                                                                       m3 0.11000 kg CO2e/m3 20.70                          Was not included in 2020/21 footprint
Water Water - Treatment Scope 3 178,786                                                                       m3 0.23000 kg CO2e/m3 41.12                          Was not included in 2021/21 footprint
Transport Car - Hybrid  (Small) miles Scope 3 279,933                                                                       miles 0.16889 kg CO2e/mile 47.28                          Hybrid Pool Cars
Fuels Diesel (100% mineral diesel) Scope 1 1,288,214                                                                    litres 2.70553 kg CO2e/litre 3,485.30                     
Waste Batteries Recycling Scope 3 28                                                                                 tonnes 21.29357 kg CO2e/tonne 0.60                            Not reported in 2020/21.  Car & domestic batteries at CRC sites - sent to be 

reprocessor in Scottish Borders & England
Waste Refuse Municipal to Landfill Scope 3 -                                                                               tonnes 446.24150 kgCO2e/tonne -                              Was not included in 20/21 report Insignificant tonnage to landfill from 

waste sent to MRF
Waste Refuse Commercial & Industrial to Landfill Scope 3 -                                                                               tonnes 467.04580 kgCO2e/tonne -                              Was not included in 2020/21 footprint. Insignificant tonnage to landfill 

from waste sent to MRF
Waste Organic Food and Drink waste - Combustion Scope 3 1,079                                                                           tonnes 21.29357 kgCO2e/tonne 22.98                          Was not included in 2020/21 report. Food waste at AD plant Cumbernauld

Waste Organic Garden Waste Composting Scope 3 2,342                                                                           tonnes 8.95070 kgCO2e/tonne 20.96                          Was not included in 2020/21 report. Green waste to compost sites Scottish 
Borders & Edinburgh

Waste WEEE (Mixed) Recycling Scope 3 1,078                                                                           tonnes 21.29357 kgCO2e/tonne 22.95                          Was not included in 2020/21 report. F&F, CRT, LDA, mixed WEEE at CRC 
sites - sent to reprocessor in  England

Waste Glass Recycling Scope 3 2,950                                                                           tonnes 21.29357 kgCO2e/tonne 62.82                          Was not included in 2020/21 report. Bottle banks - sent to reprocessor 
Edinburgh

Waste Metal Cans (Mixed) & Metal Scrap Recycling Scope 3 354                                                                              tonnes 21.29357 kgCO2e/tonne 7.54                            Was not included in 2020/21 report. Scrap metal at CRC sites - sent to 
reprocessor in Scottish Borders

Waste Refuse Municipal /Commercial /Industrial to 
Combustion

Scope 3 24,540                                                                         tonnes 21.29357 kgCO2e/tonne 522.54                        Was not included in 2020/21 report.  Municipal, Bulky, Commercial & 
Demolition to Levenseat (North Lanarkshire) & Sweden EfW

Waste Construction (Average) Recycling Scope 3 1,409                                                                           tonnes 0.98914 kgCO2e/tonne 1.39                            Was not included in 2020/21 report. Rubble at CRC sites - sent to 
reprocessor in Scottish Borders (SBC & private)

Waste Mixed recycling Scope 3 10,187                                                                         tonnes 21.29357 kg CO2e/tonne 216.92                        Was not included in 2020/21 report. Dry Mixed Recyclate into WTS's & CRC 
sites - this is sent to Northern Ireland to be processed 

Waste Clothing (Closed loop recycling) Scope 3 186                                                                              tonnes 21.29357 kg CO2e/tonne 3.96                            Was not included in 2020/21 report.  Textile banks - sent to reprocesors in 
England

Transport Short-haul flights (average passenger) Scope 3 3,390                                                                           passenger km 0.15353 kg CO2e/passenger km 0.52                            Not included in 2020/21 report. 

Fuels Gas Oil litre Scope 1 410,563.67                                                                  litres 2.75857 kg CO2e/litre 1,132.57                     Not reported in 2020/21.  
Gas Oil Fleet usage.

Transport Average Car - Unknown Fuel Scope 3 52,477                                                                         km 0.17148 kg CO2e/km 9.00                            Travel claims grey fleet (employees using own cars on SBC business)
Hybrid/Homeworking emissions Scope 3 85.00% percentage of total FTEs 0.30000 tCO2e/FTE/annum 813.91                        Assumption that WFH figure is the same as during the pandemic

94 16,179.26          
Total is different to that number quoted in Q3a, please check and/or 
state why in comments cell above

Public Sector Report on Compliance with Climate Change Duties 2022 Template

Complete the following table using the greenhouse gas emissions total for the body calculated on the same basis as for its annual carbon footprint / management reporting or, where 
(a) No information is required on the effect of the body on emissions which are not from its estate and operations.

(b) This refers to “The greenhouse gas protocol. A corporate accounting and reporting standard (revised edition)”, World Business Council for Sustainable Development, Geneva, Switzerland / 
World Resources Institute, Washington DC, USA (2004), ISBN: 1-56973-568-9.

ENSURE QUESTION 1f IS COMPLETED BEFORE STARTING THIS SECTION, THEN SELECT APPROPRIATE BASELINE YEAR

Complete the following table with the breakdown of emission sources from the body’s most recent carbon footprint (greenhouse gas inventory); this should correspond to the last entry in the table in 3(a) above. Use the ‘Comments’ column 
to explain what is included within each category of emission source entered in the first column. If there is no data consumption available for an emission source enter the emissions in kgCO2e in the ‘Consumption’ column of one of the “Other” 
rows and assign the scope and an emission factor of 1.

(a) Emissions factors are published annually by the UK Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy

P
age 482



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22 9

3c Generation, consumption and export of renewable energy
Provide a summary of the body’s annual renewable generation (if any), and whether it is used or exported by the body.

Total consumed by the body (kWh) Total exported (kWh) Total consumed by the body (kWh) Total exported (kWh) Comments
Solar PV 48,613                                                                                -                                                                Based on 2 High 

Schools (Hawick & 
Peebles).  Drop from 
last year due to a 
number of 
installations being 
deactivated for 
maintenance 
purposes. 

Ground Source Heat Pump 200,000                                                                       0 Unmetered - 
estimated from 
electrical 
consumption 
(assumes COP 3.5)

Biomass 415,632                                                                       0
Assuming 85% 
efficiency.

Please select from drop down box

Targets

3d Organisational targets

Name of target Type of target Target Units Boundary/scope of target
Year used as 
baseline Baseline figure Units of baseline Target completion year

Progress against 
target Comments

Long term carbon reduction target Percentage 100                                                                total % reduction All emissions 2020/21  Baseline still to be 
established for area 
wide 

tCO2e 2045/46  Not currently 
available 

Working with Ricardo during 22/23 to 
establish an area wide baseline. 

Zero Direct Emissions for the 
organisation

Percentage 95                                                                  total % reduction Scope 1 2021/22                            10,772 tCO2e 2045/46  Not applicable as 
2021/22 is the 
baseline. 

Will primarily address Energy Use in 
Buildings and Fleet Usage.  Aim to have a 
broad annual reduction target (tCO2e) with 
a detailed review of progress every 5 years 
(to account for national policy and funding 
opportunities) to ensure on trajectory for 
overall target. 

 Reduction in fuel consumption (fleet) 
on Council business 

Percentage  20 total % reduction of litres consumed Litres reduction Transport 2019/20                       1,493,496 litres 2024/25                1,329,468  Progress being made along reduction 
trajectory.  

5% waste to landfill by 2025 target 
(Scottish Government Zero Waste 
Plan)

Percentage  95 total % reduction in waste to landfill  total % reduction Waste  2016/17                            30,702 tonnes 2019/20  Target met ahead 
of Scottish 
Government target 
date of 2025. 

SBC decision made (2016) to close Easter 
Langlee Landfill site.
In 2019 Easter Langlee landfill site was 
closed. 

Zero biodegradable municipal waste 
to landfill by 2025 target (Scottish 
Government) 

Percentage 100                                                                total % reduction Waste 2016/17 2019/20  Target met ahead 
of Scottish 
Government target 
date of 2025. 

Highly likely that SBC has met this target 
but awaiting clarification from Scottish 
Government on how Biodegradable 
Municipal Waste (BMW) is calculated.

Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down boxPlease select from drop down box Please select from drop down boxPlease select from drop down box

3da

Technology

Renewable Electricty Renewable Heat

List all of the body’s targets of relevance to its climate change duties. Where applicable, targets for reducing indirect emissions of greenhouse gases, overall carbon targets and any separate 
land use, energy efficiency, waste, water, information and communication technology, transport, travel and heat targets should be included. Where applicable, you should also provide the 
body’s target date for achieving zero direct emissions of greenhouse gases, or such other targets that demonstrate how the body is contributing to Scotland achieving its emissions reduction 
targets.

How will the body align its spending plans and use of resources to contribute to reducing emissions and delivering its emission reduction targets? 
Provide any relevant supporting information
Like other public bodies, the Council is evolving its approach in aligning its spending plans and use of resources to contribute to reducing emissions and delivering its emission reduction targets.  
There are a number of aspects to this:
• Financial alignment: Following agreement of an overarching strategy – the Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map (CCRM) - in June 2021, the Council agreed a plan of priority actions in 
March 2022.  Among other things, this is intended to consolidate a single programme of climate action within the Council, which is developed and augmented on a rolling basis, and which 
informs the Council’s budget-setting process.  At the same time, Elected Members/Directors/Managers are undergoing carbon literacy training to enhance their understanding in respect of the 
significance of local authority leadership action, the co-benefits of investment in climate mitigation and adaptation, the crucial impact of our mitigation trajectory in driving down emissions, 
and the relationship of all these elements to financial planning and budgetary alignment with climate objectives and targets.  
• Performance management: The Council Plan expressly commits to a Clean Green Future as one of its overarching outcomes, including a specific commitment to ‘Implement the first phase of 
the Scottish Borders Climate Change Route Map’, and in 2022/23 a priority of ‘Accelerate[d] action to adapt to and mitigate the effects of climate change and extreme weather.’  The Plan 
includes a series of key milestones (i.e. actions) which are reported to the Council’s Executive on a quarterly basis.  This shows progress, with the Council’s strengthened emissions baseline 
assessment work being a vital building block. Discussions have already started with the Performance Management team in terms of aligning climate change progress with the corporate 
performance reporting cycle. 
• Risk: Climate Change was identified in 2015 as a corporate risk as part of SBC's corporate risk management process, and was revisited following the Council’s Declaration of a Climate Change 
Emergency in 2020.  The corporate risk relating to climate change is reviewed quarterly by relevant senior officers and the appropriate Director. The Strategic Leadership Team of Chief 
Executive and Directors have oversight of the Corporate Risk Register, which includes this Climate Change risk, on a quarterly basis in line with SBC Risk Management Policy and Strategy. This 
risk underpins the refreshed Council Plan 2022/23 and the specific ‘Clean, Green Future’ outcome. A number of mitigation actions are being pursued to manage and minimise this risk as far as 
is possible. Furthermore, risks and mitigations are considered by the Sustainability Board of officers and Sustainable Development Committee of councillors’. 
• Audit:  ‘The SBC Internal Audit Strategy states “Key components of the Internal Audit planning process include a clear understanding of the Council’s functions, associated risks, and potential 
range and breadth of audit areas for inclusion within the plan. To capture potential areas of risk and uncertainty more fully, key stakeholders have been consulted and risks and mitigations on 
corporate / service risk registers have been considered.” Annual Internal Audits since 2012/13 have focussed on the progress and reporting requirements of the Carbon Management 
Programme and Carbon Reduction Commitment for assurance on how the Council is fulfilling its obligations. In order to reflect the revisited Climate Change corporate risk following the 
Council’s Declaration of a Climate Change Emergency in 2020, the risk-based Internal Audit Annual Plans for 2021/22 and 2022/23 include an audit covering this area, generically named 
‘Sustainable Environment’ to assess progress with the development of new governance arrangements and action plans to meet obligations. An Executive Summary of findings of the 2021/22 
audit was reported to the Council’s Audit Committee in June 2022, including two improvement actions. At the start of the 2022/23 audit engagement, discussions have been held with Internal 
Audit to ensure the scope of the audit includes the monitoring of progress with action plans and outcomes in respect of climate change and carbon targets. The development of the Internal 
Audit Strategy for 2023/24 will include integrating climate change into all assurance audits as a cross-cutting risk to provide assurance that the underlying controls and processes in all Services 
that support climate change commitments, plans and programmes are operating as intended’.

P
age 483



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22 10

3db

Projects and changes
3e

Emissions source Total estimated annual carbon savings (tCO2e) Comments

Electricity -                                                                                      

No information available for the total 
savings from projects completed in 
2021/22

Natural gas -                                                                                      
Other heating fuels -                                                                                      
Waste -                                                                                      
Water and sewerage -                                                                                      
Travel -                                                                                      
Fleet transport
Other (please specify in comments)
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box
Total -                                                                                      

3f

Project name Funding source First full year of CO2e savings Are these savings figures estimated or actual? Capital cost (£)
Operational cost 
(£/annum) Project lifetime (years)

Primary 
fuel/emission source 
saved Estimated carbon savings per year (tCO2e/annum)

Estimated costs 
savings (£/annum) Behaviour Change Comments

Information not available for projects 
competed in the reporting year Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from dropdown box

Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from dropdown box

3g

Emissions source Total estimated annual emissions (tCO2e) Increase or decrease in emissions Comments

Estate changes -                                                                                      Please select from drop down box
There have been no changes in the reporting year

Service provision -                                                                                      Please select from drop down box
Staff numbers -                                                                                      Please select from drop down box
Other (please specify in comments) -                                                                                      Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Total -                                                                

3h Anticipated annual carbon savings from all projects implemented by the body in the year ahead

Emissions source Total estimated annual carbon savings (tCO2e) Comments

Electricity

These have not been quantified yet.  
Work ongoing with respect to baseline 
and project outputs.

Natural gas
Other heating fuels
Waste
Water and sewerage
Travel
Fleet Transport
Other (please specify in comments)
Total -                                                                                      

How will the body publish, or otherwise make available, it's progress towards achieving its emissions reduction targets?
Provide any other relevant supporting information. In the event that the body wishes to refer to information already publshed, provide information about where the publication can be 

If no projects are expected to be implemented against an emissions source, enter “0”.
If the organisation does not have any information for an emissions source, enter “Unknown”.
If the organisation does not include the emissions source in its carbon footprint, enter “N/A”.

Estimated total annual carbon savings from all projects implemented by the body in the report year
If no projects were implemented against an emissions source, enter "0".
If the body does not have any information for an emissions source, enter “Unknown”.
If the body does not include the emissions source in its carbon footprint, enter “N/A”.

Detail the top 10 carbon reduction projects to be carried out by the body in the report year
Provide details of the 10 projects which are estimated to achieve the highest carbon savings during report year.

Estimated decrease or increase in the body’s emissions attributed to factors (not reported elsewhere in this form) in the report year
If the emissions increased or decreased due to any such factor in the report year, provide an estimate of the amount and direction

SBC will make this report publically available on its website.  Regular updates on projects and programmes that are being implemented to reduce carbon emissions will be published.  Targets 
will be incorporated in to corporate plans such as the Council's annual 'Council Plan' and key policy documents going forward.

P
age 484



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22 11

3i

Emissions source Total estimated annual emissions (tCO2e) Increase or decrease in emissions Comments

Estate changes Please select from drop down box There are no changes proposed. 
Service provision Please select from drop down box
Staff numbers Please select from drop down box
Other (please specify in comments) Please select from drop down box
Total -                                                                

3j

Total savings Total estimated emissions savings (tCO2e) Comments
Total project savings since baseline year These have not been quantified. 

Further information
3k

Estimated decrease or increase in emissions from other sources in the year ahead
If the body’s corporate emissions are likely to increase or decrease for any other reason in the year ahead, provide an estimate of the amount and direction.

Total carbon reduction project savings since the start of the year which the body used as a baseline for its carbon footprint
If the body has data available, estimate the total emissions savings made from projects since the start of that year ("the baseline year").

Supporting information and best practice
Provide any other relevant supporting information and any examples of best practice by the body in relation to corporate emissions, targets and projects.

P
age 485



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

PART 4 Adaptation
Assessing and managing risk

4a Has the body assessed current and future climate-related risks?

Public Sector Report on Compliance with Climate Change Duties 2022 Template

If yes, provide a reference or link to any such risk assessment(s).

Through the implementation of the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 climate change has been considered through the characteristaion stage of assessing flood risk in the Tweed, Forth Estuary & 
Solway LPD, actions have been developed from this and where appropriate take this into consideration.  This includes a number of flood studies where the inclusion of a 33% allowance for climate change is 
included at certain return periods (the previous climate change allowance was 20%).

Future development in terms of planning is also important and any development proposals deemed to be at flood risk will be subject to a Flood Risk Assessment.  There is now guidance available which relates 
directly to the the climate change allowance that should be considered for each major river basin in Scotland when carrying out a Flood Risk Assessment.  In spring 2022 the climate change allowances for 
catchment areas within Scotland were updated.  For catchments in the Scottish Borders we now apply a 1 in 200 year plus 59% allowance for climate change in the Tweed River Basin and a 1 in 200 year plus 
53% in the Solway River Basin where the village of Newcastleton is located.  

The council holds a severe weather plan which is continually reviewed and assessed. This has most recently been updated to include the impact of climate change and now incoporates the National Water 
Scarcity Plan and the effects of drought.

12

P
age 486



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

4b

To manage flood risk and the affects of climate change the Council has in place and is implementing a number of flood schemes and is also taking forward a number of flood studies/scheme preparation 
projects.

Flood Schemes: Galashiels (Plumtree & Wilderhaugh and Netherdale) Flood Prevention Scheme 2010 - Plumtree and Wilderhaugh 1 in 75 years, Netherdale 1 in 200 years plus climate change.
Jedburgh (Skiprunning Burn) Flood Protection Scheme 2014 - Town centre works, culvert inlet and channel works. 
Selkirk Flood Protection Scheme - Philliphaugh (from Ettrick) 1 in 200 years plus climate change, Bannerfield (from Ettrick) 1 in 200 years plus climate change, Riverside (from Ettrick) 1 in 500 years plus climate 
change, Bannerfield & Philiphaugh (from Longphilip Burn) 1 in 100 years plus climate change, Riverside (from Shaw Burn) 1 in 200 years plus climate change.
Hawick Flood Protection Scheme - Construction has commenced and is scheduled for completion by the end of 2023.  This will provide a level of protection of 1 in 75 years.
Romano Bridge Flood Protection Scheme - Construction due to commence and will provide 1:30 year level of protection.

Flood Studies/Scheme Preparation: Peebles Flood Study/Scheme Preparation; Newcastleton Flood Study/Scheme Preparation; Ettrick Valley Flood Study; Lindean Flood Study; Whitlaw/Crobyres Flood Study.  
The option appraisal for Peebles and Newcastleton is complete with a ground investigation for Newcastleton nearing completion.  These will help inform future design of flood mitigation measures.  Ettrick 
Valley, Lindean and Whitlaw flood studies are now moving into public exhibition phase having assessed the current flood risk in detail at a number of different return periods, 1:2, 1:5, 1:10; 1:25, 1:50, 1:75, 1 
:100, 1:200 and 1:1000 return periods with an estimation of flood flows with an 33% allowance for climate change for 1:30 and 1:200 return periods.
Surface Water Management Plans (SWMP): Peebles SWMP, Galashiels SWMP, Hawick SWMP, Newcastleton SWMP; Hawick SWMP
Natural Flood Management Studies: Galashiels NFM Study (commenced late 2021/22); Hawick NFM Study (still to commence)
The Natural Flood Management Studies aim to assess the potential for NFM measures in the catchments above both Hawick and Galashiels.  The purpose of this is to supplement the existing levels of 
protection afforded to both towns by flood protection schemes already in place or proposed and determine if future measures in these catchments can be used to offset the effects of climate change.

The Emergency Planning Team work in partnership with a variety of external agencies including the Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) and the Met Office, and represent SBC on the East of 
Scotland Regional Resilience Partnership and the Lothian and Borders Resilience Partnership. The Council is represented on the National Critical Infrastructure sub-group to identify risk (including climate 
change) to our critical infrastructure. Scottish Borders Council engage with local communities to promote and encourage the formation of Resilient Communities Groups in line with the Preparing Scotland 
Strategy. There are currently 46 groups is existence across the area. Emergency Planning work closely with the Council Flood Management Team engaging with communities which are at risk of flooding to 
improve resilience through the provision of subsidised property level protection.

What arrangements does the body have in place to manage climate-related risks? 
Provide details of any climate change adaptation strategies, action plans and risk management procedures, and any climate change adaptation policies which apply across the body.

13

P
age 487



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

Taking action

4c What action has the body taken to adapt to climate change? 

4d Where applicable, what contribution has the body made to helping deliver the Programme?
Provide any other relevant supporting information

Review, monitoring and evaluation

4e What arrangements does the body have in place to review current and future climate risks?

Include details of work to increase awareness of the need to adapt to climate change and build the capacity of staff and stakeholders to assess risk and implement action. The body may wish to make 
reference to the Scottish Climate Change Adaptation Programme  (“the Programme”).

As detailed in the Council’s Climate Change Route Map, the Council is undertaking a review of greenspace management to further increase the amount of land managed less intensively to make space for 
nature and biodiversity while reducing machinery use.  Building on the Wildflower pilots previously undertaken, the Council has successfully increased provision of wildflower areas across 30 sites in the 
region. The Council Parks & Environment Service remains peat free, with the only exception the rootballs of bought in new or replacement plants. 
The Council has deployed SG Nature Restoration Funding to enable optimum grass management through purchase of appropriate machinery and increase tree planting and plant wildflower areas. 
Nature Restoration Funding has also been administered to support partnership projects supporting habitat restoration and freshwater management. Weedkilling is being reviewed and glyphosate use reduced 
wherever possible.  The Council continues to support the Borderlands ‘Pollinators along the Tweed’ project as a partner organisation. The Green Flag Award for Wilton Lodge Park has been awarded again for 
2022 – the Green Flag programme is an advocate of maintaining parks and green spaces in an environmentally sound way and has a particular focus on pesticides and peat use, although also recognises that 
all activities should have as low an environmental impact as possible.  Year 1 of the Community Food Growing Strategy has been delivered. Access to Community Food Growing and allotments has increased in 
the Borders in 21/22, with the creation of a full time post to support this agenda – 7 new allotment plots have been created, free compost has been supplied to community gardens, and a network for 
members of community food growing groups has been established. Ongoing works to support and facilitate community growing as part of the Council’s response to community resilience, food security, and 
biodiversity is underway.

SCCAP2  Prog  Outcome 5:  Our natural environment is valued, enjoyed, protected and enhanced and has increased resilience to climate change
Sub-Outcome 5.1: Scotland’s biodiversity, ecosystems and landscapes are adaptable to the changing climate
The Eddleston Water Project continues to implement practical works to slow down flows and store water and increase resilience.  Last year Tweed Forum re-meandered a further 500m of river, built a 
water retention feature and will be planting up the floodplain this winter.  The University of Dundee continue to monitor the effect on flood flows and have registered a significant increase in lag time and 
are currently looking at flood magnitude.

SCCAP2  Prog Outcome 6:  "Our coastal and marine environment is valued, enjoyed, protected and enhanced and has increased resilience to climate change"
Sub-Outcome 6.1: Scotland’s coastal and marine biodiversity, ecosystems and landscapes are adaptable to the changing climate
The shoreline management plan is on-going, and SBC is currently reviewing the recent Scottish SMP guidance with a view of including the guidance principles in our SMP.

The Council with its Edinburgh City and Region Deal partners have agreed to the development of a shared understanding and joint approach to addressing climate change risks for the South East Scotland 
region.  This includes undertaking an area wide climate risk asessment to identify key vulnerabilities and increase climate resilience of infrastructure, services and community.  This would be used to identify 
priority climate risks and inform policy and project development.  The Business Case is currently being developed with the intention that the assessment be carried out in the financial year 2022 - 23.

SBC follows the national guidance and advice developed by SEPA, on how to consider climate change in relation to assessing planning applications.  On the works flood study side, SBC aims to update  flood 
models that are associated with flood schemes once a cycle which should in theory tie in with updates to the rainfall information that is used to calculate the flows in the river.

Provide details of arrangements to review current and future climate risks, for example, what timescales are in place to review the climate change risk assessments referred to in Question 4(a) and adaptation 
strategies, action plans, procedures and policies in Question 4(b).

14

P
age 488



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

4f What arrangements does the body have in place to monitor and evaluate the impact of the adaptation actions? 

Future priorities for adaptation

4g

Further information

4h Supporting information and best practice
Provide any other relevant supporting information and any examples of best practice by the body in relation to adaption.

Please provide details of monitoring and evaluation criteria and adaptation indicators used to assess the effectiveness of actions detailed under Question 4(c) and Question 4(d).

In future Local Flood Risk Management Plans there will be actions that include adaptation planning usually related to existing flood protection schemes and how we can adapt these.  We currently don’t have 
an adaptation plans in place for these yet, but will need to be considered in the near future along with associated monitoring regimes.

What are the body’s top 5 climate change adaptation priorities for the year ahead?
Provide a summary of the areas and activities of focus for the year ahead.

The focus for the year ahead will be working with Adaptation Scotland and Edinburgh City and Region Deal partners to get the area wide climate risk assessment carried out.  This assessment will inform next 
steps and the priority adaptation actions and directions the Council should take. 

15

P
age 489



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

PART 5 Procurement

5a How have procurement policies contributed to compliance with climate change duties?

5b How has procurement activity contributed to compliance with climate change duties?

Public Sector Report on Compliance with Climate Change Duties 2022 Template

The Council spent approximately £183 million on goods, services and works during financial year 2021-22. The share spent with micro/ small/ medium sized enterprises was approximatley £100 million. The 
share spent with local suppliers through Scotland excel frameworks was £1.2 million. It is estimated that we received £3.7K in community benefits through the Scotland Excel frameworks. 

Provide information relating to how the procurement policies of the body have contributed to its compliance with climate changes duties.
Scottish Borders Council is committed to procuring goods, services and works in a sustainable way. This approach delivers value for money by generating additional benefits beyond the organisation to the 
economy, wider society and the environment.

The Council’s Commercial & Commissioned Services Strategy recognises its contribution to carbon reduction and how effective procurement practices can have a direct impact in reducing its carbon 
footprint.

The Council recognises that procuring goods, services and works in a sustainable way has a positive impact on climate change and with this in mind has introduced a policy ‘Adding Value to the Community 
through Procurement’. This ensures that sustainable considerations are embedded into each procurement strategy from the outset. As part of the strategy development consideration is given to the projects’ 
impact on climate, waste production, biodiversity protection and any opportunities to deliver community benefits locally in the Scottish Borders area. 

The Council recognises that climate change has a far reaching effect on the economy, the community and the environment. Our Sustainable Procurement Charter (updated annually) demonstrates our 
commitment to being a responsible purchaser of goods, services and works by setting standards to make sure activities are carried out in an ethical, responsible and sustainable way. 

A section of the Charter is dedicated to Environmental Impact and Climate Change and states:
“”The Council is committed to reducing its environmental impact, including carbon emissions, wherever possible. The Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 places duties on public bodies to deliver their 
services in a way which supports this, including both internal activities, such as energy saving within buildings, and its work with partners. The way that the Council procures goods and services can have a 
huge environmental impact, and by purchasing items which can demonstrate a reduced negative effect on wildlife, natural resources and carbon emissions, we can reduce our carbon footprint and support 
suppliers to do the same””

The Scottish Government has introduced a new platform for the sustainable procurement duty tools. The flexible framework, prioritisation tool, sustainability test and life cycle impact mapping all now 
hosted on a single platform. The tools are used to embed sustainability requirements into tenders. These tools are used to support the consideration of all environmental, economic and social opportunities 
and risks in their buying decisions.

Examples of  joint working across different council services includes:
• Encouraging investment in energy efficient vehicles to consider the low carbon agenda and other environmental initiatives;
• Considering best allocation of transport routes to minimise the carbon footprint;
• Maximising service opportunities within efficiencies to ensure the service provision to our communities is maintained or improved;
• How to link communities, people and place through maintenance and development of the transport network.

Provide information relating to how procurement activity by the body has contributed to its compliance with climate changes duties.

16

P
age 490



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

Further information

5c Supporting information and best practice
Provide any other relevant supporting information and any examples of best practice by the body in relation to procurement.

During the financial year 2021-22 a number of direct benefits were achieved through the approach to sustainable procurement by the Council. 

The Council has awarded local frameworks for Subcontractor Services Framework Agreement Winter Maintenance Framework Agreement (Footways & Miscellaneous) and Winter Maintenance Assistance 
Framework Agreement. Each of these arrangements considered the potential environmental opportunities which were reflected in the contract strategy and subsequent specification. 

Examples are noted below:
• Sub-contractor Framework Agreement; This framework agreement provides a multi lot, multi supplier Framework Agreement for the provision of subcontractor services. The Subcontracting Framework 
Agreement provides 3rd party support to SBC Contracts, other Council service departments and other named participants, The Framework Agreement was split into multi lots to encourage SME participation 
and local engagement and to comply with legislation and promote added value and sustainability.
• Winter Maintenance Framework Agreement (Footways & Miscellaneous); The purpose of establishing this Framework Agreement was to provide Winter Maintenance Assistance from 3rd party contractors 
to cover legislative requirements during winter periods should there be insufficient in-house capacity.  This was lotted to encourage local suppliers to participate which will also assist with the route planning 
to reduce overall mileage and to limit carbon emissions.
• Winter Maintenance Assistance Framework Agreement: The purpose of establishing this Framework Agreement was to provide Winter Maintenance Assistance from 3rd party contractors to cover 
legislative requirements during winter periods should there be insufficient in-house capacity.  This will provide additional resilience and allow a more sustainable approach to the delivery & future proofing of 
the winter service. This was lotted to encourage local suppliers to participate which would assist with route planning to reduce vehicle emissions and carbon footprint.

Other initiatives and projects of note during the reporting period include:
• Electric Vehicle Chargers; the Council continues to install a number of electric vehicle charging points in accordance with Scottish Government and Transport Scotland guidance relating to charging and 
infrastructure.  This will support the widespread adoption of low emission alternative vehicles to aid onward travel throughout the Scottish Borders.  This will also help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
and improve the air quality locally. 

• Green Waste Collection Contract; this contract takes garden waste and processes it into composting material that can be re-used in an environmentally sustainable manner.
• Food Waste Treatment Contract; Recycling food waste diverts organic materials from landfill which in turn reduces methane emissions from landfill, consideration was also given to transportation and how 
we could minimise the carbon footprint for the delivery of this contract.
• The programme measures installed and implemented in the non domestic properties energy efficiency programme implemented included:
o Boiler upgrades and optimisation; Installation of LED lighting; Insulation of pipework, Installation of Solar PV

• LED Light Replacement Programme:  Our Property Management team continued the programme of replacing light fittings in Schools and Offices with LED Lights to reduce our energy consumption.

17

P
age 491



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

PART 6 Validation and Declaration

6a Internal validation process
Briefly describe the body’s internal validation process, if any, of the data or information contained within this report.

6b Peer validation process
Briefly describe the body’s peer validation process, if any, of the data or information contained within this report.

6c External validation process 
Briefly describe the body’s external validation process, if any, of the data or information contained within this report.

6d No Validation Process
If any information provided in this report has not been validated, identify the information in question and explain why it has not been validated.

6e Declaration

Name: John Curry
Role in the body: Director Environment & Infrastructure. 
Date:

Public Sector Report on Compliance with Climate Change Duties 2022 Template

I confirm that the information in this report is accurate and provides a fair representation of the body’s performance in relation to climate change.

Data and information is sourced from relevant Services and collated by Climate Change Officer.  The report is then circulated internally for verification before being presented to the Sustainability Board for 
further comment before submitted to Full Council  for approval.

Peer validation process did not take place.  It is the intention to carry out a peer validation exercise with Dumfries and Galloway Council for the next PBCCD report.

No external validation undertaken. 

18

P
age 492



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

Recommended Reporting: Reporting on Wider Influence

Wider Impact and Influence on GHG Emissions

Q1) Historic Emissions (Local Authorities Only)
Please indicate emission amounts and unit of measurement (e.g. tCO2e ) and years. Please provide information on the following components using data from the links provided below. Please use (1) as the default unless targets and actions relate to (2).
Please note : These statistics cover territorial emissions of carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide (N2O), although not fluorinated gases, which are also included in the UK territorial greenhouse gas emissions statistics. Prior to the 2005 to 2020 publication the statistics covered emissions of carbon dioxide only

(1) UK local and regional CO2e emissions: subset dataset (emissions within the scope of influence of local authorities):

(2) UK local and regional CO2e emissions: full dataset: 

https://data.gov.uk/dataset/723c243d-2f1a-4d27-8b61-cdb93e5b10ff/emissions-of-carbon-dioxide-for-local-authority-areas

Local Authority:(Please State) Please select from drop down box

BEIS Dataset:(full or sub-set) Please select from drop down box

Source Sector 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Units Comments

4 Total Emissions                         ktCO2e
1 Industry and Commercial                         ktCO2e
2 Domestic                         ktCO2e
3 Transport total                         ktCO2e
5 Per Capita                         ktCO2e

Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box

2a) Targets
Please detail your wider influence targets 

Sector Type of Target (units) Baseline value Start year Target Target/End year
Saving in latest year 

measured
Latest Year Measured

Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box
Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box

2b) Does the organisation have an overall mission statement, strategies, plans or policies outlining ambition to influence emissions beyond your corporate boundaries? If so, please detail this in the box below.

Q3) Policies and Actions to Reduce Emissions

Please detail any of the specific policies and actions which are underway to achieve your emission reduction targets

Sector Start year for policy/action implementation
Year that the policy/action will be fully 

implemented

Annual CO2 saving once 
fully implemented 

(tCO2)
Latest Year measured

Saving in latest year 
measured (tCO2)

Delivery Role
During project/policy design and implementation, has 

ISM or an equivilent behaviour change tool been used?
Please give further details of this behaviour change activity. Value of Investment (£) Ongoing Costs (£/year)

Primary Funding Source for Implementation of Policy/Action 

Energy 2013 Please select from drop down box                             2,060.0 2019                       2,060.0 Enabling No Please select from drop down box

Energy 2021 Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Enabling No Please select from drop down box

Rural Land Use Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box Please select from drop down box

Please provide any detail on data sources or limitations relating to the information provided in Table 3

Q4) Partnership Working, Communications and Capacity Building

Please detail your Climate Change Partnership, Communication or Capacity Building Initiatives below.

Organisation's project role
Lead Organisation (if 

not reporting 
organisation)

Private Partners Public Partners 3rd Sector Partners Outputs Comments

Participant SoSE Ricardo
Dumfries & Galloway 

Council
Businesses, Other public sector 

organsiation & Key Stakeholders

An area wide emissions baseline for Scottish Borders, 
Dumfries & Galloway Council and the region of the 

South of Scotland. 
This work commenced in Oct 2022

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Metric/indicators for monitoring progress

Scottish Borders Council agreed a Climate Change Route Map for the wider Scottish Borders Area in June 2021.  Priority Actions to deliver on the Climate Change Route Map were approved on 11 March 2022.   

Please select from drop down box

Description

Status

In Implementation

In Implementation

Comments

Eddleston Water

Comments

Green Homes Pilot (Eildon Housing Association)

Key Action Type Description 

BEIS Sectors

Other Sectors

Please select from drop down box

Partnership Working

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Establish area wide emissions baselines for the Council areas and for the South of Scotland 

Page 19 

P
age 493



Appendix 1: Scottish Borders Council Public Bodies Climate Change Duties Report 2021-22

Q5) Please detail key actions relating 
to Food and Drink, Biodiversity, 
Water, Procurement and Resource 
Use in the table below

Key Action Type

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Key Action Description

Other Notable Reportable Activity

Organisation's Project Role

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

Q6) Please use the text box below to detail further climate change related activity that is not noted elsewhere within this reporting template

Please select from drop down box

Please select from drop down box

CommentsImpacts

Please select from drop down box

Page 20 

P
age 494



 
 

Sustainability Reference Group 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

Constitution 

Eleven Members of the Council, being 6 members of the Administration, 

including the Executive Member for Environment & Transport, and 5 members of 

the Opposition.  

 

Chair 

The Chair of the Sustainability Reference Group shall be the Executive Member 

for Environment & Transport. 

 

Remit 

        

1.    Provide oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s strategies, plans, 

policies and actions in leading and driving action to combat the 

negative impacts of climate change, build resilience to adapt to 

climate change, and to deliver Zero net carbon by 2045 (at the 

latest) both organisationally and in the Scottish Borders overall.  

 

2.    Provide oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s strategies, plans, 

policies and actions in leading and driving action to undertake, 

promote and deliver environmental practices which accord with the 

UN Sustainable Development Goals. 

 

3.    In relation to 1 and 2 above, review recent decisions and actions of 

the UK and Scottish Government, UK local authorities, Borders wide 

community and voluntary sector initiatives, the Scottish Borders 

Community Planning Partnership, and Council partner 

organisations, with a view to making recommendations as to how 

the Council can exercise leadership in tackling climate change and 

promoting sustainable environmental practices. 

 

Page 495



This page is intentionally left blank



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 
 

 

 
 
 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN: DEVELOPMENT PLAN SCHEME 
2022 
 
Report by Director - Infrastructure & Environment 
 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
24 November 2022 
 
 
1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY 

1.1 This report proposes that Council approves the annual update of the 
Development Plan Scheme. 

1.2 Publishing a Development Plan Scheme annually is a statutory duty and it 
must include a participation statement setting out how, when and with 
whom the Council will consult on the various Local Development Plan 
stages. 

1.3 The proposed Development Plan Scheme 2022 (Appendix 1) has been 
prepared to provide information on the development plan process.  It sets 
out the latest position on the Council’s development plans. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 2.1 I recommend that Council:-  

  (a) approves the proposed Development Plan Scheme 2022, as 
detailed in Appendix 1, for publication, deposit and copying to 
Scottish Ministers, and; 

  (b) authorises the Director to make any necessary minor editing 
and design changes to the Development Plan Scheme prior to 
publishing it. 

    
 
 

Page 497

Agenda Item 12



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 
 

3 BACKGROUND 

 3.1 The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 requires a Development Plan Scheme 
(DPS) to be prepared at least annually for the Local Development Plan 
(LDP).  Its purpose is to set out the Council’s programme for preparing, 
reviewing and consulting on its LDP. 

 3.2 After adopting a DPS, the Act requires the Authority to publish it (including 
electronically), send two copies to Scottish Ministers and place copies in all 
Public Libraries.  There is currently no requirement to consult on the content 
of development plan schemes and no provision for Ministers to approve 
them. 

 3.3 The DPS must include a Participation Statement (PS) which should indicate 
when, how and with whom consultation on the LDP is likely to take place.  It 
should also set out the Authority’s proposals for public involvement in plan-
making.  Development Planning Regulations (2008) also require the DPS to 
contain a timetable. 

 3.4 The Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), published June 2014, states that the 
Planning Service should be plan-led with plans being up-to-date and 
relevant. 

 3.5 The SPP states that throughout the planning system “… opportunities are 
available for everyone to engage in the development decisions which affect 
them. Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful 
and proportionate”. 

 3.6 Best practice in consultation and engagement is set out in Planning Advice 
Note (PAN) 3/2010 Community Engagement.  The aim is to make plan-
making more open, inclusive and accessible.  People are expected to be 
engaged early in the LDP process and PAN 3/2010 identifies a number of 
actions as the means of meeting this requirement. 

 3.7 The formal requirements aside, there is also an expectation in the wider 
stakeholder community that the DPS should contain the activities for 
consulting stakeholders, tailored to local circumstances and to the issues 
being dealt within the plan. 

 3.8 In mid-2016, the Scottish Government commenced the review of the 
planning system and at the end of 2017 a new Planning Bill was published. 
The Bill received Royal Assent and became an Act in July 2019. 

 3.9 The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019, when fully implemented through the 
subsequent regulations, will include a range of changes to the current 
system of managing development in the Scottish Borders.  Under the new 
legislation, there will be a requirement for a Regional Spatial Strategy to be 
produced.  Whilst the Regional Spatial Strategy will not form part of the 
Development Plan, there will be a requirement for Scottish Ministers to have 
regard to adopted Regional Spatial Strategies in the preparation, revision or 
amendment of the National Planning Framework (NPF), and Planning 
Authorities must also have regard to them in the preparation of their LDP’s. 

 3.10 Local Place Plans (LPPs) were also introduced by the Planning (Scotland) Act 
2019, their purpose is to improve community engagement in the 
development planning process.  The LPP will allow communities to have 
more influence on the production of the LDP and in January 2022, the 
Scottish Government issued the Planning circular, 1/2022: Local Place Plans, 
to provide guidance to communities and planning authorities on the 

Page 498



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 
 

preparation, submission and registration of the LPPs.  Once the LPPs are 
completed and registered by the Council, they will form a material 
consideration for the preparation of the next LDP. 

 3.11 The draft NPF4 was laid in the Scottish Parliament in November 2021 for 
Parliamentary scrutiny of the draft.  The draft NPF4 was also subjected to a 
public consultation.  The formal consultation on the NPF4 closed on 31 March 
2022.  The final adoption of the NPF4 will depend on the approval of Scottish 
Government, and the revised draft version of the NPF4 was laid in 
Parliament on 8 November.  It is anticipated that the NPF4 will be considered 
by the Local Government, Housing and Planning Committee, debated in the 
main chamber of the Parliament before being voted on and hopefully 
approved.  Following which Scottish Ministers will then proceed to adoption 
and publication of the NPF4. With the adoption of the NPF4, the Strategic 
Development Plan (SESPlan) will cease to be part of the Development Plan 
for the Scottish Borders, and will replace Scottish Planning Policy 2014.  

 3.12 The Council will continue to prepare LDP’s that will guide development for 10 
years.  A new first stage of the process will be the preparation of the 
Evidence Report.  The Evidence Report will involve gathering a wide range of 
information which will inform the production of the Plan, and consultation 
with local communities, key agencies and stakeholders will form part of that 
work.  The Evidence Report will then be submitted to the Scottish Ministers 
(via the Planning and Environmental Appeals Division (DPEA)), and this part 
of the process is referred to as the “Gate Check”.  Once Scottish Ministers 
have confirmed that they are content with the Evidence Report, the Planning 
Authority can proceed to preparing the Proposed Plan.  Engagement, 
consultation and Examination of the Plan will then follow as is the case in the 
current process. Following Examination, the Planning Authority can then 
proceed to consider the findings and recommendations of the Examination 
Reporter and undertake any proposed modifications and proceed towards 
Adoption of the Plan. 

 3.13 It is intended that the new Planning Act will assist in a clearer and more 
defined focus on delivery and improving performance, as well as a move 
towards a more proactive approach to masterplanning. 

 3.14 The Proposed LDP was presented to Council in September 2020 and was 
then placed on deposit.  The representation period ran for 12 weeks and 
ended on 25 January 2021.  In excess of 1000 responses were received, this 
being over double the number received at the same stage during the 
production of LDP1.  This is testament to thorough consultation undertaken 
despite Covid-19 restrictions in place at that time.  On 10 March 2022 a 
report to Council was presented on the representations to the Proposed LDP. 
That report advised the Council on the representations to the Proposed Plan 
and sought agreement to take the representations / issues to Examination 
for consideration by independent Scottish Government Appointed Persons 
(Reporters).  The representations/issues set out in an appendices to that 
report, also provided a proposed response as to the Council’s view on each 
of the matters raised.  The Council submitted the Proposed LDP 2020 for 
Examination on 14 July 2022. Scottish Ministers appointed Mr Nick Smith 
BSc (Hons) MRTPI to carry out the examination of the Plan.  Following their 
appointment, the Reporter examined the Council’s conformity with the 
participation statement and the Examination of the Proposed Plan formally 
commenced on 26 September 2022.  It should be noted that a further three 
reporters were appointed to assist with the speedy delivery of the 

Page 499



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 
 

Examination report. 

 3.15 Therefore, it is necessary to review the DPS and the timescale within it on 
bringing forward the new LDP.  The details of the DPS must be reasonable 
but also sufficiently flexible and deliverable to take account of any material 
timeline changes from a potential range of sources, including the current 
Coronavirus crisis. 

 

4 

 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PLAN SCHEME 

 4.1 The DPS which is attached as Appendix 1 to this report makes reference to 
the following component parts: 

• Confirmation of the purpose of the DPS including reference to relevant 
national planning legislation. 

• Identification of the component parts which make up the development 
plan including reference to the National Planning Framework for 
Scotland, Strategic Development Plan and the Local Development Plan. 

• The current status of development plan documents.  This includes likely 
dates of adoption where relevant. 

• The process for preparing the new LDP including reference to key 
documents.  This includes reference to preparation of the Main Issues 
Report, the proposed LDP, Examination of the Plan and required 
neighbour notification and public consultation. 

• Confirmation of where SBC is within the new LDP production process. 

• A participation statement.  This gives an indication as to when and how 
public engagement will take place at different production stages of the 
process.  

• Confirmation as to how any interested parties can get involved in the 
process.  This includes reference to opportunities available to raise 
awareness and view relevant documents, attend public events and how 
representations can be submitted. 

 
5 IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 Financial  

The programme set out in the Development Plan Scheme 2022 can be 
funded by the existing budget allocated to cover anticipated costs. 
 

5.2 Risk and Mitigations 
The DPS is required under the terms of the Planning Act.  The contents of 
the DPS set out current and potential future activities aimed at keeping the 
Development Plan for the Borders up to date to mitigate the risk of non 
compliance with legislation, thus the need to bring this report to Council to 
approve a DPS at this time.  However, it is acknowledged that as a result of 
the current Covid-19 crisis and the subsequent delay in taking the Proposed 
LDP forward, the current adopted LDP has now exceeded its five year 
lifespan.  Other Planning Authorities are in a similar position.  The Scottish 
Government has acknowledged this and have stated the pandemic is having 
an impact on the ability of planning authorities to maintain the review cycle 
of LDPs within the intended timeframes and consequently expect more 
Plans will extend beyond 5 years.  They have stated they are keen to 

Page 500



Scottish Borders Council, 24 November 2022 
 

support Authorities in adapting to the current circumstances.  No risks have 
been identified. 

 
5.3 Integrated Impact Assessment 

There are no direct equality implications arising from this report.  There will 
be a requirement for consultation to be accessible by all sections of the 
community. 

 
5.4 Sustainable Development Goals  

There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report. 
 

5.5 Climate Change 
There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report. 
 

5.6 Rural Proofing 
This report does not affect or amend rural proofing policies. 
 

5.7 Data Protection Impact Statement 
There are no personal data implications arising from the proposals 
contained in this report. 
 

5.8 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation 
There are no changes to the Scheme of Administration or the Scheme of 
Delegation as a result of the proposals in this report. 

 
6 CONSULTATION 

 
6.1 The Director - Finance & Corporate Governance, the Monitoring Officer/Chief 

Legal Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Director – People, 
Performance & Change, the Clerk to the Council and Corporate 
Communications have been consulted and comments received have been 
incorporated into the final report. 

 
 

Approved by 
 
Name  John Curry   Title  - Director - Infrastructure & Environment 
 
 
Author(s) 
Name Designation and Contact Number 
T. Connolly Planning Officer, 01835 825255 
 
Background Papers:  Nil 
Previous Minute Reference:  Scottish Borders Council, 25 November 2021 
 
 
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies. 
 
Contact us at Jacqueline Whitelaw, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, 
Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA, Tel 01835 825431, Fax 01835 825071, 
email eitranslationrequest@scotborders.gov.uk.  

Page 501



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

Development 
Plan Scheme  
November 2022 

Appendix 1

Page 503



2 Page 504



3 

Contents 
 

1 What is the Development Plan Scheme? 4 

2 What are Development Plans? 5 

3 What Development Plans do we have in the Interim? 6 

4 What is involved in the process of preparing a Local                
Development Plan? 

7 

5 Where we are now 9 

6 Participation Statement 11 

7 Getting involved 13 

Inside this Development Plan Scheme: 

Page 505



4 

1.1 This is the Development Plan Scheme (DPS) for Scottish Borders Council. The Town and   
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended by the Planning etc (Scotland) Act 
2006) and the Town and Country Planning (Development Planning) (Scotland)            
Regulations 2008, require planning authorities to prepare a Development Plan Scheme 
each year. 

 1.2 The current Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted in May 2016. It replaced the 
Consolidated Local Plan 2011.  

1.3 This DPS has been prepared to provide information on our progress in updating our LDP 
(adopted May 2016). The DPS includes a timetable of when we intend to reach key    
stages in the process of preparing our new Local Development Plan (LDP), which will 
eventually replace our current adopted LDP, and also includes a Participation Statement 
explaining how we will engage with our communities and stakeholders. 

 

1 What is the 
Development Plan 
Scheme? 
 

Page 506



5 

2.1 The planning system provides the basis for land use management and affects everyone. 
Development plans contain the strategy for the future development of an area and set out 
policies and proposals to guide the future development and use of land. The plans are  
expected to cover topics on the environment, housing, transport and infrastructure,      
economic development and retailing. 

2.2 Under the planning system, decisions on where and how development will take place in 
Scotland will be influenced by three statutory documents: 

National Planning Framework for Scotland: this is produced by the Scottish            
Government and sets out, at the national level, the Scottish Government’s long term     
vision for development and investment across Scotland over the next 20 to 30 years. 
NPF3 was published in June 2014. 

http://www.gov.scot/Resource/0045/00453683.pdf 

A replacement fourth national planning framework (NPF4) was published in draft in       
November 2021. Consultation on that document has taken place and the revised draft  
version of the NPF4 was laid in Parliament on 8th November.  

Strategic Development Plan: these are produced by the Strategic Development       
Planning Authorities (SDPAs) which are set up for Scotland’s four largest city regions. The 
Scottish Borders lies within the SESplan Strategic Development Plan (SDP) area that also 
includes the council areas of East Lothian, Edinburgh, Fife (south), Midlothian and West 
Lothian. SDPs set out a long term (20 years or more) spatial planning strategy indicating 
in broad terms where future development will be located and what is needed to deliver it. 
The SESplan can be found at www.sesplan.gov.uk 

Local Development Plan: these are produced by the local planning authorities and 
set out more detailed policies and proposals to guide development. These plans, which 
are adopted by the local planning authority, must accord with the approved SDP (in the 
case of the city regions) and seek to implement its requirements on a site-specific basis. 

 2.3 The Strategic Development Plan and the Local Development Plan form the statutory      
Development Plan for the Scottish Borders area. In addition, Supplementary Guidance on 
a specific planning topic may be prepared and form part of the statutory development plan 
but only where it has been specifically trailed as needed in an SDP or LDP. 

2 What are Development 
Plans? 
 

Page 507



6 

3.1 The development plans for the Scottish Borders area are as follows: 

SESplan Strategic Development Plan 2013-2032: 

The Strategic Development Plan for Edinburgh and South East Scotland was approved in 
June 2013. The approval included the requirement to produce Supplementary Guidance 
on Housing Land. The Supplementary Guidance on Housing Land was adopted on 28   
October 2014. 

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016: 

The Local Development Plan for the Scottish Borders was adopted in May 2016. The 
adoption included the requirement to produce Supplementary Guidance on Housing Land 
and on Renewable Energy.  

3.2 The Supplementary Guidance on Housing Land has been informed by a ‘call for sites’ in 
which developers and house builders were able to put forward proposals for consideration 
by the Council in order to meet the additional requirement of 916 houses. The Council   
approved the Finalised Supplementary Guidance in August 2017, and the document was 
formally Adopted in November 2017 following submission to Scottish Ministers for scrutiny. 
The Supplementary Guidance on Renewable Energy was formally adopted in July 2018. 

3 What Development 
Plans do we have in the 
Interim? 
 

 

Page 508



7 

4.1 The Local Development Plan (LDP) process is a lengthy and detailed process. The      
process is commenced by gathering evidence - this includes reviewing current LDP      
policies through a Monitoring Report. This will form the basis for a period of pre-
consultation.  

4.2 The first formal consultation takes place following the production of the Main Issues      
Report (MIR). This document focuses on the key areas of change from the last LDP, 
and will present a range of options for comment. This stage is a key stage in terms of  
public consultation as it will be from this consultation that the Council comes to a view on 
what should be in the new LDP. 

4.3 Following the consideration of the consultation responses to the MIR, the Council will   
prepare the Proposed Local Development Plan. The Proposed Plan will represent the   
settled view of the Council. The type of consultation at this stage of the process is different 
to that what came before, in that this stage the Proposed Plan will be subject to a period of 
representation. Neighbour Notification letters are also sent out at this stage informing    
immediate neighbours of new development proposals. The Proposed Plan will also be   
accompanied by a draft Action Programme. 

4.4 Should the Council receive objections to the Proposed Local Development Plan that are 
not resolved they will be sent to the Planning and Environmental Appeals Division (DPEA) 
of the Scottish Government. An Examination would then be conducted by an appointed 
Scottish Government Reporter into the unresolved objections to the Proposed Plan. A   
Report including recommendations will be produced by the Reporter. 

 

4 What is involved in the 
process of preparing a 
Local Development Plan? 
 

Page 509



8 

 

4.5 On receipt of the Examination Report the Council will then move towards Adoption of the 
new Local Development Plan. As the reporters recommendations from the             
Examination are largely binding on the Council, the Council may be required to modify the 
Proposed Plan. Once that is undertaken, the Council is required to submit the Proposed 
Plan as modified to the Scottish Ministers and advertise its intention to Adopt the plan. 

4.6 Further information on the above key stages is set out in Planning Circular 6/2013:        
Development Planning. That document contains guidance on the legislative procedural 
requirements relating to the preparation of development plan in Scotland. 

Page 510



9 

5 Where we are now 
 

5.1 The diagram below illustrates the stage of the Local Development Plan process that the  
Council is currently at. We are currently at the Examination stage with the Examination 
underway.   

 

5.2 In March 2022 a report was presented to Council, that report sought agreement for the 
proposed response to the representations/issues received on the Proposed Plan. The 
Council then submitted the Proposed Local Development Plan 2020 for Examination on 
14 July 2022. Scottish Ministers appointed Mr. Nick Smith BSc (Hons) MRTPI to carry out 
the examination of the Plan. Following their appointment, the Reporter examined the 
Council’s conformity with the participation statement and the Examination of the Proposed 
Plan formally commenced on 26 September 2022. It should be noted that a further three 
reporters were appointed to assist with the speedy delivery of the Examination report. 

 5.3 There were 1043 separate representations submitted by individuals, companies or        
organisations to the Proposed LDP. A representation may make reference to a single   
issue, or may refer to a multitude of issues. The Council collated the representations into 
76 issues. Further information about the examination and summary of the issues (known 
as Schedule 4 Forms) being addressed by the reporters can be found on the DPEA    
website at: https://www.dpea.scotland.gov.uk/CaseDetails.aspx?id=122407  

Page 511



10 

 

5.4 It is now necessary to review the Development Plan Scheme, and the timescale within it 
on bringing forward the new LDP. It is noted that it must be ensured that the details of the 
DPS are reasonable but also sufficiently flexible and deliverable to take account of any 
material timeline changes from a potential range of sources. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 512



11 

6 Participation Statement 
 

6.1 LDP Authorities must include a Participation Statement (PS) in their Development Plan 
Schemes. It should set out when consultation is likely to take place, with whom, its form 
and the steps that we will take to involve the public in the LDP’s preparation or review 
stages. 

6.2 The Scottish Government sets out guidance on how the community can effectively engage 
in the planning process in Planning Advice Note 3/2010: Community Engagement. Early 
engagement is defined as being the LDP Main Issues Report (MIR) stage.  

6.3 Scottish Borders Council has in the past extensively consulted throughout the Local      
Development Plan Process. However, due to the current Covid-19 crisis and the          
Coronavirus (Scotland) Act 2020, the Council was required to consider if any of its actions 
would give rise to a significant risk of transmission of coronavirus.  

 

Potential Consultation Programme (subject to review) 

 
1 Examination of Proposed LDP (Autumn 2022 to Spring 2023) 
Purpose: to allow unresolved representations to be considered by an independent         
reporter. 
 
At the Examination stage, it is for the appointed Reporter to determine if further              
information or if a formal hearing is required.  
 
2 Proposed Modifications to LDP (Summer 2023) 
Purpose: to give stakeholders and consultees the opportunity to be informed on the      
proposed modifications by the Council to the new LDP following public examination. 
 
The recommendations contained within the Examination Report are largely binding on the 
Planning Authority. The Council are required to publish the Plan as modified, and notify 
people who made representations prior to the Examination. 
 
3 Adoption of the new LDP (Autumn 2023) 

 
 
6.4 This reflects our current thinking but the timing and content of planned consultation stages 

are approximate at this stage given the time horizon involved. Subsequent reviews of the 
DPS will allow increased precision in the timetable. The diagram on the following page 
shows the current timeframe of the Local Development Plan coming forward.  

 

 

Page 513



12 

 

Local Development Plan Timeframe (subject to review)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Keeping you informed 

6.5 The Council are also continuing to build up a contacts database of all those who would like 
to be engaged in the LDP process. If you would like to be added to this database please 
let us know by contacting us (details of how you can contact us are in section 7). 

6.6 We will notify interested parties and stakeholders at periodic stages throughout the LDP 
process, but we want to do more than that and maintain a flow of project information. The 
main home for this real time information will be our web site at www.scotborders.gov.uk  

6.7 We will try to accommodate the range of consultees and interests with an interest in the 
future of the Borders, including agencies and organisations, community councils,         
businesses and the general public. 

Page 514



13 

7 Getting involved 
 

In the past some people have, for various reasons, not been able to, or have chosen not to get 
involved in the planning process. But it’s vital we hear from a wide range of interests. So we want 
to make it as easy as we can to get people involved in the LDP project by making access to    
information and communication with us as straightforward as possible. There will be                 
opportunities for people to comment on our process and main plan stage outputs. 

We plan to use a range of techniques, including: 

· publicising an e-mail address where you can ask questions about the LDP process and 
get a personal response 

· keeping a record of everyone who responds in a database for newsletters or up and 
coming events 

· publishing key documents on our website 

· providing paper copies of key plan stage documents at libraries and council area offices 

· press releases and awareness-raising publicity at each key stage of the LDP process 

· making translations of key documents into the main community languages available on 
request. 

If you want to be involved in the LDP process you can contact us by: 

Emailing us at:  

localplan@scotborders.gov.uk 

or, 

Writing to us at: 

Forward Planning Team 

Scottish Borders Council 

Newtown St Boswells 

Melrose 

TD6 0SA 

Page 515



This page is intentionally left blank



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

 

 
 
 

TREE POLICY 
 
 
Report by Director – Infrastructure & Environment 
 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
24 November 2022 
 
 
1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY 

 
1.1 This report seeks approval from members for the adoption of a new Tree 

Policy that outlines the Local Authorities responsibilities regarding trees in 
its ownership. 

 
1.2 This report outlines a proposed Tree Policy that seeks to clarify SBC’s 

responsibilities regarding trees, which are owned and maintained. 
 
1.3 The policy was outlined at a Members Briefing on 4 October 2022.  The 

presentation set out the aims and objectives of the policy and what the 
aims and objectives are for all stakeholders and customers. 

 
 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 I recommend that Council approves the Tree Policy for adoption and 

publication.   
 

 
 
 

Page 517

Agenda Item 13



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

 
3 BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 There has been a lack of clarity with regards written process and policy on 

operational tree work. 
 
3.2 The policy seeks to set out the Local Authority’s responsibilities and a 

consistent approach to advice and actions on their own tree stock and, also 
outlines the Council’s responsibilities and obligations in this regard. 

 
 
4 DRAFT TREE POLICY  
 

4.1 The key issues the policy seeks to address and provide an operational 
response to are: 

 
• Biodiversity, improving our air quality and health and wellbeing, the 

policy set out benefits of managing our tree resource. 
 
• Managing our tree resource through pro-active surveys and 

maintenance regimes.  This includes risk assessment on SBC owned and 
maintained trees. 

 
• Privately owned trees - sets out a consistent response to common 

enquires with regards trees in private ownership and customer advice to 
our Call Centre teams. 

 
• Neighbour nuisance advice on regular concerns regarding neighbouring 

trees. 
 
• Advises on Roadside/Highway trees and how we respond to enquiries. 
 
• Legislation and trees in Scotland. 
 

 
5 IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 Financial  

There are no costs attached to any of the recommendations contained in 
this report. 
 

5.2 Risk and Mitigations 
The Policy sets out the Council’s current system of tree risk assessment on 
its own trees.  The proactive approach and implementation of any 
recommendations within the assessment minimise the potential for tree or 
limb failures, thus helping to ensure longevity of trees within Council 
ownership. 

 
5.3 Integrated Impact Assessment 

  An Integrated Impact Assessment has been undertaken. This has meant 
developing policies and delivering actions which will ensure the benefits of 
climate change action are shared widely. 

 
 

Page 518



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

5.4 Sustainable Development Goals  
5.4.1 Ensure Healthy life of trees via pro-active management of our local 

natural resources. 
 
5.4.2 The policy seeks to raise awareness of biodiversity and climate 

change at a local level. 
 
5.4.3 The policy plays an important part in education and awareness of our 

natural resource. 
 

5.5 Climate Change 
The climate change checklist is attached to this report. 
 

5.6 Rural Proofing 
It is anticipated the policy will have a neutral impact on the rural 
environment. 
 

5.7 Data Protection Impact Statement 
There are no personal data implications arising from the proposals 
contained in this report. 

  
5.8 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation 

There are no changes to the Scheme of Administration or Delegation 
attached to this report. 

 
 
6 CONSULTATION 

 
6.1 The  Director (Finance & Corporate Governance), the Monitoring 

Officer/Chief Legal Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Director 
(People Performance & Change), the Clerk to the Council and Corporate 
Communications have been consulted and any comments received have 
been incorporated into the final report. 

 
 

 
Approved by 

 
Name  - John Curry  Title – Director – Infrastructure & Environment 
 
Author(s) 
Name Designation and Contact Number 
Simon Wilkinson Tree Officer - 5148 
 
Background Papers:  [insert list of background papers used in compiling report] 
Previous Minute Reference:  [insert last Minute reference (if any)] 
 
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Simon Wilkinson can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies. 
 
Contact us at Simon Wilkinson, Scottish Borders Council, Council HQ, Newtown St 
Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA Tel:01835 824000 Email: swilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

Page 519

tel:01835
mailto:swilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 

TREES FOR LIFE 

 

 

FOREWORD 

Trees are important to all of us. They provide us with food, timber for building, firewood and are 
also provide habitats for hundreds of animals, birds and insect species. Perhaps most importantly 
they help clean the air and produce much of the oxygen we breathe.  

However, we may also appreciate trees for their landscape value; finding enjoyment from seeing 
changes throughout the seasons, from spring growth and the flush of new foliage to the vibrant 
colours of autumn and the sparseness of the winter months.  

In the Scottish Borders, we are fortunate to have a rich and diverse countryside. Within our 
boundaries there are areas of established and plantation woodlands, copses and parkland trees.  The 
Council has a clear duty to care for the trees it is responsible for and, it must also ensure that some 
of those located in private grounds are protected for the benefit of the community as a whole.  

Whether grown for fruit or ornamental value, planted in an urban setting, on open spaces, 
woodlands and the coastal environment, the benefits of trees are clear and they contribute greatly 
to the quality of life in our area.  

Trees are part of our nation’s heritage and can grow to be hundreds of years old. We therefore have 
a duty as individuals and as a society to ensure that trees planted today have an equal chance to 
thrive and grow to maturity as far as is practically possible. 

This Policy provides a framework with information and guidance to ensure that trees in the Scottish 
Borders are managed in a professional and sustainable manner. 

 

 

 

 

Page 521



2 
 

 

 

 

 Foreword 
1 Introduction 
2 Biodiversity 
3 Improving Air Quality 
4 Health and Wellbeing 
5 Trees in the Borders – Liabilities and Responsibilities 
6 Risk Assessment Regime 
7 Dangerous Trees 
8 Council Owned Trees 
9 Privately Owned Trees 
10 Customer advice 
11 Indicators 
12 Priority Assessment 
13 Nuisance to Third Parties 
14 View and Light 
15 Common Queries – Leaf Fall/Birds 
16 Drainage 
17 Nuisance – Private Trees 
18 Road Side Trees 
19 Legislation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 522



3 
 

The policy is guided by the legal requirements in Scotland relating to tree management, which are 
detailed within appendix 1.  

1. Introduction and Purpose 

1.1 Most people agree that trees are a positive thing, and yet we continually see them 
removed for development, damaged or neglected, both on public and private land. 
We need to protect our trees and care for them properly. We also need to make 
sure we pass on a legacy of an attractive and healthy tree population for future 
generations, by endeavouring to replant where appropriate new trees to replace 
those that have died or have been removed. 

1.2 As well as looking after trees and woodlands on Council-owned and/or managed 
land and protecting some trees on private land through statutory measures, SBC has 
a role in raising the awareness of the importance of trees and influencing their 
positive management. We can do this by acting as an example of best practice and 
by providing information about tree management. 

1.3 The policies within this document provide the Council with a framework to manage 
its own tree operations and provide advice on common tree related enquiries.  

2. Biodiversity 

2.1 Trees and woodlands are an integral part of the ecosystem providing habitats for 
many species, some of which are completely dependent on them. Trees are used by 
birds and bats for nesting and roosting. The fruit and seed produced by trees 
provides a sustainable food source for various animals and birds. Invertebrates, 
lichens, moss, fungi and, also ground fauna such as bluebells and other woodland 
species are also dependent on trees. Older and veteran trees are particularly 
important for biodiversity providing unique and increasingly rare habitats for many 
specialised species. Dead wood is also important for biodiversity as it can provide a 
variety of important habitats either as dead branches that decay within a living tree, 
as a standing dead tree or on the ground. 

3. Improving Air Quality and Mitigating Climate Change 

3.1 Trees produce the oxygen that we breathe and absorb carbon dioxide, the 
greenhouse gas, and store it within their wood. They also help to improve air quality 
by trapping particulates on their leaves and absorbing harmful gases.  

3.2 Woodlands and dense groups of trees can also be effective at reducing noise 
pollution. In addition, trees can positively affect the local climate by providing shade 
and shelter from wind and sun, and research has shown that trees can reduce the 
energy needed to heat or cool properties if they are positioned to provide shade or 
shelter. Trees within porous surfaces also help to reduce flash flooding by 
intercepting rainfall and slowing or reducing run off. With a growing understanding 
of climate change issues and the need to become more fuel efficient, trees will have 
an increasingly important role to play in this area. 

 

 

Page 523



4 
 

4. Health and Well-being 

4.1 Trees influence both the physical and mental health of local communities. The use of 
trees to remove air pollutants can be part of a wider strategy to curb respiratory 
illnesses .Trees also contribute to creating attractive urban and park settings for 
walking, cycling and running, helping to promote more active lifestyles. Access to 
trees and green spaces has been found to aid patient recovery and accelerate 
healing times in hospitals. Trees also help create environments that reduce stress 
and help towards reducing mental health problems. 

5. Trees in the Scottish Borders 

5.1 Responsibilities are placed on land owners to safeguard the public and employees 
from danger through the Occupiers Liability (Scotland) Act 1960, and the Health and 
Safety at Work Act 1974.  

5.2 Powers are given to Councils, under the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 to ensure that 
road users are safeguarded from potential danger by roadside trees even when 
these are on private land. Legislation also provides ways of safeguarding particular 
trees from harm through the use of Tree Preservation Orders made under the Town 
& Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, which also sets out a provision to protect 
trees in conservation areas. Council duties under the Nature Conservation (Scotland) 
Act 2004 to improve provisions for wildlife are also reflected within this policy. 

5.3 The priority in managing trees belonging to the Council is, first and foremost, public 
safety. Where a tree constitutes a demonstrable hazard to people or property, then 
the appropriate works will be carried out as a matter of urgency to make the tree 
safe. The Council is also committed to maintaining the health and longevity of trees 
through appropriate management. Works will be undertaken on unhealthy trees 
where they are threatened by disease or instability. In addition, trees on Council 
land will be encouraged to develop a natural form, characteristic of their particular 
species wherever this is appropriate. To achieve this, any works on trees will be 
carried out by SBC to the highest standards of arboricultural practice, in accordance 
with all relevant health and safety legislation and to the British Standard BS 
3998:2010 (Tree Works) standards. 

5.4 Whilst resources are focussed on delivering the priorities and standards set out 
above, there are many issues which the public expect or would like the Council to 
address regarding trees on Council owned land, which cannot be reasonably 
resolved. This policy therefore sets out the Council's position on dealing with these 
issues and additional advice, which will assist members of the public, councillors, 
officers and all stakeholders. 

 The advice provided is for general guidance purposes only and individuals should 
seek their own legal advice in specific cases. 

Page 524



5 
 

 

6. Cyclical Risk Assessment of Council Owned Trees 

6.1 Whilst the Law does not regard trees in themselves as dangerous, the Council has a 
common law duty of care to take reasonable steps to prevent or minimise the risk of 
personal injury, or damage to property, arising from the presence of any of its 
Council owned trees on a site. Guidance under the ‘National Tree Safety Group – 
Common Sense Risk Management of Trees’ is followed. Therefore, Council owned 
trees are assessed on a rolling five year cyclical basis to ensure they do not pose any 
unnecessary risks from being in poor condition. Only trees which warrant work or 
further assessment are assessed and recorded, this enables the priorities outlined 
below to be undertaken practically and within their respective timeframes. Due to 
the geographical size of the Borders the areas are divided into 5 localities. If work 
has been identified as urgent, or not urgent but requires remedial action, the 
timeframe is: 

• High Priority – Work completed within a week 
• Not Priority – Work completed within six to twelve months 
• Reactive - Only inspected on notification of an issue or if an officer is on 

site for another purpose. These would be for trees which are in remote 
sites, or locations which are infrequently used and where there would be 
no damage to structures or surfacing. 

 Note: The above policy on tree inspection applies to trees managed in general parks 
and open spaces. Any tree removed will be assessed for replacement planting. This 
includes tree species, suitability of the location, or identifies an alternative location 
for replacement. 

7. Dangerous Trees 
 
7.1 If a Council owned or managed tree is in such a condition that it poses a 'high' risk to 

people or property, and is considered to be an emergency situation, the Council will 
make the tree safe as soon as possible. If Council staff cannot make the tree safe the 
Council engages external contractors drawn form a framework of approved tree 
surgeons to carry out the necessary work. 

 

7.2 If a Council owned or managed tree is identified as dangerous, but the risk to the        
public is not high, then the tree will be made safe depending on the degree of risk 
identified at the time of inspection. Trees may be made safe by pruning or felling 
and the most cost effective approach will be taken. For certain High Value trees, 
other options would be considered to reduce risk of the tree failing or people being 
close to the tree if it did fail. Options such as physically supporting the tree through 

Page 525



6 
 

bracing or creating fenced areas around the tree are options that may be 
considered. 

7.3  Work to Council owned or managed trees must follow this policy. Trees which are 
unsafe are dealt with as a priority by area teams. Likewise, council owned trees directly 
affecting building/structure will receive work to alleviate potential or existing issues. The 
policy will ensure a standard and impartial approach to dealing with council owned trees 
and any tree work out with dedicated tree budget must adhere to the policy direction. 
 

8 Privately Owned Tree(s) 
 
8.1 The Council has no authority to intervene where a privately owned tree affects the 

occupiers of neighbouring property. Owners of trees on private land should check to 
see if the tree is within a Conservation Area, or is the subject of a Tree Preservation 
Order before carrying out any work. If the preserved tree is imminently dangerous 
and posing a serious risk the work can be undertaken without formal consent. 
However, proof of this would need to be provided to ensure there are no breaches 
of TPO or Conservation Area regulations. 

 

 

9 Customer Advice 

9.1 An emergency is defined as a tree that is imminently dangerous, as outlined below:  

 High risk (Emergency) if a tree poses an immediate danger of collapse, or is causing 
an obstruction requiring urgent attention, it will be made safe immediately or as 
quickly as possible.   

      Please contact the Customer Service Centre during office hours-Tel:  0300 100 1800 
or out of hours contact: Tel: 01896 752111. 

10 Things to Look for When Considering Tree Condition 

Page 526



7 
 

10.1 Indicators to look for which may mean that a tree is in such condition to warrant 
immediate attention include: 

• Snapped or blown over  
• Rocking at the base - roots are damaged  
• Uprooted but held up by another tree or building  
• A Large branch has broken off or is hanging off the tree  
• Blocking road, footpath, access to property  
• Fallen onto a property or vehicle 

 
11 Medium or low risk (Non-emergency) SBC Owned or Managed Trees 

11.1 If the level of risk is lower the tree will be made safe within 6 months. Signs to look 
out for which may mean that a tree is a risk to people or property but does not 
require an emergency response include a tree, which is: 

• Dead  
• Dying - few leaves in summer or dieback in the crown  
• Bark is loose and falling off  
• Mushrooms or fungi growing on or near the tree  
• Old splits and cracks in the trunk or large branches  
• Smaller branches falling from the tree 

11.2 The public can report a dangerous tree by contacting the Customer Service Centre 
during office hours, Tel: 0300 100 1800 or out of hours contact Tel: 01896 752111. 

12 Nuisance to Third Parties/Neighbouring Trees 

12.1 Common Law Right to Cut Back Overhanging Branches and Roots:  

Policy:  Anyone has a Common Law right to remove (abate) the nuisance associated 
with trees encroaching onto their property. The Council will not prune back 
trees where they encroach onto a neighbouring property on private land. 
Council owned trees will be assessed, and if necessary tree work 
undertaken.  

 
Customer Service Centre during office hours: 0300 100 1800 or out of hours 
contact: 01896 752111. 

 
12.2 In relation to overhanging branches out advice is that you send a short polite letter 

to your neighbour (tree owner) outlining your proposals to undertake limited tree 
works while offering them any arisings back.  

 
12.3  Common Law Rights on Encroaching Trees: 

• Only the parts of the tree, which cross the boundary of the property, can be 
removed. There is no legal right to cut or remove any other part of that tree. 
A professional tree surgeon should be asked for guidance on how best to 
prune back encroaching trees, unless the works are very minor and could be 
done with hand secateurs or similar;  

• Before any works to a tree / trees are considered, please check to see if the 
tree/trees are protected by a Tree Preservation Order, or are located within 

Page 527



8 
 

a Conservation Area. If the trees are protected, consent for any works will 
need to be obtained by making an application or giving notice to the 
Council.  Please see SBC website for Tree Preservation Orders and 
Conservation Areas- 
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20013/environment/601/protected_t
rees_and_tpo 
 

• Any intention to prune encroaching branches or roots should be discussed 
with the owner first, and any cuttings offered to them as legal owner. If the 
encroachment is from a Council owned tree, any cuttings must be disposed 
of appropriately and not returned to Council land.  

• Root encroachment affecting buildings is very uncommon in the Scottish 
Borders due to the nature of the soils in this area. Any concerns about this 
should be referred to the owner's insurance company for further specialist 
investigation. 

13 Blocked Light or View 

13.1 Policy: Council owned trees will not be pruned or felled to improve natural light in a 
property or to open up a view. The Council has no authority or locus to intervene 
where a privately owned tree affects the occupiers of neighbouring property, and 
will therefore not get involved. 

13.2 The exception to this would be where the pruning of the trees could be reasonably 
enforced under the High Hedges (Scotland) Act 2013 (see below). 

13.3 In law there is no general right to light or a view in Scotland. If natural light is being 
blocked by the growth of a hedge, then action may be taken to reduce the problem 
under the High Hedges (Scotland) Act 2013. This Act expressly requires the Council 
to take account of the effect of the high hedge on the amenity of the area, and 
whether the high hedge is of cultural or historical significance.  

Customer Service Centre during office hours: 0300 100 1800 or view advice on High 
Hedges on the SBC website: 
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20052/environmental_problems/277/high_he
dges 

 

 

Page 528

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20013/environment/601/protected_trees_and_tpo
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20013/environment/601/protected_trees_and_tpo
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20052/environmental_problems/277/high_hedges
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20052/environmental_problems/277/high_hedges


9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

14 Leaves, Berries, Sap, Fruit, Bird Droppings  and Wild Animal or Insect Pests 

14.1 Policy: Council owned trees will not be pruned or felled to remove or reduce leaf 
fall, berries, sap and fruit, reduce bird droppings or the incidence of perceived pests 
such as bees, wasps, or wild animals.  

14.2 The loss of leaves, berries and fruit from trees in the autumn is part of the natural 
cycle and cannot be avoided by pruning. The maintenance of gutters is the 
responsibility of the landowner/householder and the Council is not obliged to 
remove leaves etc. that may have fallen from Council owned trees. Where gutters 
are regularly blocked by fallen leaves, gutter guards may be fitted to provide a low 
maintenance solution. The Council sweeps streets to clear leaves, which may cause a 
hazard. Gathered leaves are generally used for composting. 

14.3 Bird droppings may be a nuisance, but the problem is not considered a sufficient 
reason to prune or remove a tree. Nesting birds are protected under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act (and other related wildlife law) so they (and their habitat) 
should not be disturbed. Warm soapy water will usually be sufficient to remove the 
bird droppings. 

Page 529



10 
 

14.4 Honeydew is caused by greenfly (aphids) feeding on the tree, which excrete a sugary 
sap. Often the honeydew is colonised by a mould, which causes it to go black. 
Unfortunately, there is little that can be done to remove the aphid, which causes the 
problem and pruning the tree may only offer temporary relief. Also, any re-growth is 
often more likely to be colonised by greenfly, thereby potentially increasing the 
problem. Some trees, such as limes, are more prone to attack by greenfly and in 
some years, greenfly are more common especially following a mild winter. 
Honeydew is a natural and seasonal problem. Where new trees are planted, trees 
are chosen that are less likely to cause this problem. Where honeydew affects cars, 
warm soapy water will remove the substance, particularly if the car is washed as 
soon as possible. 

14.5 Bees are protected species and advice should be taken before considering their 
removal. Residents may be able to dispose of individual wasps using an aerosol 
insect-repellent spray, but this will not control or eliminate the nest itself. Ideally, 
the whole nest should be destroyed. This can be achieved with great caution but it is 
far safer to use pest control experts. 

14.6 Bats - All bats are protected, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act (Schedule 5) 
and the EU Directive Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. This 
legislation makes it illegal to intentionally or deliberately kill, injure or capture bats, 
deliberately disturb bats, whether in a roost or not; or to damage, destroy or 
obstruct a bat roost. Given that trees can be significant hosts to bat roosts, 
inspections will precede works where bat roosts are suspected. Where necessary 
the Council will seek expert advice. 

14.7 Red Squirrels are also protected, and it is an offence to intentionally or recklessly 
damage or destroy any structure or place a red squirrel uses for shelter or 
protection or to disturb a red squirrel while it is occupying such a place. Given that 
trees are significant hosts, inspections will precede works where Red Squirrel drays 
are suspected. Where necessary the Council will seek expert advice. 

15 Drains 

15.1 Policy: Council owned or managed trees will not be felled or pruned (including the 
roots) to prevent tree roots entering a drain that is already broken or damaged. The 
Council has no authority to intervene where roots from a privately owned tree affect 
a neighbouring privately owned property. 

15.2 Customer Advice: Tree roots found in a drain are often symptomatic of an 
underlying problem requiring repair of the broken pipe. If residents are concerned 
about the condition of their drains, they are advised to contact Scottish Water. 

16 Nuisance to Third Parties - Private Trees 

16.1 Policy: The Council has no authority to intervene in a dispute concerning trees 
between neighbours. However, if the problem is due to a 'high hedge' guidance may 
be found on the Council's web page. 

16.2 Customer Advice: Residents and other property owners/occupiers may benefit from 
approaching the mediation service. Contact the Customer Service Centre during 
office hours. Tel: 0300 100 1800. 

Page 530



11 
 

17 Roadside Trees  

18.1 Most roadside trees are in private ownership, and the owner of the tree has a 
responsibility for ensuring they do not cause an obstruction or danger to a public 
road or footpath. Powers exist under the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 to instruct the 
owner of the tree to remove the obstruction. If they do not, the Council may do this 
work and recharge the owner. 

18.2 Roadside trees - Sight-lines, traffic signals, street/road signs, streetlights and trip 
hazards. The Council will undertake work to a tree in Council ownership to maintain 
clear sight lines (where reasonably feasible), at junctions and access points 
(associated with a street, road or highway 5.0m). The Council will cut back trees 
where they encroach on and obscure traffic signals, road signs or streetlights, and 
undertake measures to make safe an unacceptable trip hazard caused by tree roots. 

18.3 Standards for visibility vary according to the class of road and speed limit in force. If 
a privately owned tree is causing an obstruction to the visibility at a road junction 
(sight line) or a trip hazard in a roadside pavement, powers exist under the Roads 
(Scotland) Act 1984 to instruct the owner of the tree to remove the obstruction. If 
they do not, the Council will do the work and recharge the owner. 

18.4 Customer advice - Members of the public can report a tree that is clearly causing an 
obstruction at junctions or is obscuring traffic signals, a road sign or streetlight 
(associated with a street, road or highway). Please contact the Customer Service 
Centre during office hours. Tel: 0300 100 1800 or out of hours Tel: 01896 752111. 

 

 

Page 531



12 
 

Appendix 1 - Tree Management Legislation and Guidance 

Description Occupiers' Liability (Scotland) Act 1960 and Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 
Under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, all occupiers have responsibilities to ensure the 
safety of those not in their employment. "Occupier" is generally taken to mean any person 
occupying or having control of premises, in this case, land. Thus, there are clear legal responsibilities 
to assess risks that arise from trees, and to take suitable and sufficient steps to control such risks. In 
addition, occupiers have duties under the Occupiers Liability Act 1984. This states (s.2) that the 
occupier owes a "common law duty of care" to visitors and those who enter his land or premises. 
 
Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 
The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) have highlighted the role and responsibility of local 
authorities with regard to the safety of trees. The HSE has confirmed that councils have a duty of 
care to people using the roads. In addition, the SBC has potential liabilities if it was deemed to be not 
effectively using its powers under the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 Section 91 to prevent danger from 
trees in the vicinity of a road, but which are in private ownership. 

Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
Covers legislation for Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs) & Trees in Conservation Areas. TPOs are used 
to protect selected trees from threats such as felling, pruning or uprooting. Anyone wishing to carry 
out such works to a tree protected by a TPO must apply in writing to the Local Planning Authority. 
Most trees within Conservation Areas have protection and anyone wishing to carry out work to a 
tree must provide written notice of the proposed work to the Local Planning Authority six weeks in 
advance. 

The European Habitats Directive 
This is the main piece of European Union (EU) legislation, (which remains applicable at present) that 
identifies habitats and species of EU community importance requiring protection and conservation. 
 
Nature Conservation (Scotland) Act 2004 
Places duties on public bodies to improve provisions for wildlife in their policies, operations and 
within their properties.  

Wildlife and Countryside (Scotland) Act 1981, as amended. This UK legislation sets out the 
protection of species identified in a series of appendices, which are updated regularly. 

High Hedges (Scotland) Act 2013 
Legislation dealing with issues associated with high hedges in Scotland. 

Common Sense Risk Management of Trees, the Forestry Commission, December 2011  
Guidance on trees and public safety in the UK for owners, managers and advisers. 
 
 

 

Page 532



13 
 

Photos credit: Keith Robeson 

Page 533



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing of Short Term Lets, Council, 24 November 2022 

 

 

LICENSING OF SHORT TERM LETS 
 
Report by Interim Chief Corporate Governance Officer  
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
24 November 2022 
 

 
1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the responses 

received to the statutory consultation on the terms of the draft short 
term lets licensing policy which the Council requires to implement 
following the commencement of the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 
1982 (Licensing of Short Term Lets) Order 1982.  

 
1.2  At its meeting on 29 September 2022, Council agreed that a 3 week 

statutory consultation be carried out on the terms of the draft policy.    
 
1.3  The statutory consultation was carried out between 5 October 2022 

and 30 October 2022. The responses received during the consultation 
are detailed at Appendix 1.    

 
1.4 That Members consider the proposed revisals to the draft policy 

following consideration of the responses received as highlighted in 
red on the draft policy as detailed at Appendix 2.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 It is recommended that Council  
 

(a) note the terms of the responses received and thereafter approve 
the amendments to the draft policy as detailed at Appendix 2 

(b) thereafter instruct the Interim Chief Corporate Governance 
Officer to adopt the amended draft policy with immediate effect.   

 
 

Page 535

Agenda Item 15



Licensing of Short Term Lets, Council, 24 November 2022 

3 BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 On 19 January 2022, the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of 
Short Term Lets) Order 2022 (“the Order”) was approved by the Scottish 
Parliament. The Order came into force on 1 March 2022 and inserts new 
legislative provisions into the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (“the 
Act”)   

 
3.2 The Order introduces a new mandatory licensing system for short term lets 

which local authorities are required to establish by 1 October 2022. 
 
3.3 Prior to the introduction of the legislation, there was no requirement to licence 

short term lets and, therefore, local authorities did not have the ability to 
regulate these types of premises. 

 
3.4 The licensing scheme was brought in by the Scottish Government with the 

aim to ensure that short term lets are safe, address issues faced by 
neighbours, to facilitate local authorities in knowing and understanding what 
is happening in their area and handling complaints effectively. It also enables 
local authorities to ensure the people providing short term lets are suitable. 
The legislation aims to make sure that the economic tourism and benefits 
from short term lets are balanced with the needs of the local communities. 

 
3.5 The short term let licensing scheme will cover a wide range of residential 

accommodation including, but not exclusively, self-catered properties, B and 
B’s, guest houses, glamping and yurts.    

 
3.6 At the meeting on 29 September 2022 Council agreed that a 3 week statutory 

consultation be carried out on the terms of the Council’s proposed Licensing 
Policy Statement. The consultation was carried out between 5 October 2022 
and 30 October 2022. A total of 63 responses were received as detailed at 
Appendix 1. 

 
3.7 The responses received were largely not in favour of a licensing scheme being 

introduced with only a few responders recognising that this is a mandatory 
licensing requirement introduced by the Scottish Government.  Similarly, the 
majority of responders felt that the proposed licensing fee structure as set 
out in paragraph 17 of the draft policy was excessive. Despite these 
responses, the legislation allows licensing authorities to set reasonable fees 
to cover their administrative costs and as officers consider the proposed fees 
to be reasonable and in line with those charged by other licensing authorities 
it is not proposed to revise the proposed fee structure.  

 
3.8 In addition, a number of responders commented that the proposed additional 

conditions as set in Appendix 3 of the draft policy were unduly onerous and 
burdensome. In particular, a number of responders raised concerns about the 
requirement to fit carpets to living rooms, bedrooms and any hallways with 
several of these highlighting that their properties were fitted with laminate or 
vinyl flooring which they deemed to be appropriate. The requirement to fit 
carpets would result in them having to incur additional expense which they 
felt was unnecessary. In addition, some responders raised the possibility of 
cleaning and allergy concerns with regard to the carpeting requirement. As a 
result of these concerns officers have reconsidered this proposed additional 
condition and in line with some other licensing authorities it is now proposed 

Page 536



Licensing of Short Term Lets, Council, 24 November 2022 

that the condition only be applied following on from concerns regarding noise 
being investigated. The proposed amendment to this effect is as set out in 
the revised draft policy as detailed at Appendix 2. The other suggested 
changes to the additional conditions are proposed in order to make the 
language used consistent and less onerous.                  

 
4 NEXT STEPS 
 

4.1 The adoption of the draft policy will enable officers to take the necessary steps 
to ensure that the Council’s short term lets licensing regime becomes active 
immediately. 

 
5 IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1  Financial 
 

There are no costs attached to any of the recommendations contained in this 
report. There are no costs associated with the publication of the draft Short 
Term Lets Licensing Policy as this will be published online. The proposed 
Licensing fee structure will be reflected in the Council’s fees and charges 
schedule and any financial implications arising therefrom will be reflected 
through the monitoring process for the remainder of the financial year 
2022/2023 and the financial planning process for 2023/2024. It is estimated 
that the new short term lets requirement will result in approximately 1000 
applications being received and the income generated through the proposed 
fee structure will be applied to assist with the costs of providing this service. 

 
5.2 Risk and Mitigation 
 
       The carrying out of the consultation and the consideration of the responses 

received will allow Council to determine the final content of the Short Term 
Lets Licensing Policy. 

 
5.3 IIA 
        
 It is anticipated that there will be no adverse impact due to race, disability, 

gender, age, sexual orientation or religious belief arising from the proposals 
in this report.   

 
5.4 Sustainable Development Goals 
 
      There are no sustainable development goals arising from the proposals 

contained in this report. 
 
5.5 Climate Change 
 
     There are no climate change impacts from the proposals contained in this 

report. 
 
5.6 Rural Proofing 
 
       There are no rural proofing issues arising from the proposals contained in this 

report. 
 

Page 537



Licensing of Short Term Lets, Council, 24 November 2022 

5.7   Data Protection Impact Statement 
 
       There are no personal data implications arising from the proposals contained 

in this report. 
 
5.8  Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation 
 
       No change to either the Scheme of Administration or the Scheme of 

Delegation as a result of the recommendations in this report. 
 

6.  CONSULTATION 
 
The Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Legal Officer ( Monitoring Officer), the Chief 
Officer Audit and Risk, the Chief Human Resources Officer and the Clerk to the 
Council have  been consulted and any comments received have been incorporated 
into the final report. 
 

Approved by 
 
Nuala McKinlay 
Interim Chief Corporate Governance Officer 
 
Author(s) 
 
Name Designation and Contact Number 
Ron Kirk Managing Solicitor, Property and Licensing, Tel No. 

01835 826764 
 

 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Previous Minute Reference:  29 September 2022 
                                               
  
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Ron Kirk can also give information on other 
language translations as well as providing additional copies. 
 
Contact us at, Ron Kirk, Managing Solicitor, Property & Licensing, Tel. No. 01835 
826764. Email: ron.kirk@scotborders.gov.uk   

Page 538

mailto:ron.kirk@scotborders.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

Licensing Short Term Lets 2022 
 
https://scotborders.citizenspace.com/regulatory-services/short-term-lets-licensing 
 
This report was created on Monday 31 October 2022 at 16:31 

The activity ran from 05/10/2022 to 30/10/2022 

Responses to this survey: 63 

 

1: How are you responding to this consultation? 
Who 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Individual 61 96.83% 
Group or Organisation 2 3.17% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 
Org Name 

There was 1 response to this part of the question. 

 

2: Which of the following best describes your short term let situation? 
Type 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

Group or Organisation

Individual

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Page 539



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

 

Option Total Percent 
Short Term Let Host/Operator 57 90.48% 
Short Term Let User 2 3.17% 
Short Term Let Neighbour 2 3.17% 
None of the Above 2 3.17% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
3: Where are you based? 

Where 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Scottish Borders 61 96.83% 
Scotland (Outwith Scottish Borders) 1 1.59% 
Other Area (Outwith Scotland) 1 1.59% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 

None of the Above

Short Term Let Neighbour

Short Term Let User

Short Term Let Host/Operator

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Other Area (Outwith Scotland)

Scotland (Outwith Scottish Borders)

Scottish Borders

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Page 540



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

1: Are there any parts of the draft policy statement that you wish to make 
comment on? 
Any comment 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes 27 42.86% 
No 36 57.14% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 
If Yes, please provide details (including section number) 

There were 28 responses to this part of the question. 

The responses received were as follows: 

Paragraph 1.4 – I feel that you already have means in place to deal with this without 
bringing in more legislation. It feels like you are tarring us all with the same brush. 

Paragraph 17- The fees table is labelled “Home Sharing and “Home Letting”. It is not clear 
if the fee is for each licence or both. 

Paragraph 17.3, Fees - I agree with the fee structure proposed, it seems reasonable and 
sensible as it must not be too expensive given all the other regulations operators have to 
comply with which come at a cost, the good thing about this scheme is that it will catch 
out or shut down those operators who fail to comply with all the safety costs which cost a 
lot of money but which most good operators comply with and stop unfair competition from 
people who fail to pay these costs. 

Existing hosts and operators or New hosts and operators - Does not take account of 
projects already under construction prior to this legislation being proposed. In many cases 
considerable has been made with delays and extra costs due to Covid and other events 
incurred. To put such projects to the bottom of the queue for a licence because they might 
not have reached completion prior to 1 October is unjust. No account has been made for 
new projects where planning consent was granted on the condition that  

No

Yes

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Page 541



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

the dwelling could ONLY be used for holiday accommodation. No consideration for 
business or property owners wishing to invest in holiday accommodation whether by 
renovation or new build. 

Paragraph 3.3- Exclusions- Self Catering property in the grounds of a licensed hotel- Why 
are hotels excluded?  This disadvantages independent self-catering providers who 
provide a unique experience for tourists. 

Paragraph 4.1- Any idea of what documents required to support the application? When 
will application form be available? 

Paragraph 5.7- Will publication of objectors name and address prevent some objections 
from being raised for fear of reprisals? 

Paragraph 16- Planning Permission- Is it correct that if you have been operating over 10 
years, planning permission will not be required if a short term control area is introduced in 
the future? 

Paragraph 17- Fees- As stated fees are to cover administrative costs. How are the costs 
therefore derived? Why does the guest capacity influence charge.  Administration costs 
will appear to be property based not capacity based. 

Appendix 2-6 – Frequency of PAT testing not stated. Please advise.  

Appendix 2- Mandatory Licence conditions Fire Safety (4). Having to provide proof that 
furnishings (mattresses in particular) meet the 1988 regulations. Nothing in my B&B was 
purchased before 2002 and most has since been replaced so I am certain that these items 
do comply but how do I prove this. If I had to replace all the mattresses this could run in 
£thousands. Also, we are a totally nonsmoking establishment and have been for 20 plus 
years we have been trading so I cannot see the point of suddenly having to give this proof. 

Appendix iii- All conditions are unduly burdensome and unnecessary. 

Can we still use a letting agency if we are not local? As it looks from the draft as the person 
named on the licence has to manage it. 

Condition 13 gives the licensing authority an unrestricted right to vary a licence. Any 
variation should be subject to consultation and require the licensing authority to provide 
reasons. Often, the operator and/or neighbours may have legitimate points to make about 
a proposed variation, Also, a variation could have a cost implication for operators (and 
therefore indirectly for guests) and it is fairer that operators can make their case or, 
potentially, suggest other means of achieving the same objective. 

Costs of electrical testing/PAT/EPC/EICR and licence fees are prohibitive to part time 
home sharing. 

Doesn’t make it clear if we need an EPC. Not very clear about planning permission.  

Page 542



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

Section 18- Energy Performance Certificate- What has this got to do with a holiday let? 

I think that a separate type of licence should have been made for hosted accommodation. 
I rent only 1 room through Airbnb and it seems a complicated method to apply for a licence 
for 1 room. The Scottish Borders needs these rooms as a majority of my guests are 
students and staff from the hospital. 

Noise Control in Flatted Premises and maintenance of carpets (with appropriate underlay) 
to the floors of bedrooms, living room and any hallway. Property with carpets is so 
unhygienic and difficult to clean if you have a respiratory condition such as asthma you 
would always choose a property with laminate flooring. 

Section 16- Particularly subsections 3 and 7. I am not clear whether an existing holiday 
let property is counted as change of use. I assume that if it is already running as a holiday 
let that this isn’t a change of use but I am not sure. 

I understand that there won’t be a short term control area in the Borders but I am not sure 
what 16.7 means re hosts must comply with both planning and licensing law. I assume 
that this links to 16.3 and change of use. Essentially I am unclear what that section means 
for me. 

Paragraph 16.3- How will this be carried out on a case by case basis? I was of the 
understanding that when we applied to operate as a self-catering business in 2016 we 
were granted a change of use then and as such the cottage became a commercial 
property. We were advised at the time by the Council that we are under the non-domestic 
rating system as a small business due to change of use. Planning Permission appears to 
be applying for something that we already have and have been operating under since the 
business started. I hope that common sense will prevail for those who have been operating 
as short term lets that we do not need to apply for planning permission. Aberdeenshire 
Council have gone down this route. 

Section 3.2 HMO licensing is both more expensive and more onerous in terms of licensing 
conditions than the proposed short term licensing, so for HMO holders it should either be 
an exemption or a special category with a very reduced fee since they will already have 
all relevant certifications and checks in place. 

Short Term lettings need a landlord registration already. This seems like a duplicate 
process. 

The legislation as a whole is entirely unnecessary and excessive. Previous legislation has 
sufficed except for the case of Central Edinburgh which could and should have been dealt 
with by a local byelaw. The new legislation will put an unnecessary burden on public 
bodies and private operators and doubtless lead to a diminution in tourism accommodation 
in rural areas where it has made an important contribution to the local economy.    

  

Page 543



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

2: Do you agree with the proposed additional conditions set out by Scottish 
Borders Council? 
Additional conditions 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes 36 57.14% 
No 18 28.57% 
Don't Know 9 14.29% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 
If No, please detail reasons. 

There were 18 responses to this part of the question. 

The responses received were as follows: 

They are unduly burdensome and unnecessary. Operators have a duty of care towards 
their guests and the Council need not get itself involved with their regulation. In fact, the 
Council will not have the resource to monitor them. 

If we own the premises and no neighbours have objections we should be allowed to have 
a key safe. 

Seems overly careful on not disturbing neighbours- we have no neighbours- perhaps not 
so appropriate to rural areas. 

Another way to hit small businesses. 

Most of the additional conditions do not happen in hosted accommodation. 

Don't Know

No

Yes

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Page 544



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

Unreasonable. Guests could be attending a function in an alternative venue which doesn’t 
finish until later than 2300 hours. Working guests frequently have to leave before 0700 
hours. Surely hosts can have wooden floors in their homes? It should be remembered that 
many of the small B&B’s providing tourist accommodation of one or two guest rooms 
provide this service in properties that are first and foremost their homes. 

It is so difficult to make a living now local government and Scottish government have lost 
touch with the ordinary person trying to make a living. 

A duplicate process. SBC already test my private water supply annually. We are now in 
Alice in Wonderland where I must furnish proof to one department of SBC that another 
department of SBC has done its job. The previous legislation for small holiday lets was 
put in place to provide appropriate safeguards in small properties without the undue 
burden of requirements suitable for large hotels. This worked well. Why change it? 

Document language is a challenge- not clear. 

Requirement to fit carpets in a flat seems onerous and unnecessary. Consider other floor 
surfaces/ modern floor construction that limit noise transference too. Having run a 
business for a number of years comprising laminate floors with rugs there has never been 
an issue with noise transference to the flat below. Also consider hygiene and allergies that 
could be an issue with a carpet surface. 

The high level of rules and signs/notices will affect the comfort and feel of a place for 
guests to stay. Perhaps electronic provision to guests of the additional conditions could 
be agreed. 

We have had an apartment as our second home and also as a holiday let since 2016 
which has worked well for all parties. No pets are allowed and the flat has laminate floors 
in most rooms and linoleum in the small kitchen and bathroom making it suitable for allergy 
sufferers and is spotlessly clean for each guest arriving. All floors are steam cleaned 
between changeovers. Our guests are mainly middle aged or elderly and a few families 
with older children as it is on the second floor. We have never had any complaints. 

Nearly all of these are the same as you need with a company like cottages.com. Also, will 
you send somebody to check all properties? 

I have concerns that my neighbour will be vexatious with no good reason but to cause 
trouble. 

I have concerns about the requirement to provide fitted carpets in flatted premises. The 
Five Turrets isn’t a flat itself but there is a flat underneath. It is an unusual building with a 
very large triple height living space which used to be a billiard hall. The flooring is the 
original narrow polished boards and I am very concerned that we will be forced to carpet 
the entire area under these conditions and very much hope that provision can be made 
for reasonable exemptions.           

Page 545



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

 

3: Do you think the fee structure is fair? 
Fee OK 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes 20 31.75% 
No 35 55.56% 
Don't Know 8 12.70% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 
Any comments about the Fee structure? 

There were 41 responses to this part of the question. 

These responses were as follows: 

Can I ask how you come about these figures? 

Don’t know what’s fair and what’s not fair because I haven’t had to do this before so have 
no benchmarks. 

Every requirement for a licence is the same as for insurance. No one in their right mind 
would hire out their house for B&B without full insurance cover so why the duplication and 
extra cost? 

I don’t think it is clear enough. Is the fee per property and varies on the number of 
occupants per property?  

Don't Know

No

Yes

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Page 546



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

I see the fees are based on guest capacity but it is not clear if the fees are chargeable per 
property or per licence. I understand that where an operator has multiple properties at the 
same address then only one licence is required. If it is one fee based on the guest capacity 
of all properties at the same address then it is fair. 

It depends how often renewal has to happen. For people with more than one property if 
renewals were annual that would be a heavy cost. 

If fees are to cover administration costs how are they derived? 

Why does the guest capacity influence the charge? Administration costs appear to be 
property based not capacity based. 

The fees table has a column headed “ home sharing and home letting” .If the fee payable 
is for each licence I believe that it is unreasonable to be charged twice especially if both 
licences are applied for at the same time. 

Compared to Landlord Registration the costs seem high. 

Consider average annual occupancy for fee levels rather than the maximum. Most of our 
bookings are for two guests but we occasionally take bookings for 3/4 guests. Our average 
annual would be 3 guests per week when the flat is let out 

Fees are high on top of other associated costs of safety certification. 

For two small lodges it is going to be £335 each- there should be a discounted fee for the 
second one on the same land. There is a huge difference between a cottage let and our 
two small wooden lodges. 

Given that the burden of all tests, equipment and checks is on the host the fees are 
excessive. The Council could be mindful that the hosts are providing essential services to 
tourists and visiting workers and the fees will be passed on to them. To keep employment 
and services contributing to the local economy the extra tax should be minimal. The statute 
is clear, the fees must reflect the cost of the process. 

Having open ended fees in the event of a complaint is unfair. There should be no fee for 
investigating a complaint. The cost of doing so should be covered by the licence fee. 

Fee structure is unfair. No consideration has been given to seasonal letting. Some B&B 
hosts only open April/May to October each year. 

This seems like a lot of paper work with the Council charging us for bringing people into 
the region to spend money. What exactly do we get in return? I would seriously consider 
long term lets to avoid this complicated upheaval. 

It is a bit steep for one room hosted accommodation. 

It is another unwelcome expense. 

Page 547



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

It is more expensive than I expected. I thought that it would be £200-£300. 

Many letting businesses already pay significant fees to letting agencies who often insist 
on a high standard of health and safety environment. There should be a reduced fee for 
lets who use a recognized and accredited agent which will reduce SBC workload and 
recognise that there is already a high standard for may SBC rural lets. 

Most of the checks have previously been completed through the planning application 
process for designed tourist accommodation. The additional cost should be discounted or 
waived for establishments who have already been granted planning permission for tourist 
accommodation. 

In light of the current economic climate this is another cost that is going to be detrimental 
to our business. 

No doubt it will double within years. 

Perhaps a fee each time a property is not occupied for the whole year. 

Seems fairly steep when fuel prices etc. are all rising. 

The hospitality industry is already on its knees, the additional licensing costs will have to 
be passed on to guests thereby increasing the weekly costs which will cause further issues 
within the hospitality industry. 

This is just another cost added along with the extra costs involved for gas/ electrical 
certificates. Our gas boiler is serviced annually and our electrics are in very good condition 
but we will now be subjected to additional costs to have reports raised to comply with 
regulations. 

This licence could have been given for free bearing in mind the costs involved in complying 
and that we are still recovering from the loss of income brought about by Covid and the 
subsequent restrictions. 

Too expensive. The whole process is completely unnecessary and burdensome. We now 
appear to be living in a Soviet state. 

Too high and will put off those who rent out their rooms in their homes- as well as the 
costs associated with having to get all the other documentation. It isn’t worth it for home 
owners to rent our occasional rooms. 

Unfair when holiday lets used as a business and bring in a large income to the local 
economy. This is yet another expense to an already stretched economy with more people 
going abroad rather than staying at home for staycations. 

We already pay Corporation tax on the limited company profits and personal taxes at a 
time when we are already being hammered on heating and energy costs introducing what 

Page 548



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

amounts to an additional tax for operating a specific type of business is unfair and 
discriminatory. 

We have already paid significant fees towards a full planning application with SBC which 
covers many of the points in the application. 

We were originally told at the ASSC roadshow that it would be £250 for up to 4 guests. 

The cost for a renewal every three years should be lower. 

Fees must not be increased in the future without consultation. 

I think that the fees are fair. 

SBC are to be commended on the proportionate level of their fees.   

  

1: Do you have any final thoughts about Short Term Lets in the Scottish Borders. 
 
Final thoughts 

There were 48 responses to this part of the question. 

These responses were as follows: 

I do not think this is the time to be bringing in this legislation. It is not necessary in the 
Scottish Borders. It seems that the reason it has been brought in is to deal with problems 
in Edinburgh. 

They are vital to the economy of the Scottish Borders. Do not do anything to discourage 
them. 

It will reduce the number of holiday lets available and encourage visitors to this lovely part 
of Scotland to stay in large hotels or not visit Scotland thereby reducing tourism and the 
income which this brings into the area. 

I don’t think it is fair. Accommodation businesses have been so badly affected by Covid 
then by the increase in utility bills and now to hit us with extra work and expense which is 
totally unnecessary for a rural B&B which has been operating for in excess of 20 years 
without any complaints. If this licensing is really necessary then it should be free or 
determined by length of trading. 

Short term lets have operated very successfully for decades without this type of regulation. 
The sector has supported tourism in the Scottish Borders and in doing so has been an 
important contributor to the local economy. The Council should therefore adopt a light 
touch approach to support operators and avoid becoming an overbearing regulator. 

Page 549



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

SBC has taken a sensible and pragmatic approach to the implementation of this 
legislation.  

When using part of your home for short term letting there should be no need for energy 
performance certification. Also, difficult to obtain fire safety documentation for furniture 
that has been in place for a few years if the labels have been removed at the time of 
purchase. 

Bad idea. What are the Council going to use the money for?  

I agree to licensing for non-hosted accommodation to protect the neighbours from noise 
and disruption but do not think that it is necessary for hosted accommodation. 

Very good at the moment. Do not impose any more rules or you will kill the small 
businesses and local tourism will suffer. Will just go somewhere else other than Scotland. 

It seems like a pragmatic approach. However, I will have more of an opinion when I see 
how the actual application process works and also how quickly the Council is able to 
process applications. 

Our small villages and towns are very reliant on tourism and I think that this sector is a 
vital part of the region’s economy. 

The aims of safety and a curb on over short term provision are fair, yet to expect first time 
applicants to get every detail right on application is maybe not fair as they should be able 
to get advice and time after applications to get it right without being threatened with licence 
refusal. 

Another money making scheme.   

Kelso currently has four B&B’s but soon there will only be two. These new rules and 
regulations are not likely to bring in new businesses any time soon. Having said that, I 
appreciate you are compelled to bring in this licensing regime by the Scottish Government.  

I understand why these licences are being put into place but small businesses like 
ourselves in the Scottish Borders are being grouped together under the same umbrella as 
city centre short lets. 

The potential extra cost of applying for a licence and meeting all the mandatory conditions 
is very scary. As a professional operator I appreciate everything that SBC is doing to keep 
licence application costs to a minimum. The ASSC was complimentary about the SBC 
proposals. 

Tourism needs support and the Scottish Borders needs tourism. 

Provided there is a practical and sensible approach to all of this the draft policy circulated 
is relatively fair and reasonable. 

I think we are important to for the tourist industry in the Borders. 

Page 550



Appendix 1 
Scottish Borders Council 

Yet another barrier to small businesses at a time when the Scottish Government and 
Councils should be removing barriers to assist small companies. This policy should only 
be applied in areas where there are problems. 

Many will close their businesses due to increased utility costs coupled with this new 
licensing requirement. 

Hopefully the application will be easy. Do not make it too complicated please. 

We have run a small B&B for 7 years and have had no problems. We now find that due to 
events in the inner cities we are being subjected to extra cost and we find that 
unnecessary. 

The licence system will add to business costs and adding further onerous conditions also 
adds to costs. This may impact the viability of businesses. 

I think from a safety aspect it is a good thing but maybe a more approachable way of doing 
it is required. 

The principle of licensing is good however it should have been implemented differently. 
For example, all short term lets should be via an agency where it would be easier to 
enforce and monitor. 

We would be very sorry to cease trading but will do if the carpet ruling is unfairly imposed. 

Yet more bureaucracy, uncertainty and expense to deal with. There is a danger that this 
will result in people just selling their properties meaning there will be less accommodation 
for tourists. 

Do not scare people away from providing this opportunity by making everything so costly 
and complicated. 

I am glad that this is out now. Seems fair and reasonable. I don’t think that any good hosts 
will have any difficulty complying. 

The Government’s short term letting licensing legislation is both punitive and ill advised. If 
not implements carefully and sympathetically it will create a situation where the Borders 
will lose out and find that local provision disappears fast. 

I think it would be better if this was targeted at people who have a second home to let as 
an Airbnb , as this results in there being less homes for people to live in, however I think 
it is good that a step is being made.  

 

 

    

Page 551



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Appendix 2 
 

 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL CIVIC GOVERNMENT 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
SHORT TERM LETS LICENSING 

 
DRAFT POLICY STATEMENT 

 
 

 

  

Page 553



 
 

 

 

 

Contents 
 

Foreword 

 

1. Background 

2. Timescales for applying 

3. Definitions 

4. Application and notification 

5. Objections and representations 

6. Determination of application 

7. Right of appeal 

8. Licence duration and renewal 

9. Licence conditions 

10. Temporary exemptions 

11. Temporary licences 

12. Compliance and enforcement 

13. Variation of a licence 

14. Suspension and revocation of a licence 

15. Third party accreditation 

16. Planning permission 

17. Fees 

 

 

Appendix 1 – Contact details  

Appendix 2 – Mandatory conditions  

Appendix 3 – Additional conditions 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 554



 
 

 

Foreword 
This policy statement is the first one published by Scottish Borders Council. 

The purpose of the policy is to provide guidance for applicants, licence holders and 
members of the public on the licensing system for short-term lets. 

Consultation on the draft policy statement took place during the period from 5 October 
2022 to 30 October 2022. 

A report providing details of the comments received from consultees was considered at the 
meeting of Scottish Borders Council on 24 November 2022.  

This policy statement will be reviewed and revised when necessary. 

 

 

 

  

Page 555



 
 

 

1. Background 
1.1.  On 19th January 2022, The Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of 

Short-term Lets) Order 2022 (“the Order”) was approved by the Scottish Parliament. 
The Order came into force on 1st March 2022 and inserts new legislative provisions 
into the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (“the Act”). 

1.2.  The Order introduces a new mandatory licensing system for short-term lets which 
local authorities are required to establish by 1st October 2022. 

1.3.  Prior to the introduction of the legislation, there was no requirement to licence 
short-term lets and, therefore, local authorities did not have the ability to regulate 
these types of premises. 

1.4.  The licensing scheme was brought in by the Scottish Government with the aim to 
ensure short-term lets are safe, address issues faced by neighbours, to facilitate 
local authorities in knowing and understanding what is happening in their area, and 
handling complaints effectively. It also enables local authorities to ensure the 
people providing short-term lets are suitable. The legislation aims to make sure 
that the economic and tourism benefits from short-term lets are balanced with the 
needs and concerns of local communities. 

 

2. Timescales for applying 
2.1.  After 1st October 2022, new hosts and operators will need to have a licence. This 

means that, if you were not using your premises to provide short-term lets before 
1st October 2022, you can advertise but not take bookings or receive guests until 
you have obtained a licence. 

2.2.  Existing hosts or operators (those using accommodation to provide short-term 
lets before 1st October 2022) have until 1st April 2023 to apply for a licence. During 
this period you can operate without a licence (by continuing to take bookings and 
receive guests) unless your licence application has been determined and refused. 

2.3.  After 1st April 2023, existing hosts can only continue to operate if they have 
submitted an application for a licence on or before 1st April 2023 that has not yet 
been determined or been granted a short-term let licence. 

 

3.  Definitions 
3.1.  A short-term let is defined in the 2022 Order as the use of residential 

accommodation provided by a host in the course of business to a guest, where 
all the following criteria are met-  

(a) the guest does not use the accommodation as their only or principal home, 

(b) the short-term let is entered into for commercial consideration, 

(c) the guest is not-  

(i) an immediate family member of the host, 

(ii) sharing the accommodation with the host for the principal purpose of 
advancing the guest’s education as part of an arrangement made or 

Page 556



 
 

 

approved by a school, college, or further or higher educational 
institution, or 

(iii) an owner or part owner of the accommodation, 

(d) the accommodation is not provided for the principal purpose of facilitating 
the provision of work or services by the guest to the host or to another 
member of the host’s household, 

(e) the accommodation is not excluded accommodation, 

(f) the short-term let does not constitute an excluded tenancy. 

Commercial consideration - this includes money and a benefit in kind (such as a 
provision of a service or reciprocal use of accommodation). 

Guest – this means a person who occupies accommodation under a short-term let. 

Host – this means a person who is the owner, tenant or person otherwise in control 
over occupation and use of the accommodation. 

Immediate family member – a guest is deemed to be an immediate family member 
of the host if they are-  

(a) your partner (spouse, civil partner or someone you live with as if you were married 
to them), 

(b) you or your partner’s parent, grandparent, child, grandchild or sibling, 

(c) the partner of one of your parents, grandparents, children, grandchildren or 
sibling. 

Excluded accommodation – this means accommodation which is, or is part of-  

(a) an aparthotel, 

(b) premises in respect of which a premises licence within the meaning of section 17 
of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 has effect and where the provision of 
accommodation is an activity listed in the operating plan as defined in section 
20(4) of the 2005 Act, 

(c) a hotel which has planning permission granted for use as a hotel, 

(d) a hostel, 

(e) residential accommodation where personal care is provided to residents, 

(f) a hospital or nursing home, 

(g) a residential school, college or training centre, 

(h) secure residential accommodation (including a prison, young offenders 
institution, detention centre, secure training centre, custody centre, short-term 
holding centre, secure hospital, secure local authority accommodation, or 
accommodation used as military barracks), 

(i) a refuge, 

(j) student accommodation, 

Page 557



 
 

 

(k) accommodation which otherwise requires a licence for use for hire for overnight 
stays, 

(l) accommodation which is provided by the guest, 

(m) accommodation which is capable, without modification, of transporting guests to 
another location, 

(n) a bothy, or 

(o) accommodation owned by an employer and provided to an employee in terms of 
a contract of employment or for the better performance of the employee’s duties. 

3.2.  Please note that if you have an HMO licence for your property, you would still need 
a short-term let licence if it is also to be used for short-term lets. This is the case 
whether or not you live at the premises covered by your HMO licence. 

3.3.  Self-catering property in the grounds of a licensed hotel would be excluded. 

It is recommended that people take their own independent legal advice on whether or 
not their accommodation would require a short-term let licence. The Licensing 
Authority cannot provide legal advice on whether or not a premises is excluded from 
requiring a short-term let licence. 

Excluded tenancy – an excluded tenancy means a tenancy which falls within any of 
the following definitions: 

(a) protected tenancy (within the meaning of section 1 of the Rent (Scotland) Act 
1984, 

(b) an assured tenancy (within the meaning of section 12 of the Housing (Scotland) 
1988 Act), 

(c) a short assured tenancy (within the meaning of section 32 of the Housing 
(Scotland) Act 1988), 

(d) a tenancy of a croft (within the meaning of section 3 the Crofters (Scotland Act 
1993), 

(e) a tenancy of a holding situated outwith the crofting counties (within the meaning 
of section 61 of the Crofters (Scotland Act 1993) to which any provisions of the 
Small Landholders (Scotland) Acts 1886 to 1931(8)) applies, 

(f) a Scottish secure tenancy (within the meaning of section 11 of the Housing 
(Scotland) Act 2001), 

(g) a short Scottish secure tenancy (within the meaning of section 34 of the Housing 
(Scotland) Act 2001), 

(h) a 1991 Act tenancy (within the meaning of section 1(4) of the Agricultural Holdings 
(Scotland) Act 2003), 

(i) a limited duration tenancy (within the meaning of section 93 of the Agricultural 
Holdings (Scotland) Act 2003), 

(j) a modern limited duration tenancy (within the meaning of section 5A of 
Agricultural Holdings (Scotland) Act 2003), 

(k) a short limited duration tenancy (within the meaning of section 4 of the Agricultural 
Holdings (Scotland) Act 2003), 

Page 558

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/sdsi/2022/9780111052396#f00008


 
 

 

(l) a tenancy under a lease under which agricultural land is let for the purpose of its 
being used only for grazing or mowing during some specified period of the year 
(as described in section 3 of the Agricultural Holdings (Scotland) Act 2003), 

(m) a private residential tenancy (within the meaning of section 1 of the Private 
Housing (Tenancies) (Scotland) Act 2016), 

(n) a student residential tenancy. 

3.4.  There are four types of licences for short-term let accommodation. Any licence 
granted must be for either-  

(a) Secondary letting, 

(b) Home letting, 

(c) Home sharing, or 

(d) Home letting and home sharing. 

3.5.  The different types of licences are defined as follows-  

(a) Secondary letting – this means a short-term let involving the letting of 
property where you do not normally live, 

(b) Home letting - this means using all or part of your home for short-term lets 
whilst you are absent, 

(c)  Home sharing – this means using all or part of your own home for short-
term lets whilst you are there. This includes guest houses or bed-and-
breakfast accommodation within the host’s principal residence. 

3.6.  A separate licence is required for each of your premises. However, a single 
licence may be issued in respect of unconventional accommodation where there 
is more than one separately bookable property on the site. 

3.7.  Dwellinghouse means for these purposes, an independent dwelling (with its own 
front door, kitchen and bathroom) such as a house, flat, cottage etc. 

3.8. You do not need a separate licence for short-term lets within the same 
dwellinghouse. For example, if you are letting out two rooms in your home, that 
would be covered by one licence. 

3.9.  Unconventional accommodation – this means residential accommodation that 
is not defined as a dwelling house and would include residential accommodation 
such as glamping pods and yurts. 

 

4. Application and notification 
4.1.  All applicants must complete an online short-term let licence application form. 

The application should either be submitted online or paper applications should 
ideally be emailed to liquorandlicensing@scotborders.gov.uk or, alternatively, 
posted to, The Licensing Unit, Scottish Borders Council details of which are 
available at Appendix 1. 

4.2.  Applicants must either pay the application fee as part of the online application 
process or if submitting a paper application form by making a payment to Scottish 
Borders Council by contacting [insert once finalised ]. 

Page 559



 
 

 

4.3.  Under the terms of the Act, all applicants who apply for a short-term let licence 
must display a notice for a period of 21 days beginning with the date on which the 
application was submitted to the licensing authority at or near the premises so 
that it can be conveniently read by the public. 

4.4.  The notice shall state that an application has been made for a licence, the main 
facts of the application, that objections and representations in relation to the 
application may be made to the licensing authority and how to make objections 
or representations. A template will be provided to the applicant once an 
application is submitted. 

4.5.  Applicants are required to certify compliance that they have displayed the site 
notice as soon as possible after the 21 days has expired. A template will be 
provided to the applicant once an application is submitted. 

4.6.  A copy of the application shall be sent to Police Scotland and the Scottish Fire 
and Rescue Service by the local authority. A copy will also be sent to: 

 Scottish Borders Council’s Planning Department 

 Scottish Borders Council’s Building Standards service 

 Scottish Borders Council’s Environmental Health service 

4.7.  All personal data will be processed in line with the following privacy notices: 

 

5.  Objections and representations 
5.1. The 1982 Act permits any member of the public to submit an objection or 

representation in relation to an application for a short-term let licence. 

5.2. To enable Scottish Borders Council, as licensing authority (“the Council”) to 
entertain an objection or representation, it must be: 

(a) in writing (email is sufficient), 

(b) specify the grounds of the objection or the nature of the representation, 

(c) specify the name and address of the person making it, 

(d) be signed off by them or on their behalf, 

(e) be received by the Council within 28 days from when the notice of 
application is displayed. 

5.3.  Anonymous objections or representations will not be considered. “Anonymous” 
includes objections or representations where the person making the objection or 
representation cannot be contacted using the contact information provided. 

5.4.  Late objections or representations may be considered, entirely at the Council’s 
discretion, if the Council is satisfied that there is sufficient reason as to why it was 
not made in the time required. 

5.5.  The objection should be relevant to the statutory grounds that can be taken into 
consideration when refusing an application. These are set out in the 1982 Act-  

(a) the applicant or anyone else detailed in the application form is not a fit and 
proper person to be the holder of a licence, 

Page 560



 
 

 

(b) the activity would be carried out by a person other than the applicant who, if 
he had made the application himself, would have been refused, 

(c) the premises is not suitable for the conduct of the activity, having regard 
to-  

(i) the location, character or condition of the premises, 

(ii) the nature and extent of the proposed activity, 

(iii) the kind of persons likely to be in the premises, 

(iv) the possibility of undue public nuisance, public order; or public safety, 

(v) where there is other good reason 

5.6.  It should detail clearly the reasons for the objection/representation and why the 
applicant and/or the premises are not suitable. 

5.7.  A copy of the objection or representation will be provided to the applicant and will 
include your name and address. All personal data will be processed in line with the 
following privacy notice: 

6. Determination of application 

6.1.  Everybody named on the application form will be subject to the fit and proper test. 
Every application form will require consultation with Police Scotland who will carry 
out background checks. 

6.2.  Licensing authorities are responsible for determining whether you are a fit and 
proper person to be the holder of a licence for short-term lets. Consideration will 
be given to a wide range of information including relevant criminal convictions, 
other relevant information provided by Police Scotland, any previous 
disqualifications from being a private landlord, previous revocations of a HMO 
licence and providing false or misleading information in your application form. 

6.3.  If there are no objections or adverse representations to a short-term let licence 
application, the application will be determined under delegated powers by the 
Clerk to the Council’s Civic Government Licensing Committee and other duly 
authorised Licensing Officers within the Council’s Licensing Unit. 

6.4.  If an objection or adverse representation is submitted in relation to the short-term 
let licence application, the application will be subject to a hearing at a meeting of 
the Council’s Civic Government Licensing Committee. 

6.5.  The person submitting the objection or representation will be invited to attend the 
meeting of the Civic Government Licensing Committee and speak to their 
objection/representation. You will be given at least 14 days’ notice of the hearing 
date. 

6.6.  The applicant or their representative will also be invited to attend the meeting and 
given the opportunity to state why the application should be granted. 

6.7.  The Committee will be able to ask questions of both parties and, thereafter, 
decide whether to grant or refuse the application. The grounds for refusing an 
application are set out at paragraph 5.5. 

Page 561



 
 

 

6.8.  Applications will be heard in public unless required to be taken privately on the 
grounds of disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 

6.9 Both the applicant and the person(s) making an objection/representation can 
request a statement of reasons for the decision within 21 days of the date of the 
decision. The statement of reasons will be produced by the Clerk to the Civic 
Government Licensing Committee within 10 days of that request. 

6.10. If your application for a licence is refused, you cannot reapply for a licence within 
one year of that decision, unless there has been a material change in your 
circumstances since then. 

7. Right of appeal 
7.1. The applicant and the person(s) making an objection/representation have a right 

of appeal to the Sheriff Court. 

7.2.  However, they only have this right if they have taken every opportunity to state 
their case to the Committee as has been made available. 

7.3.  The Sheriff can uphold an appeal only if the sheriff considers that the licensing 
authority erred in law, based their determination on any incorrect material fact, 
acted contrary to natural justice or exercised their discretion in an unreasonable 
manner. 

7.4.  Any appeal must be lodged by way of a summary application with the relevant 
Sheriff Clerk’s office within 28 days of the date of the decision appealed against. 

7.5.  Parties should seek their own independent legal advice in relation to an appeal. 

8. Licence duration and renewal 
8.1.  The duration of the licence applies from the date on which the licence comes into 

force. This will be specified on the licence together with the expiry date of the 
licence. 

8.2.  When an application is made to renew a licence timeously, the existing licence 
will continue in effect until such time as a decision is made on the renewal 
application. 

8.3.  A licence shall have effect-  

 for a period of 3 years from the date when it comes into force; or 

 for such shorter period as the licensing authority may decide at that time 
when they grant; or 

 for such longer period as the licensing authority may decide at the time 
when they renew a short-term let licence 

8.4.  The Scottish Government’s guidance for licensing authorities on short-term lets has 
made it clear that licensing authorities are encouraged to renew licences for a 
period of 3 years, unless they have good reasons to do otherwise. 

8.5.  Whilst each application will be decided on its own merits, it is not anticipated that 
licences will be renewed for a period longer than three years 

 

Page 562



 
 

 

9. Licence conditions 
9.1. The Act sets out a number of mandatory licence conditions which apply to all 

short-term let across Scotland. A list of these conditions can be found at 
Appendix 2. 

9.2.  In addition to the mandatory licence conditions which apply to all short-term lets, 
licensing authorities may impose additional conditions. These enable the 
licensing authority to respond to local challenges and concerns relative to 
specific types of short-term letting. 

9.3.  There are a number of additional conditions which will apply to all short-term let 
properties. There also some specific additional conditions which may only apply 
to certain types of short-term let properties or to properties following 
investigation of concerns. A list of the additional licence conditions which may 
apply to your short-term let licence can be found at Appendix 3. 

10. Temporary exemptions 
10.1. The Council is not intending to grant temporary exemptions under any 

circumstances. This position will be kept under review. 

11. Temporary licences 
11.1. A licensing authority can also decide to grant temporary licences. These can be 

applied for online or by way of a paper application. Details for the application 
process are set out in Section 3. Temporary licences may be granted for a 
duration of up to 6 weeks. A temporary licence cannot be renewed. However, 
if a host or operator applies for a full licence during the period of a temporary 
licence, the temporary licence duration will extend until their full licence 
application is determined. 

11.2. The Council is aware that under the 1982 Act, temporary short-term licences 
could be applied for. However, there is a limited consultation process with 
temporary licences in comparison to a full licence. A temporary licence 
application would have no requirement to display a site notice, and no 
opportunity for objections or representations to be received other than from the 
statutory consultees. In addition, under the legislation, the only bodies the 
Licensing Authority would consult with are Police Scotland and Scottish Fire 
and Rescue Service. 

11.3. Given a full consultation would not be undertaken, the Council is not  
proposing to consider any temporary licence applications for short-term let 
licence applications and instead require a full short-term let licence to be applied 
for as detailed at section 4. This would mean that all short-term let licence 
applications would be subject to the full consultation process as detailed in 
Section 4.4. 

 

12. Compliance and enforcement 
12.1. Unlicensed short-term lets 

12.1.1. It is a criminal offence to carry on an activity for which a licence is 
required without having a licence and without reasonable excuse.  

Page 563



 
 

 

12.1.2. The Scottish Government has set out the following timescales for 
hosts and operators. Please note the rules are different 
depending on whether you are a new host/operator or an existing 
host/operator-  

New hosts/operators 

 From 1st October 2022 you cannot accept bookings until 
you have obtained a short-term let licence. 

 From 1st October 2022, you cannot operate while your 
short-term let application is being determined. 

Existing hosts/operators  

 Existing hosts/operators must apply for a short-term let 
licence by 1st April 2023, at the latest. 

 If you have been trading on or before 30th September 2022, 
you may continue to accept bookings after 1st October 2022 
but only if you have made a licence application by 1st of April 
2023. 

 You can continue to operate for the time it takes for your 
licence application to be finally determined. 

 A provisional licence number will be provided once the 
application is duly made and the licence application has been 
validated. 

 It will be an offence to offer short-term let accommodation 
after 1st April 2024 unless you hold a licence. 

12.1.3. The Council will maintain a public register of short-term let licence 
applications and licences granted. This will allow members of the 
public to check the licensing status of a premises being used as a 
short-term let. 

12.1.4. Complaints about suspected unlicensed hosts/operators should be 
directed to the Council’s Licensing Unit details of which are 
available at Appendix 1. . 

12.2. Licensed short-term lets 

12.2.1. Hosts and operators must ensure that any advert or listing placed on 
or after they are granted a licence, or a provisional licence number, 
includes their licence number. 

12.2.2. Hosts and operators must ensure that they comply with all the 
mandatory and any additional conditions on their licence. It is a 
criminal offence to fail to comply with a licence condition if a licence 
holder has not used all due diligence to prevent the offence. 

12.2.3. It is also a criminal offence for a licence holder, without reasonable 
cause, to fail to notify the licensing authority of a material change of 
circumstances. 

Page 564



 
 

 

12.2.4. The Council may undertake premises site visits as part of the 
application process and throughout the duration of the licence to 
ensure compliance with licence conditions. 

12.3. Complaints about licensed short-term lets 

12.3.1. In the first instance, guests should raise any concerns about their 
short-term let with their host/operator or letting agent/platform. If the 
issue is sufficiently severe, then the Council may become involved. 

12.3.2. A complaint must be relevant to the matters that the Council can 
take into consideration. Frivolous or vexatious complaints will not be 
considered. 

12.3.3. The Council can consider matters relating to the suitability of the 
licence holder, threats to public safety or public order or whether a 
condition of the licence has been contravened. 

12.3.4. These issues would include a host/operator exceeding the number 
of people staying at the premises, serious disturbance or antisocial 
behaviour or concerns about the maintenance and safety of the 
premises. These complaints can be directed to the Council’s 
Licensing unit details of which are available at Appendix 1.  

12.3.5. Please note that the Council cannot consider complaints in relation 
to the quality of a guest’s stay or specific contractual matters 
between the guest and the host/operator as this is outside the 
scope of the licensing scheme. 

12.3.6. Complaints will aim to be acknowledged within 5 working days. A 
full response advising you of the outcome may take some time if the 
complaint requires further investigation. The complaint may also 
need to be directed to other departments within the Council or other 
services such as Police Scotland or Scottish Fire and Rescue 
Service for input. Complainants will be kept up to date with progress 
if there is a delay in a full response being provided. 

12.3.7. Premises site visits may be undertaken by the Council as part of an 
investigation into a complaint. 

12.4. Enforcement 

12.4.1. It is possible that some complaints may require enforcement action 
from the Council. 

12.4.2. The Act provides for several options for enforcement action if 
justified. This includes additional licence conditions being attached, 
enforcement notices or variation, suspension or revocation of the 
licence or in more serious circumstance pursuing a prosecution. 

12.4.3. The Council recognises the importance of having compliance issues 
monitored in order to ensure licensed Short-term lets are complying 
with licence standards and not causing an unnecessary nuisance to 
the community, nearby residents or neighbours. As such it will carry 
out a risk-based approach to enforcement, using a range of 
escalating informal measures, prior to an Enforcement Notice being 

Page 565



 
 

 

issued and subsequently a complaint being made to the Committee 
in relation to the STL licence. 

12.4.4. An enforcement notice will set out the matters constituting a breach 
or likely breach, the action required to rectify or prevent the breach 
and the date by which the action must be taken. 

12.4.5. If the matter is not addressed satisfactorily by the licence holder, the 
Council may then consider a variation, suspension or revocation of 
the licence. 

12.4.6. You will not be charged a fee for a routine visit. However, you will 
be charged if a follow up visit is necessary because you have 
breached one of your licence conditions 

13. Variation of a licence 
13.1. A licensing authority may, at any time, whether or not upon an application 

made to them by the holder of the licence, vary the terms on any grounds they 
think fit. 

13.2. A variation application cannot, however, be used to substitute a new holder  of 
the licence for the existing one i.e. effectively to transfer a licence. 

 

14. Suspension or revocation of a licence 
14.1. A licensing authority may, whether upon a complaint made to them or not, 

suspend or revoke a licence. 

14.2. A licensing authority may order the suspension or revocation of a licence if in 
their opinion-  

 the holder of the licence is no longer a fit and proper person to hold the 
licence 

 the licence holder is managing the property on behalf of someone who 
would have been refused the grant or renewal of the licence 

 the short-term let is causing or is likely to cause undue public nuisance or 
a threat to public order or public safety; or 

 a condition of the licence has been contravened 

14.3. The period of suspension can be the unexpired portion of the duration of the 
licence, or such shorter period as the licensing authority may fix. The effect of 
the suspension shall be that the licence shall cease to have effect during the 
period of suspension. 

15. Third party accreditation 
15.1. The Council will consider third party evidence, accreditation or certification 

from certain approved bodies provided they demonstrate compliance with the 
mandatory and any additional conditions of a licence.  

16. Planning permission 

Page 566



 
 

 

16.1. There is a separate legislative process from licensing which allows the 
Council, as planning authority, to establish short-term let control area. 

16.2. The purpose of control areas is to help planning authorities manage high 
concentrations of secondary letting (where it affects the availability of 
residential housing or the character of a neighbourhood) and to restrict or 
prevent short-term lets in places or types of buildings where it is not 
appropriate. 

16.3. Outside of a control area, it is for the planning authority to consider whether 
any change of use of a dwelling house is material and, therefore, requires 
planning permission. This is determined on a case by case basis. 

16.4. Within a control area designated by a planning authority, such a change of use 
will always require planning permission. The host or operator must make an 
application for planning permission or already have planning permission before 
they apply for a licence. 

16.5. It is a mandatory condition of the licence that a host or operator has planning 
permission or has made an application for planning permission where their 
premises is in a designated control area, they are using it for secondary letting 
and it is a dwelling house. 

16.6. The Council does not propose to designate any Short-term Control areas 
meantime but this will be reviewed on a regular basis. 

16.7. Hosts and operators must comply with both planning and licensing law. 

16.8. A host or operator who then subsequently obtains planning permission or a 
certificate of lawfulness of use or development can resubmit their licensing 
application provided the host or operator submits the licence application within 28 
days of obtaining planning permission or a certificate. 

16.9. Before 1st April 2023, the Council, as licensing authority, cannot determine a 
licence application on the basis that it breaches planning control unless they 
have given existing hosts a chance to submit an application for planning 
permission or for a certificate of lawful use or development. However, the 
Council, as licensing authority, can determine a licensing application before this 
date where planning permission or a certificate of lawful use or development 
has already been refused. 

16.10. The applicant has 3 months to submit a planning application. If the applicant 
does not do so within 3 months, the licence application can be determined for 
these purposes and the applicant must cease providing short-term lets. 

16.11. Please note that planning authorities could designate control areas after a 
premises has already obtained a short-term let licence. Licence holders would 
be given a reasonable opportunity to comply with the mandatory condition by 
submitting a planning application as soon as possible after the control area is 
designated. If planning permission is refused, this may result in the licence being 
refused, varied or revoked as appropriate. 

16.12. Hosts and operators are, therefore, encouraged to engage with the Council’s 
planning department prior to submitting a licence application to confirm whether 
they require planning permission or a certificate of lawful use of development. 

 
Page 567



 
 

 

17. Fees 
17.1. Licensing authorities are required to charge fees in respect of processing and 

determining, the consideration of applications, the issue of duplicate licences 
and other matters. They must ensure that the fees are sufficient to cover their 
administrative expenses and are reviewed periodically. 

17.2. Licensing fees are non-refundable. Whether or not a licensing application is 
granted, the Council incurs significant costs in processing the application. 

17.3. The Council has considered the following criteria in the process of determining 
the fees: 

 The size of the premises 

 The number of rooms at the premises 

 The number of guests who can reside at the premises 

 The type of short-term let 

Application and renewal – full licence 

Guest capacity (people) Home sharing and home letting Secondary letting 

1 to 3 £275 £300 
4 to 6 £305 £335 
7+ Occupants £350 £385 

 

Other types of application Fee 
Variation of Licence/ Change in circumstances £75 
Duplicate Licence £35 
  
  

 

ENFORCEMENT COSTS 

A licensing authority may charge such reasonable fees as they may determine in respect of an 
inspection of premises following: 

(i) a failure to comply with a licensing condition, or 

(ii) a complaint relating to the premises (unless the complaint is frivolous or vexatious) 

The decision to make such a charge will be taken in a proportionate in line with the Enforcement 
Policy for Environmental Health. Where such a charge is to be made, the Council will seek full cost 
recovery for such inspections based on the productive hourly rate for the grade of officer 
undertaking the inspection. 

**Where a fee is charged for such a visit, a report must be provided to the host or 
operator within 28 days of the inspection. Otherwise, the fee must be refunded to 
the licence holder*** 

Page 568



 
 

 

Appendix 1 – Contact details 
Licensing Unit, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St.Boswells, TD6 0SA 

Telephone – 01835 826662  
Email –liquorandlicensing@scotborders.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 569



 
 

 

Appendix 2 – Mandatory licence conditions 
Agents 

1.  Only those named as a holder of the licence can carry out the day to day management 
of the short-term let of the premises. 

Type of licence 

2.  The holder of the licence may only offer the type of short-term let for which the licence 
has been granted. 

Fire safety 

3.  The holder of the licence must ensure the premises has satisfactory equipment 
installed for detecting, and for giving warning of— 

(a) fire or suspected fire, and 

(b) the presence of carbon monoxide in a concentration that is hazardous to health. 

4.  The holder of the licence must keep records showing that all upholstered furnishings 
and mattresses within the parts of the premises which are for guest use, or to which 
the guests are otherwise permitted to have access, comply with the Furniture and 
Furnishings (Fire Safety) Regulations 1988. 

Gas safety 

5.  Where the premises has a gas supply— 

(a) the holder of the licence must arrange for an annual gas safety inspection of all gas 
pipes, flues and appliances in the premises, 

(b) if, after an annual inspection, any appliance does not meet the required safety 
standard, the holder of the licence must not allow a short-term let of the premises until 
the works necessary to bring the appliance to the required safety standard have been 
carried out. 

Electrical safety 

6.  Where there are electrical fittings or items within the parts of the premises which are 
for guest use, or to which the guests are permitted to have access, the holder of the 
licence must— 

(a) ensure that any electrical fittings and items are in— 

(i) a reasonable state of repair, and 

(ii) proper and safe working order, 

(b)  arrange for an electrical safety inspection to be carried out by a competent person 
at least every five years or more frequently if directed by the competent person, 

(c)  ensure that, following an electrical safety inspection, the competent person 
produces an Electrical Installation Condition Report on any fixed installations, 

(d)  arrange for a competent person to— 

Page 570



 
 

 

(i) produce a Portable Appliance Testing Report on moveable appliances to 
which a guest has access, and 

(ii) date label and sign all moveable appliances which have been inspected. 

7. In determining who is competent, the holder of the licence must have regard to 
guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers under section 19B(4) of the Housing 
(Scotland) Act 2006(2). 

Water safety: private water supplies 

8. Where the premises are served by a private water supply, the licence holder must 
comply with the requirements on the owners of private dwellings set out in the Water 
Intended for Human Consumption (Private Supplies) (Scotland) Regulations 2017 

Water safety: legionella 

9. The holder of the licence must assess the risk from exposure to legionella within the 
premises, whether or not the premises are served by a private water supply. 

Safety & repair standards 

10. (1)  The holder of the licence must take all reasonable steps to ensure the premises 
are safe for residential use. 

(2)  Where the premises are subject to the requirements of Chapter 4 of Part 1 of the 
Housing (Scotland) Act 2006, the holder of the licence must ensure that the 
premises meet the repairing standard. 

Maximum Occupancy 

11.  The licence holder must ensure that the number of guests residing on the premises 
does not exceed the number specified in the licence. 

Information to be displayed 

12. The holder of the licence must make the following information available within the 
premises in a place where it is accessible to all guests— 

(a)  a certified copy of the licence and the licence conditions, (b) fire, gas and 
electrical safety information, 

(c) details of how to summon the assistance of emergency services, 

(d) a copy of the gas safety report, 

(e) a copy of the Electrical Installation Condition Report, and 

(f) a copy of the Portable Appliance Testing Report.  

Planning Permission 

13.  Where the premises is in a short-term let control area for the purposes of section 26B 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (“the 1997 Act”), the holder of 
the licence must, where the use of the premises for a short-term let requires planning 
permission under the 1997 Act, ensure that either— 

(a) an application has been made for planning permission under the 1997 Act and 
has not yet been determined, or 

(b) planning permission under the 1997 Act is in force. 

Page 571

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/sdsi/2022/9780111052396/schedule/3#f00022


 
 

 

Listings 

14. (1)  The holder of the licence must ensure that any listing or advert (whether electronic 
or otherwise) for the short-term let of the premises includes— 

(a) the licence number, and 

(b) a valid Energy Performance Certificate rating if an Energy Performance 
Certificate is required for the premises, in accordance with the Energy 
Performance of Buildings (Scotland) Regulations 2008 

(2)  The holder of the licence must ensure that any listing or advert (whether electronic 
or otherwise) for the short-term let of the premises is consistent with the terms of 
the short-term let licence. 

Insurance 

15.  The holder of the licence must ensure that there is in place for the premises— 

(a) valid buildings insurance for the duration of the licence, and 

(b) valid public liability insurance for the duration of each short-term let agreement.  

Payment of fees 

16.  The holder of the licence must pay any fees due to the licensing authority in respect of 
the licence on demand. 

False or misleading information 

17.  The holder of the licence must not provide any false or misleading information to the 
licensing authority. 

Interpretation 

18.  In this schedule— 

“Electrical Installation Condition Report” means a report containing the following 
information— 

(a) the date on which the inspection was carried out, 

(b) the address of the premises inspected, 

(c) the name, address and relevant qualifications of the person who carried out the 
 inspection, 

(d) a description, and the location, of each installation, fixture, fitting and appliance 
 inspected, 

(e) any defect identified, 

(f) any action taken to remedy a defect, 

“Energy Performance Certificate” means a certificate which complies with regulation 6 
of the Energy Performance of Buildings (Scotland) Regulations 2008, 

“Gas safety report” means a report containing the following information— 

(a) the date on which the appliance or flue was checked, 

(b) the address of the premises at which the appliance or flue is installed, 

Page 572



 
 

 

(c) a description of and the location of each appliance or flue checked, 

(d)  any safety defect identified, 

(e)  any remedial action taken, 

(f)  confirmation that the check undertaken complies with the requirements of an 
examination of— 

(i) the effectiveness of any flue, 

(iii) the supply of combustion air, 

(iv) subject to head (iv), its operating pressure or heat input or, where necessary, 
both, 

(v) if it is not reasonably practicable to examine its operating pressure or heat input 
(or, where necessary, both), its combustion performance, 

(vi) its operation so as to ensure its safe functioning, 

(g)  the name and signature of the individual carrying out the check, and 

(h)  the registration number with which that individual, or that individual’s employer, is 
registered with a body approved by the Health and Safety Executive for the purposes 
of regulation 3(3) of the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998, 

 

 

  

Page 573



 
 

 

Appendix 3 – Additional licence conditions 
Short-term Lets: Proposed Additional Conditions 

Introduction 
Scottish Borders Council considers that additional conditions should be applied to short-
term let licences in its area. These derive from (a) the Part 2 Guidance for licensing 
authorities and (b) issues relating to guest safety which the Council has identified in its 
area and for which it considers additional licence conditions are necessary and 
appropriate. 

The “Part 2” additional conditions, are based closely upon the examples provided by the 
Scottish Government. These conditions would be generally-applicable to all licences, 
although some, for instance those relating to impact noise are not necessary for 
detached premises with no party structures. 

The guest safety conditions are intended for specific premises where certain facilities and 
amenities are provided for the use of guests (this would require a declaration on the 
application form). Alternatively, the conditions could be generally-applied with a 
conditional clause; the draft guest safety conditions are in the latter form. 

Additional conditions based on Part 2 Guidance 
Antisocial behaviour 

1. The licence holder shall must take reasonable steps to manage the premises in such 
a way as to seek to prevent and deal effectively with any noise nuisance or antisocial 
behaviour by guests to anyone else in the short-term let and in the locality of the 
short-term let. 

2. The licence holder shall take reasonable steps to: 

 Ensure that no disturbance or nuisance arises within or from the premises, for 
example by explaining the house rules to the guests; 

 Deal effectively with any disturbance or nuisance arising within or from the 
premises, as soon as reasonably practicable after the licence holder is made 
aware of it; and 

 Ensure that any vehicles belonging to guests are parked lawfully, for example 
explaining where any designated parking spaces (if applicable) are to be found 
and highlighting any local rules. 

 Shall notify the Council as soon as reasonably practicable of the details of any 
incident of antisocial behaviour affecting or emanating from the premises which 
has required Police involvement.  

Privacy and security 

1. The licence holder shall take reasonable steps to manage the premises in such a 
way as to respect and protect the privacy and security of neighbours. 

2. The licence holder shall take reasonable steps to  ensure: 

 Guests know and understand any particular rules applying to any shared areas 
and entrances; 

Page 574



 
 

 

 Guests understand that shared doors should be properly and securely closed 
after use; and 

 The provision of access codes or keys to guests cannot be used by guests to gain 
access to shared areas after they have finally departed. 

  

  

Littering and waste disposal 

1. The licence holder shall provide adequate information on, and the facilities for, the 
storage, recycling and disposal of waste. 

2. The licence holder shall be responsible for advising residents of the refuse collection 
day and for making arrangements for the presentation of bins for collection at the 
appropriate time and day. 

3 The licence holder shall advise guests of: 

 Their responsibilities; 

 The use of the bins etc. provided for the premises; and 

 The location of the nearest recycling area or recycling point. 

4. The licence holder shall: 

 Clearly label bins as belonging to the premises; 

 Take reasonable steps to ensure that guests manage their waste in compliance 
with (2), including when they depart; and 

 Maintain any bins storage area and the exterior of the premises in a clean 
and tidy condition. 

Damage to property 

The licence holder shall not affix a key box, or any other device to facilitate guest entry 
to the premises, to any public or jointly-owned private structure or infrastructure without 
the prior consent of the relevant authority or owner(s). The licence holder must be able 
to produce the evidence of the permission to the licensing authority on demand. 

 
Additional Conditions for Guest Safety 
Legionella risk assessment – spa pools/hot tubs 

1. Where a spa pool, including any electric hot tub or wood-fired hot tub, is provided for 
the use of guests, the licence holder must install, maintain and operate it so it can be 
safely operated and used by guests. 

2. The licence holder shall ensure: 

 That any such spa pool is installed and maintained in accordance with the 
guidance in HSE publication HSG282 Control of legionella and other infectious 
agents in spa-pool systems. 

Page 575



 
 

 

 That there is a risk assessment and written scheme of control for Legionella in 
respect of any such spa pool. 

 That the risk assessment and written scheme of control are lodged with any 
application for a licence and are to the satisfaction of the licensing authority. 

 That, prior to any spa pool being brought into use for the first time during the 
period of the licence, at least 28 days’ notice shall be given to the licensing 
authority and the risk assessment and written scheme of control shall be 
submitted at the time of such notice. 

3. The licence holder shall provide guests with information on the safe use of the spa 
pool in accordance with the written scheme of control. 

4. The licence holder shall not provide or install any inflatable hot tub for the use of 
guests without the prior written approval of the licensing authority. Note that the 
licensing authority will not give approval in respect of inflatable hot tubs not intended 
for commercial use and which cannot conform to the requirements of HSG282. 

Guest safety – swimming pools and ponds 

1. Where a swimming pool or swimming pond is installed and provided for the use of 
guests, the licence holder must take reasonable measures to ensure water quality and 
bather safety. 

2. The licence holder shall ensure: 

 In the case of swimming pools, that a pool safety operating plan is prepared and 
lodged with any application for a licence and is to the satisfaction of the 
licensing authority. The licence holder shall have regard to the guidance in HSE 
publication HSG179 Health and safety in swimming pools. 

 In the case of swimming pools and swimming ponds, that a bather safety plan is 
prepared and lodged with any application for a licence and is to the satisfaction 
of the licensing authority. The bather safety plan shall include measures to 
minimise the risk of bathers getting into difficulty, to facilitate the rescue of 
bathers in difficulty and to call for the assistance of emergency services where 
necessary. 

 That, prior to any swimming pool or pond being brought into use for the first time 
during the period of the licence, at least 28 days’ notice shall be given to the 
licensing authority and the pool safety operating plan and bather safety plan 
shall be submitted at the time of such notice. 

3. In this condition, “swimming pond” means an outdoor body of untreated water in 
natural ground which has been excavated or modified to provide a facility for 
swimming. It does not include natural watercourses, fresh-water lochs or coastal 
waters. 

4. This condition does not apply to swimming pools which are staffed and operated with 
continuous poolside supervision by trained lifeguards. 

Risk of Carbon monoxide – barbecue huts 

1. Where a barbecue hut is installed and provided for the use of guests, the licence 
holder must take reasonable steps to ensure that the risk from Carbon monoxide is 
minimised. 

Page 576



 
 

 

2. The licence holder shall: 

 Install, maintain and operate the barbecue hut only in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. 

 Install and maintain in proper working condition a Carbon monoxide monitor and 
alarm within the barbecue hut. 

 Provide guests with instructions on the safe use of the barbecue hut, the 
symptoms of Carbon monoxide poisoning and the actions to be taken in an 
emergency. 

 Not permit the use of the barbecue hut by persons under the age of 18 except 
in the presence of a person over the age of 18. 

 Not permit the use of a barbecue hut as sleeping accommodation.  

Guest safety – provision and use of watercraft 

1. Where any watercraft are provided for the use of guests, the licence holder must take 
reasonable measures to ensure the suitability and safety of the watercraft and the 
safety of persons using them. 

2. The licence holder shall ensure: 

 That any watercraft provided are suitable for the waters upon which they are 
intended to be used. 

 That any watercraft are operated and maintained in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. 

 That personal flotation devices are provided which are suitable for the use 
intended and the user, and have regard to the categorisation of any inland 
waters or standards issued by the Maritime and Coastguard Agency. 

 That personal flotation devices are inspected and maintained in accordance 
with the manufacturer’s instructions. 

 That guests are provided with proportionate safety information about the use of 
watercraft, including the intended areas of use, local hazards, adverse weather 
conditions, actions to take in an emergency, and the means of contacting the 
emergency services. 

3. In this condition, “watercraft” means any boat, canoe, kayak, stand-up paddleboard, 
raft, or similar vessel capable of carrying passengers or being ridden upon, and 
equipped with sails, or an engine, or capable of being directed or steered using oars 
or paddles. 

4. In complying with this condition, the licence holder shall have regard to advice and 
guidance issued by authoritative bodies including, where appropriate, MCA, RoSPA 
and the Scottish Canoe Association. 

Guest safety – provision of bicycles 

1. Where bicycles are provided for the use of guests, the licence holder must take all 
reasonable steps to ensure the safety of persons using them. 

2. The licence holder shall ensure: 

Page 577



 
 

 

 That any bicycles provided are suitable for the use intended and for the user. 

 That, where cycle helmets are provided, they are suitable for the use intended 
and the user. 

 That there is a programme of inspection and maintenance in place to ensure 
that bicycles and cycle helmets are only made available to guests when they 
are in a safe condition. 

3. In complying with this condition, the licence holder shall have regard to the Cycle 
Hire Guidelines of the Association of Cycle Traders. 

Guest safety – outdoor play equipment 

1. Where any outdoor play equipment is provided for the use of guests, the licence 
holder must take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of persons using the play 
equipment. 

2. The licence holder shall ensure: 

 That only equipment which is suitable for the use intended shall be installed and 
provided for the use of guests. 

 That play equipment is installed and maintained in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. 

 That play equipment is subject to an inspection and checking regime in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. 

 That rules are in place and communicated to guests to ensure the safe use of 
play equipment and to prevent its abuse. 

3. In complying with this condition, the licence holder shall have regard to the RoSPA 
Code of good practice for play areas and the RoSPA guidance on the safe use of 
garden trampolines. 

4. The provision for the use of guests of inflatable play equipment which is intended for 
bouncing or climbing on is prohibited. This prohibition does not apply to inflatable 
play equipment which, at all times when it is use, is directly supervised by the 
licence-holder or their agent, or an employee of the licence-holder or their agent. 

 

Additional Conditions that may be applied following on from investigations of 
concern regarding noise. 

Note: These Conditions are published in accordance with Scottish Government Guidance 
that any proposed additional conditions should be published. These are not applied to all 
licences. They will be recommended to the Committee following specific case 
investigations by the Council’s Environmental Health team and if the use of the condition is 
deemed appropriate and proportionate for the specific case by enforcement officers 
following the Enforcement Policy for Environmental Health. 

 

(i) The licence holder must take reasonable steps to ensure that the bedrooms, living room 
and any hallway in the premises have a suitable floor covering in order to minimise impact 
and airborne noise affecting any properties below.(i.e carpet or vinyl floor covering with 
quality underlay). (Condition may be applied following investigation of concerns regarding 

Page 578



 
 

 

noise and would be applied to properties located at first floor and/or above a residential 
property located below),    

(ii) The licence holder must take reasonable steps to ensure that guests do not first arrive 
or finally depart from the property between the hours of 11pm to 7am. The licence holder 
must advise guests of this as part of their booking terms and conditions. (Note:  
“Reasonable steps” allows for exceptions such as delayed transport). (Condition would 
only be applied following investigations of concerns regarding noise where a property is 
located at first floor and/or above a residential property is located below, in close proximity 
to a neighbouring property or where there is a shared entrance/communal area). 

(iii) The licence holder must take reasonable steps to ensure that guests do not play 
amplified music within the garden or external areas after 2300 hours where it would impact 
neighbouring residents. (Condition may be applied following investigation of concerns 
regarding noise associated with playing music in outdoor areas).   

      

Page 579



This page is intentionally left blank



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

 

 
 
 

2023 REVIEW OF UK PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCIES 
 
 
Report by Interim Chief Corporate Governance Officer 
 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
24 November 2022 
 

 
1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY 

 
1.1 This report gives details of the Boundary Commission for Scotland’s 

revised proposals for new UK Parliamentary constituencies in 
Scotland as part of its 2023 Review. 

 
1.2 At its meeting held on 28 October 2021, Scottish Borders Council 

considered and noted the initial proposals from the Boundary Commission 
for Scotland for new UK Parliamentary constituencies in Scotland.  On 
Tuesday 8 November 2022, the Boundary Commission published its revised 
proposals.  These proposals are currently open to public consultation until 
Monday 5 December 2022.  

 
1.3 In the revised proposals, there are no changes to the Berwickshire, 

Roxburgh and Selkirk County Constituency from those in the initial 
proposals i.e. the whole of the Scottish Borders Council Tweeddale East 
Ward will now be in the Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and Tweeddale County 
Constituency.  Previously Polling District 2F (with 908 electors) was part of 
the Berwickshire, Roxburgh and Selkirk County Constituency.  There are 
changes to the boundary of the Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and Tweeddale 
County Constituency but these are near to Dumfries and have no impact on 
either the Tweeddale West or Tweeddale East Wards.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 It is recommended that the Council notes the revised proposals for 

the Review of UK Parliament Constituencies 2023 which will mean, 
should these be accepted, that all of the electorate in the Council’s 
Tweeddale East Ward would be within the Dumfriesshire, 
Clydesdale and Tweeddale Constituency for UK Parliament elections.   

 
 

 
 
  

Page 581

Agenda Item 16



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The 2023 Review of UK Parliamentary constituencies is a requirement of the 

Constituencies Act 1986 (as amended).  It is being conducted 
simultaneously and independently by the four Boundary Commissions in 
Scotland, England, Northern Ireland and Wales.  Across the UK, the number 
of constituencies is being retained at 650, with Scottish constituencies 
decreasing from 59 to 57, Wales reducing from 40 to 32 and England 
increasing by 10 to 543.  No change is being proposed to the number of 
constituencies in Northern Ireland which remains at 18.   

 
3.2 The current constituencies have remained unchanged since 2005 and 

Reviews are required to take account of changes in population size and 
distribution.  Each constituency that each Commission recommends must 
contain no fewer than 69,724 Parliamentary electors, and no more than 
77,062 (except the two protected constituencies of Comhairle Nan Eilean 
Siar and Orkney & Shetland), as the average electorate per constituency 
across the UK is 73,393, and the electorate in any constituency must be 
within +/- 5% of this.  The electorate for this Review is taken from the 
Electoral Register published on 2 March 2020.  Subject to these conditions, 
the Commission may take into account, as they see fit, other factors, 
namely:   

• special geographical considerations, including the size, shape, and 
accessibility of a constituency; 

• boundaries of council areas and electoral wards; 
• existing Westminster constituency boundaries; and 
• any local ties which would be broken by changes in constituencies. 

 
3.3 The Review carried out by each Commission is concerned solely with UK 

Parliamentary constituency boundaries, and, whilst consideration is given to 
existing local boundaries in developing proposals, the Review has no impact 
on Council area boundaries, Scottish Parliament constituency boundaries, 
polling districts or school catchment areas.  

 
3.4 At its meeting on 28 October 2021, Scottish Borders Council considered the 

initial proposals from the Boundary Commission for Scotland affecting the 
two constituencies which include the Scottish Borders Council area: 

• Berwickshire, Roxburgh and Selkirk (74,687 electorate) 
• Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and Tweeddale (68,874 electorate) 

  
3.5 These initial proposals of the Commission made changes to both 

constituencies which would result in the electorate in Berwickshire, 
Roxburgh and Selkirk reducing to 73,779 and that in Dumfriesshire, 
Clydesdale and Tweeddale increasing to 73,593.  To achieve this change, 
the Commission was proposing to move Polling District 2F (908 electors) in 
the Council’s Tweeddale East Ward from the Berwickshire, Roxburgh and 
Selkirk constituency to the Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and Tweeddale 
constituency.  This would mean that the whole of the Tweeddale East Ward 
would come within that latter constituency.  The other changes adding to 
the electorate in that constituency would come from changes to the 
boundary around Lanark.  Scottish Borders Council noted these initial 
proposals and made no further comment to the Commission.  

 
 

Page 582



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

4 BOUNDARY COMMISSION REVISED PROPOSALS 
 

4.1 After consultation and publication of its initial proposals, the Commission 
conducted a six-week ‘secondary consultation’ when it published 
consultation responses from the initial consultation for public scrutiny.  The 
Commission also held five public hearings across Scotland.  On 8 November 
2022, the Acting Chief Executive received details of the revised proposals 
from the Commission and a third public consultation period opened on that 
date, due to close on Monday 5 December 2022.  

 
4.2 In the revised proposals, there are no changes to the Berwickshire, 

Roxburgh and Selkirk County Constituency from those in the initial 
proposals i.e. the whole of the Scottish Borders Council Tweeddale East 
Ward will now be in the Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and Tweeddale County 
Constituency.  Previously Polling District 2F (with 908 electors) was part of 
the Berwickshire, Roxburgh and Selkirk County Constituency.  There are 
changes to the boundary of the Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and Tweeddale 
County Constituency but these are near to Dumfries and have no impact on 
either the Tweeddale West or Tweeddale East Wards. 

 
4.3 The revised proposals will give the two constituencies: 

• Berwickshire, Roxburgh and Selkirk County Constituency (73,779 
electorate), comprising the SBC Wards 3 – 11. 

• Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and Tweeddale County Constituency 
(71,646 electorate) which includes the SBC Wards 1 and 2. 

 
5 TIMETABLE AND PROCEDURES 
 

5.1 Once the current four week public consultation period is completed, the 
Commission will consider any further representations.  No Public Hearings 
will be held in connection with any Revised Proposals and the Commission 
will publish all written representations received during this consultation 
period at the same time as it publishes its final recommendations.   

 
5.2 Once the Review is completed, the Commission’s recommendations will be 

submitted in a report to the Speaker before 1 July 2023.  The Speaker is 
responsible for laying the report before the UK Parliament.  A copy of the 
Commission’s report is submitted to the Secretary of State for Scotland at 
the same time.  The report will be published once it has been laid before 
Parliament.  The Secretary of State for Scotland is then responsible for 
submitting a draft Order in Council to the UK Parliament within a 4-month 
period of the report being submitted.  The draft Order in Council can modify 
the recommendations made by the Commission during the 4-month period, 
but these are likely to be incidental modifications to correct any error of fact 
in the Commission’s report.  Once the draft Order in Council completes its 
legislative process, it comes into operation from the next general election to 
the UK Parliament. 

 
5.3 Subsequent Reviews must result in reports being submitted every 8 years 

after 1 July 2023.  The next Review after the 2023 Review will therefore 
report before 1 October 2031.   

 
6 IMPLICATIONS 

 

Page 583



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

6.1 Financial  
There are no costs attached to any of the recommendations contained in 
this report. 
 

6.2 Risk and Mitigations 
The only potential risk to the Council not responding to the consultation is 
that constituents within the Polling District 2F may wish the Council to take 
a viewpoint.  However, based on the criteria for the new constituencies, 
officers suggest that this is acceptable as this will mean the whole of 
Tweeddale East Ward will be within the Dumfriesshire, Clydesdale and 
Tweeddale UK Parliament constituency.  Political parties, individual 
Councillors, community groups and members of the public can all submit 
their own comments directly to the Commission. 

 
6.3 Integrated Impact Assessment 

No equality impact assessment (EIA) has been carried out as nothing in the 
recommendations in the report is considered to discriminate on the basis of 
age, disability, gender, race, sexual orientation, pregnancy and maternity or 
religion and belief.   

 
6.4 Sustainable Development Goals  

Changes to the UK Parliamentary constituency boundaries will have no 
impact on the UN Sustainable Development Goals.   

 
6.5 Climate Change 

Changes to the UK Parliamentary constituency boundaries will have no 
impact on Climate Change.   

 
6.6 Rural Proofing 

There is no impact on rural areas contained in the recommendations in this 
report.  It is not anticipated there will be any change to the polling station 
used for the electorate in Polling District 2F when they move to the new 
Constituency. 
 

6.7 Data Protection Impact Statement 
There are no personal data implications arising from the proposals 
contained in this report.  
 

6.8 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation 
No changes are required in either the Scheme of Administration or the 
Scheme of Delegation as a result of the proposals in this report.   

 
7 CONSULTATION 

 
7.1 The Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Director 

(People Performance & Change), and Corporate Communications are being 
consulted and any substantive comments received will be reported at the 
meeting. 

 
 

Approved by 
 
Nuala McKinlay    Interim Chief Corporate Governance 
Officer 

Page 584



Scottish Borders Council – 24 November 2022 
 

 
 
Author(s) 
Name Designation and Contact Number 
Jenny Wilkinson Clerk to the Council, Tel:  01835 825004 

 
Background Papers:  N/A 
Previous Minute Reference:  Scottish Borders Council, 28 October 2021 
 
 
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Jenny Wilkinson can also give information on 
other language translations as well as providing additional copies. 
 
Contact us at Jenny Wilkinson, Scottish Borders Council, Council HQ, Newtown St 
Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA.  Tel:  01835 825004  Email:  
jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk  
 

Page 585

mailto:jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Motion by Councillor Anderson 
 
Foreword  
I am putting this protected characteristic Motion to Council to be an addition to 
the brilliant work around “The Promise”.  This Motion is intended to help and 
support those who, because of circumstance beyond anyone’s control, are 
unable to be helped as young people to reach their full potential.  In the Scottish 
Borders we have some fantastic examples of Adults who are care experienced; 
they leave care supported and cared for.  The work at Wheatlands is a shining 
example of good practice and they are to be commended. 
 
However, over the years we also have those care experienced adults who didn’t 
have the best outcome.  As a parent we do not cut ties with our children once 
they reach 25.  We continue to support and be a part of the support network to 
our grown children.  As corporate parents we as a local authority, by agreeing to 
this Motion, say loud and clear, we will continue to give consideration to those 
who need extra support in life and acknowledge that in some cases ‘Getting it 
Right for Every Child’ means not forgetting them once they turn 25.  By agreeing 
to acknowledge care experienced adults in this way, we can ensure a level of 
support that can help break the negative cycle some find themselves in. 
Learning is life long and I ask us to support the adults who learn later in life. 
Let’s make the Scottish Borders the beacon of good practice. Let us be a 
corporate parent who when needed says, it’s ok, we see you, and hold our hand 
out to help.  
 
Protected Characteristics 
Scottish Borders Council believes that Care experienced people face significant 
barriers that impact them throughout their lives: 

• Despite the resilience of many care experienced people, society too often 
does not take their needs into account. 

• Care experienced people often face indirect discrimination and stigma 
across housing, health, education, relationships, employment and in the 
criminal justice system. 

• Care experienced people often face a postcode lottery of support Across 
the UK.  However, we acknowledge the significant efforts of Scottish 
Borders Council to ensure this is minimised.   

• As corporate parents, Councillors have a collective responsibility for 
providing the best possible care and safeguarding for the children who are 
looked after by us as an authority. 

• All corporate parents should commit to acting as mentors, hearing the 
voices of looked after children and young people, and to consider their 
needs in any aspect of Council work.   

• Councillors should be champions of our looked after children and 
challenge the negative attitudes and prejudice that exists in all aspects of 
society. 

 
Scottish Borders Council therefore RESOLVES: 
 

1. When making any decisions in relation to its policies, or formulating its 
Council Plan, that it recognises that Care Experienced people can and do 
face indirect and direct discrimination. 

Page 587

Agenda Item 17



2. That it reaffirms its commitment to recognise that Scottish Borders 
Council has a duty to put the needs of vulnerable people at the heart of 
decision-making through co-production and collaboration, building upon 
and underpinning “The Promise”. 

3. To formally call upon all other bodies to treat care experience as a 
Protected Characteristic until such time as it may be introduced by 
legislation. 

4. For the Council to continue to proactively seek out and listen to the 
voices of care experienced people when developing new policies based 
on their views.  

5. The Chief Social Work and Public Protection Officer brings a report to Full 
Council on the barriers care experienced adults face by 26 January 2023.  

6. The agreed Motion would take effect from the receipt of the above report 
on 26 January 2023, to acknowledge the time needed for Officers to 
enact the changes needed.  

7. If the above report is later than 26 January 2023, that the Motion still 
takes effect from 26 January 2023.  

 

Page 588



Document is Restricted

Page 589

Agenda Item 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minute
	1. To Executive Member for Roads Development & Maintenance
	Question from Councillor Begg
	To Executive Member for Environment and Transport

	8a Audit Scotland - Annual Reports 2021/22
	8b Acting Chief Financial Officer report on Annual Accounts 2021/22
	8c Scottish Borders Council Audited Annual Accounts to 31 March 2022
	8d Pension Fund Audited Annual Accounts to 31 March 2022
	8e SBC Common Good Funds Audited Annual Accounts to 31 March 2022
	8f SBC Welfare Trust Audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022
	8g SBC Education Trust Audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022
	8h SBC Community Enhancement Trust Audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022
	8i SBC Ormiston Trust for Institute Audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022
	8j SBC Charitable Trusts Audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022
	8k Bridge Homes LLP Audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022
	8l Lowood Tweedbank Ltd Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2022
	9 Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22
	Approved by
	Item No. 9 - Annual Treasury Management Outturn Report 2021-22 - Appendix 1
	1.	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	a)	Investment returns remained close to zero for much of 2021/22.  Most local authority lending managed to avoid negative rates and one feature of the year was the continued growth of inter local authority lending. The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was that Bank Rate would remain at 0.1% until it was clear to the Bank of England that the emergency level of rates introduced at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic were no longer necessitated.
	b)	The Bank of England and the Government also maintained various monetary and fiscal measures, supplying the banking system and the economy with massive amounts of cheap credit so that banks could help cash-starved businesses to survive the various lockdowns/negative impact on their cashflow. The Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on to businesses.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in financial markets than there was demand to borrow, with the consequent effect that investment earnings rates remained low until towards the turn of the year when inflation concerns indicated central banks, not just the Bank of England, would need to lift interest rates to combat the second-round effects of growing levels of inflation (CPI was 6.2% in February).
	c)	While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms of additional capital and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial crisis. These requirements have provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, with annual stress tests by regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme stressed market and economic conditions.
	d)	Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy of using reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than borrowing externally from the financial markets. External borrowing would have incurred an additional cost, due to the differential between borrowing and investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown above and below. Such an approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing the counterparty risk exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the financial markets.
	a)	During 2021-22, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This meant that the capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used as an interim measure. This strategy was prudent as investment returns were very low and minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be considered.
	b)	A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that was not immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused a temporary increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – the difference between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns.
	c)	The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has served well over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing debt.
	d)	Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was adopted with the treasury operations. The Director Finance & Corporate Governance therefore monitored  interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the following principles to manage interest rate risks:
		if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings would have been postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing would have been considered.
		if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position would have been re-appraised.  Most likely, fixed rate funding would have been drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected to be in the next few years.
	e)	Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed borrowing rates during 2021/22 and the two subsequent financial years until the turn of the year, when inflation concerns increased significantly.  Internal, variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing until well into the second half of 2021/22.
	Forecasts at the time of approval of the treasury management strategy report for 2021/22 were as follows: -
	f)	PWLB rates are based on gilt (UK Government bonds) yields through H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields.  The main influences on gilt yields are Bank Rate, inflation expectations and movements in US treasury yields. Inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation and the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets over the last 30 years.  We have seen, over the last two years, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative on expectations that the EU would struggle to get growth rates and inflation up from low levels. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a recession.  Recently, yields have risen since the turn of the year on the back of
	g)	Graph of UK gilt yields v. US treasury yields
	h)	Gilt yields fell sharply from the spring of 2021 through to September and then spiked back up before falling again through December.  However, by January sentiment had well and truly changed, as markets became focussed on the embedded nature of inflation, spurred on by a broader opening of economies post the pandemic, and rising commodity and food prices resulting from the Russian invasion of Ukraine. At the close of the day on 31 March 2022, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were between 1.11% – 1.45% while the 10-year and 25-year yields were at 1.63% and 1.84%.
	i)	Regarding PWLB borrowing rates, the various margins attributed to their pricing are as follows:-
		PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
		PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps)
		PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
		PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps)
		Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)
	j)	There is likely to be a further rise in short dated gilt yields and PWLB rates over the next three years as Bank Rate is forecast to rise from 0.75% in March 2022 to 1.25% later this year, with upside risk likely if the economy proves resilient in the light of the cost-of-living squeeze.  Medium to long dated yields are driven primarily by inflation concerns but the Bank of England is also embarking on a process of Quantitative Tightening when Bank Rate hits 1%, whereby the Bank’s £895bn stock of gilt and corporate bonds will be sold back into the market over several years.  The impact this policy will have on the market pricing of gilts, while issuance is markedly increasing, is an unknown at the time of writing.



	11 Climate Change: Council Emissions and Public Reporting
	Approved by
	Item No. 11 - Appendix 1 PBCCD FINAL report
	Item No. 11 -  Appendix 2 ToR Sustainability Reference Group

	12 Local Development Plan - Development Plan Scheme 2022
	Approved by
	Item No. 12 - Appendix 1 LDP Scheme

	13 Tree Policy
	Approved by
	Item No. 13 - Appendix Final Draft Tree Policy

	15 Licensing of Short Term Lets
	Approved by
	Item No. 15 - Appendix 1 - Short Term Lets Response Report
	Licensing Short Term Lets 2022
	1: How are you responding to this consultation?
	2: Which of the following best describes your short term let situation?
	1: Are there any parts of the draft policy statement that you wish to make comment on?
	2: Do you agree with the proposed additional conditions set out by Scottish Borders Council?
	3: Do you think the fee structure is fair?
	1: Do you have any final thoughts about Short Term Lets in the Scottish Borders.


	Item No. 15 - Appendix 2 - Draft Policy Statement - Licensing of Short Term Lets - 24-11-2022

	16 2023 Review of UK Parliamentary Constituencies
	Approved by

	17 Motion
	23 Minute

